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Our purpose

Qur purpose s to transform legal services through our people

for our chients. That's why we are transforming our own business,

with technological innovation, eutstanding sector specialists and
advanced working practices. This transiates into an entirely new,
resihent, business model that benefits from significant recurnng
revenues frorm institutional clients in our key industry sectors

of Insurance, Financial Services and Real Estate.

While the current environment is unprecedented, the Board

is confident that the Group is well placed to continue to provide
best service 1o our clhents and benelit lrom future opportunities
when the business environment normalses.

We are built for both strength and resilience.

Strength and resihence are directly intedinked within
OWF, throughocut this report, this icon highlights
examples of how we put this in 1o praciice.

+ For the ziest new releases and wideo
presentabons please see dwigroup com
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Highilights

Solid performance

Hevepue

£297.2m
+10.9%

Revenue per partner’

£784.3k
-9%

Cost to income ratio?

42.6%
-0.1ppts

Dperating Profit

£22.2m
+46%

Underlying adjusted EBITDA?

£21.8m
-22%

Reported PBT

£18.2m
+40%

£13.8m
-32%

Gross profit margin

47.9%
-5.6ppts

Net debt®

£64.9m
+£29.6m
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DWEF at a glance

Who we are
and what

we do

Innovation 15 at the forefront of cur strategy to provide

a competitive and differennated offenng for our ¢lients.
We helieve innovation will help us become the chosen
partner for outsourced legal and Connected Services.

As a listed company, we now have a remuneration model
which includes equity iIncentives for our partners and fee
earners that we believe 1s unique amaongst our peers.

Our three delivery
platforms: Comptlex,
Managed, Connected

These are at the heart of our
ntegrated oflering adding value
for our chenis

Managed

We handle process onentated logal
waork — but we do it differently Qur
Managed Services leam takas day-1o-Usy
law and manages 1t Delter, We make o

mare prechCiatile and consigtent. smoathirig

and sireamiming processes YWe also

mzke € more cost- and uime-glhicizm,

thecugh logical process mapgang and
a technology-enabled piatferm

Complex

We ofter chents premm legdl sdwce.
expeitise and attention Complex lavw
has always been & mamnslay
of our business.

Connected

We otfor 2 wide range ol addional

nrogucis and services ihrough cur
Connected Services division, affowing
chents O consohdate thew supply chan
[hese praducts and services include
i digital clewms platform and soltwae
solutions, as well as soeialis! lavwyers

and barnsiers forensic aceountanis

and Investgaiars.

Our cultuire

We have a collaborative and inclusive
cuhure that underping our decisions.
We are buiding inclusnaty by:

- being a force for good i society,
acting giobally and engsging locally,

— demonstialing commitment at the
highest lever;

- estabishing susiainable and socially
responsible business pnncples,

- makng DWEF 3 great place 10 work
and 10 do busingss

+ See page 37 for more information

Our values

Abways aim higher

By retusing to do only the minimum
and reaching further every ume, we
expand the realim of what's possible.

Be better together

By supporting 2ach other and
wOrking as a team we can achieve
mare far our chents and guiselves

Disrupt 10 progress

Just because there's an establshed
way of doing things, it doesa’t mean
it's the best way.

Keep all promises

A promise (s a promise, no matter
haw farge ar small. By kecpng
promises, we build trust, lovalty
and commitment

Attand (o details

Paymg attention 1o every last detad
15 the nght way a ensuie clients
expertience the very best af [DWF

<+ See pages 12 and 37 for more
information .
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Our divisions

Commercial Services

Prowviding a range of Complex tegal services and Managed Services
10 a wade range of chiirnts and sectnes, our Commeicial Services
division includes corporaie, Imgation and roal eslate praches groups
These cover areas such as business restructonng, commercial and
compeliion, 1ax and prvate capilal, emplayment, hnance, pensions,
reol esiate, debi recovery, assct management, housing and planning

Revenue

Insurance Services

Prowiding a range of Coemplex legal services and Managed Sarvices

pradorminanty 10 msurers and then chents Fhis division includes our
teams covernng catastroptuc personal imury, occupational haatth and
casually, motor, fraud and resolution law, as well as our protessienal
ndernnity and commarcial insurance pracuce groups

£104.4m

19 Paringrs
1.008 FTE

£95.8m

B89 Pariners
899 FTE

Connected Services

Prowiding out products and sefvices 1hat complement the legal
services olfered by our other three divisions Cennected Services
has peen buill on our existing progucts and services, including our
costs business, our inswance clarns handling business, and ows
saltware gnd 2chnology company, as well 3s other seivice ines,
such as loss adusung

£20.2m

18 Pariners
278 FIE

international

Pioviding Complex legal services and Managed Services oulside

of the UK and Ireland, our Internanonal division focuses on grovwth
In the same areas of legal services as ow Commercial Services and
Insurance Services divisions, acioss termoaas that mclude Austraha,
France, Germany italy, ine Middle £ast, Poland and Spam

Our international presence

We have cfiices in 37 lezauans across four contments, with
mere than 4,200 people We also work in associauon with sx
other legal husiness arounc the world. 1in the US4, Argentina,
Panama, Colomina, Turkey and South Afnca

£76.8m

173 Patiners
882 FTE

4,200+

people are employed 2cross the Group

FTSE 100

VWe work with 25 of the FTSE 100
comaanies

10+ year

relatiionships walh helf of o chenrs
{

14%

ot revenua cores from our tap five Clenis
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Chairman’s statement

Supporting our
people, delivering
for our clients

Jonathan Bloomer
Charman

Dear shareholder,

1 am delighted to wefcoeme you to our Annual Report and equaily
delighted to ntroduce mysell as your new Chayr | have been
the Chairman of DWF Group tor a hitle over five weeks and

50 }wani 1o begin by tharking my predecessor and now Group
CEOQ, S Niget Knowiles, and our Deputy Chanrman, Chns
Sulivan, for their contributicns and support in helping me
pepare this staternant

I am very plezsed 1o have taken on the rote of Chairman of Divwk
It is a differentaled business it a highly competive industty
that s on the verge of a penod of significant crange. The Group
15 very well positioned o capitalise on this change, and | am
locking forward to working with the Board 10 :mplement the
strategy set out by Sir Migel, amed at 1aking DWF forward

to 3 new phase of susianable and mofiable growth.

Business and markets

Like all businesses in qur sector and beyond, we face the
considerable challenge of navigatng an unpredictable giobal
economy that will continue to be affected by COVID-19 for
the foreseeable future.

COVID-I9 had a significant impact on our
business, but we ave done a munber of things
to ensure DWI has the strength and resilience
to perform throughout this fancial year.

These include implementing a cost-savings programme that wall
realise £15m of savings in ihis financial year, and an agreeament
wilh lenders that prowdes access 10 a secondary revolving
credit facility CRCFY of £15m, in additon o ouw easting ROF

of £80m wath a relaxaucn of certain covenants.

While we moved quickly 1o further sirengthen liguidity 2nd
increase operatonal ethciency, we have also seen performance
improve markedly s:nce April, as our diftereniisiad offering and
range of services reman in demand Owr strong relationships
wiath instiutional chents in our key sectors have also ensured
that aur cash eollection has been heality
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Qur employees and culture

COVIE-19 has atso had a significant mpact on 0ur wiys

of working Throughout this pernod, our pnonty bas been ihe
health and safely of owr peaple. An outsiending respense lom
our tT and cther central services leams ensured that more than
95% of our people were able (o work from home duning the
sinctest lockdown peneds. A sigrificant properiion of our peop!a
continue 10 work remotely, and we have put n place nuMearous
measuras 1o support them in doing so, with 3 particular locus

on thewr physical and rnental wellbeing

We are now carefully implementing plans for
phased returns to offices, dependent on the
specific cirainnstances and governiental
enidance in our respective locations.

The importance DWF places upen cutiure has Been impressed
uoon Mme since my appointment The Group has made fuilbet
progress this year to suppoit partner end employee recogrition,
iiprove and harrmonise benelits, perform strongly m lcading
Dhversity & Inclusion {'O&1°) rankings, and make a siymifican
commurnity 1mpact.

Strategy and capital ailocation

Despite the disruption caused by the COVID-19 gandemiic, we
made very good progress with our strategy i FY20 Among the
principal capital allocations the Group made, the acguisiions

of RCD and Mindcrest have helped develop turther our
International and Managed Services busingsses. We anticipale
reinvesting around half of the £15m of FY21 cost savings as we
continue targeted, sirategic investmienis IN oui capabiiities

Dividend

Like many hsted businesses, the impact of COVID-19 has
caused us 10 1eview oW position on paying a fuli-year dmidend.
This is & matier we have given great consideraion 10, as wi
know the importance ol & dividend, 1 both our exterral and
internal shareholiders.

The propesal of a final deadend tor Y20 underscores

our current confidence in FY21 trading and outlogk We are
seeing our approach o providing integrated legal services
through cur Cormplex, Managed and Connected proposdion
resonate with clienis. This is dnving an encouraging pipeline

of new work. At the same time, we conunue to ook for further
aperating efficiencies 10 budd upon 1he cost reductions we
announced in May and July and the office rasionalisanons

that are well underway.

ESG

The Board recognises that Envicanmental, Social and
Governance matiers are of greater importance than ever belore
Your Board performed well in ensunng effective govarnance in
oul business and you can read more detad on the actvites and
prionties of our governance commidlees on pages 64 10 91

We also strive 10 make p positive social and environmental
imipact, most notably through our CSR activities and the work
ol the DWF Foundation, which you can read 2boui on pages 36
143

Living our valuces

The cullure vathn our business 1s underpinned by our five

core values [fus year, morg than ever, we have seen our
| people ving our values as they have responded to the
challenges presented by COVID-19 Tris has been clear in
the way our people have suppoited each other, our clients
gt ouwr communtlies

Thus year we launched DWE Achievers, a recogmition platiorm
that alicws colleagues 1o congratulate each other for bving to
o values, Sce its launch eardien in year, there have been
more than 9,000 recognitions through the platform

Sec pages 36 10 43 for more nformaton.

Jonathan Bloomer
Chanman
7 Seprember 2070
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Group Chief Executive Office

A resilient
business model

Sir Nigel Knowles
Group Chiefl Execuiive Officer

The globat legal industry s going through a period of sigrihicant
change as new delivery models and service providers emerge 1o
meet chent dermands for greater ease and efficiency. This trend
15 only likely to accelerate, as the econonuc conscquences of
COVID-19 force more in-house legal leams 1o challenge the
estsbhshed ways ol domng things

I am honoured to bave been asked 10 lead 1he Group

through this peniad-of change. and em pleased w descnbe here
some of what we have done through the course of Y20 - and
beyond - to ensure DWF 15 weli placed 1o cannalse on these
mai kel opportunises.

Firstly though, | want 1o reiierate my thanks and pay tnbuis
to my predecessor as Chief Execunve Oflicer, Andrew
Leaitheriand tn May this year it was announced that Androw
woutd be siepping down as Group CEQ Andrew spent more
than 20 years at DWF and was CEO for 1& years

He was instrumental i the growth of DWE bothin the
develppment and expansion of the services the Gioup provdss,
as well asts geographic spread Dunng hus tenure, DWFE grew
fram two affices i the UK 10 a global busimes:; of more than

30 olfices across four continents. He was also ai tie heart of
DWE's successtul 1IPOn NMarch 2819 | wosh Andrew wek

wath s future endeavowrs,

'S

report

FY20 perfermance

Treding through the majonty of FY20 was strong and the Group
made signicant invesiments 10 SUpport 1S growih objectives
The sudden and far reaching smpact of COVID-19 had a materna!
effect on the tinal guarier vweith a resuling impact on profitability.
Nespite this, we dehvared a sohd performance with overall
revenue giowlh of 10 9% and orgame growth of 2 0%.

While we achieved record Group revenue, wath an organic
growth rate that compares o other global low firms in FY20,

1 wrs lower thar expectad

Our progress with our strategy

Our stiategy 15 to provide imegrated legal services globally
threwgh our Complex, Managed and Connecied delivery
modals, whieh we can combine 10 dehver bespoke solutions
tor our chients This single integrated approech delivers greater
efficiency, price certamty and transparency for our clients
withoul compromising on quality and service.

Complex legal adwisory services have always been a mainstay

of our businass Through our Commeraial, Insurance and
International Services divisions, we prowide clients with prerium
legal advice and excellent client seivice YWe have continuad 10
inwvest m o strengthemng our Comiplex legal advisory capatilities
through the year, including through the majonty of our net 64
partner joners This incluces the new oaitners who have oined
our Busmess through acgasinon
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Managed Services provides aliernalive legal services,
often gutsourced and process led services, which standardise.
systematise, scale and optmise legal workflows. We tock

3 significant step tlowards scaling our Managed Serwices offering

this year through the acquisition of Mindcrest This signdficently
extended our Managed Sefvices capability, giving us a presence
N Pune, India, and access o an expenienced and talented

team that has been operating Managed Services contracis

with corporale chents for more than 15 years. [he addition

of Mindcrest 10 our existing Managed Serwvices 1eams s

already resulting in new client opportunites

While our Connected Services division, whuch provides
products and services thal enhance our legal afferings, did not
grow &s much as anticipated at 13.0%, this was aftecied by
underperformance in one Connecled business that we have
since restruclured. The other Connecied business’ revenues
grew ©.18.5% yearon-year. A number of Connieciled innovations
and cheni projects were also nstrumental in OVWE actieving 1S
highest ever posibon in the 2019 Financial Times Innovalive
Lawyers repart, being ranked the sighth most ninovanve: law
hiem in BEurope. We also won two awards, including one for

aur ground-presking {PQ. Our innovation credentals were
strengthened further this year with the acguisiton of RCO

in Span. RCD has also consistently ranked highly n the FT's
report and wes the firstin s market to estabiish a speafic
nnovation departrment.

M&A 15 glso g key facion in enabling us 10 echigve our SUHEgy
In FY20, we compisted the acquisitions of RCD and Mindcrest,
and esiabbshed our fust office in Poland through the recnntment
af the Warsaw othice of K&L Gates Jamka We also openecd an
oflice wn Dusseldurt twough a team e from Marccus Partners
and, with further 1cam mires, we stiengthened owr offenng in
Austraba. DWF has completed 17 acquesiions in the past 13
vears, but wvath external markel condwons and a desre 10 ensure
we have Tully inlegiated cur most recent addions, therzas
alemporary pause on MEA vl stll be a key ingredient n
drving further growth, and we anucipate resuming actvily
when candiions aliowvy,

{ur people

Qur culture s defined by our five core values Always aim
righer, Be betned together; Disrupt 10 progress; Keep all
promises; and Atlend to datails These values have long been
integial 16 1he success of our business and ermphasise our focus
on our peaple, owr chonts and our communithias, but this year we
launched two key engagement inliatives 1o further estabiish
them across the business

We launched The Rubie Awards, our annual awards pragramme,
through wihich peopie can normunate coileaguas for recogrition
wr one of en dilferent categories. We also launched DWF
Achievers as a day-la-day recognition platform, through which
people recogmise each other for Iiving our values. t also want 1o
recognise here the resiience and commiiment ol our people,
and thenk everybody for living our values In recent months
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s report continued

COVID-19 has regurred all of us 1o make significant adjusiments
to our daily working fives, in many cases Juggling other persona
responsibilmes and commniments We have scen countless
examples of the ways colleagues have been supporting each
other through challenging circumstancas, and continung 1o
provide the same excellent service 1o our chants

We conduct two global Pulse Surveys each year, helping us
assess the views of our peopic on thew career and oxpenenccs
al DWE The most recent of these surveys completed shortly
followang my appomtment as CEO in FY21, but it seems
appropnate to reveal the findings here, 10 Wustraie our
progression. We were pleased with a sizeable increase n the
proporucn of people completing the survey, rising irom 60%

13 67%, while our overall Engagement Scare - a compas:a
figure based on three key quesuons in the survey — edged

up from 75 10 V6.

Our people are central 1o the Group's CSR acuwvities, dedicating

ther ume and expertise thrgugh programmes such as our

sogial mobity initiative, 5 STAR Fuiures, and contnbunng 1o

and coordinaung fundraising o suppert the charnable giving

of the DWF Foundation This has agan been ewdent throughout
COVIN-19. vath a range of lundraising and comimunity acuviies

to supporl, for example, the manufzciere of PPE equipment and
donations to food banks

We participate iy the Business i the Community’s Responsible
Business Tracker, 10 help us assess our pedormance as

a responsible business Our overall score of 60% confirms that
we are leading our benchimarking group, compaied o a legal
sector average of 81%, and that we scoted hugher than the
average score of 43%, from all 94 cross-secior companies who
took part,

Our clients

We have continued 1o strengthen our chent relationships this
vear thiough the provision of services 10 new and existing
clients In FY20, we were successful in beng apponied or
reappomted to 28 legal panels, induding appoinuments hom
Severn Trent and Dixens Carphone. DWE was atso appomied
as a Swategic Legal Partner 1o BT 10 provide real estate and
insurance services through a fiveyear Menaged Services
contract. We were supsequently also added 10 BT's
significanily reduced external fegat panel We have also
supported our chents 0 a number of IMocant htgauen
mandates, which inciuded the successiul defence of WM
Mornson i a langdmark case al the Supreme Court,

This vear, we launched a new internal Key Client prograrmrme

10 Bnsure wWe are prov:ding even greater resources and focus

to our most sigreficant clients This programme 1 0 its tirst year,
hut we have already seen 21% year on-year bilings increase
from our ‘grow’ and ‘target hants.

At the end of our last financial vear, we lsunched our largest
ever chent kstening project, conducting a review of more than
ADD chert contacts The purpose of this proect 15 1o give us
comprehensive chant feadback, enabling us 1o 1nvest further
in arcas whare chents denve most value, and to dentify any
areas to wnplove

FY21 strateqgy
Following my appotntment as CEO on 29 May. | reaffirmed
ouf commitment to our stiategy, whichis fundamentally
the right ore There will be no sharp changes of direction
trom DWE but there will be much greater fotus this year
cn operatonal improvemeant The aim s 10 improve
cihiciency across the Group, hatter connectivily across our
olobal businass, and 1o see the iImprovemeants N Wworking
capital performance that we believe will help us 1o reduce
net debi. Key priorues, some of which are already
complete, include,

- a surategic review of our business, resuliing in the closure
of othces in Brussels and Singapore, and a reduction
ot our presence in Cologne and Dubai

-~ araview of the Group's costs, resutting in the
wentfcation of 2 further £5m of cost savings in FY21 in
additian 10 £10m of savings already implemented before
my appointment

— a project to significanmly tmprove our lock up performance
{the time it 1akes o convert wark in progress and debtaors
o cash) with progress already being made, as lock up
has fallen lrom 206 days at 30 Apnl 1o 200 days at 31 July

- a greaier focus on the miegration of recent acquisitions.
G WMpIove HUSINgss anportuniiies and syngrgies

- growing our Managed Services offenng.
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Outlook and current trading

Iy our traging update issued i July, we s5a:d we ware caubiously
apurstic that FY21 widl benefs frarm the actions we have taken
to reshape costs, combined with the clieal opportunines wo
continue 1o see. The environment remains uncertamn, but we have
large pans of our business which ere annuity and some which are
countercychcal i nature and we expecl 1o see some increased
achvity as a resull The first four months of traging have shown

a steady recovery in actvily levels since the dip in actity n 04 of
FY20, and more imparaatly, this has wanslated inlo a significantly
improved nel profit position. This is despite the cost sevings we
have executed having a time fag such that they are not yet &ll
reflected in the FY21 yearto-daie profit contnbuiion. As wie look
forward, we expect to benelit from a {full vear revenue and protit
conifibution from our acquisitons, RCD and Mindcrest The Group
will also benelit fram the partner and team hire actvity marle
towards the end of FY20, as thesea contrbute organic revenue
and profas. The further impact of the cost saving measures and
savings from discontmued loss making operations will und2ipin
near term prolitability, in ine with the Group's target of delvenng
prafiable, cash hacked grawth The discontnued and reduced
operations represented ¢.15% of Group revenues and generated
2 £4.5m EBITOA loss i FY20. The Groug's ¢osi saving
programmes are expecied to reduce the FY20 cosi base by
£15m, although approsximately 50% of this may be reinvested
into the business in key growth seciors. The propasal of a final
dividend for FY20 underscores our current confidence in FY21
trading and outlook

We are seaing our approach 1o providing integrated legal
services through our Complex. Managed and Connected
propesition resonate with chents This 1s drving an ercouraging
pipeline of new work. At the same nme, we contnue 10 Jook for
further cperating efficiencies to buld upon the cost reductions
we announced In May and July and tha office rationahsations
that are well underway.

In the first quarier, we have seen a sigrificant uphick in d
actvity which has resulted m numerous chent wing, including
a new coniract to handle casvalty and motor mury claims in
Scotland and Northern reland wath mulunational insurance
company, fwviva.

Sir Nigel Knowles
Group Chief Executive Officer
7 Septermber 2020
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Our market drivers

Underpinned

bv strong

market drivers

Market overview

The legal services industry continues to evolve rapidly,

with the challengas presented by COVID-19 oniy likely to
accelerate a number of the key drivers of change Even before
the COViD-19 pandemic, eght in ten of the UK's largest taw
firrms sasd that making beter use of technoiogy was thei key
priority for the next iwo 10 Iniee years. With 1emole waorking
moving fram a short-term need to a longerterm shift in

wiays of warking, and with compenies seeking preductivity
simprovernents and greater efficency from therr legat
funcuons, this will move from prionty 10 necessHy.

What 1this means
for conindustry

Chent consohdation
of suppliers

Clients are lookng 1o consuhdate their
supply chans and reduce the number
of prolessional services providers

This will help them beer manage the
budgets of thew legal functon, and
bring efficiencies m procurement and
suppher review processes. In April,

BT reduced its legal panel from around
490 10 15 hirens, with DWF a nowly-
appainied panel member

L egal services providers will need
1o be able 1o oHer 3 broader renge
of integraied and related services.
and demonstrate a sectoied
understanding of clients’ challenges
COVID-18 will be an acceleralor,

as clients come under significam
pressure to manage budgets at

a time when demand for advice may
be increasing, as we typically see
more disputes duimg a downtuimn

Qur opporiunily

Qur difterentiated business model
and seclar expertise gives us an
OppoOriunity 10 win 3 greater share of
the markei, by deepening relationships
with existing clienis and winning

nevy appomirments

Chi response

We have continued to investin
strengthening our services ang
extending our global reach, enabling

us Lo oller more of the seivices

our chents need, where they need
thermn Que strengihs in ligaton and
INSUIBNCE. twa busimess areas typically
in demard through a downlura, mean
we are well-placed ta capiialise gn

this opportunity.
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Alternative to the

in recent years. we have seen an influx
of new entiamis 16 the legat services
markel with providers challenging the
long-standing model offered by law
firrms Thais s 8 resull of inchouse
counsel locking for more cost-effective
solutrons and standardised processes,
especisily for work that doesn'i need
to be done Dy tramed iswyers.

The tradiuignal maodshwill come under
evergrealer pressure, especally for
the provision of cenan services, end
firrns waill need 10 adapt 10 continue
carnpeting COVID-19 vall agan Act 4y
an acceleralor due to the pressure on
legal funcuon budgets, and we expect
10 see greater use of alternative legal
service providers LALSPST) by clieats
as thoy ook te do more for less

Our ability 0 provide complex advisory
services while addressing chents’
demands for managed services more
effictently, in addiian to our Connected
Services offering, gives us an
opporiurity to rovide ar aliracuve
shernative 1o the rradional model.

Ve have contitued 10 mwesin ow
dtferenuated modst, launching new
connacled services and acquinng
Mindcrest to strengihen our Managed
Services (datlonn DWF Mindorest
has been awerded a Band 1 renking

in the Chambers ALSP Guide We have
demonsirated our secior knowtedge
through gwt thought-leadershp
programme, incluging our
COVIDA19 hut

Technology as
a strategic enabler
The tegal services SeCiorn Is increasingly
camgplax, as 8 broad range of providers
with differing busmess modeis
compete and collaborate. Thus has
resulied i a penod of innovation with
far grzater adopuon of technology 1o
address chents’ challenges. This waill
continug, but we will also see an
increasing number of iegal services
providers turn this trend inwards, as
COVID-19 causes hrms to assess how
techrology can enable new ways

of working.

Lavv-firm
consolidation

Receni years have seen consalidation
within the legal services market, vith
a number of significant mergers or
acquisiions at a natonal and cross-
horder level This trend wall continue a5
iirms seek o benefn from greater
scale and eperational efficcencies,
especially in markets such as Austraha
and Canada, which have expenenced
less cansohdation so far.

Legal services providers will need

1o continue kvesting in technology
12 support service 1o chents, but also
10 ensure their people can wo'k
effectively and ethoiently in a flexible
way. DWF has long had a culture of
agile workmng, with an enabhng
technology platform. ftis clear that
legal serwvices can be offered through
agile working, and this wall
iundamentzlly disrupt the legal market.

The sacior remamns ighly fragrmented
i COMpanson 1o ather elements of the
professional services industry With the
other drivers outlined here providing
opportuities for those with glohal scale
and a greater breadin of expernse,
conschidation will continue and longer
term could accelerate COVIDA9 will
have a miting wpact in the short term
as businesses seek (o consgrve cash,
but we may continue 10 see some
tacucal and stiategic opportunities,
including distressed situations.

To work collaboratively with chenis,
using our sectorknowledge and
‘avesinient in technotogy ta find the
right soivtons To ermbrace new ways
of working as a permanent feature

ol our business medel, with potential
matienal benefits in the amount of
snace we require, the flexible working
options avadable 1o our people, and
benefits ta our susizinability agenda
through reduced consumption of power
and papger, and less travel required.

We have enjoyed very stiong
benefits from our acquisition strategy
wWhile M&A actvity1s on hold i the
current environment, we will continue
10 1dentify opporiunities to grow oui
husiness organically and inorgamically
Thus wll focus on, but not be hmited
to, further conselidation cpporumties
m our nternationa) operations and
conunued bulding of cur Managed
and Cannected Services capabiies

Y2 gre commitied 10 'Domg things
Differently” and have invested in
:echnology throughout our Complex,
Managed and Connected platiorms.
We rmoved quickly 10 enable agile
working for more than 95% of our
peaplic, and we will agply the best
practices developed dunng this penod
1o suppert penmanent shifts 10 how,
where and when ow peaplc work,

in the past finanaal year, we acquired
RCD i Spaw and Mindorest. We also
Isunched in Poland and expanded

in Qermeny and Austraha through
large-team recruitment While
COVID-18 wiil mean a slower penod

ot acquisitive activily, we expect 1o
continue once market conduions return
1o normal
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Our business model

Creating sharcholder returns,

mvestiment i the business

and mcentivising our people

Diviven by our purpose and values

S

lmpaé ted by

Our purpose

To transiorm legal services, through our
people, for our clients. That's why we are

transforming our own Dusingss, brnging

technalogical innovations, outstanding sector
specialists and our advanced working practices

together in an enuirely new business model.

Our values

Alvways aim higher

By refusing o do only the minimum and reaching further
every ime, we expand the realm of what's possibie

Be better together

By sucporhing each athar and working as a team, we can

achieve mare for cur chenlts and ourselves

Disrupt to progress

Just because there’s an establshed way of domng things,

1M goesn T mean s the best way

Keep ail promises

A RIomise 15 s promise, no matter how large or small

By kezping promises, we buld trusi, lovally and commitment

Attend to details

Pay.ng attenticn 12 every last detaid 1s the aght way 1o ensure

chernits exponence ihe very best of Dt

Market droivers

Our differentiated business model

leaves us well placed to capitalise on the
key trends driving change in our industry.

Client consohdation of suppliers

Alternative to traditional law firm model

Technology

Law firm consolidation

4+ See pagas 10 and 11 for more information

Our stakehwolders

Understanding and responding to therr

issues through effective engagement

4 See pages 14 to 17 for more information
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Qur nuun activities

Predictable, recurning and diverse revenue
streams — a significant proportion of our
revenues are recurnng, and earned through
our main activities.

1. Commercial Services
Corporate services, hiyetion and real estate practice groups.

2. Insurance Services
Insurance law and professional ndemnity, and commeroa!
INSLTENCE DISCUCE QIouss

3. International

The: same areas of ‘egas setwces 35 our Commercal
Services and Insurance Services dvisions, but outside
ot the UJK and breland

4. Connected Services
Professionat and technology services complermi=ntary
1o those oifered by our other three duisions

Outputs

Maximising value through our differentiated strategy:
Understanding our clients

We create value for cur ciients by providing sclulions that
meet thew busingss requirerments, across multiple jurnisdictions
and tinked service offerngs This allows them to consolidate
end secure 1her sty chain, and gen the efficencies that
come wath consohdation Our professionals offer sector
specific expertise, which enables soluuons more closely
tadored 1o chent needs

Engaging our people

As a peop'e business, engagement, employee welfare,
wvalues and diversdy aie at the hear! of what we do

Our ¢hiferentiaied proposinen, global reach and enviable
clent ist oflars amazing apportun.ties 1o grow and develop
Qur values and social conscrence are also part of our DNA,
and through the DWFE Fouendaucn, an independent registered
chanty, we contnbule (0 many worlhy causes in the
commumiies where we operate

Doing things differently

Ve are not afrand 10 distupt 1ne legal services sector, or what
we affer, and this willingn2ss 10 minpvate ulbmately bongs
more efficient solutions tor our chents and helps us grow

as 3 business Doing things differently also creates ntarmal
efliciencies by lrzeny up capaciy 1o do more complex legat
work, spent more tme with our chents, o proaress furthar

wrough innovaton

How we create and add wvalue 5 Outcomes

Revenue growth

+10.9%

Underlying organic revenue growth

+2.0%

Revenue per partner

-9.0%

Cost to income ratio

42.6%

Hours volunteered

12,500 hrs

People employed

4,200+
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Our stakeholders

Listening an
responding to our
stakeholders

As a professional services business, the
relationships we build and sustain are at the
heart of our success.

Through the course of this year, we have mvested significant
ume and resources in a pregramme of activities that enables
us te gather input and hear feedback from a broad range

of internal and external stakeholders, We have redcubled

or adapted these activities to ensure they continue

through COVID-19.

- -
Section 172
The Durectors have had regard 10 the matiers et out
in section 17 2(1Hal-i0) of the Comperies Act 2006 when
pericrming their duties under section 172 They consider
they have scted i good {aith, in the way that wou'd be
most likely 1o prominte the seccess of the Company for the
- berefitof ts members as a whole. whie also cogs:d_ermg
_the proad range of stakeholders who interact with, and’ - -
* areratfecied by, our business. S
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Section 172 in action - Board Approval
of DWIF's acquisition of RCD

Last December, DWF announced i had acquied the
Spanmish legal business RCD, with offices in Madrid,
Barcelona and Valencia, ang wath more than 400 people.
The acowsiton was a key strategic developmeant this year

Before Board approval of this acquisition, the Diraclors
considered the interests of all stekeholder groups -

- parucularly our pecple, chents, shareholders and
requtators. Notebly, the acquisidicn met a key comimitment
made 10 PO investors, with Sgain one of several markais
highfighted in our prospectus as being of interest
Brexn uncenainty was a factor behind extensive reqgulatory
engagement 10 ensure we estebhshad an ownership
maode] that would sausiy regulziers in the event of
a ‘no-deal’ exit. The Board also considered the benchicial
impact ihe acquismion would have on our people and
clients, as a major contnbuiory tactor in the contnuod
growth of the business and extension of our services
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Our stakeholders continued

Our people
(cinployees
and partners)

Clients

Suppliers

Shareholders

YWhy we engage

How we engdage

115 wital we recrat, relan sond develop the
best peopie — onfy by domg this will we be
abie to fulfil our purpose

Pulse Surveys to Wrack Bngagerment un
arange ol 1ssues, a monthly Emgployes
Forurn, annual and day-to-day récognition
programmes, and other regular
commumcation - including CECQ updates
through the early phase of COVID-19,
and Board members responsible for
representing the interests ot cmpiovees
and pariners.

Clients are at the heart of everything we do,
and 50 1115 WnpGriant we understand how
we need 1o evolve to prowvide them waith the
rght support

Along-standing Chent Care programrne led
by Relationshup Managers, supported this
year by a hespoke Clent Census to discover
satssfachon metncs and key themes

of feedbeck A specal COVID19 hui

to help chents with current challenges.

We engage 10 build effective and trusied
relatonships, and 1© ensure supplers are
providing value for moncy, perlorming to
our standards and conducung business
to gur expeclaiions.

Qur shareholders play an important cole
in monitornng and safeguarding the
governance of our Group Some arc also
employecs and panner owners, who have
a cniucal rale W play in the contnued
success of our business

Through a fair and cansistent RFP process.
regular review meetings with key supphers,
and ongoing teedback i maintain
epenness and 1o mprove value from
supplier relatonships

A senes of events throughout the financsal
year, ncluding our AGM, half-year and

full year results prescrntaton and roadshow,
and anneal Captal Markets Day.
Management also attend relevant }
conferences, and meet with nwvestors and '
potential invesiors thiough the year

Debt providers

Our conununities

‘The Solicitors
Regulation
Authority and
othier regulators

Policymakers

Access to working capital is the heblood of
any business, especizly novww as companies
need 1o ensure thoy have sutficient liquidity
to navigaie the chailenges presented by
COVID-19. ttis essential we have strang
relationships with our banking providers
and that they are clear about our surategy.

Represantatives from cech bank attend cur
full-year and half-year resulls presentations
and our Capial Markets Day We also have
reqular discussions with our banks about
our strategic prionuies and our respense

to COVID-19.

it1s the nght thing 1o do, but there s also
a clear expectaton of this among Many
of our other stakeholders — including our
people, clients and sharehglders

We engage with the Solicitors Regulation
Authonty { SRA) and other international
podies 10 mamtain the construciive

and trusted relatonships vital 10 any
regulated entity

We work with nauonal and local
Governmenis, pohcymakers, reguiatons
ang trade bedies 1o ensure we can help
shape polhcy

W focus actmties on the themes of
education, employabiiity, health and wellbeing,
and horrelessness. Examples of activity
inclucle the 5 STAR Futures programmea, anct
our peogle’s fundraising in support of the
charitable giving of the DWF Foundation

Cuarnerly meeings with our SRA
Regulatory Manzger and regular meetings
with other requlaters, annual reporting 1o
SRA on stralegy, nsk management and
reg:,damry L‘U:nphance‘ anendance at
SRAed Conpliance Farum

Parucipauon n consuliations, aitendance
and partoipanon 31 conferences and
business network events, smembesship of
relevant industry podies, creaton of relevant
tought leacorshup.
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Leyiniciesis

Strategy, pay and reward, recogniton, Diversity & Inclusion,
weys of working, and our response 1o COVIDA19

The development of new senvices and areas of expertise,
expansion of our offening globaily, developrment of our
Managed and Connected offenings, mpact of COVID-19.

RrP process, due-diigence requirements, governance
EXPCCIBLONS, PaYMent Processes and ienms, mpact
ot COVID-19.

Outcome of engagemen:

Improvements in ow Pulse Survey engagement score -
whichs now at 76, anancrease lrom 75 and 67 respectlively

N DUr fWe Previous suiveys

Arecord of retaining existing clients and winning new
business — including recent wins with Dixons Carphone and
Severn Trent. We were anponted, or reappointed, 10 28 legal

panefs this year

Strong supplier tefatonships and the development
of processes such as a standardised K Supphier Code
of Conduct and Ethical Sourcing Questionnaire 1o improve

overall consisiency.

The addressable market and our strategy te win g greater
share. the building of International, Managed and Connected.
the underbang davers in Commercial and Insurance, progress
W reducing debtor and WIFP days and reducing net debt, owr
response 10 COVID-19,

Strong and constructive relationships with key inshivtional
investors, with issues they raise addressed 1n our
presentatons through the year and at aur Capital Markels
Day — which 0 January focused on two key areas of interest

for investars: Managed ard internatioral

Hesponse to COVID-19, inthatives to improve kock ug days,
capial allccaucn strategy. risk appette and approach 1o
leverage and the provision of ancdlary products over and
above the RCF 1o support the Group's growth ambiions.

How 10 access funding via the DWF Foundation aivl support
through our wider CSR programme

Protessiongl standards and compliance, traimng programme,
innovabon and data-dnven disruption, impacs of COVID-18.

Reguiaiory change in the seciof, innovation in the provis:on
ol legal services respoose o COVIIE19 2nd the broacer
impact on different sectors

Strong and supportive relaionships which resulted in
a posilve response, ensunng the Group was abie to
strengthen its ligudity position (o deal with COVIG-19

£322,900.60 1aised for the DYWE Foundauon in FY20

12.50¢ hours velunteered

1,060 young people supported wn developing ther skills,

57 chanues supported in FY20.

Ranked 16 n the Socal Motility Index.

Constructive relstionsimps and an cpen dialogue. critical for
DVWE as the only legal husiness isted on the tMain Market
Monthly requiatory updates provided to the Board

Opportunity 1o shage pohcy consultatons and devalopment.
posilive chent jelehomstaps walh QOve nimental bodes
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Strategy at a glance

A clear strategy
for growth

Organic growth - three principal strategic objectives

Objective Periormance

. z ) We have continued 1o strengthen our client relationships
&, o - »
Ulldel Stand I llg our ¢ l ICIltS this year by growding high-quality services to nevw and

existng clents, and with the launch of our magjor nevey Chent
Listening project

N - ., A sigrthcant year with a range of new instiatives successiully
hngaglng Our l)cul)lc launched, including our recagnition programmes, The Rubie
Awards and DWF Achicvers We have also introduced a new
global benefts platform and establishad our twice-yearly
Pulse survey

: 1. L . . We have continued 1o invest in our differentiated offering, for
DOI!]g 1h I l]gs dlffel e]]l]y examole through the acquisitions of RCD and MIT‘IdCfGSS and
coni:nuad development of our Connected businesses, This
nvestment is supporting our clients in mzkng better use of
technology. imoroving producivty. and making therr legal
funciions mare cfhcient,

Inorganic growth — disciplined acquisition strategy

Objeciive Performance

AC lliSiti()nS In FY 20, we opened anloﬂncc mWarsaw, Poland and compleicd
q the acouwsiuon of RCOHin Spam 1o add a presence m these

key Frropean economies. We also acquired Mindcrest 1o
signihicantly enhance our Managed Services capatnlives.
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Frgnnes

To deepen these relationsiyps by supporung existing clients n
more locations, and extending them through our Comiptex,
Managed and Connected platiorms - and by using ths
differentiatad offering 1o win new chents

Taking an inclusive approach to help us attract diverse tatent that
better reflects the society we work in, Qur current chatlenge and
fuwre opportunity, due to COVID-19, is 1o create a concrele pian
o ensure we can continue 1o attract and susiain a pipeling

of talent.

To further grow cur Managed offering, including identfying
and moving cenain existing services from our Commercial
and insurance diwsions into Managed Services

Menrsiies

- Net Promaoler Score with Key Chents 50

- Panel appontiments and reappointments 28

- % ol chents supported in more than one country” 56%
- % of chenis wath 3 10-year+ refationshup 50%

+ See pages Z0and 21 for more informaton

- Engagement score: 76
Number of DWF Achievers recogmitions: 9,091
- Number of peopfe promoted: 214

- Strong performance in leading D&l rankings: Stonewall (30th};
Socal Maobiity Index {16th), Top Employers for Working
Farmilies (Top 104, Top 50 Emgloyer for Women

+ See pepes 22 and 23 ar more infgrmation

- BT innovauve Lawyer ranking -8
Connected Services revenue growth — + 13%
- DwE Ventures R&D mvesiment - £700k
- Minderest acquisition annual cost sawings of £2 9m by FY22

+ See pages 24 and 28 for more information
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fMeaswres

Alter a significant perod of M&A activity, our griority w FY21
vt be 1o ensure we have integrated ali recently gequired
businesses property. We have paused now ME&A activily
temporanty, but it remains an mportant paet of our strategy.

- Farnings enhiancing
- Accretve 10 all KPIs

+ See pages /5 and 27 for mare informanon
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Our landmark stralegic
partnership with BT srarted in
November 2019. 1t illustrates our
progress in offering Managed
Services and technology-led
Connected Services - helping
giobal operators achieve
cfficiency benefits.

3115 ane of DWIF's largest wins this financial
year and a ma;or success ior our Mansged
Services business. Demonstrating our
capabilities through this partnership was also

a contributory factor in our appontment o

BT's significantly reduced external legal panel.
We will now provide a full range of Complex,
Managed and Connected Services to the global
communicalions Services Company.

‘the opportunity

To become the chosen paitner for outsourced Managed,
ieqal and Cornecied Services, and to demonstrale our abulity
10 hecame a provider of exiemal advisory services

The innovation

We will use our delivery model to idenufy opportunities Lo binng
further efficiencies to BT's imernal and exiernal legal seraces,
including the opportunity to collaborate with BT as a strategic
partnarnin providing insurance and real estate legal services to
its in-house legal team, alongside being a provider of external
legal services

The value created

The coniract win validaies DWI's approach to 'Understanding
our Chents', by prowiding a full-service offering that combines
Complex advisory capabiiugs with volume-driven and
technology-enabied legal solutions, complemented by

value added services from our connected division

-
Flve“yea r Managed Services deal
1 OFOOO Transier of ¢ 10.000 claims

26 Nutnher of inms TAWWE heat 1o win compatinve mitch
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Strategy in action
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Our people have told us one
of the things thev love at DWI
is being recognised for a job
done well, and also having the
opportunity to celebrate the

successes of colleagues. This year

we introduced two initiatives to
help us recognise the dedication,
commmritment and quahty

of our people.

23

The Rubie Awards 1s our annual awards
programme, where people can nominate
colleagues for recognmition in 10 different
categones. DWF Achievers 1s cur day-to-day
recognition platform, where people can
congratulate each other for hving our values.

The opportunity

To ensure we recognise our people progerly, and 10 give
colleagues the chance 1o share in each other’s success

The innovation

Both iniuatives improve engagement and interacuon
Colleagues can norminale each other for [he Rubie Awards
and they vole for the wirner of ong of the awards Peaple can
‘Boost” Achievars' submissions by donating pomis 1o 1hose
recognised, for them Lo use to buy rewards

The value created

The value shows in the populanty of the imtanves - for
example, we've had rnore than 9,000 recognitians made
through DWF Achievers.

43 0 nominations for The Ruie Awards
80 /(.3 Proportion of callcagues using DWE Achuovers

1 ,200 Average number of tecogrmons ner monin
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This urmgue collaboration was ted by DWF

Ventures, our reseaich and development

arm that speciahises in honzon scanning and
Our approach to ‘Doing things developing new wavys ta work The foresight
differently’ is about adding value from the DWI Ventures team allows us to create
to clients bevond simply providing value for clients by ‘doing things differently’

)
=
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~oal services. We ¢ - -1l g : .
IL?JI services. We mila_l_)omu,(l The opportunity 2
with a globaily recognised z
football chub olie - h: .. R The fooball ciub’s legal team needed a way o paontise and E
ooltbhall chub chient, so that icams manage the wide range and fast flow of legal work armving l pa
Of 1IIH\’L‘E‘Sily students could hcil) irom different parts of the business We created a prograrmme
. . ihrough which University ol Manchester students could help
x vy, -3 Q .. vy i
them (I“\CI()[) a solution for a xeal find a solution, weth oud role being (o facilnate the expenence foe
time legal chatlenge. the beaef.t of the students and the chent We wanted studenis -
10 see how the legal services industry s changing, while helping B
our clent solve an aperational peohlem quickly and effecively §
=
The innovation &
3
i
Work placernents in legal services are noibmg new, but they 2
usually focus on conventonal law. IUs rare for o programme
10 focus on a real-life operational problem, and 10 run in such ;
a structured and expenential way This mnovation helped e
students, DWI and the tootialt club colizborate tha way 2
that warked for all parties. =
3
The value created g

|

Cur client welcomed the solution the students found h used

a three-paint process, with an iniemal chent-engagement trecker,
a formula to assess and priontise work, and a form 1o record
data for analysis. The football club was impressed with the
result and speed of the work. The innovative appraach 1aken
has resulted in 2 long-term relauonsiap with the client, ¢nd
generated value a traditional mode! could net acheve

1 0 days Desgr spont complated m 10 wirking days

3 student icams presented 1 ihe chent fegal teamr
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Strategy in action

Acquisitions
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Our strategy of both organic
and acquisitive growtli has
already brought demonstrable
flnancial and client benefis.
We have successfully completed
and integrated 17 acquisitions
in the past I3 vears. The
strategic acquisition of Rousaud
Costas Doran (‘RCD’) was
DWEs Largest to date, and

it has sigmficantly grown our
mtcrnational capabihities,

- 27

Lstablished in 2003 with the aim of bringing
INNavation to the legal industry n Spain,

RCD estabhshed nself as one of the country’s
fastest-growing full-service law firms. Qur
combined sector alignment and our shared
focus on innovation has the potential for future
natural synergies, and helps fulfll our purpese
ot transtorming legal services

‘the opportunily

We highhighted Span as a key market of interestn our IPO
prospectus. This aoquisition presented an apporluniiy to fulfil
ihat promise and establish a presence in 3 major Curapean
market, RCD offers a strong capabibity and culture overlap, and
has relfationships in the tenan perinsula and Latin Arenica.
I'ne move 18 consistent with our siralegy of accurnng
coemplementary businesses vath high levels of recurnng
revenug and strong ¢ash generghion.

The innovation

A leading hrm in Span. BCD is renowaned for innovaron and
entrepreneurship, having been consistently ranked by the
FTamong Europe’s most nnovative law firms. Our shared
values, ambiiton and entrepeeneunal vision allew us 10 present
a difterentiated and compettive offenng to our clients.
DWFRCD's ability 10 work globally &lso helps us better meet
chients’ needs and grow cut business.

The value created

RCD has seen rapid growth in just 16 years, from 10 professionals
n 2003 to over A00 in 2019, and the success of DWFRRCD
represents another positive stage of our Inlernatonal expansicn
ambitions and a continualion of achieving our PO pricriies

Our diversilied busingss model continues 1o demonstrate its
henalits, wath gpporumties 1o buld further market share.

400 I ODWHRED employers
20+ [Haclces
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Key performance indicators

Measuring

OUr Progress

Al a Group level, we have several key financial
and operational measures which we use 10
assess our performance Jhe Board monitors
various KPIs on a regular basis, to ensure that
our strateqic objectives are being acheved.

To ensure our managemeant’s focus 1s aligned
with gur shareholders, our KPls are reflected
in their remuneration through our management
Incentive schemes.

+ S¢a page 78 of the Directors’ Remuneration Report for more detail.

Alternative performance measures are used
throughout this document

This section of the Annual Report and Accounts
defines each measure and, where necessary,
provides a reference 1o the reconciiation to the
nearest statutory measure.

Revenue growth
Defliniton, The ¢hange in net revenue achieved year-on-year

Performance

+10.9%
__-_I-15.2_0/0

Underlying organic revenue growth

Detivdion. Net revenue of any business unit that has begn in
the Group for at least 12 months, always excluding the firs:
12 months of any business unit that was acquired

Performance.

+2.0%
+1 2.50/0

Gross profit margin
Definion Gross profn dwvided by net revenue

Performance:

47.9%
53.5%

Cost to income ratio
Deafiniuon see note 2 of the financial statements

Periormance

42.6%
42.7%
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Underiying adjusted EBITDA

Delimtion see note 2 of the financiol sistements

Pertormance:

£21.8m
£27.8m

Underlying adjusted PBT

Definion see note 2 of the financial statements

Performance

£13.8m
£20.3m

Adjusted EPS
Defintion: see note 8 of the fiinanoal statements

Performance

3.0p
12p

Net partner joiners

Definmion: The difference between the aggregate of lateral
nires, partners engaged from acquisibons & promolicns and
those partners that have ceased 10 be engaged oy the Group

Performance

64

Revenue per partner

Defintion Met revenve divided by e total numver of partaers
i the Group

Periormance

£784.3k
£855.7k

Gross lock-up days, debtor days and WIP days

Defimtien see note 29c¢ ¢f the tnancial stalements

Parlormance

206 gross
lock-up days

{125 debitor days and 81 WIP days)

203 gross
lock-up days

{122 debior days and 81 WIP days)

Free cash flow

Defimution' see nole 29b of the hinancial statements

Performance”

(£7.2m)
(£18.1m)

MNet debt

Oefimition; The aggregate of cash and cash ecuivalents
and other interest-beanng loans and borrewings
lexcluting lease habihhes)

Perfonmance:

£64.9m
£35.3m

Employee engagement score

Debinion, The agyregate score taken lrom thrae key
eNgagemeni qUastions in our nternal Pulse Survey

Periormance:

76
75

1 Presious Survey
| IR UEAS )]
B FYZINEA9
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Financial review

Strong performance

A challenging end
to the vear

Chris Stefani
Chief Financial Officer

Financial overview

The Board recognises that ihz financial performance for the
year ended 30 Aprit 2020 VFY207) was severely aflecied by
COVID-19 10 Q4 at a pontin the year when the signidicant
investments made smce PO were expected 10 supporl revenue
growth. Despile these headwsnds, revenues have grown

by 10 9%, alben with sorme short-term dilution 1o gross and

net margins as a resuli of the shortfall in G4 revenues,
mpacting profaaoibity.

international and Connected Services continue 1o be the
‘growth engines’ of the busingss, with Intermatonal growing
53.2%, helped tw the acquisiicns of K& Gates in Polard and
RCD in Spain Connected Services grew by 13.0%, with goad
nerlormances across the majonity of the businesses, aloeit
overall growth was held back by underperformance in one
practice group, wiuch has since been restructuied

In addition 10 the COVID-19 disruption, & number of entiies
these two divisions underparformed dunng the year, and we
anncunced the decision 1¢ closeg Singapore ond Brussels, and
shim down Dubas and Calogne. on 9 July 2020. These changes
will have a significant positive wmpact in FY 21 and heyond, by
ehrmirating losses and reducing cash consumption. Inihe Y20
accounts, we have only ticated Cologne as a discantinued
business as the decisiors regarding Lthe other locatons were
made aller the yea: end

While revenues have grown, reported gioss profit declned

by 0 8% on the previous year, due to & 24 3% increase in

direct costs from acnuwisihons, and investments in addibonal
pariners and fee earners. That said, some of the reduction
comes from the revised rermuneration model implemented a1
IPC. The increase 1n underlying gross proft of 3.8% indicates
what growth woutd have been had the rewised compensancn
rmoded always been in place Underlying adusied adounisivative
expenses ncreased it sne with revanyes, with maost of this
Increase refating (o acguisiions, professicnal mdemmity
msurance and an ncrease in provision for doubttud debi.

The cost to ncome rano sniproved by 0.1 pot (0 42.6% n FYZ0.

The shock inpact of COVID-19, cambined wath growth in direct
and adrmumistrative casts, resulied in an underlying adjusted
EBITDA tigure of £21.8m, a 216% reduction on the previous
year. Underlying adjusted PBT 1s £13.8m, a 32.4% decrease
on Y19 Reported Prolit Before Tax {(PBTIis £18.2m a2 396%
increase on pnor year, with the increase largely due to the gam
on bargain purchase for Potand, RCD and Mindcrest. This gain
beng the diference between the element of the purchase
pnce treated as consideration and the far value of the assets
acguired. This gan s teated as 3 non-underlymg item as it

IS NOY recurring.

As announced in Apnl and May, we have effected a senes

of cast-cuting mitiatives, wath g cormbmed unpact of £15m

N the year, 10 ensure the business operates with an improved
level of efhiciency.

Working capital

Working capttal (measured using 'gross lock-up days’) has
remamned a key area of focus, and closing net debt was £64 9m
at the year end. Although this was above management s
expactations {prios 1o the tnpact of COVID-19), strong Apnl
cellecuons belped 1o mmuhigate the level of increase

(Gross lock-up days comprise two clements Work-an-pragress
{"WIP days), representing the amount of time Setween performing
work and invoicing chients; and debter days, representing the
length of me between mvoicing and cash collection.

The Group s pleased by s performance for WIP gays, which
remained flat year over year at 81 days and rnproved oy 15 days
since the half yesr in Oclober 2019 This s a result of the
dinesions working 1o bill carker, combined with billing-process
impraverments, which are bagnnma to reffect in performance.

The Group's deblor days increased By 4 days as a resull of two
issues Firstly, a delay in February bilhng due 10 some Tteething
1550€5 1N upgracing the practice managemenl systerm, and
secondly. slower colicchians actvity in Q4 which was mainly
the result of COVIN-1G refated inteniupions The billng celay
was o one-0flissue hat has smnce beenesoived. but had

& xnock-on effect on the urming of collectons FY21 collections
are 2ncouraging. as counines come out of COVID-15-refated
tocedowi, DUt the Board acknowledoes thas may be tempered

1t SITUATON e 3y location reverses
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The Greup continues 1o focus on ethaent lock-up manacemen:,
and heleves there is a sigrulicart opportunily 10 reduce loek-Up
days. Previously published wargets signposted a hve-to-renday
regucion n the medium term Internally, we have sct more
demanding largeis for FYZ21 in the expectaton 1hat we can
achieve a lugher reducuon While O4 wrbulence delayed

some operauonal inmatves, the Group s now re-focussing

on standardising the global process lor bithing and collecuons
billng avtomation, and partner accountabiily, 1 Mprove
working-capial performance

Any improvement in lock-up days will have a knock-on effecl
on net debt, wath each day of lock-up reduction atfecting cash
favourably, by over £1m

The Group has an £80m RCF faciliy and during the hewght of the
COVID-19 pandermic secured an additional £15m contingency
facility as a precacton agamnst any further unexpaciec Mpacts
from the pandemic. There are also a number of ancillary working
capital tzciines avarlable for use. The Group does not expect 10
use the contingency facibly based on current forecasts, expects
to conlinue 1o operate within its banking covenants, and has
seen strong free cash flow generation over the course of (1

of MY21 as wading normatises after the COVID-13 impacts seen
inQa ol FY20

Revenue

Revenue {excluding discontinued operations) was £2972m

for the vear, compared 1o F268 1m i FY19, anincrease

of 10 9% Three out of four dwisions grew with Insiwance
grovwng 5.2% and Connected Services growing 13 0%, all
organic International grew by 53 2%, boosted by acquisiions
The organic growth in fnlermational was 11. 1%, a5 strong resulls
in lacattons such as Austraha and France wers diluted by weaker
performances in Qubai, Singapore, Gernmarny and Brussels.

We have since closed or scaled back these termtones as part

of the cast-rationalisation measures menuoned above. Similacly
Connectled Services' growth was diluted by some challenges

in the DWE 3Sixty software business, which we have now
resuuctured. Commercial Serwces, however, fell the deepes!
impact from COVID-19 due 10 a drop in transactional actvity,
contracting by 4 1% comparedto FY19

Direct costs

Direct costs, including partner remuneration, were £155 0m
compared 1o £124 7man the previous year, an ingraaseg of
24.3%. This increase was due 10 Investment n 160 acdincnal
fee earners and 20 partners on an organic basis, and the
addition of 44 partners and fee earners through Ma&n

Gross profit

Gross probs decreased margmnally, by U.8%  compared 1o

the prevtous vear, at £142.2m IFY19. £1432.4m) This reflects
a deciease in gross probit margin of 5.6ppts. While Insurance

mamntained underlying gross margin at FY20 levels (FY20 48 1%,

the other three divisions all saw margins dilute due 1o the

irmpact of COVID-19 on Q4 actmty levels and the previously
mentioned ynderperdciniAg eNlUes we have Novy restrucivicd
We expect 1he level of margn dilution reflecied nthe FY20
figuras will reverse during £Y21 and have seea this in rading
performance since the year end Mananed Services alse romans
an oppOIunIly, with cost Savings signposied on the aoqu sion
uf Mindirest expected o prowde facthier suppart far i rocavery
MY GEOSS rrargm

Divistanal performance

Commercial Services

Commercial Services had a chaliengmg year with the fist half
performance of s transacuonal teams i Corporate Services
and Reat Fstale affected by uncritamties around the armng of
Bresat and the general electon The second haff was expected
(o be sironger mn inese areas, and there were some signs of

& recovery in (33

However, the effect of COVID- 19 on the dvision in 84 was
matenal — more than on any other division A combxnation of
targer chent projects baing pul un hold, 1ower levels of corporale
transactional activity ganerally ang WP wnite offs resulted in
lower than normal productviry and consequently a severe, athey
short ferm, reduction in revenus, Cven Libigation, which had
performed strongly for the majoriy of the vear, was not
unaffected with couns closing and 2 moraicnum being placed
cn certam court proceedhngs Overall, the division ended the
hnancizl year having contracied by 2% and with an underlying
geass margin dechne of 11% {underlying gross margin
vercentage dechne of 3 dpptsh.

Grven the speed with which COVID-19 impaciad, and the
proximity 1o the Groups April year end, 1t was not possible to ake
suthicient mutigating actions 10 protect undarlyng gross margint far
FY20 Indeed, as well 25 retaining capacity on the expectation

of a post-election recovery lowards the end of (3 and inta Q4,
the diision had made a number of laieral heres during the year,
several of whom arnved during Q4 The new data protection team
was launched and other partner 1ateral hires joned in 040 the
coporale, cornrearcial, banking and restruciunng (eams

These invesiments had 3 dilutve eHfect cn the FY20 underlying
gross margin, exacerbating the COVID-19 impact, but zre
expecied 10 connbuie to more profrable revenues in FY21.

For example, the data protection tgam has slready ganed

a sirang markat profde, with ¢ number of new wins and panel
appointments secured wihich are helping to drive H1Y performance,

in addiion, actions have now Haen 13Ker [0 remaove excess
capacily across the division whilst the medium term ampact of
COVID-18 on the dwision can be better understood Q1 of FY 23
bas seen arecovery i acinely levels — not o pre-COVID levels,
Bui to a level which, along with the Cost sawings being
implemenied, s expectad (o lead 1o 2 recovery n the gross
margin contribution of the division

As we move o Q2 of FY21, chent demaend for ihe teams in
Lingauan remains strong, with recent significant wing in bath
‘complex” and 'volume’ work In particular the commercial,
finance and regulatory Migaton tsams are demaonstrating
strong levels of actvity and groveih Although, acuwity levels in
Corporaie Services have picked up since the end of F¥20Q, the
outlook for Corporate Seirvices and also Real Estate remains
cautious Qiven the ongoing impect of the pandemic. Each of
Corporate Services, Lihgauon and Reaf Estate remans focused
an developing oppoertumbes with Maraged Sarvices gnd
Connacted Services in parucular, Managed Services, including
the new Mindcrest busmess, have been working closely

vath hoth Liugation and Real Estate on several chent projects.
Cormporate Services has aiso been working closely wath
Connecied Services e develon prodocts that ailow the

smpoth and more efficient completion of transacuons remoiely
thraughout the pandemic hose mtiatves, together vath the
cutient leves of actraiy and the mpierented cost savings.

Jre delvenng urnproved gross imsrg:n
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Financial review continued

Insurance Services

The Group's Insurance Seivices business delivered revenue
growih of 6% for the year despite the COVID-related irmpact

ot the lockdown The sudden transition 1o home working and
ihe added chellenge for rmany of childcare and home schooling
resulled it a signiicant reduction in activity levels. This,
combined with a slowdown in mstructions in the important cnd
of year month impacted on revenue growth for the year and
diluted previaus gains in profiability with FY20 delivering a
broadly llal underlying gross margin at 48%. lnsurers are seeiny
a changing frequency of clairms and mix, with some move away
from Motor, General Lizbiily and some transportation sector
work and this will continue to be impacted by COVID-19, but we
are seemng already increased exposure 1o other iNsurance sector
legal work The Group believes prospects for this divesion remain
resilient given the annuily lype nature of these services and the
couniercychcal nature of litigation services

The Professiona! Indermnity and Commercial, and CAT Pl &
Cccupational Health practice grouos both delivered revenue
growthin the year with Phin particular gerforming strongly as
a resplt o recenl pariner hires and related chient vans Motor,
Fraud, RL & IHT was flatin year as expectad as the legal and
wsurance ndustries geared wp for the implementation of the
so-called whiplash referms (now further postponed).

The Insurance division has tong-term, annuity relationships with
some of the targest Insurers in the UK and this 1s dernonstrated
by our being retained by two of our biggest clients 1o advise
them i conneclion with the FCA proceedings for @ declaration
on various poficy wordings relating 1o business interruption
claims arising from COVID-13 Wis a privilege 10 be the trusted
advisor in one of the mest important cases for many insurers
for centunes, [cining an exclusive circle of legal adwisers or

the nsurance industry which includes magic cucle and silver
ciicle firms.

The Group expects dermand for insurance services to remain
strong in particular in relation to COVID-19 related claims.

In additon to the business interruption claims being handied

by the carmmmercial insurance team, the first COVID-19 fatal and
injury cigims have been receivad from the care and food sectors
with the expectation of substantial numbers of claims 1o foliow.
The potential for fraudulent ¢laims 1s huge and the division’s
award wanning Fraud team is idszlly placed 1o advise and assist
with those clarns There 1 a pipehne of targeted parner hues
11 addition 16 recent partner joiners which walt suppont continued
protitable growih in the diviston. The ongomng recruitrment of

a leam in Southamption s also expected 1o contribuie o
revenues in FY21,

Connected Services

The Group's Connecied Services division delivered revenue
growih af 13 0% for the year comparad {0 22 3% i the pior
ved . FYZ0 growth was less than largeted, predormunantly dnven
by lowei demand lor services vathin the DWFE360 soffware
development busingss, which saw a number of arge projecis
either cancelled or put on hold, and the wmpaci of COVID 18
tovwards the end of the Tinancial year Excluding this, the other
busmesses delwvered combinzd growth of ¢ 18 9% yearon-vear,
nine with expeciatwns

Aweareness of Connected Services capabities has cantnued

¢ develop m ihe fingnoal vear waith businesses becosming moie
estabihished and mature and delivenng noroving performiances

In parncular there bas been sliong growth mvVuey (50%),
Adiusung 1147 %) and Forensic 113 7% alben these arc all
businesses whigh were in Buld mode i the prior yaar
Advacacy grewvs by 19% but was inpacied by the dspnon to
e couwrt systesn from COVID-19 at the 2nd of ihe {inancal year
The Claims busingss, which accounts for just over a thirg of
revenue in the Division, has shown modest growth of 5%

A business restructonng was undertaken owards the end of the
fimancial year which provides a strong plattorm for contnued
aroveth in revenue ~nd profizbihity i all sermsones (UK, Austraha,
Canada. France, heland, l1aly and USA) i the coming year,
parucularly as insure’s sea the volume of COVID9 related
business mierruption clams ncregse Perdormance m USA

and laly n Y20 was parucularly strong with growih of 153%
and 1%% respecuvely driven by teamn expansion The newly
launched Regutatory Consulung business fimshed the year

with a well-developed mpelng which bodes well for FY21.

The uaderlying gress margn developmnert ¢f the Connected
Lusinesses was delaved by the disruption from COVID-19
prevenung what would hkely have been 3 small year on year
improvement. However, 3 number of cost saving and
restructuring measuwies have been effecied in arder 1o support
posihve margn developroent i FYZ1 as 1the busimesses
continue to mature, growing revenues on a controlled ¢ost base.

International

The International dvision grew by 3% i FY20, delivering
revenues of £76.2m compared to £49 7m in the provious year.
Poland and Spain coninbuied the majority of this growth, with
both acquisitions performing well Underlying organic growih
wias 5%, with <ome relatively tlat performances across the rest
of the Internatonal lecations and contraction in @ small number
ol tocations with Dubar being the most malenal drag on growih,
contrgcting by 38% Awstraha was a standout in terms of
growth, with revenues of £16 4m being 13% ahead of prior year,

Performance across 3 number of locabons was impacted by
COVID-19 m the final quarier, with previcusly forecas! revenues
failing away as uansacions sialied and mstrucuons slowed
Given the invesiment in partner headoount m FY19 and H1 of
FY20, sorme of the lccations! peirformances were neveriheless
disappoinuing and a number of cost saving measures were
tnggered at the hall vear ta nghi-size the cost base and 1ackle
aregs of underperformance The benefit from these savings
takes some ume 1o be reansed due 1o notice peaods being
served. but are expected Lo be delwvered sarly 1in FY21.

In addiiion, since year ond. the-decision has been taken 10 cease
operations m Singapore and Brussels and sirn-down cperatigns
in Dubai and Cologre This will save costs without having

a materzl impact an revenues

The undeslying gross margin perceniage ior the dvision fell

by 2.8p1s 1o 20 7% as 4 resull of the COVID-9 revenue impact,
the undeipedformarce of ceiam locanons, and the level of
nvestnent carmed into 04 the direct cost bne. The cost sawing
measures that have been imglemented are expected 1o deliver

a strongér margin i FY 21

Whilst seme oparetions nave been closed ar shmmed dowr,
the fntemationaf civiwon temains ¢ key grawth eppartunity for
the Group In Germany, Dusseldor! wall become our regional
centre row Nat Coiogne has been substanvally shimmed déwn.
nAustraha, rcal estate bres i Sydney and Melbowne, and
cmployment and comraeraal teams in Methourne, have hit the
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ground iunning despuie the challenges of COVID-19. Elsewhere,
selective Investments in partner hirgs in Poland, aly and Pans
will help to drive further organic growth As hignhighted at the
urme of 1IPO, we will continue our internattonal gxpansion in
Dnonty counines through edhear future assocauons o addiional
acguisinens n legal markets whuch we would Iike 10 enter with
the USA, Canada, Hong Kong and the Metherlands all being
locanons where we will conminue 10 look for opporiuniies

The trming of any future M&A will be determined by angoing
FY21 performance as the impact of the pandermic

wecomes clearer,

Administrative expenses

Reported administrative expenses have reduced compared 1o
the previous year, moving from €128 3rm i FY1910 £120 1mon
FY20. However, this movement is skewed by three factors the
mpact of acquisiions, non underlying items and share-based
payment expenses:

- The accounting for acquisitions crestes 3 gan on bargan
purchase due 10 1he diffarence between the far value of the
asseis acyuired and the element of the puichase price treated
as consieration

— Acquisivons have also impacted non-underlying items by
£2 9m due 10 the fact Lthat there are etements of the purchase
price pad for RCD and Mindcrest that iink to continuing
employment obligations, They are therefore treated as
remuyneration rather than consideration and sre non-undarlying
as they cease sfter the end of tha lock-in penad dunng which
there is an ongoing employment obligation

1

The majority of 1he remaining non-underlying ems are the
transaction costs related 1o Poland, Mindcrest, RCD and the
costs of an aborted acquisition due 1o COVIDA9

1

Share based payment charges have increased a5 a result
of a full year of the vesung of IPO related share awards and
an element of the acquisition purchase price for RCD being
accounted for as employment linked expense settied in the
form of shares

On an adjusted basis, admiistrative expenses increased by
£8.6m, or 75%, which mainly related 1o additcnal premises
costs, anincrease i Plinsurance costs, and an mcrease in the
doubtful-debt provision dug 1o COVID-19. This increase 1s g rasull
ol anincrease in the aged debtor halance which tnggers & higher
expected future ioss The lable below Lreaks out the sphit of the
reporned numbers:

Heaesented

2020 2004

£'000 €000
Net revenue i B 297231 268,136
“Administrative expénses S 120,084 128,264
Amoitisatian of intangible o
assets — acquired _ {1.510} -
Impawment ] (382 -
Gan on bargainmg ;)_‘_JfChGSC‘- o 25,084 -
-{:I()n-under_lymg BXPENSES ~ o {7,63_2]____ 112,569
E@ﬂs_—base@imeh[’s‘xge};esh _U_g@___'ﬂ_my
1mpact_o_f U;ansman wlFRS 16 T 3492

Adjusited admimsitaiive 8xpens
Coslh o meome ratio

A7 7Y

114,493

On an austed basis ine cost-ioncome 1at0 has reduced
from 42 7% 0 the previous year 1o 42 6% i Y20, taflocing
good Control of Costs despite 1evenue dropping away sharply

i Q4 There are nevertheless, cpportumties for savings, which
we are looking in 1o and execunng n M of Y21 and there

are subsiantal COVID 19 related savings rom raduced travel,
reduced office consumables and reduced businass development
experdiiuie Oaporinmties 1o earn from the flexible working
enforced by COVID 19, and the mgact this has on the need

tor oifice space for the Group, may offer future savings

Net finance expense

Neot finance expenses were £1.9m i FY20, compared 1o £2 1m
in FY19, a decrease o 10.6%, a3 result ol hetier structunng of
ihe Group's burniowing anangements. FY20 now includes
ntzrest payabie on leases (disclosed separately from net finance
expanses i he ncome staiement! of £2.0m, reflective of the
accounting changes ansing lollowing the tansiion 1o IFRS 16

Profit hefore tax

Reported PBT was £18 Zim, compared 10 £13.0m 0 FY19, an
increase ol 39 6% The reported PBT is affectied by the same
tems that skew admimisiraive expenses lacauisiton related gains
and exparse, shaie-based payments and non-underlying charges)
Underlying adpsted PBT 1S stated before the impact of these
items tegether with the wnpact of the change to IFRS16 and the
revised comgensaucn model Underbsng adjusted PBT of £13.8m
in FY20 compares 10 £20 3m 1 £Y18 The yearon-year reduction
of £6 Bin, or 32 4%, 15 due 1o the atorementioned factars affecting
gross margin dropping thrcugh 1o bettorm-hne prota, as the
COVID-19 revenug impacl cama 100 fate in the year 1o be able 10
mutgate with cost savings As descibed above, we have acted on
direct costs and adminisirative expenses 10 heip wnprove marging.

Taxation
The overall 1ax charge for the year is £3 6m, which represents an
effective tax rate of 19 9%

The reporied profit belore tax ncludes net non-underbying
credits of £15 6m, which laigely consst of gains on baigain
purchases cffset by acquisition-related expenses, Thesa nems
have been Treated as non-1axable and non-deducuble
respectively, resulling in a reduction in the effective tax rate.
These were olfset by other non-deducuble iterns refaling 10
Ausiraban memiers remuneralion reated locally as dradends,
share-based payment charges refating 10 the consideraton
shares issued for the acguisiion of RCD, amorusation of
intanghle assetls ansing on consohdaucn and other disallowable
traching expendiiie to reduce the overalt (3x charge by £14m

Tax losses generated n a nik-lax junsdiction and 1ax charges
incuired in kigher tax unsd:ctuons such as Span (£0.9m), and
iax lesses o enhtres where the recagnition critera 1o
assouigted 1ax assels have noi been met{E0 7rm), have
wncreased the overall iax charge.

The acaursiions of law firms o Poland, Spain end Austialia,

35 weli &5 the scquistion of the Minderest business, have given
nse 10 determed tax labibites of £8 8rm as at 20 Apnl 20200
respect of mtangdale assets recognsed an consalidation.

These delered jax babilihes are increased by short-ierm unung
difierences i Australa (£0 2 and offset by deferred 1ax assets
recogrised w respect of tax deprecigiion tming didfferances

1€0 By estimaied 1ax ceductions {or share-bzsed payments
T8 and Tax [oss7 01 Australan and the UK (C0 Sr) 1o

give 2 nat delorred ax hatolhoy 20 38 Aprt 2020 0f 15 O
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Financial review continued

Adjustmients in respect of prior periods of £0.1m relate 10 minor
dilferences in the final corporate 1ax relurns compared (0 the
aimounts provided forinthe pnior penod accounts.

The Group's current iax expense of £6.1m mamnly relates to

Hs entities in the UK (£4 7mi and Spain {£1.3m). In ling with ihe
payment protile of tax habilities in these terrtonies payments
of £3.6m have been made in the vear ended 30 Apnl 2020,

ot which £0 brmovwas o respect of the pnor penad current

lax expense.

Wath the exception of an open ransfer pricing enquiry in india
relating 10 a pre-acquisition period of the Mindcrest business, for
whuch the Group has adequate indemnificaton from the seilers,
there are no open tax audits or investigations acrass the group
In hne with group's 1ax strategy, it 15 not considered that any
aggressive or materially uncertain tax positions have been
adopted by any of the aroup entities. As such, the levet ol

tax nsk facod by the group 15 considered to be low:

Dividend

The Group's dividend policy 15 1o ratain sufficient capitai to fund
ongoing operating requirements, and 1o nvest in the Group's
long-term growth. The previously stated dvidend strategy for
the Group was, from FY20, to targel a dividend-pay-out 1atio

of up 10 70% of DWF Group plc’s protit after tlax. Given the
stronger-than-expected recovery in Q1 of FY21, the Board

vl increase the pay-oul retio to ¢.90% for FY20, 10 allow

a final FY20 dvidend of 0 75 pence per share This underscores
the Board's confidence in the improving financial outlook, and
the commitrment of the Group to deliver compelling shareholder
returns while also achueving the Group's growth strateqy.

This final dividend s subject to approval at the AGM on

21 October 2020 and, if approved, will be paid on

5 Novernber 2020.

Balance sheet
Group net assels increased to £69 2min FY20 compared to
£418m tn 2018 The increase is due o:

- an merease w gross lock-up fwork 1n progress, trade & other
receivables and disbursements) ot £35.2m (23.2%), which
has grown due 16 acquisiions, net revenue growth and an
ncrease in lock up days,

1

3 £19.6m increase in prepayments from the accouniing
treatment of part ol the purchase prnce of the Group's
3CqUISIICNS, 3s remunerauen is expensed (G the ncome
statement aver the lockan penod of five years

PpoOst completion.

There has also, nowever, been an increase in habihyes:
- £29.6mncrease in net deot
- £72m increase wn deferred consideration

- £h./m gpening net assels impact of the vansition 10 IFRS 16,
anncpally due to the recogmimon of 3 £70 3m nght-of-use
assetand a £78 1milease liabihty, both replacing the £10.5m
operating fease incentive liabity

Capital expenditure {'capex’)

the Group's gperaung struciure 1S 7ot 2apnal intensive, and
FY20 was no exception Expenditure n the penod was prmarnly
focused on 1T nirasiccture and replemshment, and bulding the
Managed Serwces platfiorn The mvestment in the Managed
Services plattorm ncressed overall capex by £2 0m from £5 4m
n FY 1910 £74dman Y20

Conclusion

The Group expecied 10 achieve profitable growihin the

year, from a combination or ureanic performance end

MEA contabution. Whie some units saw a degree of
underperformance, the adverse impact of COVID-13 was the
matenal acior 1IN the lowerthan-expecied revenuas, which
dropped awey sharply on lockdown, and left & shortfall in profit
contribunon due 1o the short amount of tme the Group had 10
reacl 10 a very dyramic envisnment. Costsaving niiatives ale
currently underway 1o secure 1argel savings nf £15m i FY21
and £18 Sm lrom F Y22 and, in addition, we have closed or
stmmed down a numiber of underperforming units to protect
margns and cash

COMIDA19 came gfien g pecod of heavy invesiment, wath the
maonty of the G4 adduional pariner jainers brought nto the
business in the year fured by the end of U3 (pre-COVID] and
£16 7m of cash outllows commirited to M&A, In the expectation
that a strong Q4 would see the business de-leverage quickly.
Winle Qd warking capi1al performance was sironger than
expecied, it fell short of a normal year end. leading to a nigher
feverage posiion than anticipated before the impact of
COVID-19 We expect that ibe cost-saving mMmeasures and
working-captal dove wall help reduce the leverage and impiove
the net-margin positons seenin the FY20 accounts, and current
trading 1o end of August FY21 reflects both this de-levaraging
elfect and matenaliy improved orofnability. We are managing,
and will continue 1o rmanage, working capital and net debt
tightly, and this represents zn opporunity 10 reduce borrowings
in the medmm tenn.

The acouwsinions n Poland, BCD i Spam, and Minderest, refiect
Importal stizteqic sieps ior 1he Group and we expect them

10 make a aigalicans coninbution 1o performance n FY21

and heyend. Wea will continue 10 consider carefully organic

and, al the apopraie pont, norganic growth opporluniies
We expect protiteble growth in FY21 as we rewim o more
nenmal tadig condmions, albeit the Board remains cauvtious
given the unceftan economIc environment.

Chris Stefani
Chief Finaneczl Officer
7 Sepiember 2020
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Responsible business at a elance
i 2

A vear of
achievement

Working to improve
social mobihity...

In the past year, we improved our
ranking 10 the Social Michiity Index
from &60th 1o 161h

..by helping voung
people to develop the
skills they need.

Our 5 STAR Fuiures programime s

designed (o enable young people o
make the most of their potential - we
help 10 equip them vaith the business

skills, confidence and resilience to
airm tngher and achieve more

We commmt Lo paving
a Living Wage

We dre a UK Living VWage employer
and s year, we exlended our
commatment Wonchuds Gur
apprenices from 1 May 2020

And driving engagenient
in o values

We zlsg launched DVWE Achievers,
oui day-lo-day recognman platornm
wihuch alloves pesple o racegnice
thew cosleagoes for Iving one

nf cur core values

Recognising the
achicevements of our
people

We baunched The Rutne Awaids,

en annual awards programme 1o
celebiate our people’s success Inour

first year, 430 peopls were noimnaied
ior an eward by colleagues

Aleading emplover
for D&I...

We ara one of ony nine husinegsses
in the UX 1o zchieve a Gold Standard
peiformance in the ENEI's

TIGE benchmark

-with feadership
conmumitted to change.
We have Executive Board sponsors
for each strand of our diversity
programme Gender, LGBT+, Race
& Dihmcity, Disahility, Age. Flexible
Working, and Menta! Health.

Sector-leading
performance

W scored B0% in the Busimess
n the Commuonily Responsible
Susincus Tracker, l2ading our
benchmarkng group.
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Sustainability report

Integrating

sustainability
into our business

Our rote in society
Our values continue 1o guide and mfcrm what we do, ang

we reman focused on operatng sustamably Through oor activites
and as a signatory of the United Natons Global Compact, we strve
to conduct our business I a manner that supPeris untversal human

rights and 15 environmentally and socially responsible

We are a global business, and our ambibon is 10 make DWF
a world leader at responsible business, mobihsing our collective
strength as a force for good in society to

- create a skilled and inclusive workforce today, and for the future

— hedp buld and sustain thrving communities where we hve
and work

- play our part in repalning and sustamung our plansi

Qur respensible strategy
We are putting sustainabikity at the heart of what we do

Qur responsible business strategy aligns wath the UN Global
Cempaci's universaly acceptod business principles and we
prantse what we do 1o contnouic 1o the UM Sustaimable
Development Goais 1SDG'S).

We rermain a mmember of Busingss i the Commuriry (8ITC,
the largest business-led membership orgarisation m the UK
dedicaled 10 responsibie business. We use therr Responsible
Business Tracker 1¢ rzasure 2nd evaluate ows peifermance

in adddcn, BICs Responsitile Busmess Mzap guitos witat wwe
do globalky to address those ssuPs IMOST ressINg in soaety
and wihere we can make the imost meameglul impact

Sustainability governance
OWE's C5R Team, led by ow Duector of CSR & Engagermneny,
works with the husimess o rmplenment cur £5R efforis globally

Thes leadersiup group s chared by our CEO, end provides updates

1o the Execunve Board and a repont annually 1o the Board

Priorities for the year ahead

Our participation in BITC's Hesponsible Busingss Tracker
has provided us with an assessment of our performance as
a responsible business, by tracking our progress against ithe
Responsible Businass Map, built on the UN's Global Goals
The results show our approach 1o responsible business
belfore the disruption of COVID-19

Our overall score 60%] confirms we are leading our
benchmarking group (legal sector averege 1s 51 %) and

that we also scored bigher than the average score of all

94 cross-sector companes who teok part {43%) The overal)
score 1s a composite of each element of the Hesponsible
Business Map, These are |Leadarship at Every Level;
Purposeiul Leaders; Heaithy Enwvironment, and

Healihy Cormrmunities.

Qur priontes are 1o

- map the full range of 1ssues afiecung owr business
the most, and where we can make the biggest impact

-~ review owr nisk regisier and widen our stekehclder
engagement around the world

- move beyend simple discussion, alongside yearcn-year
reductions in ermissions, to establish chimate-related
considerations across our whole business.

Through this assessment cycle, we identfied health
welibeing and inclusion as matenal issues 10 {focus on,
and we will sustan tha: focus n 2 post-COVIOD-19 world.




DWF Group plc
Zoanal report and fiinancsl s1airmend L 006

Our approach to SDGs

In 2015, the 193 Member Siates of the
United Nations adopted the UNSDGs in
a bid to end poverty, protect the planet
and ensure prosperity for all by 2030.

Our responsible business strategy and messurement
through BITCs Respansible Business Tracker, Touches moslt,
if not all of the SDGs Having moapped the goals to our
business operations, we are now m 1he decade where we
need 10 achieve thern, and recogrise that for all businesses,
there is stll tmic 10 be at the ferefront of change.

Responsible business -
supporting our pcople

QOur values and culture

(ur values define who we are and what we stand for. They are
whiat we beleve, and influence how we behave. That 1s why

It 1S SO 1IMPartant to apply these values to everything we do,

- Always aim higher
- Be better together
- Uisrupl o progress
— Keep all promises
- Attend o detarls

Created, signed and upheld by our people, our vzlues help us 1o
define and reinforce our culture. They are used as 3 benchmaik
and enable us W ecrwt, retan and develop the highest quality
people who are experis in ther figlds

Diversity and inclusion

We have a collaborative and inclusive culiure that undeiping our
decisions. Gur Diversity & incluson {D&NT and Gignity 41 Work
policies make it clear thal the Group takes a zero-tolerance
approach o discnminanon, bullying and harassment.

Our Diversiy & tnclusion ¥ aadershin Group defines and
executes our global inclusion strategy. £xecutive Sponsors and
mgcre than 4l server leaders, supnac:ted by our Affiraty Networks
and netwoik of Diversity Charmpions, msnage plans that support
qender, race, LOGBT v, age, disabiiny, egile-and-flexible working
snd menial health

Ezch Dhvisional CEO and Practice Group Head s responsible and
2ccountanle Inf progiessing a oroup-specif:c D& plan o address
the gender and BAME targets set by the Board Al our Practce
Group Heads are held accountable for ther gender balance
tarygets and plans The Head of the D& Leadershp Group
provide uadates o the Execulve Board guartedly and mandatory
progress vpdates 10 the Board twice a year

2
H
o
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Benchmarking -;‘\
Dversity & inclusion benchmarking results. H
2
- The TimesTop 50 Employer for Women., 3
L2
- Stonewall: We are a Top 100 empioyer for Stonewall on
LGBT+ melusion improved cur ranking from 59th o 301k this
year. We were also recognised as Brinclusive Employer of the |
Year 2020 R
~ Warking Families: Tep 10 Employer for Working Farmies i 2019 3
and 2020 a
- Employers Network for Equality & Inclusion {"ENEI'): :
We are one of cnly rine businesses in the UK 1o achieve g
a Gold Standard performance in the ENENs TIDE benchmark 3
{Tatent tnclusion & Diversity Evaluation). |
- Disability Confident: We were the first legal business 1o be —
awarded and mawmain Diszbiity Confident Leadership status g
for removing barriers 1o disabled zlent in the workplace. 2
H)
Pa
- Social Mobility Index: In 2019, we improved our rankmng i ‘§’
in the Social Moty Index from 60th 10 16th S
a
- International Women's Day:

(ur campaign in 20%9 ranked as "Best Pracnhce’ by
International YWomen's Day crganisation

Maintaining our position as a UK Living Wage employer epables
us to effect posiive change In society today and specifically
enhance the fves of pecple in the communities where we are
hased We extended cur Living Wage rommntment 1o inchude our
apprentices from 1 May 2020. We use International Woren's Day
(a week-long campaign at DWF), Nauonal Apprenticeship Week,
Mental Health Awareness Week, our awn annual Glotial Diversity
Week & International Men's Day activily as kay inclusion
campaigns thioughout the year

LGEBT UN Global Standards

We sinve {or ali our colleagues 10 have access 1o enual
apponunity and respect, wherever they work Alongside some
of the world's largest busingsses, DYWF has made a global
cormeritrmant s suppaot of the UN Standards shich aiv 1o tackie
discomnatory practices i 1he warkplace, the marketplace and
in the commumty.

Race and ethnicity

Duning the year ended 30 Apnl 2020, we have advanced
our support of the Race at Work Charter which has helped
cur busingss change the recratment and procression

of BAME 1alent

Executive Board sponsors

Creating visihle leadership and advacacy on diversily - memaers
of our Execulve Board have signed-up 1o become Exacutive
Sponsors of paraculas diversity Strands (see page 36 o further
delails on the Executive Board sponsors)
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Sustainability report continued

Race & Fthnicity Network

Our Race & Ethricity Executve Sponsors are not st gureheads
— thear role s 1o engage wilth colleagues, understdand the ssues
that nead tackling and then suppor whal nesds 10 be done

Since then appomtment i February 2019, our Sxecuive Sponsors
for Race & Ethrucity have engaged wiih ceileagues across our
alfices 10 stengthen and grow owr Race & Fihriscny Network

Race Reverse Mentoring

Togeiher with our Network, tne £xecutive Sponsors dentifieg
that our senios leaders wanied (¢ deepen thewr insght inio how
colleagues whoidenbhed as BAMLE teol about ther workplace,
and 1o bener understand what they can do o create the nght
conginons for mncdusion 1o be maanmglul Each Executive Board
member committed 1o a1 least cne face-to-iace meetng with
theur reverse mentor from the Notwork 100% of the
relationships have bean mamiamnedd

Total headcount, broken down by division, hatween
full-time and part-time employees, gender, and diversity

Gender by division: gender

Grand (oral

Lrvision Femate Rtale
Cenual Services ?O_fl"_fo ©296% 100 0%
Coimmercial Services 54 1% 45 9% 100 0%
Cannected Services a8 5% 51%% 100 0%
Insurance Services C573%  427%  1000%
Internaticnal 515% 48 5% 100.0%
Mindcrest 571% 42 9% 100 0%
Grand total 578% 422% 100.0%

Full time/part time by division' full time flag

Divison full e Fart tme  Grand 1otal
Centrat Services . 798% 204% 100 0%
Commercial Se_r_vr(:es B8 ?eff_,,,, 8% ) 100 0%
e B0B% 334%  1000%

. 872%  128%  106.0%

86.7% 33% 100 0%

Mindcrest 96 5% 34% 100.0%
Grand total 86.4% 13.6% 100.0%

Diversity by division: ethnicity grouping
Dzion BAME  Men BATAE LInkrown rang 1012l
Cenual Services  66%  477%  458% 100 0%
Commercial 87% 46 9% 44 4% 100 0%
SEMces e
Connected 24% 34 0% 6386% 100.0%
Senvices il
Insu ance 6 4% 339% 59 6% 100.0%
Sereces -

Internanonal 08% 479 94 HY% 100.0%
Mhndcrest 87 9% R ITARS 100 0%
Grand total 12.4% 29.3% 58.3% 100.0%

Gender pay gap

We recognise thai reducing our gender pay gap requies

a sustamed eflon @t svery level of gur Dusiness, antd ai every
point i the employee liie cycle, from attraction and recruitmeant
through 10 developmant, succession planmung and promotien
Qur sustained focus on this will resuit in a more-giverse
workforce, supported and empowered by our incluswe culiure
znid values

Follawing the publication of our 2018 Gender Pay Gap report.

we Introduced non-negouable guiding principles on pay, concermng
farness, transparency, consistency and competiivengss

These four prnciples enable us 1o be clear and consisteni in

our approach 10 pay. ensunng we are rewzrding neople fanly

in 2019, the reduction in gur combined mean gender pay gap
for a second consecutive year was a posiive mdication that
cur etlorts are hawng an etiect However the shghl increase n
ot median pay gap s a powerful rerminder that the pay gzp
largely the result of having more men at senor levels in hgher
paid roles, and a higher proportion of women 10 men m nfes
that {all within ous Icwer pay-guartiles.

Engaying our workforce

We define engagement as the extent people commit (o
something or somecne in our business, and how hard they
work or how long they stay. as a result of that commitment

Engaging People Executive

Our Engaging People Executive CEPE'} 15 responsible for furthening
our ambition to make DWF a great place towork, and 5
accountable 1o our Executive Board The EPE focuses on values
and culture, high performance and effective communication, and
provides oversight, scrutiny and mpui to the people-reiated
activities across DWF that promote engagement, pioducinaty,
commitment and discretionary effort. The EPE has been
instrumental in addressing the key issues wentibed through our
Engagement Surveys, evolving the role of People Paniners across
the busmess, and achieving 2 posttive uphiftin Pulse Survey scores

Employee Forum

the EPE is supported by our Employee Forum, to enswe we
take nto consideration the input of employees at gl levels of the
business. The primary rele of thus Forurn s 1o irmprove ihe flow
of communication from the Board 1o the ground floar and vice
versa, acling as a way for employvees 10 vauce their wieas as well
as thenw concerns. It also provides the opportunity for DWFE 1o
cansult ermployees over business-related issucs and gain theu
commiiment 10 change. While stil in s formative stage, it has
siarted 10 constiuctvely challenge waorkplace policres and
practices, vuith & wiew 10 making improvemants. streamimng
processes and suggesting better ways ot working, 1o make
DWF 3 gieat place 1o work.

Listening to our employees

The Board understands that listening to our employaes 15 key
We Fave put in a great fleal of effort over the las) iew veas o
ensure engagemnent of our people gets the tocus and ime it
needs, and in doing so, creates the impact we want This elinn
inciudes a range of communicatons and engagement 100ls,
such as Pulse Sutveys 1o iwolve stalf and 1o share messancs
and informaucn on stzif engagement, highlghuing that the
Company 15 hsicring 1o and addressing ther azeds
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Pulse Surveys

In 2019, we moved away from traditionat annual suiveys

0 a8 more fraquent digaal platform that helps leaders and kne
managers creale plans, focusing on the improverments that
matier the most for cur peopie

Recognition

Inresponse 1o feadback, and wheie we scored below the
mdusiry benchmark, we immplermentad a nmbeor of key
engagement measures. We launched ¢ new digital recognition
platform, DWF Achievers to recognise and celebrate people
wihn hve our values and help shape ouwr cihiure through therr
performance and the contabubians they make 1o DWE

Global Pulse Survey
Headline Results - June 2020

Overall company employee engagermnent score;

The Engagement Index scorg 1S 8 composie metnc
based on 3 questions.

1 1would recomimend this as a great place 1o waik
2 | rarely think about laoking for a job elsewhere
3. 1am enthusiastic about my [ob

We aiso lzunched cur annual Rubie Awards in 2019 [t was ihe
first ime we have celebirated together as a business 0 reward
the hard work and dedication of our pegple. As DWF grows
across the globe, i1's more imponant than ever we recognise the
indivicduals wha are Inving the values and being true role models.

5 STAR Futures
We recognise that while t3lent s everywhere, opportunily
15 not, parbcalarly in areas vath low soosl mobaliny.

Our 5 STAR Fuwnres programme 1s designed ta enable young
people 16 make the most of their potential - to be the best
version of themselves Warking with young paople, we help
equip them wath the business skills, confidence and resilience
to aim higher and achieve more.

Inresponse to COVID-19. we are adapung cur offenng to continue
10 supporn the education of young peopie Mowing o a vrtual
approach will not only meet an .mmediate need, but engble the
impact of the grogramme 10 be expernenced in more schools

Investment in our people

One af the ways we attract talented people to our BUSICSS 1S by
providing them wilh 3 clear strategy for ther personal and career
developmanit People are at the heart of our business, sa we try
16 understand thew needs and olbyoctives tully before prowiding
solutions. Dong 1his enables us to prowde the right sotutons,
support ther pogression and measure ther success. Having

a clear end point for us s key. Qur rnam programmes are ahgned
with our DWF values and behaviow, and rmapped to our career
levals We run this using oue alobal platform. TAWF Acadermy,
prowding opportumbes for colleagues from all over the woild

ta spashse and learn from each other Qur technalogy platlorm
means sonal loaiming and shanng Knowledge happens
seamlessly acioss the busingss Although cui curnculurmas
mapped 10 caicer levels, we encourdge igh poterntalh individuals
10 altend sessions n th2 higher ters, so they can build those
skills earty

Our a1 Lo attegcd acd retam the Best new alent as early 33
possidle in ther careers This may be at the apprantice of Lrainee
stage, or when newlfy gqualfied Jur highest retenton rate «s Tor
people n thig catedory Tybically they giow with us and are greal
atfvacates for our valyes and benaviour

Response rate

67%

Engagement score

76

We care sbout the diversity of our candidates, and wark wath local
rolleges and universilies 10 provide msight days. Our recrustmant
process 15 fair and inclusive, but the success of it depends on us
having a large and diverse pool of 1atent 1o select from. The aim

of the insight days is to demyslify the legal profession and explain
the wide range of roles available, therefore attracung people whe
may not have considered the legal profession before.

We have already reviewed and taken steps 10 ensure a more
consisient representation of DWF 10 arrac! candidales al puery
entry point through soctal media channels, and removed
urnecessary [argon or selecticn cntena, particularly for entry-
level roles, 1o advance social mobility.

Wellbeing and benefits

Our appreach s 1o improve the health and wellbeing of our
peopfe through a combination of preventative, protective and
proactive interventions that address the cause as we!l as ihe
effect of any health and wellheing 1ssues. As we continue 1o
navigate this uncertd@in world, it's impartant we continue (o
focus on the human aspects of doing business. 1o ncrease
the resiliznce of our business and ensure, 35 far asis possible.
our peaple do not suffer stress as a result of ther wark

Qur coltective health and wellbeing wili be integral to the
sustainability of our business as we emerge from 1he COVID-18
crisis. As a business, we arg ensuring our people get the
support they need 1o continue their work safely We arg 1ssuing
requiar, canzistent and co-ordinated communications 1o all
employees, through multiple channels far maximum resch and
engagement, so all individuals are fully informed dunng this
umes We wili continug to encourage open conversations aboul
mental healih and the suppart available whan employees are
strugghng. 1o ensure they have a healthy work-life balance and
epnortunitics for development

To help everyone maintain a healthy mind we have parinered
wilth Workplace Options, who provide a confidenual helphne

1o support anyane through difhiculs trmes Tois available giobally,
24 hours a day, saven days 8 weak Inhght of COVID-19, which
statted at the end of the financial year in the UK, we biroughit
forward the taunch of 8 rew diqital GP service, enablicg
collzagues 1o speck ta a gqualified docior, any tme of day

or gkl directly from ther mobide, ensunng emoloynos nad
Access 10 medical sugportf they reeded i
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Sustainability report continued

Our approach 1o benefits 5 to provide our employees with

a sl “eveard package v line with our posiuon i the market
ard we do this by constanily benchmarking ourselves against
our peers. Tms iimanciel year saw DWFE's UK business move

10 a new Hlexble beneits platform wich wall be rolled ot
ntermnationally throughout 2020/21, providing employees with
3 single plaiform o gecess all of their benefins, including shares
and pensiors and where apmopuate, the freedom to choose
the beneins that sun then hiesiyle.

In addition 16 the above, and in hght of COVID-19, we have
reviewed our globdl medical offenng and srrenglhened it by
ncreasing clawn kraits, addirg new categones, and maxing i
easier 10 claom Thes enswres o meels the nesds of challenging

umes we vl have throughout 2020, and that we provide the
nght level of cover for the contnued health of cur people.

Work/life balance
We have always wanied te create a high perfarmance, flexible,
fardy-inendiy workplace

We see flexible working as & way of improving our operationa
efieciveness, ani we have moved 1o a culture that focuses

on results and pertormance. not attendance or ‘presenteoism’
A5 ow wark and non-working ives merge due 1o COVI0-19,

a focus on striking the night bhalance will perhaps never be more
relevant than it s today

The Top Employers for Working Families Benchmark allows

us o measure ous work-life policies and actvines with current
practice, and wentiy areas where we should target o future
iniatives The benchmark helps us buldd a compiehensive
picture of the flexible and farmiiy-triendly environment within
our busingss, and we sre proud to bave been awarded Top 10
Employer stalus again this year.

We also use our Fulze surveys avary s months, 1o gam valugble
feedback and help ensure our colleagues fecl supporied.

Puise surviey gueslion ODWF Benchimask®

| am able 10 balance work and personal

76% 71%
life n 3 way that works for me
Are the expeciahons of me at work
e exy s o w 6% 16%
reasonable?
1 am qethng whai I neec from m
am Gethng Wit ‘ v 78% 70%

managers

* Averace scores o other husiiosses FrGss a range o) irgusliy 5301ois

DWF featured in

[.egal Cheek as onc of the
best law firms for work/
life balance in 2019.

Mindful business charter

In 2019, we became an early adopter of the Mindful Busingss
Charter {MBC'). a collaboration mitially between the finanoial
services and legal seclors o change the way we work by
removing avoidable stress

As a signatory, we pledge Lo promote a cullure of openness
about mental wellbeing, ensure we include responsible
business as an area of assessment dunag siamhcant
precurement pracesses, and do what 15 necessary 1o change
working practices 1n supgort of the principles of the Charter.

We are starting to see greater considerauon (o colleagues
of the need to switch off and create boundanes between work
gnd resi. We've alsa embraced 'smart’ meetngs and have
been respectiul of each other’s ime when planmng meetings.

Responsible business -
doing business the right way

Anti-bribery and corruption

DWF mairains an Anti-Bribery and Corruplion pohcy winch

15 supponed with mandatory online traiming for all ernployecs.
Hawving policigs like this, that encourage dividuals 1o raise
concerns, is central 16 our ethical and supportive busingss
culture. We are commitied 10 maintaining 2n oper culture with
the fighest standards of honesty and accountability, a culture
where colleagues can regort any legiiimale cancerns

n canfidence.

As with all our procedures, we strive Lo ensure 1hose 10 prevent
bribery and corruption by anyone assocrated with he business
are propoiticnate to the bribery and corrugtion nsks DWF faces
DWF's nisk and control culture 13 36t at the wop Cur Board.

Risk and Audit Commitees, along with our semior lzaders,

arz commitied o preveniing bribery and corraption and are
imvolved in the determinauon of bribery ard corrupticn
oreventuon procedures

In 2020, we will launch a Gicbal Code of Londuct and a Speak
Up helpline Ther puipose is 1o help us do the nght thing, to
ask the nght guestons and make the ngind decisions every day.
The code will cover areas such as respect far hurrian nighis,
discrirananon, contheis of wterest indommanen secunty, bibery
anid corruption, and whistdeblowing
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Far furiher nfoimation on the Board and Risk Commuiites's
role wy ensuning good governance of anu-tnbery and corrupiion,
please see pages /1 and /2 in our Corporate Governance report

Human rights and modern slavery

Human Rights

Aresponsible and sustainable approach 10 doing business s
centrat 10 our purgose, and 1N conducing OUf BUSINCSS aCTvilies,
we respect these aghis, and seek 1o uphold and pramate them
as part of the way we do business, working and collabotating
with our pegple. communities, supphers, charines and other
appropnate stakeholders.

We support the pnnciples of Human Rights set put in the
Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the International
Labour Orgamsation {'ILO') core labour standards and we are
a signatory of the United Nations Glabal Compact In additon,
we support the UN's wider developmeznt agenda, including
the UN Sustanable Developmeni Goals

As a global legal business, we have a cesponsibdity 16 go beyond
sianng our cornmutment 1o respecting human aghts We must
demensirate what we ¢0 1 praclce 10 protect rights across our
day-10 day business gperations, sumply because i1 1s the nght
thing to do. This includes ensunng that f we dentity any hurnan
nghis violations, we endeavour o iake appropriate acton swaftly

As a responsible businegss, we will build on the wark dane so
far, and conunue o alfinm our values, raise awareness armong
aur people, chents, communities and suppliers, and take action
where necessary.

Madern Slavery

There is no place lor moden slavery in our BusNess or our
supply cham, Our approach s to understand how and where
modern slavery occurs, and 1o conlinuously review and improve
the policies and pracesses we have in place o prevent it

n sddition 1o our Anti-Sfavery Policy, which sets out our
zero-tolerance approach, we have a number of policies and
procedures in place that retlect the way we do business, and
set out expectations (o all cur employees These pohcies reflect
aur commitment ta responsitle business policies anc practices
that are law, tronsparent and nclusive.

We make sure zH our emiployees have the apprognalic nghis
w0 work and are employed in accordance with local lagislation
Policies make 1t clear that we will support and pratect
‘whistleblowers” and will not toferate retaliaion of any kind.
in the last 12 monihs we had no reported incidents of slavery
or wafheking n our cperations.

All new joiners 10 cur company are made aware of our Modern
Stavery Statement, Anu-Slavery Policy and online traimng via
our inductian and on-boarding portal.

Woerking with suppliers

We expect all DWFE supphers towmplement 8 zerc-1olerance
approach o slavery, torced labour and human uatfcking, and
1o comphy wath all local and nauenal laws end regulations.

In adcuon 1o our Supplier Code of Conduct, we developed our
Cthical Souraing Quesuonnaire in 2019, as a self-gssessment
1oot, covenng a range of tepies including modern slavery and
forced isbour

W groop expectations of our supphers mio six key areas.

— Human aghts

- Health & satety

- Responsihle supply-chain management
- Inclusion & diversity

- Business ntegrity

- Environmental management

Cur piocedures are designed 10 identiy and gsse55 areas

of potenual risk, ang over the past year we have developed

a strucuued approach for any employee involved in purchasing
goods and services on behalf of DWEF, (o reinforce the reality
that modern slavery s a potental risk within supply chams and
must be lactored into the decision-making pfocess

In the last 12 months, we had no reported inQidems of slavery
or trafficking from our supplicrs.

Tax transparency

Our approach to tax is published in our tax sirategy.

We recognise the important part that 1axes play in generating
revenue far goverrments across the globe to meet ther
economic and social objectives, and the important role that we,
as a responsibie busmess, play in contnbuting o society by
paying and collecting taxes

Areas of focus in 2019/20
- We have further developed our modern stavery
swarencss training and matenals 10 engage our people

i
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1,749 employees (54%) have already completed our new
mgdern slavery training

- We have continued 10 engage with our suppliers
and cliems

We partcipated in the UK Home Office Transparency in
Supply Chams Consullation, thicugh membership of the
Giealer Manchester Modern Slavery Business Network

[

— We have attended exiermal conferences 1o keep
informed of best practice. and take up relevant speaking
opportuniies 10 talk about what we do

We continue to promote a ‘speak-up’ culture within gus
husingss, 10 promole openness and lransparency, and
encourage all of our employees or those working an our
behalf 1o raise any concerns.

——————— _—

We comply with all statutory obiigations and cenduct our tax
atfairs ina clesr, air 2nd wransparent way Dur CFO)s the Board
member with executive responsiihty for 1ax maters, and
presides over an effective sysiem of tax-risk management
maintained by an m-house 1ax 1eam stafted with appropnately
aualified indnaduals. As g responsible business, we do not
undertake aggressve tax planning, and seek 1o develop positive
and opan relayonships with 13x authonbes

Healith and safety

Every business has hedlih and salety responsibiiies, and

DWEF 15 no exception Managirg the welfare of our people s tey
10 our busmess. Businesses are undear INCragsing scrutiny 10
demmanstrate responsiaiity snd commitinent (o health and
safely management
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Sustainability report continued

We gre commitied o ensunng colfeagues have a reascnable
awarencss of health and safety 1ssues, and lo pubhshing
inrgrmancn on healih and safety regularly through the vanous
channels available Health and saiely informaticn and updates
aro avalzbile on the Group’s intranet and distnbuted wia ernall,
1o ensuee dlf colleagues have access 1o relevant inlormaiion
We distiibute speciabst informeation and briefings intemally as
appropniate We provide on-sile contractsrs and other supphers
vl relevant -nformation relatng 1o their rele in fultdiing our
healih and salety polices, objecuves and procedures.

For trawing, our appioach aims 1o minimise the health and
salety nsks of our business activities and 12 the weltare of our
pepple. and 1o 350 10 minimese any 3ssociated costs innot
negaling such nsks and reputational nsks o DWE

Tre Group's Health & Satety Moanager reponts to the Board
quartetly, and présents a comprehansive ennual report o the
Board on all Environimental, Health and Salety matters.

Data Frotection

As & multi-discplinary global busingss, shanng data enables
[WF 10 better serve our ermployees, and to perform shared
services for mulual chents of multpic DWF group entiies,
ncluding legal services and the wider connecled services
DWE meets its legal and regulatory duties and responsibilities
for protecning e personal data we have within cur care, while
maintaimng the standards of conlidentislity thai the people
whose data we process would expect from a fully comphant
globzl organisation. Our pohaies and procedures are bult on the
world-recognised principles contained wathin the EU General
Data Protection Regulation, tha! also complement and

foriify local data protection legislztion affecting each of our
nternational jurisdictions.

Responsible business -
community engagement

Social value

As a business, we understand we have the power 10 change the
world eround us. Helping people and communities thiive is good
lor everyone and geoed for busmess. Through our responsible
husiness agenda, we aim 10 inspire, engage and challenge our
geagle 1a tackle some of sooiety’s iggest issues.

We [ocus on education, employatility, heaith and wellbeing, and
homelessness, Lo foster inclusive growth, reduced inequality
and strong and sustainable communities.

In 2017 we became the first legel business in 1the UK to launch

o C5R pormal, IMPACT, thar creates a profile of community
mvestmet for everyone at OWIF and enables us 10 l0g community
beneits in real ime This bespoke socalvatue-reportng tool tracks
and recards the value of our social-value efforis. The processs
complataly aulomated and converls activity into mezningful
sociabvatue cutcaomes, From May 2019 1o Apnl 2020 — 3 1o1al

ol 24,7124 community mvestment hours were logged

Glotaily, over 240 mulhion young poop'e are not m educaion,
ernployment ar 1rainIng. sG our ononty 1s (o develop a variety
ot opportunilies for young people 10 increase thew confidence
aind resihence, and 10 gam valuable employabidity skilts to
herome wok-ready

Qur prionlies are 10 ncrease the numbers of young people from
{ow incoma and diverse backgrounds who have improved their
confidence, and puld a strong and positive ink between schools
and the wotld of wo'k This demystifies the workplace, enabirg
thierst iarsa Ther aspiatons

Facus on advancing sacial mobility

DWF 15 a Board membor of PRIME, an aliance of law firms
across the UK cormumitted o unproving access 10 the legal
arofession through work expenence, Every firminvolved
PRIME makes what we call the PRIME Commitment, 1o ensure
we ara offenng mesningiul work expenence for children of school
age In 2019, we joned with other PRIME members to design
and deliver Legal Insight workshops in 8 number of UK sociat
mobility ‘cold-spot” areas. VWe hosted a session i Leeds and
ather law firrms hosted in Scotland, Manchester and Rirmengharm

Supporting communities

Working with the Mameng Solar Light Company, we wete able
10 donaie and distnbute over 1,000 of ther solar lamps in
Zamiia The lamps pnovide basic lightng needs 1o low-ncoime
families iving without access 10 electiicity, of as & fust-response
light in the aftermath of humanitanian crnisis. In Africa, the tamps
will replace kerosene lamps and paraffin candles, which are
costly, a fire hazard, and cause lasting health issues,

Combating homelessness

Coligagues trom three DWF offices spent 2 night cutin the
cold as part of The BigWorld Sleep Out, to raise funds and
awareness for those who are homeless o displaced.

The team raised £5,000 and featured on the mural at the
UN surmmit on homelessness i New York.

DWF Foundation
The DWF Foundation is an independent chanty, founded by
DWF in 2015,

Qur empioyees raise funds to enable the Foundation to prowvide
grants 1o chanugs whose work supports people in locauons
where we have a presence, and offers the Foundation, and

the chanues it supporis, access o skills-hased volunieerng.
Emptoyee volunteenng, where our staff donate ume and skills
duning work hours o tackle local soctal issues, s an effecive
and gowerful way for us 1o continue ta invest i aur peaiie
and aur local communities.

Since 11s launch, 159 chanties have recewed
£374,612

The Foundation supports chantes which demonstrate mpact
inone or more of the fcllowng focus greas:

— Fducatun

- Employability

- Health and Yvelle.ng
- Homelessness

i the fmanciel vear ending 30 Aprl 2070, grants awarded
amountad 1o £126 164
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Responsible business -
respecting the environment

Environmental management
Climate change s our most pressing shared challenge and
OppoFtunity

In supporung the principles of suystainable development, we
have n place an envionmantal management syslam 1o identfy
end controf the impacts of our business, and enhance current
wWOrking praclices.

As 2 global company, this means.
- wWe MaNage aurl Carbon emissions

~ we ensure efficient use of resources by following the
Neduce, Reuse, Recycle” waste hicrarchy

- we nvestin technalogy to help funher our sustainability
2genda

-1 the UK, we mantain 1ISO14001 2015 certification

- we develon, apply and promate envirenmental best practice
g enhance our resdrence G chirgle charge.

Carbon emuissions generated by 1he energy we use and the
travel we undertake, aHects aur cortribution (o chimata change
Qur amtylion ramains 1o minrmse our npact as a lowscarbon
and mcre-circufar business

Reducing carbon emissions

We nave set a global 1arget of remaining under thrae 1onnes per
person, por year CTPPPY) Whie there was g 13% increase of
caroan emissons from FY168/19 10 FY19/20, there was als0 an
increase it headcount, which meant cur TPPPY decressed at
atount 6%

Further information on gieenhouse gas emissions can be found
0n page 95 of the Duectors’ repon

Aside from travel and engigy. and as part ol the 150 14001
Certiication sathuin the UK we also commil to the loliowing
targe1s in an effort 1o help reduce our carbon enissions,

- We mantan a taiget of recychng at B5% per sio. In the year
ended 30 Apa' 2020, we met 1es target, witl an aveiage
of at lcast 90% recychog across the Group's UK operations.

- To re use all sunable office furmiture and equipment
(e.g. chairs, desks, photocopwers) or donate 1o chariy
wherever possible.

- 1o conunually seek 1o reduce energy use thiough
proaciive estate menagement, space-neutral expansion
and agile working

- To encourage the reduction of plastic bottes and single-use
plastics - we have sourced DWF re-usable cups end botlles
that we seil, with the money raised supporting our Chariable
Foundation We have also decreaserd the number of dinks
sold in plasuc bottles whera we have bistros on sile.

We intend to adopt these targsats at all our international locations
where possible.

Governance

The Grpup Health & Salety Manager reports quarterly (o

the Board, phus provides an annual comprehensive report for
ali Health, Salety and Fnvironmemal matiers In addiman,

a wi-annual regortis presented the Board detailing infarmatian
on gl 150 Standards

Training

We zim 10 mmimuse the envuonimental impacis of our business
actvities, and the associated costs and nisks to DWF and the
wider community As part of our overall corporate responsibility,
we believe we should, where practical, encourage ouwr
employeas, supphers, contractars and Cuslomers 1o rmpiove
their 0w ervirgnmentdt performance — whether s 15 al work,
at home or wathin the wider community.,

Pricrities

Pricniies over the next 12 month will include ensuring we
remaii under our 3TPPPY CO; 1argel, and retaming the
1SO 14001 2415 certfication. We will set new targets in
Deacember 2020

As we are working in unprecedented tmes, we will
continug to monitar and evolve the exisling targets as
approprate. Due to COVID-TY, there 1s currenily a travel
ban. which we see as an oppartunity 1o reduce traval,

so reducing our emissions. Likewase, office waste has

also seen a significant drop. New ways of working have
akowed v 10 vsa the lechnology avallable, so also bingrmg
a reguclion In paper Jse across the busingss

These opporuniies will bring a significant, thcugn
temporary, drep in our CO; eissions, end have given s
ibe cppa turnly G conacder naw ways of working wiueh
may procuce a further longerterm reducuon n our
carbon emIssIons
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Non-financial information statement

Disclosures of ron-himancmal information matters ncluding a descrphan of pohces.
duc dilgence processes and outcomes, whore apphcable, are avadable as tollows

NIt rNa ter Furthe inlgnmetcn nccrpoigied o this s1memens by elgrence
Environmental

Responsible business — respecting the crvironment a3

Annuzl greenhouse gas emissions 95

Company's emnployees

Responsble business - suppofiing our peogple 371040
Culture, Employee polcies and Diversity and Inclusion 37 1o 40 and 672 and 63
Social

Responsible business - community engagement 47 and 43
Respect ior human rights

Responsible business - doing business the right way a1
Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

Responsibie business - doing tusingss the night way 40 1o 12
Bustness model

Qur business modet 12 and 13
Principal risks and uncertainties

Prncipal nisks and uncentainties 46 and 47
Non-financial KPls

Strategy at a glance 18 and 19
Responsible tusiness — supporhing our people 39

Responsible business - respecting the environment 43
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Risk management

How we manag

risk at

Risk rnanagement

Risk management is key 10 our operaton. It helps us protect our

business including our people, our assets and Importantly cur
repuiation) and helps us creale long-term shareholder value

Hisk appetite

The Graup's Risk Appetiie Statement aruculates our phifosophy
and approach to the management of the Group’s principal nsks,
defines specific parameters, gudas decision making and
eNsures appropnale govarnance over taking risks The Board

1s responsibile for senting the Group's risk appetite, which 1t
reviews and approves at least annually. The Risk Committee

15 responsible lor overseeing the develepment, implementabon
and mantenance cf the Group's overali risk management
framework and nisk appette I must ensure they are aligned
with the Group’s strategic objectives and emerging reguialory,
corporate governance and industry practice.

Overall Risk Appetite Statement

The Group is a multi-jurisdictsonal legal services provider.
The Group will anly behave in ways that:

Do not conflict
wath the Group's
values and are aligned
with i1s 11sk appette
and business
strategy

Do not expose the
Group's capual
position or the
resibence of i1s

Services

Are aiigned with the
needs of the Group's
chents and arsure they
are treated fanly

Are ahwveys in
decardance with iocal
lawes and regulabions

DWIF

The Groug maintains an enterpose-vade nsk management
fiamewoik 10 manage all sk types, with ngorous policies and
procedures designed 1o ensure L miigates the nsks the Group
15 exposed 10,

Group risk management process

The Board 1s responsible fur maintaining and reviewing the
chtectiveness of the Group's nisk management activibes.
These acuvities are designed 10 1dentify, assess, respond 1o,
repoit on and monilon the 1isks that anght threaten o ability
to achieve the Group's objecives withim its nsk appeute.

Risk management and comphance 1s not just tha role of our
Risk team We follow tha Three Lines of Defence approach o
nsk management, where nsks are owned and Mmanaged within
the business.

Qur business tearns form the hrst line of defence by applying
pohcies, procedures and controls

Members of our leadershipy 1eams arc responsible for routine
verificatron and providing accurale and up-to-date information
on key sk and control assessmenis.

Ine Risk team oversees (his, supported where necessary

by other contral funcuions, Ths consatules the second e

of delence. and enables an aggregetion of the nsk profile for

thz Group. The regulatony Tean aiso conducts routing monitonng
on arcas of risk, such as hinanaisl cnimne comphance, unauthensed
data access requests and conibeis of iIntlerest

Mhe third hine of defence is Internat fodit and assurance,

which underiakes indepandzant 2nd regular reviews of the
effectveness of policies, procedures and controls, meluding the
nsk management framework and nsx and regulatory team itself.
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Risk management continued

Group risk profile

The Board has dovelopod o Pk Taxonomy 1o ennw e we
consider the full and evobang spectrum of risks the business
faces We calegonse the principal nsks by the six areas
shower pelow

Group Taxonamy

Principal Risks
{Level 1)

Business,
commercial
and strategy

Lavel 2

Macroeconomuc

Legal and pohtical

Strategy

Business imadel

Commercial nsk

Conduct

Client outcomes
and ethics :

Ethucal praciices

Regulatory compliance

Other compliance:
employment, HSE eic

People Pecple
Operational Processes
Systems

Finance

Financial manageiment and controls
and reporting -

Monetary

Financial reporting

Financial erime Fraud

Money laundering

Bobery and corruption

Terronst financing

Market abuse

Principal risks

Informed by the work undenaken during the year on iha Risk
Taxonomy, dascrbed above, the table on the following page
descrbes the grincipal risks {Leve} 1) the Groug faces. with
examples of the Group's approach 1o miItigating those nsks
Mitgating actions are provided lor ustrative purposes and
should not be 1aken as the full ist of associated mitigating
acnons for each dentified nsk. Some specific Level 2 nsks
wiuch ment further cornment are included

COVID-19

4 . .

The pandenuc presents an unprecedentad challenge

and wa, Iike many businesses, are expenencing a penacd
aof disrupron and uncertamty We are open for business m
each of our [pcatons, Wheig our profly 1emans (0 enswie
the heahih and wallbeing of ou peaple and their farnibes,
while continang 10 provde the service our clients expect,

The Risk 1gam has facilitated ongoing, decumented nsk
assessmenis o igentity emerging nsks 1o the business
during this tme, and continues 10 commuricale these
F55e55menis 10 the Risk Comanttee and the Board

DWF has a well-eéstahbshed business-coninuity plan,
tnggered followsng the cormmencerment of the panclenmic.
weams [rom Risk T HR, Finance, Faohnes ang Chern
Development Guickly dentified, and continue 1o update,
the steps 10 take 1o priontse the wellbeng of our people,
chents and oiher stakeholders, while protecting owr ability
16 support Gur clens.

We have {cllowed the guidance provided by relevant
Governments and healthcare authornities, which has resulted
in restncted access 1o our offices, end in more agle working
arrangements for a sigraficant proporuon of our pecple.

We have supparted this agle working in the business

for a number of years, and we are well placed 10 conunue
operating successfully in the current environment,

Cur remote working capabilily has meant that maore than
95% of cur people are eguipped Lo work from home.
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Principal rvisks and uncertainties

Business, commercial, strateqy

Business
modcel

=

Maovenient ia year

Detads of fsk

There are several nsks 1o the Group
ansing from the way we do business
and, 10 parmcudar, our business maodel,
Following a penad of M&A, the nisks
faced by the Group include the failure
to ntegrate the Group's pehcies,
precedures and financal contrals wala
newly acquired teams.

Conduct and ethics

Regulatory
compliance

frovement in yedi

Details of nsk
The Group operates in an inCigasingily
complex global environment Many of iis
aclvilies and services are subject to
legal and regulatory condinons which are
contnually evolving.

- a7

Client
outconies

MMoverment i yeal

De:als ol nsk

the Group provides prafessional legat
services including complex legal advice.
As with ali professional services, 1there
ex151s the nsk of hability irom neglgence,
Bireach of chant contract and cgther claims
or complains by clients.

Minigaling acuons

The Group operates a detatled integration
pragrarmme 10 align all new othces and
teams with the DYVE ways of workmg

Minugating acuons

Thie Group mamtains strong relatonshins
with all s key regulators, mamianing

a diziogue to reman aware af wnoending
requlatory and legal developrients.

Mingaung aguons

The Group aims ta ensure 1ts colleagues
are appropnataly framned, superuised and
mceniinsed (o ensuie ther behawour
and actvites do not madvertently result
N poot ouicomes for chents

Financial crime

Operational Finance and reporting
Processes Finance and
systems repornng

Muveinenl m yveel

PMovement i yeadi

Deialds ol usk

Process nsk relates 1o the design,
execulion and mamtenance of key
FCCesSsSas, including process
governance, claniy of roles, process
design and execution.

Miigaiing acions

fhe Group maintains documented
target operating models and enhanced
iraming and development 1o heln
mitigate process nsk

Precesses and controls are subject 1o
independent gudit and assurance.

Key: @35Sieble @ Increased

Detads of nsk
COVID-19 mplicauons far the business
have seen an increased nsk of hgquidity
consiramts or reduced prafiabity

that could result ir a breach of nank
covenants Inaddition, in the face of
client decisions on payment delays, we
have had io spend maore bime (0 ensure
the validity of our forecasiing

Fraud and
money lanndermg

RMovement in year e
hents or counierparues may attemol

1@ use the Group to commit fraud or
to saunder money.

Deials of sk

Minigaung aclions

Regulai reforecastis miom the
introduction of measures 10 Save costs,
as well 3s requiar AISCUSSICNS that iake
place with key stakeholders

Moare frequent and focused discussions
with chients are mlciming the more
reqular 1eforecastng (Hocesses

FALGETHIG SCLIOMNS

The Group has designed s systams,
conirols and mandatory tisring
PIogizMIMes o mingale he nsks,
and identutby any sespious aclivity
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Viability stalement and going concern

In accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, the
Directors have assessed the wigbilty of the Group, 1aking
wito accaunt the current f nancial postion of the Group
including our “nancing arz2ingements, the busmess maodef
at the e of aprowINg itus report Al the uncegiagin

envwonment due to the impact of COVID-19 The Drrectors’

assessment wias Gver a three vear penod 1o 30 Apnd 2023
takeng azcourt oF the potental impact of the poncipal nsks
docurnenied in the Stralegic Report and accepting that
whitst the COVID-38 pandermic is onguing, there are
external factors that could affect Group nadkng that are
cdflicult 1o predict with as much confidence @5 would have
been tha case pre-pandemic

The Group expenenced 3 matenalimpact from COVID- 180 the
tinal quarier of the vear, seeing revenue fall away suddenly and
to an unpeecedenied degree due to a number of factors caused
by COVID-18 This impact materally reduced profit expeclations
for FY20 as the Apnl yearend comncided with the peak impact
of the pandemic, and 11 was not possidie to mitigate the income
statement or cash impact of COVID-19 dug to the lead-ume
requured 10 reduce cosis and mobihse operational inhabves
arpund workang capital managemeant  Inresponse to this impact
& number of actions wers taken to pratect hqusdity, access to
funding and neasterm profn protection:

- Fmancial covenants were reviewed and it was agreed with
the banking syndicate, with whom the Group has strong
relationships, 0 relex the EBITDA 10 net debt covenant (the
‘leverage cavenant’) from 1.5 umes to 2 umes on the Apnil and
July testing dates and 175 tmes on the Ociober 20 and
Januery 21 testing dates, z2nd back (o 15 urmes EBITDA by
April 21

An addi:onai £15m contingency RCF facility was put in place,
up 1o duly 2021 twith an addimional six manth extension
availale t¢ the Companyl, 1o provide extia fundiag should
there e any funther adverse impact on working capital

This facility has not been drawn and 15 not envisaged to be
reguired based an current modelling assumpions.

- Costreduction measures were agreed and exccuted 10
secure £15m of cost savings m FY21 10 remove excess
capacity from the business as a result of lower activity levels
dug ta COVIE-19

~ Operational niiatives were launched 10 improve lockup
management and reduce working capital consumption by
imgaroving tilling and collection processes.

- Whitsi no s1aff were furioughed under the UK government
schame, the Group availed itseit of a number of permitted tax
deferrals made available by HMRC which will be repard over
the course of 2021

The actions above weie a prudent reaction to a highly unusual
siisalion due 1o the sudden and severe impact of TOVID 19

that impacted Q4 of FY20. The urming of the COVID-19 impact
followed a penod of neavy investment whereby capiial had
been deployed on the stralegc acguisiion of RCD i Spain
{Decembert and Minderest (January) - bath acquisitions
continue to perform well and serve as a differentiator in the legat
seclor. These acquisiions were pregressed with the antCipatucn
thal the raditionally strong final guarter of the year would
replenish the cash deptoyed and generate sutficient EBITDA

10 keep the leverage covenanl within rmore noomal parameters
Under more typical ciicumstances, the COVID-19 impact, whilst
significant, weould not have necessitated such matenal act:ong
around hquidity and Covenants in particular, and the Girectors are
of the view that as trading normalises FY21 wall ransition 1he
tiusiness back to a lower leval of bovowmgs and lever age
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ol 8O~ (ha matures i Jarogey 2022 ol an eCdileet ome
yeal eslens.or avalable (o the Cormpany 10 Janyary 2075
conmcarec o be sofficent {or ine Goows's purocses based oo
CuTent pruyect 0Rg s assuined thal trese acnilies wali 22
renewed surcessivhby in 2027 1he ‘everage covenenl 5 5
* S ames EBITDA from apnl 21 crveesrats and 1he (roup expecls
¢ operawe cormlongoly wilhen (M5 parameier ‘of (ro foregost
peicd The cthe! covenants. o2’ rg max mum re: debs of
TImas egquily miramum 4 Tmes reerest cover VY and
debiors being ¢ oo of 2 tmes nel geot and the nensbe:
ol remrers m the group remzinang scove 180 are 3 prolpoed
¢ De fully comphant it sigr fcen” beadroom The direclors
CONSHie! JOING CONCATT 7 Ihe WiCe-yeally reaoi g Cyoie
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Albresutts and foresasts cortrm {0l cavenani comakanc
and suff-cient resoure

Aty

25 [0 setle habiities as they {a' cue

Base case budget assumplions for FY21 and medium ierm
maceiing assumphons for FYZ2 and beyone. refleci inat ine
Group will nperaie i compuance with cvenanis and wilk
switcien( cash and access to penking fachiies o meeat all
obhgations as they faf due The Loing of the FYZ0 arcual
resulls anrcuncement beng moved 1o Bith September nas
gwen the Directors wisdahity of traging pedoimance and casn
{fiowes for diay 1o August and botn prels and cash géne auon
have smproved since the 04 COVIDASG impact it has also been
possible 17 assess the wmnpact, so lan of the nwugating acicns
ouwhred above Tre Divectors are of the vigw that the stronger
than expecied Uading perfoimance in recent months énd e
avalability ¢f addwonal cash and cost miiganicns n the event
of turther neadwinds give conlidence in (ne 0agong wabiily
of the Group Mingaliens svalanie to the Grouo inclikde furihe:
cost cuting measures INCludrg borus payments. deferral

ol certain outflows, and review cf the dividend policy ard
reassessment of capital expendiiuce.

tong rerm v ahility has een considered ower a three yearn geootd
will relgreice (o snoncome slatarment, cash tlow and naterce
shiee: model Ths mvolves considenng medium term busmass
plans, funding and kguidity tequeements as well 35 sensit vity
analysis 10 pccount for a reasonablz worst case scenano

As w th going coscern tashing, allhindicators show 1ol covenars
comghiance i taking (nio secounl MItgaung achions et ine
Gieup weputd ake nsuch & scenand The Growp's Currenl post un
and prneipal nsks have been considerad, with those nisks sgt
out i the Strategic Repart These rsks have ceen considered
indnaduatly and in aggreqate. and wah reference io Group
straleqgy and exte:rnal factors such as COVIO-19 and adverse
acenoms condiinns In assessing the long term viataiy of (he

Group ine Directers considered diferent sceranios and oerdormed
sensialy assessment Thess scenanas end sensitiviies included

a reduction of revenue ard working capital. These sceranas and
sensiviies ad rotindicate a mtgated reascnable wors: case
scenang that reqaires any enhancad disclosure

4

€0]

Wenmst e mpaci o COWIGA19 ard me sk of futuie disrepnon,
cavld paternally be maial 30 re Drecicrs congider tha folioanng
sies of i

CHATECT i@ setor and the Group naiucive n

- The ongo.ng profrabibly ©f e tusiness a Y20
2ITDA deseete the severe

genzraimg £215m of Adiast
2 COVID- 19 mnact

“he annudty 2nd esiticnl naiure of certan deasions and
ces such es insdrance ang Lisgehcn

SCive

i

Low exposure 1o sectors more sevarely impzcled by
COVID-19,

- The ebiliy to flex the acyuisition sirategy 1o alow cash to
repienish in the bus.ness alter tne wrming of COVID-19
axacerhaled the sireich on cask rom two iecent
siralegic 3CQUISIONS.

The availability of miugatng aclions 1o Conrst €oss

A streng relatcnshug waih the Greeg's banking syndicaie whao
continue 10 provide facibiios wheh ensure orgoig Nguidity
with matenal headroorn,

- WWhils D the Groug has nd current tlan o change the use of ils
reel estate portfcho the expergnce of agiie workig as part
of our COVID-19 response may qive opnariunities 10 review
affice space in the fulure

- Qperaticnal interventions being mplemented 16 improve
working cagilal performance. with 192 an of reducing feckup
and therofore nei debt

The Directors thereigre considoer that he business model (s
appropnaiely robust and that there are sufficient mitgating
acuors availatila 1o the Board, that the Group 1s suiably resiliant
to deat with the crysiaisation of key 71s<s and/od adverse
econormic cendincas Oa th's basis. the Directors have

a reasonabie expeciauon tha! tre Greup will conunue 10 be
viacle and meet all its latilties as they fali due over the next
[nroe years,

Approval of the Sirateqgic report
By order of the Board

Jonathan Bloomer
Charmzn
7 Sepemoer 2020

k-
¢
i

|

e 1 e e
AJULIBA00)

LOIEIS PrsUEL 4

LO RO

|



DWF Group plc

5 O Lawragat s 2t ol Lnangest ciarseiea,y 2320

Corporate Governance report — Chairman’s introduction

Jonathan Blogmer
Chairman

Dear shareholder.

I am pleesed (o mireduce our Corporate Governance repart
for 2070, our second siice our 1PO i March 2009, This repornt
sets out how we have ensuied corporale governance remains
the foremast consideration for the Group, 1o satisty both the
high standards of hstad company corporate governance and
those speciic 1o a regulaied legal services business

This has been a challenging year given the impact of COVID-19,
and it was therefore vital that we used ourl govermance
framework to ensure eflective decision making. In this way, we
were able 10 respand quickly 1€ the nzeds of our people and
clients in a rapdly changing envisonment. { am proud of the way
our peaple responded 10 the disruption 1o our usual way of
working, and | want to thank them for their consistent hard wark
and dedication to providing an excellent level of service for our
clients dunng these extraordingry imes.

Culture and purpose

The Board understands that our people are vital 1o achiewing

our strategy. It also understands its role 1IN ensuning that we
estabhish our culture throughout the Group, DWFs values are

At ihe hean of our culture, prasvading a clegr Toundanon Tor cur
peopls and the way we waork together Our values deline our
orgamsaion and how we operate. You can iind more mformation
aboul our strateqy, values and cullure on pages 18 to V9 and
prages 37 to 40

We have a coltaborative and inclusive culiure that underpins our
decsions Qur Diversity & [nclusion and Digriny st Work policies
make it clear that the Group 1akes a zero wlerance approach

1w disgnirmination, bullying and harassment. Our Owersity &
Inclusion Leadership Group of 45 senior lezders from across
the world dehinas and executes our global inclusion straregy.
\We have baen following our current Diversity & Incluson
strategy for almost three years now, but this vear was the firsg
since we announced our targets for gender and BAME within
our senior leadership. These am for at least 30% female
representation and 10% BAME representaiion in gur senior
leadership by 2022, This year saw the dmsions within our global
network create plans specific o ther teams, poople and areas
of pracuce, and se1 out their commitments 1o play & role In
achieving pragress, apaainting sgonsors ad champans ta
maxgmise communication, and 1o understanding and creating
greater opportunities for menionng and Sponsorship aoross

our business. Please see pages 56, 58, 62 63 and 66 of this
repoit for more information on the Board's commsiment (o
Dwersity & inciusion and please see pages 37 and 38 of the
Sustainabiity repert for information on the oxternal recognition
of that commitrnent during the year.

COVID-19

COVID-19, and responses 1o it, affected the personal and
molessional lives of our stakeholders around the globe

We immediately recognised the need t¢ adapt our ways of
working, making sure the safety of our people, chents and
suppliers remamed our highest prionty Alongside invoking our
Business Continuity Plan, our Executive Board, quided ty our
Risk team, introduced a number of additonal measuras (o
enable a swift and effective response The Board ensured ihat
1 was able 10 dedicate the addional bme needod 1o suppon
the business and provide gocd governance in the rapidly
evolving environmeant, rmesting much maore freguently

from March uniil June. Please see pages 16, 17 ard 46

for further informaton.

Board composition and changes

Since the end of FY2019/20, there have been a number of
changes to the Board's compasiuon. The Norminanon Committee
ard Board discussed optimum Board composion and the

skills required 10 take the business forward, resultng in those
changes. | am conhident we have a strong leadership team, o
make the nght decisions in a challengng 2conomic enviranment

Sic Migel Knowles succeaded Andiew Leartherland in May 2020
as Group Chief Executive Officer The Boasre would ike 1o 1ake
this apportunity 1o thank Andrew for over 20 yvears’ service

to the Group, recognising hes remendous mfluence on the
business, wiich he helped crow irom a two ottice UK law firm
10 a giobal legal business wath 33 ofhices and maore than 4,000
seople He wes also mstrumienial in acheving last year's IPG
We vash i all the bestin tus future endeavours
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Upon Sir Mhgel becomimg Grovys Chisi Fxecotve Oticer,

Chris Sullwvan was appointed as Chair o an eleam basis unid
the Board could select and appoirt ¢ new Char A cornmittee
ot mdependent dircclers waes wimadiaiely formed toiun

a selection process for a permancnt Char | was delghtad 1o
ve eppointed Charmasn with e'fect fraom 1 August 2020 On the
same date, Chns Sullvan was appowrited as Deputy Charman,
alongside his role as Semor Independent Direcior

Alson May 2620, Matthew Doughty, @ Patiner Diector on the
Board, agreed 1o become our Chie! Operaung Officer, a new
posiion on our Executve Bozrd, Whih ellect from 22 Ociober
2020, Manthew's position on the Baaid wail change from Partner
Director to Execunve Uirecter 16 reflect fug role as Group Chuet
Operating Ofhcer.

Finally, we have selecled two new Partier Direclors, Seema
Bams and Michele Cicchieity, who vall 1ake therr place on the
Board wuth effect from 22 Ociober 2020 Please see page 65
of the Nomination Comnitiee r2part for funher information,

For details on the Board's processes for selection and
appointment, please sea the Nomunation Caommitlee repoit
on pages 64 1o 66. We cuntinue (o comply vl the
recommendation in the UK Corporate Governance Coda 2018

that at teast half of our Board members, excluding the Charman,

are Non-Executive Directors whom the Board considers o
be ndependent.

Best practce requires us ta ensure the Board and its
conmitees Nave an aggpopnaie Balance of skl expenence,
independence and knowledge of the Company |0is also
impertant 1o address Board diversity and cieate a positive
gender balance in hne with the recommendation of the
Hampton-Alexander review 1he Company currently has three
wornen an the Board (33% {osing 10 four an appomimernt of
Seema Bains 1o the Board on 22 October 2020 (36%)) and three
women on the Executive Board 125%) For fuli details of 1he
Board and Executive Board comgositan, pleass see pages b7
10 55 of this repert.

i hope vou lind this report usefud Gur AGRI 1S scheduled 1o take
place on 21 October 2020 We have considered how we wiil
hold the AGM this year in kght of the imgact ot COVID-19, and
fulk details of the grrangements are sel oul in the Novce of
AGM, avallablz on dwigioup/eninvestors

Jonathan Bloomer
Chawerman

Corporate Governance at a glaice -
UK Corporate Gurarnance Code

Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018 (the "Code’)

For the yeat ended 30 Apnl 2020, DWF Group plc
was subject io the Code {available from fre.gov vk}
The Board s pleased 10 confum that DWF Group plc
apphied the pnnciples, and comphed with all the
provisions of the Cede throughout the yeer,

You can had turther informanon on cornplience with
ihe Code as Iollows:

Pages
Board leadership and Company purpose 57 to 63
The role of the Board 57
Cormpany's pur;;ose_ valyes and S;ua!egy 18 and 18

ang 37 to 40

CHectve controls and nsk assessment 63

410 18

Shareholders and stakeholders

37 to 40 and 62

Workiorce engagement

Division of responsibilities 59 to 62
The role of the Chawrman 50
Vl:)Vw:s‘o@lweérV:”[’Hé ieadership;; B )

the Board and the Executive Board 59
“The ole of Non Executve Diectors 59
Eitective and efficient running of the Board 5710 67
Composition, succession and evaluation 58 to 65
Appointments and succession 54 10 66
Composition of the Board - ‘ 58
lEinaTuz;m of lh:a—Board - E;Band G5
Audit, risk and internal control 67 to 72
Independence and effectiveness of

internal and external audit funcbions 581070
‘Feir, balanced and understandable assessment 69
7!;‘1;;<-control framewo"rk and pr:n(:ip;! nisks h 7745 w017

and 7t and 72

Remuneration 73to 91
Execyiive remuneraucn and fong-lerm suategy 131021
Transparency and independence 76 and 77

Documents available at dwfgroup com/en/investors

OWT Group pic Articles of Associahon

Mariers Reserved to the Board

Terms of Hefererce for Board Committens

Gender Pay Qap: Repont and Gender Pay Gao Acton Piarc
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Jonathan Bloomer

Chenn e

Appomicd 16 the Board
T Augyzt 2029

Commaltee memberships
Nomnanoa Comrrutiee {ss Chaw!
Remuneianpon Commuee Ibeth from 1 August 2020}

Jonathan has over 40 years ol expe-irnzen fnancal services He has previgusly
held a number of board pesmans including Cha r nan of the LT Cmployee
Genelns Group, Senior Independent Dwector of Hargreaves { ansdawne ple,
Naga-frecutive Dreecian of Radicgok ple aad divecwgr of Dy ots Fram 2006 (o
2012 M Bloomear was Eyrppean Partnes a1t Cerberus Capital Between 2000
and 2005, he was Groep Chief £xecutive Othicer of Prudennal Giroup e, having
mevigualy served as Deputy Group Ciied Zxecwiee Olticer and Greup F nance
Dueciar Paor g ins ume at Prudenual, Mr Bicorer nalg serigr rofes al As thor
Andessen, Jonathans a Fellow of the Insutwte of Chenered Accountantds in
England erd Wales,

Jdoneihan s currently Chanmen of Morgan Stanley mamstionsl Avrow Glooal
Graup oic ang SOL Group Linwed

Sir Nigel Knowles

Group Chicl txecutive Officer
since 29 May 2020 (Chairman
untd 29 May 2020)

Appanied 10 ihe Board
Moveinber 2018

Appcwmied Group Clhet Execunve
Qihcern
29 May 2020

Commiliee membersh.gs held duiing the yea 2nded 30 Aprd 2020
Nominanon Commtiee (as Charl,
Remuneration Commitige

Sir Nigel speri aver 38 years at DLA Piper, a globat law fim where he was Global
Co-Chainman and Sernior Farirer, and, previcusly, Global Co CL0 and Manaqing
Pariner Irom 1396 10 2015 Dunng his tenwe as leader o' [ & Piper and iis legacy
hins, 1evenues of DLA Piper giews biam £S2rmbo i exczss of £1 Sbin.

He recewed g kmighthood in 2068 necograen of lus soivices 1o the legal
mndusuy I 2015, he was awarded the Legal Business "Outsianding Indiadual
Achigvernent Awaid” and in 2076 the Financgl News Cdae’s Choce” awaid

Sir bhgel helds an LLB degree 1om the Uneersiy of Shetfeld and a2 Postoraduate
Baptoma n Legal Pracuce from the Callege of Leaw Chester Hergcewedd en
Hormaty Dociora2 ol Laws iar ihe Umiversioy of Shetfield andais a Fellow of
Hamns idanchesier College Oxford

He was admitied 35 2 soliciorn By the Sehcnons Hegulanon Lunonty in 1980 and
is aegistered loreign lawye: wiih the Law Sotiely »f Scarland

S Nielis curenily Samor Independent Citecion 2f Morses Club plc as well as
Charman end Chair of the Remunerauon Commatee of Zeus Capaal Limined
He s a Trustee of The Prince s Trust

Samantha Tymms
{also known as
Samantha Duncan)
Non Exccuive Director

Apponicd e Bomd
Deceiner 2018

Comiriiee nembershups held duning e yes ended 20 Apal 2020
fise Commaee {as Chan}
Audin Commnee, Momimaton Comeaiies sod Remonesion Commelies.

Samanha (Sam) has more than Z0 years of @xperecce in e hnancizl services
sector mcluding extgnswe work i corparate goveinans 2 and nsk mznsgement
She hag 3is0 underiaken a number of roles at tha Firznoa! Conduct Authanty,

Sam sersed a5 3 Non-Executve Dugzior on the saaid 071G Gioawn ple 1rom 2013
ang fom 2018 sho dhgued ws rsk camnuttee See et 16 £ boad o 2018 Sainbas
alsg hoon a eearany ng drecter a1 Pramantoy Fooane ol e Uk Lid singe 2007

Sarn hohds ¥ oache'or s degice Bomohe Roonamprsn st of Kigner Ddacaiion

Chris Sullivan
Peputy Lhairman (winde

1 August 2020} ang

Semor Independent drector

Arnamied 1o ihe Soard
November 2018

Commiltee memberships hetd dunng the vesr ended 30 Aprd 2020
Audit Commities, Noavnation Cormmptiee.
Remuneration Commiilee and Aesk Commuties.
Chnig etred lrorm his icle as Chiel Executive of the Caiporate and invesbrent Bark
at Santander UK in Qctober 2018 e was the Deputy Group Chiel Executive 31 RRS
Group ple (RBS) from 2014 10 2015, the Chiei [xecutve of the Cotporaie Banking
Division at HAS lron 200916 2014 and the Chee! Execulive of NBS kiswance row
Durect Line Graup! lrom 2006 1o 2009 Chns started his career at BBS 0 1975
In recogrunion of ks services o Scottish banking dusing his vanous roles at ROS,
Chris earmexd z | ellowshz of ihe Chartered Insutule of Berkers Scotland

In 2014, he recewed a Liiznme Achuevennen Awad lom the Europesn Leosoa
Associatan 157 Ies Lontibution 10 the assel linance adustty In 2017, he was
recogmsed as ine Emopean Diversay Chamon of ihe Yea

Chris has been a member of the Wesioninsies Abbey Invesimen Conmmies snce
2014 angd way eppomied as Charman e 2017, He seives as 8 Noa-Execulive
Duectal of Tne Goodwood Felgie Campany Lirmiied and 15 8 Nor- [ recutve Cuelor
of Az Financigl Sottwaie Hetdings PLC

Chris Stefani
Chiel Financial Gfficer

Agpoinied 10 the Board
September 2008

Chris jcined the management team of DWF LLP in April 2416 and was appointed
1o ina Board of DWF Group plo in September 2018 Chns hzs around 20 years
of experience in the prolessional sarvices seclor

He was previoysly the Finance Drector of Ernst & Young's EMFIA Adusory
busmess (2014 10 2016), the Global Service Ling reporing tead of Emsy & Young
Londen 1201310 20143, 5 dicector in the UK Core Business Services Frinance
team of £rnst & Yourg Londen (2012 10 20131 and the CFO of &rnst & Young
Aepublic of ketand (2010 10 20717} Chris has exienstve expetignce in advising
eveculive boards an all aspecis of hnancal management comirol and
performance and prolitabibly smipiavenment, as well as arecord of oplinmeing
businesses (0 improve prohils or cost savings whila SUBRS g (evenug giowvih

Chnis holds an L1 B degree {iom the Univarsity of Stathelyde ang wzs admitied
1o the Assaciation of Charered Cerutied Accountams in 2001

Chig s trustee and honorary easerer o' the UK based chary K0S wheck
provides serwces 1o suppont dizabled children and thes tamiles

Teresa Colajanni
Non-Executive Direclor

Appoinied 1o the Boaid
Nevember 2018

Carmimitiee membershes beld Cunng the year ended 20 Apal 2020

Remuneraton Commyiee (a5 Chaw)

Ludt Compriee, Nemuratuor Camemattes gng Risk Commitles
Teresa (Teat has mere than 20 years of expenance w hurman tescuces
manzgement. She has mewvously served on the boards of Bounly Jreads @ ickdings,
mMothercare plz, Hoyasl Bournernouth and Chnsichorch Hiospials Pounrizrg Craup
pic and Alexardra Palece Ttatbre Compory Tea was Group Humen Resourcas
Dueciar al Mecha Emetignrmenms glo (2010 i 20160 and Vg Pres dert of buman
flesources, Corope, ol Vidign Hoels Caiporznen {2002 10 2009;

Tea bolds alaw cegize bom the Universiny of Ban, Ligly, aid 4 rezsien's doigege o
Eutopedn camimu iy leey, gLonarmics gnd pohirgs o he nversny of S
Itgdy She vworns atkomthed 3o the alan Bae m 1925 Tea slso
Ahiplomic N Leach o angd riwree g frovimy Qe "ordd Brook 25 Univensiiy

Teaserves ool D0y of The Wa chies ol Swirzedand Gronp ple ane S0 ore 3y
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Matthew Doughty
Fartner Duector

Spgpomiet 1 the Board
Ngvenber 2008

Matihew was appointed o the Board of DWF Grooap ploin Novemiber 2018 as
Paiinet Director 2nd subsequently apponied 10 1h2 nevs bxecuive Soard role
of Graup Chrel Operating Otficer on 28 May 2020 Wah aitnci Irom 72 Qctober
7020 Manhew willbe an fxecuive Deacter en e Board in his rapacity as
Group Chiel Operaung O hicer and will cease 1o be a Paneer Thrector liom that
nme. Maithew has been a pariner at WF since Jung 2016

He was previously a corpdrate pacingr at Squne Patton Bogys (221310 20151

A corporgle pacien g Dorsey & Whiney 12009 10 20130 and a corporaie parlner
of Addleshaw Goddad (2007 1 2003) Manthew hofds an LLS deges rom the
Universiy of Bieringham, and completed the Law Socizty Fingl Sxanunation n
1993 from the College ¢f Law Chesies He was adimuated as a sehoilon by (he
Sahciors Reglanon Authonty in 1896 ard s ¢ tegisiered forogr lawyer with
the Law Sociely of Scotland,

Vinodka Murria, OBE
Non-Executve Directar

Appoiniedio ihe Board
Novemter 2618

Comminiee memberships beld dunng the vear ended 30 Apnl 2020
Apdy Commuilee, Nomingison {ommilies
Remuneration Commites and Bisk Commitiee

Vingdka {Vin} has maie than 28 years of eapenience #i the softvale sector
She was the founder and CLO of Advanced Computer Soliware Group ple and
Compuler Soltware Gioup ple. Botk weie acguned by prvate equiy i 2007
and 7015 respectively

She was previously a Non-Execuiive Drvector of Zoanla Property Group ple.,
Sophos p'c and Chime plc Vin was previcusiy COO of KewM Sysiems ple

Vin has been an operaung patner ai HG Capital since 2016 and s 3 Mon-
Ceecuinee directon oi Bunzl pic and Soficzt ple

Vi holds a bachater £ degree in compuicr sCerne an MIRA iom ihe Umversay

ol London and a Doctorate sn Busmess Adrmnisiianan {Honotaryt rom Seainborgh

Maper Uiniversity Yinbecame an Qthcer ol the Mast Daceliert Orcer of the
Rrvish Empue 10 2018 for her seovic 5 10 Empowenng women in iechnology

Luke Savage
Nan-Executive Director

Avposied 1o the Bnae
Moventer 2018

Commyiiee membeishups Beld dunng the year ended 30 April 2020
Audit Cemmiltes las Chair!

Nomanavon Commattee, Remuneration Commutiee and sk Commutiees
Luke s deemed 1o have recent and refevant iinancigl exparuse

LLuk2 has rara than 35 yaars of gapedience inthe hnanaat and prelessinast
services sector, with expenence i managqng regulzlony, analysi, imvestor and
tanking relationships Jor major instiutions He has previously seived as

a Non-Execulive Diractor on the boards of HDFC Lite Insarance Campany Lidd
Swandard Lile Employee Services L. Stanoard 1ife Finance Lid and Standad
Life Overses Holding Ltd He was Group CFO at Standard Lie 12014 10 2017)
and £F0 af Lloyd's ol London 12004 6 2814}

Luke helds 3 bachelor's degree in elzcincal and elecuomc engineesng from
imperial College He also holds an ACA quahicauon and s a member of ihe
Insivivie ol Charteredd Accouniants of England and Wales

Luke has served on the hoard of [weipool Victona Friendly Sacely Ld &5

a Non-Fxecuive Duecior since January 2018 and chairs its audn computiee
He ts also an 1he board of Mumis Securities plc. chamng boih its nsk and audit
commuiizes. Luke 1s Charman ol Chesnare PLC

folhe Stoker
Group Gencral Counsel and
Company Secretary

Agpomied s Company Seccciary
Joanuary 2019

Mothe 15 resoensible far providng senor mandgement wath o
y legal complance, corporzte governarce and hming nsk

wehile guery

Muoha Pas more ihan 19 vears of prvate pracuice and in-house legal evpenence
Pizoously hothe worked for the Suricry Beveraje and f eed Group where st
+s55 the Doecior of Busirgss Development ai Sunaiy Beverage and Foad Europe
anc ihe GrnersbCounsel and Company Secretary ai Lucezads Hibara Susinny

St also pizchsed as a o poratejcnmmarcial lrwyer a1 Ginck Hzonraon &
Suar R Gares LLT andg Slaughier and May wwhere she e

and guehler)

PGz Loltds 3 meslar s doegree s Cassicy bom Camt}ndqc Univeisily
5 posio acudte diglama m e and a posioraduate thplorma o Legat Fractee ion
Ve Crllegs of Lave Lomdun Molle s a ot of the Lavs Seoeiy o Erglanc
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Our feadership team

Sir Nigel Knowies
Group Chief Execunve Officer

Full biography can be feund on
nage b2

Chris Stefani
Chief Financial Officer

Full ipgraphy €an be found on
pAage 57

Matthew Doughty
Group Chief Operating Gificer

Fulbwography can be found un
23ge 53

Moliie Stoker
Group General Counsel ang
Company Secretary

Full biography can be found on
pIge 53

DWFE

Fxecutive Board

Glyn Jones
CEG Insurance Divsion

Glyn eaed 1he Groun n 2607 followang the QW merger vk Ricksons wiicre
e wds 4 oacner since 2003, He Hecame CEQ of the nspance Services divimon
iy May 2018 Glyn is esponsile for execwiny the Gioun’s Insuance Services
divisicer Siaieqy, driving forward s actwles and oo onthinadling as pachce
woups Glyn speaiahses i deabing wilh complex calasitophc nury claims, as
well a5 cther s2nousainjury end Taial clzuns He 3lso sdwges on o nsurance polcy
wsaues 10 Z078 Glyn was ianked by the legal dueciory Chamnears and Partners
Guaeta UK 55 aleader i his teld for gefendant work

Prgwous oxperience

PFreveusly for six years Glyn was the Practice Groug Perines for DWT's

Catas rophac Personat inpury Large Loss, Occopancnal Healih and Casualty
ream He hokds 8 BA Law entf Languages degree itoim Manchester Metiopofitan
Ui vet iy 3ad passed the Saticitors Final Exarnnzpnon course o 1980

Glyn was adrmitied as a sobcuor by the Sohcitors Regulation Auhony in 1983
and s & regisiered forpign fawyer wih the Law Society of Scotland

Stephen Miles
CEC Commercial Services
Dirvision

Siephen jored the Gioup in dugus: 2014 35 a pacner snd the CEO of the
Cominercial Seraces division Fe s responsibie (o execuung (he Group's
Cermmercial Services thwsion sifategy, dinang forward ils acrilies andg
co-0rinAtng 1S Pracuce gioups

Previcus expeienca

Frevously, he was a paringr a1 Pinsent Masons LLP, [eading s binancial
servizes, banting and rasiruciunng, and emaloyment and pensions practices.
Steghen holds an LLB degree {rom Reading Universdy and 2 pesigradueate
shplomain Logal Pracuce from the Caollege of Law Guldford He was admitied
as a sohtitor by the Schoiors Regulation Authonty n 991 and 15 8 regisiered
toreign lawye vath the Law Sociziy of Scotlend Siephen hes acted boih for
financial msutlutions and corporale boirowers, with pacircular experise in povate
gonly and feveraged hinence Lansacions

Stefan Paciorek
CEO Inteinatonal Division

Stetan jomed the Group n January 2015 and became CLO of the Intermancnal
division i Ocicber 2007 He s responsibie for the Groun's internalional sugteqy
and leadmngg ibe devaelopment of its nigirgtional busmess

Pievious expenence

Previdnshy Stetan was a paringr at Piosert Masens LEP far 13 years He holads
A LER dacizs tom Buck-agham Un wrsidy anG a Posipradusie Diploma in

73t Pracuce from e Lollege of Taw Lonvdon Sizver was adaitied as

3 sokai Uy the Schodars Regulanon Actiaary wi 1552 and adimiided as
asolicrs: in Northern Irelang He s a mermbDer of the Chartered Instiuie of
Arniirators ands o registersd foreign lawyeo with the | aw Seciety af Scotland
Sielan has maie than 20 years expenence in mnemenonal dispuie resoluuon
and project renegoliauen, particularly mathin the technotogy and eneroy seclors
He has ocied o mEjoi corporatigns Govenrnenis and ooy lae-prolin
Sigatnaano s otan m Ingh-probie dispuivs ofross unsdio o
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Jason Ford
Head of Connected Services

Jason joned the Gioup n Januaiy 2017 as g pariner and became head of the
Group's Connecied Serntes dasion in July 2017 He s responsible tar the
Group's suite of Connecied Serwices

Previaus expenence

Previously. Jason was ibe Cheef Operating Officer at Trion Global Lid 12613

10 2017), 3 muli-disciphnary alternatve business sirugture and one of 1he fisl
husinesses 0 be granted aiicence following 1he inplememanon of the tegal
Services ACt Prar to thal, hie vioiketd 82 a patiner al Robin Simen LEP

Jason holds an LLB degree from die University ol Sheffield and a posigraduate
diploma in Legal Piactice from the College of Law, Chesitet tie was sdmtigd
as a sehonor by he Sohcitors Reguiaton Authonty in 1991 and 1s a registered
{oreign lawye: with the Law Scciety of Scettand

Mark St John Qualter
CLEO Managed Services

Helen Hill
Drirectar of Human Hesouides

Helen joined ihe Gioup in Novermber 2016 =5 the Group’s Duector of Buman
Hesources She tecuses on developing ing Group's HH12arm’s business growih,
performarce and protiahity by aigrung the 12am 5 surateqic and cperanhondl
goals 10 the Group's business alans

Previous expenence

Helen has more ihan 20 years of expenence v genceralsl HR posinons gross
rautupie sectors Previously, sha was the HE drecior at Puncey Limied (2012
10 20151 snd, belore thai, HR consulient at Townhouse Conaulung L (2006 1o
20371, Helen holds a bachela s degies i Busimess Admimstianon with an HA
Specielism frem Teesside University ae ¢ 3 Chariered Insttule of Personne! and
Oevelopment qualklicanon from the Mancheswer Matonchian Unversity,

Zelinda Bennett
Maiketng & Client
evelopment Drector

Mask joined the Group m June 2019 a5 the CED of our Managed Sorvices
divigion He teads our strategy 10 build a global Managed Services plat‘orm

Frevious éxperence

Proe 10 )oining DWF_ he was Head of Aruticial Intelligence lor RBS Group's
Commercial and Frivale Banking business. Maik 1s also a governer and chairs the
audit cemmutige a3t the Manchester Metropolitan University. He was previously
a Councit Member of 1he CRI's Regianal Council far Yorkshire and Hurnberside
Mark has an MBA from Manchesier Business School and 2 BA {hons) i Hindi
and Sinhzlese from the Schooiof Onental and Atncan Swudies, University

af Londar Duning 18 vears within RBS Group ploc. Mark held several sirategy
and business uanstormation roles.

Daniel Pollick
Chuef Inigrmanon Gflcer

Ozrieljomed the Group in August 2018 as she Geoup's Chief Informanaon
Ofiicer. He aversees the sugtege ane aperaional apglication of the Groun »
ITsafrasicuciure, as well as the development of the busingss™s data steateqy
and the Groupy's busingss vanslormation lunction

Piavious expenence

Prewviously, he served as L A Piper LLP s Chiel Intormation Cthcar, a position

he held for maie than iwo decades. Darvel has been a Non-Execunve Dieecier

an the baard of Thongsoodge Tenms Club Lid Snce 2015 and belds a cegree n

Prosophy, Pohtics and Reonomics tram the Universiy of Oxicnd He s curmantly
wdying 1o an MS¢ 31 1he Douversiy of Manchesier Damel bas over 3l years

of expenence v the i f inddusoy

Zehnds joined the Graupn January 2018 as Marketng and Cliert Cevelopment
Director She s responsiblo for snaping our global huziness develapment, chient
engagoment and markeung stialegy, acioss 1he UK Curope. Asia Pacitic, the
Mugdle Sast, and tha USA

Previous expenznce

7ehnda has more than 70 years expenence 10 law hrm matketing and busingss
development Previously. she was the International Maikeong Oirector al DLA
Piper (2008 10 2018} and the Ma:keung Direcior of Eversheds Sutrertand (2005
1¢ 20071, Zelinda rolds a bache'cr s degiee in French and German Languages
and Laerawre fram Manchester Merrooottan Universniy a diploma in Markeung
tiom the Charlered nsaiute of Matkenng and & postgraduate cernbeale i
marketing managemsant irom Manchesier Metropalhtan University.
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Executive Board sponsors - leading by example

on Diversity & Inclusion

QOur Executive Boarc leads hy example when
demonstraung our commitment 10 diversity
across our workforce.

Ave

Heten il
Giyn Jones

As lead sponsors, Helen and Glyn are passionata sboui

this subject. and are considening how we can develop the
conhdence and ambitons for our people of all ages, ensure
we are fulure-prooting our business to embrace the new
genergtions coming through, and ensure a moare exciting than
daunting opportunity for those who have decided o leave
work for a different way of ife, by creating the nght pre- and
posi-departure plans.

Mgtk Quahiat

ﬁexible W&'kT]@;

Mark leads the initiative Lo create an envirgnment in DWF
where (a} peonle have the confidence to come forward,

Ib) the business can respond positively and flexibly and

ic) all stakeholders get the right result. Mark sees this as
encouraging people 1o work differently and morg smartly
Mark beheves this approach, when done nght, resulis in

a happier and more productive warkforce and helps to atiract
and retain the best employees.

LGB'I‘+ Stephen Miles
1t is hugely important 10 us that everyone feels they can be
thernselves at DWE Itis an approach that inspires authenticity
atwork for ail our peaple - including sexual gnentation, gender
wentity and gender expression. As the Execulive Sponsor

for LGBT+, Stephen has supported our LGBT+ Network in
ensuring oui policies and processes are LGBT+ inclusive.

Over the pasi year, we have celebrated a nurmnber of LGBT+
awareness days and profiled LGBT+ role models i the
business [1is mportant we create opporiuniies for our people
10 tell therr stones We will give continued focus 1o equipping
cofleagues 16 recagnise and challznge LGBT+ discriminratary
behaviour, Both in and outside of the office.

Gender

Melle Sipner

Stmubied By

Achieving 3 gender Dalance at senor levels remamns one
ol the biggest diversity cnallences the legal secior faces
There s g ot of evidence that demonstiaizs the bamers,
peicewed andieal that prevent laented wemen from
progiessuy) and achueving ther full porennal

DWF has made gender batance and equaity 8 gnonty
business rssue and launched business-wide targels, inclugng
2 targel for women 1o hold a1 feast 30% semar teadership
positions by 7027

As the Executive Sponscrs, Mallie keeps gender equality a1
ihe forelront of the munds of our Board members, and Stephan
1s commitied 1o championing equahty of opporiunity for our
female colteagues when mapping our divistonal pipeline of
walent and succession plannimng

Dangl Polhck
Zelinda Bennctl

Race & Ethnicity

Qur workioree - not currentiy as representative of the
diversity of our clients, cusiomers and global communities
&S5 we want il o ba. Atireciing 2nd retaming ethnie minofity
talent at every level, and remowving barriers, 1o build

a sustainabde wlent pipeline, s 8 pronty 1o the business.

Dan:el and Zelinda sponsor ihe Race & Ethnic-ty strand, and
cantinul 1o have reguiar and ogen comversalions with our
colteaques about race and culture, They have reinvigorated the
Race & Erhnicity Netwoik, led 3 reverse-mentonng project 1o
increase undersianding of the expenences of ethrie minority
emplovees, and support development and progresson

Cnns Siefarn
Danml Poihick

Disability

Chins znd Danel want 1o sh o the conwversation from
accessuhly, 1o focus on producinety — the social model

of disabulity identfies 1hat 11150t the disabubty holding the
inchwvidual back, 1t's the envirgnment where they operate.

DWW kas acteved Disabiny Coafrdent Leaders status, and
Chas and Namel have chammoned ool ongoing commilinent
10 recruining from the wadest tatent pool, and enabling disabled
talent thnve at work Over the past few yaars, we have
chiarmproned this imtiative wathin our local and business
community, supoly chain and networks, 1o help them

become Disabiity Confident too

Mental Health JesonFord
Jasons commetted 1o supparting the mental health and
wellbeng of our people, and fast vesr welcomed the
opportunity e ecome & signatory of the Mindtul Business
Charter Jason oversees the waellheng suategy ihat will see
lurther investimaniine learming and cevelopment on mental
health and paor suppon
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Corporate Governance report

UK Corporate Governance Code

The UK Corparate Gavernance Cade 2018 {the 'Cade'l 15 the
qudance for our reporting on the fmancial year ended 30 Apnit
2020 The Board considers that DWF tully comphed weh the
relevant Code provisions This Gavernance secuon of the Annual
Report, which mctudes the Direciors’ Remuneration report on
pages 73 to 91, the Nomination Committee report on pages 64
t0 BB, the Avdit Commuiee report on pages 67 1o 70, and the
Risk Commuttee report on pages 71 and 72, together with the
disclosures containgd in the Risks section ¢i the Strategic teport
on pages 4510 47 provides detadls 0i how the Cornpsny apphed
the principles and complied with the provisions of the Code
dunng the year ended 30 Aprl 2020

Company strategy and values

The Board establishes the Group's purpose, vatues and strategy.
and satisfies dsell that these and s culiure are alignod,

The Board recognises that the Group’s business maodel and s
governance 1s key 1o this.

Transforming legal services

We aim 1o achieve our strategy by building long-term
relationships with clients, recruiting talented ndividuals,
maintaimng a high-service-leve! culture, and cantinuatly
innovating i the provision of Complex legal services, as well
2s Managed and Connected Services that address client needs
and help us increase ow market share.

Our values
[WAYE s walues are at the heart of ow culture, providing a clear
foundation for our pepple and the way we work together

Always awn higher: By refusing 10 do caly the mimmum,
and reaching turther every ime, we expand the realm of
what's possible

Be better together: By supporung each ather and working
25 & team we can achieve more for our clents and ourselves.

Disrupt to progress: Just because there 1s an csiablished way
of doing things, it deesn’t mean it s the best way

Keep all promises: A promise IS 3 pronmsz, no matler how
large or small By keeping promises. we buld trust. loyalty
and commitmeant,

Attend to details: Paying aticnuon 1o every last detail s the
1ighi way 10 ensure that chenis experience tha very best
of DWE

These values define our argamisation. They quide the Board n
selecting businesses 19 acquire, and laciinate the integration

of busmesses that wall contnbute 1o DWE's abibiy 10 adueve
success They are integral to achieving our strategy, 85 they
promole 3 consisient corporate culture among existing and nawy
employees across our offices They inllucnce (he Beard's actions
and behaviour, complement DWFE's siretegic direction, and
suppori theniegration of people who join the business.

COVID-19

I response 1o L0V 19, cur Sxecuuve Bosrd invoxed the
existng irrmande Busiress Continuity Plan along wih
the following

— Developing o GoldiSibver/Bronze command structure,
reflecing a sirategic, taciical and operational appioach, 10
provide governance 1o deaision making and commumcatons,
and to dently lcad corsonnnl 1o manage the responsc

- Creanng a naw othice response plan and project, 1o
InCorpzor Al work Slieans sid aciivity reponling

— Creanng a newe globa!l COVIDA1S poiicy

- Freguent llurswice conmmumncauons, including the creatng
and revising oif FAQs

- Daily Sitvertzom calls and 3 daily media update 10 the
Sifver 1eam

— Global location-neads meetngs o help communicate the new
QOVEIaNCe response

You can find further information on the communication with ow
pecple and our chents in relation to COVID-19 on pages 1610 17
and page 74

The Board

Leadership and rate

The Board prowides strategic leadership and relevant aversight,
znd cunently comprisas the Chairman, two Executive Directors,
two Partner Lirectors and hive Independent Non Executive
Directors The CEO currently acts as the intenm second Pariner
Diector, 1115 responssdle for the culture of the business 1ogether
with ethical siendards and values which are inninsic 1o a highly
requiated business The Board is cormmitiad 1o developing
everhigher standards of corporate governance, as the first legal
business 1o pe admitied to trading on the Main Market of the
London Stuck Sxchange

tach of cur Exzcitive and Non-Executive Directors brings
refevant expencnce, independence of judgement and character
10 ther role The Indegendent Non-Exacutive Direcions, n
particular, bong a sroad perspective to the deliberations of the
Board nawing been selected for ther dverse commercial and
Secior exporise 13ther than a legal background

The Company ragards all the Non-Executive Dreclors

lothar then the Partner Duectorst a5 independent” vathin

the mearing of the Code, and free from any business or other
relanuonship that could materially interfere with the exercise

i thewr incependen: yudgement. They support the development
and suraieqic duection of the Group, providing criical and
construclive questicring to the Executive Direciors through their
parraipanon 21 the Board, and ther knowledge in entical matters
refaung 10 the nnncipal cornmmiiteas on matters of remuneration,
govermancz, nsk and comphance, és veell as financial maners
and finanoiel control
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Corporate Governance report continued

Board diversity

The Company recognises the value diversity brings 1o the
boardraom, end we beleve the Board will gerorm tetter, and
gain wider suppoit for its overall objectives and strategy, if d
wncludes the best peaple available, who also represent a8 wide
rangz of backgrounds, skills, expenence and views The Company
has aimed 10 appomit a dverse Board of highly tatented
ndieidials, including a mixture of gender, ethricity and social
backgrounds, such thal the Board meets the recommendatons
of hoth the Hampton-Alexander and Parker Reviews.

The Mominaton Committee recognises the need tor
development of a diverse pipeline for seccession to senior
management within the business itself The chart below
shows both the gender diversity of the Board, and the balance
between Executive, independent Non-Executive Directars and
Pariner Cirectors

Selection

We beleve the selection of Board members for a isted
company should meet the best practice critena of corporate
governance When selecting our new Charrman, we undertaok
2 Ngorous process, usng Spencer Stuart as external advisors,
w0 ensure we wdentified and recruited a Char vath the skalls
and expertise needed for a listed legal services business.
Spencer Stuart has no other connection with the Company

or indiwdual directors.

Composition of the Board

The Code recommends that at least half the Board of Ditectors,
excluding the Chairman, should comprise independent
Non-Executive Directors. Excluding the Chairman, of the eight
remaining Board mernbers in office on 30 Apnil 2020, five were
independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Cade further recommends that Directors should be

subject to annual re-election. Al the current Directars waill offer
themselves for re-election at this year's Annual General Meeting.

As at 30 April 2020

H57%

Gender [Male
Female - 33%
R_ol-e_ Chawrm;n o 1%
Execu[cv;;' o H
Non-Executves 7 7 56% 7
_P;-m-er Directors H-%
(Non-independent)®

" Andiew Leanherland s considered te be an Executve Direcior and not
incloded as 3 Pariner Oirector for the puiposes of this 1eble

With the exceplion of the new Chairman, all Non-Executve

Directors have served on the Board of the Company for

betweesn ana and iwa years, whie Si Nget Knowles, Chirs

Stefa and Matthew Doughiy have held senor posinans wathan

the busmess o more than bwo years

Interms of meenng targets for gendear balance and ethnicity,
the Company has complied vailn the targei recommendaions
of both the Hamoton-Alexander Review and the Parker Revievw
Diversity 1acgets below Board wevzl including targets advecated
by the Hammaon-Atexander Reviewy, the Parker Reviewr and the
PAcGregor Srith Reviewy, ars discussed in the Normination
Commimes reporl on pages 64 16 page 66

Board evaluation

It Is the Board's intenbion 1o underiake an external evaluation
ofits effectuiveness at least every three years An internal
gvaluation of the Board was undearisken dunng the year

The evaluaucn corsidered the Board as a whole, each Board
Commuttee and each Director’s Own persona{ self-assessment
All Board members partcipated in the evsluation along wath
certain other key collaborators, including members of the
Executve Bozrd, the Group s Intemal Audil and finance
funcuions snd the Company s Auditar and remuneauen aduiseis.
lhe parucipants’ fesponses were provided 1o the Company
Secretary, and reportad on, anoiymously

The man findings of the Board and Committee evaluation
process, Together wathrelated actions for the year ending
30 Aprd 2021, are as lollows:

Lvaluanon hnding Acuon for FY2020/21

Qualty of
Information

- Management 10 further improve the
quality and timeliness of information
orovided 1o the Board and its Commiltees.

- Annuat cycle of business funclion
presentanons. covenng the funclions’
risks, people and financials, wall be added
1o thz Board roling agenda.

Dwrector Traimng - Further strengthening Direclor’s
xnowledge of the nisks the business faces,
for example, through nisk appetite raining.

1

The Chair, with the support of the
Company Secretary, will arrange for time
o be sec aside for both team and
ndrnaduzl Board members’ development.
The Board should naie ihe develcpmeant
plans and roniorn progiess

Sharer.oldo - The Chaw, alongside 1he SI0, and
Fogagermean: Head of Communicatcns, will buid

a comprehensive plan 0 engage
shareholders regularly The feedback wall
infoim the Board in developing srategy
which demonstrates commitment

10 our shareholders.

Regulation

Ta cornaly wath cerdlsin locat regulatory reyuirernents, the
mejonily of our Execuive Board must be lawyers Our Executive
Joagr4) rmeets s requirament with seven of the twelve
members bBeing lavwvers,
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Division of responsibility
The {ollowing table sets out the policy on the dwvision of responsibibties of the Board dunng the year ardad 373 Apnt 2020

Foie [hrecior Haosponsdilings
Chatrman Sir Migel Knowles® i2) To chaw and set the agenda of all meeungs of the Roard

{0} To ensure the performance of the Board and management commetices

15 evaluated reqularty

¢} To communicate with shareholders and other stakeholdars

Sir Nigel Knowles served as Chan of the Nomnavon Committes
Group Chief Andrew Leaitherland**  To manage the Group's operations, including the development ol strategic plans
Executive Officer
Chief Financial Chnis Stefam To maneg= all aspects of the Groun's financial afianrs and to contnbute o the
Officer managemen: ¢l the Group’s aperanons.

Senior Independent  (Chns Sullivan {8} To oot A% @ sounding board or the Chawman and Lo serve a5 annlermehary

Director tor the other grreciorns

) To ensure that the Charman and Group Chief Executive Officer comply with
the policy on diwision of responsiilites

1) To be available 1o shareholders f they have concerns that cannot be of have
not been addressed, o are napioprate 10 be addressed through the usual
channels of the Chairman, the Group Chiet Executive Oticer or the Chiel
Financial Officer

{a} To constructively chellenge and contnibule 1o the development of strategy

Independent Tea Colaianni,
Mon-Executive Vin Murria, OBE .
. ' to) To scrutinise management perfoimance agamnst agreed goals and objectives
Directors Luke Savage,
Samantha Tymms c} To enswe financial controls and nsk management sysiems are strong

and secure
{d) To 1ake into account the views of sharcholders and other key stakeholders
where appropnate
All indeperdent Non-Execulive Direciors serve on all Board commitiees.
tuke Savage seived as Chair of ihe Audhit Commitiee.

Samantha Tymms served as Char of the Risk Commitiee
lea Colaiann served as Chair of the Remuneiaucn Commttee.

Partner Oirector Matthew Qoughty ™ ** (s} To construcuvely chatlerige and contrbuie 10 the developrment of strategy
fNon-Independent, . e i . . s . e eTIvES

_ (0} To scrutuse management pedformance aganst agreed yoals and objecuves
Non-Executive N

Director} ) To provids constiuttive challenge to executve decisions made by the Group

Chief Executive Difcer the Chiet Financial Officer and the senior
nBNaYemEent team
{d) To take inio accouni the views of sharenolders and other stekeholders
where appropniate
{2} To devise and recormmend proposals for the Board 10 have meaningiul and
reqular dizlogue with all of 1ne Group's pariners and employees

tiodor wBalensg
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s Parinar Drecior from that date and wall

- Si Nigel Kngwles maved lrom the role of Chaarman 1o Chiel Executive Othoe o 23 May 2020 He also oLied as s
CONUL 10 e 56 unhl! Two sew Paitnet Duecions are gupainggd 10 the Bozid oo 22 Ootoba 2620
0 Andiew [ sathedara stepped down as Chief Execunve Ofhcen and (st the Group on 28 May 7020, He atied as mitanm Partngr Drector from farch 2020 unul

s depanue
s Manhaw Docghiy's role on the Qoarg will change from Pacoer Dwectar 1 Executve Drecier warh eftect from 22 Ocicter 2020 and two new Panner Chiectors

wolt be appeimied 1o 1he Boad wiih elizct friom the same dae
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Corporate Governance report continued

Matters reserved to the Board
The Board has a forrmal schedule of maters specifically
reserved lor s deasicn and approval, which includes:

- approvai of the strategic and annual profin plans,

- key announcements including frrancizl staterments,

- diidend declarations;

- Board appointments,

~ the appointment or iemaval of the Company Secretary.
- major capnal expendilure, acquisiions and disposals,

— rmatensi coniracis, and

- Treasury pohey and other Group policies

Matters Reserved 1o the Board and the Board Committees’
Terms of Reference are reviewed annuaily. You can find them
on the Company’s website dwigroup/eninvestors.

Cur umigue structure means we alse have two Board positions
for Partner Directors, each of whom would serve for an inttial
term of uo w three years. The Partner Directors have a speciic
role which, while simiar 10 that of a Non-Independent, Non-
Executive Director, includes providing constructive chalienge
10 executive decisions trom a standpoint within the business
They are not entitled to recewe a fee for undertsking thewr role
as Partner Drectors but are rernunerated as other partners are
from their membership of our Group enities. For the purpose
of the Rernuneration report they are treated as Non-Independeni,
Non-Executive Directors.

Board committees

The Board has established four principal commitlees and one
standing commitiee The four princpal commitiess are Audi,
Remuneration, Nonnnation and Risk, the membership of whick
is mmited to Independent Non-Executive Direciors, although

the Chairrnan also chairs the Nomuinatuon Committee and sits on
the Remuneration Cormmitiee. All independent Non-Executive
Directors sit on all four cornmittees This helps them 10
understand all of the intormation that tlows 1Nto the commimneeas,
and the rationale for decisions taken by the comminiess.

Terms of Reference for each of the commitiees are revieweg
annually. You can find the current Terms of Reference or the
Company's websie dwlgioup/en/invesiors

Standing committee

_DWF Group plc Board

Disclosure Committee

Siantirg commmitiee

[ 1 |

AAudit Risk Nomination’ Remuneration
LCommittee Committes Commitiee Committea
Pruncipal Paneipal Principel Principal
conunmice commtioe comniliee COIMIT RS

The Board nas alsc establisped a Disciosure Communee 10
address reguialory matters detaled in te Torme of Relerence
All the Dwectors are members of this Commnanes The quoium
for @ meeung of the Disclesure Comminic s two membars.
The Committas meels on an ad-noe Dasis o censidar and make
clecisions on maters relalmg 1o made infonmanon concerni 14
the Company and the Group The Disclosure Comemmes is
responsible for ensunng the accurate and timely disclosure

of informanon to the market, 1o meet the Compary’s obligations
under the Market Abuse Regulztion, and 1o "onitar comphance
with the Company’s disclasure controls and procedures

Operation of the Board

Attendance

The Board and ns principal commutliees meet iegularly accarding
10 a schedule of key events i the Company’s Zorporate
calendar. Ad-hoc meetings are also arranged 16 consider matters
requinng review and decision outside of ithe normal schedule
Six Board meetlings were beld in the year endsd 30 Apnl 2020,

The Board calendar plans for six reqular meetings in the year
ending 30 Apnl 2021, and there will be at leasi four mesungs
of cach of the Remuneration, Audit and Risk Comnuniee, and
twa meeings of the Nominguon Commidlee, dunng this time
In addiwon to the scheduled Board meetings, the Chairman will
mcet the independent Non-Executive Directors without the
other directors present.
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Board and Committee meeting attendance for the year ended 30 Apnil 2020

Audin

Nomnation  Remuneration

o1

Aok

Board

Directors Posiinn meenings Cammuine Commiliee Commutee Coinmiiles
Sir Nigel Knowles® * Chawman 66 L T .
Chris Suliivan  Seant Insepencent Director 66 ais 33 ye A
-I\ndrewi;aaitherlarr;c‘i” ”Gréup Chseﬁ{-Execullve Ofticer 6,7[:577 o S o
Chris Stefani Criel Financial Officer 6/6 - - -
-Mauhe; Dought;‘ 7 ?S;rlncr Dfrrreclm B 6,’{; - i - o -
Tea Colaranni o Non-égégbtive D-IFééiOY 6/6 4/4 313 4/d _ 4/
Vin Murria, OBE Non-Executive Director 66 2/ an aja a
Luke Savage 7 _?-\Eoﬂ-Executive Dwréétor -_-é,'6 o 374 3/3 ) 4/ 3 Al

& " Nor ecutive Direc 66 7 7711_1;1 --'3/3 4/4 /4

SamanthaTymms

Non-FExecutve Divector

S Nige! Knowles moved fram the role ¢f Charman o Group el Execunve Olficer on 29 May 2020, S5e Nigel Knowles was unadle ig atiend tha Remuneralion
Commutlee meeung teld on 29 July 2008 dud ¢ an unavondab! diary comimiment.
“ Andrew beatherland stepped down oy Group Chiet & xecuuve Otheer gnd lelt the Group on 29 May 2020

Al meenngs are stivclured 1o allow open discussion The mimutes of the Board and cormmilies meenngs are cuculated 1o all Direcions
atter cach meeting Detads of ihe Board's acuvities dunng the year are set oul below 1f a Dirgctor 15 unable (o attend 3 meeting, they sult
recenve related papses in advance of the scheduled meeting and any input they provide s considerad fully

Main topics discussed by the Board during the year

Regular updates
Business pesformance
L£LO repont
CFQ gpornt

Group Genersl Counsel and
Company Secrelary’s feporl

HSE renor

Strategy
Performance sirateagy
ME&EA and Integrason
People stalegy

Talant devetopiment aod
suECession planning

Financial matters
Annudb1Eporng
Judgeting

Chndends

Group linancing

Liperanonal perlormancs

Culture

Zngagement

Dreersiiv and inclusinn
hMenionng

Putue Survay resulis
Traiming and develgprent

Yalues

Governance and
stakeholders
Invesior relasicns

Review of Board and
Commillee giipciivengss

Siakehotder engagement

Risk management
3rexi isks

Competinian law 0sks
COViD19

Cyber and infotriabon
secyunly nsks

Fraud ane hnanoial come
risk procadures

sk lramawork
and laxonamy

Regulatory

EHS regulzion and standaids
Listing Rules

Markel Apuse Regulatian

Hemuneraticn

Lppontment of
CRrNUNeIANon SCwisors

Gendie pay gap reporting
£ xeculve remuoneraiian
Share plany and awards

Decisin-making relanng o
leavir slatus

Worklorca remuneration

|

;
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Corporate Governance report continued

Board and committee support

The Company has systems 1o ensure the Board 15 supphed
with appropnate and umely informaton that helps Board
members gischarge ther duties. We have introduced a fully
encrypted elecuronic Board roria! o distributle Board and
Corrrliee papers, and this also enahles the cthoent
distnbution of busmess updates and ather resouces o the
Board Board members may request addinonal information
or vEnations 1o regular reporting as required

The Company Secretary 1S responsible 1o the Charman for
adwising the Board on all governance matiers All drectons also
have access o he advice and services ol the Group General
Counsel and Company Secretary A procedure exsts for Board
members 1o seek other independent professional advice in the
furtherance of thew duties, f required

Board members gre also provded vath suthocienl resoorces

10 undertake therr duties in relaion 1o Board conmimuttess

They have access 1o the Group Generai Counsel and Company
Secretary [who acts as secretary 10 all Board commintees! and
alt other partners and colieagues They are also able to take
mdependent legal and professional acwice when they believe
It 1s necessary 1o do so.

We have developed an induction process tor new Direclors,
which wilf be avadable for all new members joiming the Board.

The Company prowvides the necessary resources for developing
and updatng Directars’ knowledge and cepabdities.

A combingtion of internal and exiernal training, and talored
Board and commitiee sessions including briefing sessions, 1s
availatle 10 help Directors continually update ther skdls, and the
knowledge and familiarity with the Company they need to fulfil
thew iole as Board and commiitee membeis,

Culture

The Board understands that lisiening to our employees is key.
We have put in a great deal of effort over the tasi few years to
ensure engagement of our people gets the focus and tme it
needs, and in doing so, creates the unpact wa want This effort
includdes a range of communicauons and engagement 10ols,
such as Pulse Surveys, to inwvolve ur people and 1o share
messages and informatian on people engagemens, highlighting
that the Company is hstemnmng to and addressing thew necds

You can find more information on DWI s Engaging People
Executive and Frployee Form in the Sustanabihiy repori
on pages 37 1o 40

Pulse Surveys

In 2019, we moved away from traditional annual surveys to
a maore Trequent digital platform that helps lesders and line
managers create plans, locusing on the mprovernants that
matier the most 10 our pecpla

Emplayee voice

Under the Code, boards are required 1¢ 2ngage wiih the wider
workiorce to enhance tnhe ‘emaloyee voice” :n the boardroont.
Our Senwor independent Direcion, Chns Sulkivan, has worked
with an adwisory panel n the bustiess 1o provida this voice
Chnis atiends Engzaging People Executive meeatings, has mei with
parners and employees across Ouwr internztienal iocatons both
formally end informaily, engaged with thz Theersity & Inclusion
Feadershg Groog: and ineets wath the basimess di=cidy through
paeiings a1 key ponts dunng the year Toe Board has eiso set
worddorce polices consisient with our vaiuns and Gur Sirategy

for long-ierm sustanable success. with engegermen: & top
prionty favo-way communications tiered through managemern it
layers and we also hold 'town hall’ meetngs l2d by cur Growp
Chiet Executve Otficer. In addition, the Partner Direcions are
appointed from among our pariners, who as a group ‘orm part
of aur warkigree, The Partner Dicectors therefore represent

1he views of aur partners in the boardroom and consult with
pariners in the busmess on a regular basis Further detals on
comrunication and engagement vth employees and parnars
is disclosed on pages 37 (o 40 and page 66.

Understanding the financial and economic environment

To ensure our peaple are aware of ihe financial and cuonamiic
factors affecung the performance of the Cormpany, the Board
and Executive Board ensure they communicale messages

on ouwr rading angd key hinancial metnes to all our people

clearly and frequently. Cur people ecowve raining and mentoning
on financial awareness and this is also part of our career
management process and DWF's Behawiours Framewark,
which applies to all cur partners and employees.

Qur people as shargholders

We encourage employees who are eligible, 1o become involved
in the Group's performance through parucipation in share
schemes, further details of which you can find on page 85

All UK employees have the opporiunity 1o buy shares in ihe
Company, as part of our Buy-As-You-Earn ( BAYE") plan

Employee policies

The Board values two-way commumcauon between sermor
managament and employees on all aspects of the Company's
strategy, Campany performance, management gffectiveness
and approach to wellbeing. We have developed an iniernal
cornmunications strategy that includes regular management
roadshows, virntual strategy brefings, visits to operational uruts,
responses 1o a regular employee cpmion survey, and updates
on parformance. Our internal communications channels atso
include face-to-face events and a corparate intranet

Throughout the Group, the principles of equal opportunities aic
recognised in the formulation and deveiopment of employment
policies. We were the first legsl business to be awarded and

10 matntain Disability Confident Leadership s12tus for remaoving
parriers 1¢ disabled 1alent in the workglace 15 the Cormpany's
policy to give Tl end far considerauon 1o apphcatons fram
people with disabifities, having regard 1o ther particular
aptitudes and abiliies 1 an employee becomes disabied,

the Company’s abjecive 15 10 coninue 10 provide suitable
employment in the same or an alternative position, with
appropriate adiustments made if necessary. Employees with
disabihities share equally in the opporiunies for raining,
career development and promotion

Diversity and inclusion

Diversity in leadership

The Board is commitied 10 Mainiginmng i1s cultent gender
tiversily, with no lewer than three women on the Board at ihe
end of FY2019/20 We are targetng lemaie representanon on
the Executive Board 1o be atleast 33%. and for waomen 1o hold
at least 30% of semwr leadeisinp posions Sy 20272
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The percentage ot female representauon within 1he business
s shown below

As 3l 30 Apnl 2020

— T
Gender

Boaird

Cxecutive Board

Semor ieadership®

Al employees

* Semor leadersivp comprses pariners and disecto: s ai Career Levels 1103

We have a larget 1o achicve at lezst 10% BAME representation
2Cross senior Jeadorshin nosstions by 2022, and the Board plans
1o mitiate BAME pay nap repoiting by the end of 2020

You can find maore wlarmation on DWF's Diversity & Inclusion
strategy, benchmarking and {argets, togethar wath mnfarmaton
on 115 Global Diversity & Inclusion Leacerstug Group i the
Sustamnat ity regort on pages 37 10 40

Black Lives Matter

The Group was also active 1n resgonse 1o the Black Lives Matter
movernent by staring conversauons on is nterngl social media
piatforms and having histening sessions at all of its locations.
The CEQ also made an external statement N expresson of
suppari, and 10 se1 oul what the Group 15 doing In response.
Such actwity includes expansion of a successiul reverse-
mentorng scheme with senior management, set up durnng the
vear ending 30 Aonl 2020, and also using succession planming
and appointment grocesses in the scope of 1he Board's
Nomination Committee.

Emerging and principal risks

The Board has complotaed a thoiough assessment of the
Company's emerging and poncipal nsks Please see pages 45
to 47 of the Stuatoaic report

Risk management and internal controf assessment

The Board nas ulimate responsibility for the Group's risk
managernent and miema’ contcl n accordance with Provsien
29 of the Code, the Board s responsibie lor evaluaiing the
eifecuveness of nsk-managernent and control sysiems,
ensunng that

- there 15 an ongomng systermatc process fordentfying,
evaluaing and Mmanaging he emerging and onncipal nsks
faced by the Company,

— this systermn has beernin place for the current hinancial year:
- the Board revicws this system continually, and

— the system accords with the FRC qusdance on nisk
managemeant, internal control and related frmancial and
busimess teponany ’

The Boaid has directly of thiough delegated authorny Lo the
R sk and Audit Cominitiees, overseen and revigwed the
developrmiert and petormancs ol nsk-managoment activeigs,
prachces and internal conre! systems o the Gioup

furtrer details are cona nedin the Risk and Aot Comimuzee
epans at pages G4 w0 72

Regulation in England and Wales

Uniike the majonty of hstod comipan-es, thal have 10 comply
wath the Code, as a legal business we also have (o comply with
the reguiation of the Solicitors Regulabon Authonty {(SRAY 0
Englend and Wales and 1ake account of iegulatons imposes by
ather relevant tegal regulatary bodies 1n every country vee work
in in parucular, that reguiatory framework has led to an unusual
struciure 10 our Executive Board and 1o the struciure of the
Group, as well as 1o certam restnctions on shareholding

In addition 1o the standard requiremeants of good govarnance.
ihe apphcable regulatory requmea impeses three major
requirernents on the busmass. The first 1s that the majorniy

of executve management respansibile for the day-to-day running
of a legal business must be lawyers. Qur busingss 1s managed
by an Executive Board {see pages 54 and 55) and a majonty of
1ts memhess are lawyers

The second requiremnent is a restriction on the holding of certan
interests in an SRA-licensed entity, inciuding holdings af 10%

ar more of the voung rights by a non-authonsed person, unless
such persan has the pricr approval of the SRA. If someone does
acquire such a holding and is not authonsed w do so. then the
Company's Articles of Association entitle the Company o
mpose certain restrictions on all of that person’s sharehoiding,
which may include disenfranchisement or compulsory disposal
of such shares. Further details are set out In the Directors’ repont
on pages 84 and 95.

The third requirement is set out in the Company’s Articles of
Association and certain other Group consntutional docurnents
The Company and the Cirectors must ensure that appropriaie
systemns are implemented and maintaned ¢ enable the
orovision of tegal services by ihe Group and our people, m
accordance with the professional duties of legal practitoners n
each jurisdiction in which they practise. To the extent that there
15 any conflict, or potential conflict, between {1 the Company’s
and the Directors’ siatutory and other duties at law ang under
ihe Arucites of Assooiztion of the Company Lo shareholdars and
(1) the professional duties of our people and our Group entives,
then those professional duties will prevail.

Relations with shareholders

The Board 1s commutied to cpen and transparent drdlogue vailh
shareholders. The Chairman, Senicr Independent Direcior and
other Non-Executive Directors are availsble to meet wath major
sharchelders on request. You can find further informatanin
relation o Gur communications with shareholders on pages 16
and /4.

Cur second Annual General Meeling as a pubhc company will
be held on 21 Ceteber 2020 This will be an opportumity for
further shereholder engagament, and for the Chairmnan 1o
explain the Company's pregress and, wiih other members

of the Board, to answer any questions.

All Directors waill atiend the AGM, unless illness of pressing
commiments prevent them fram doing so. Full details of our
2020 AGM are set cut in the accompanmying Notce of AGM
{which s also available on dwigroug comen/investorsi
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Nomination Committee report

Chair, Nomination Commitiee ~ -

Cear shareholder,

During this first full year i oparation. the Committee reviewed
he appoiniment of the second Pariner Director and the process
10 be used inrefation to such an appointment in addition, despite
all the Indeperdent Non-Executive Directors baing relatvely

new appomtments to the Board, as parl of the 1FO process,

the Commufiee began a review of the approach to succession
ptanning for both the Beard and for senior managemeant,
recogmising s importance The Cormeniitee, together wilh the
Board, also ensured it has oversight of dwersity and inclusion,
and appraised the Group's diversity-related commitmants

After the year end, in May 7070, dndrewv Leaitherland stepped
down from his pasition as CEO and Executive Director, and was
replaced by S Migel Knowies. Chns Sullivan stepped up as fntenm
Chair while this Committee undertook a formal and rigorous
process (o appoint a new Chair of the Board On 1 August 2020,
lwas appointed Charinan of the Board to replace Sir Nigel
Knowles m this role and as Char of this Cornmittee, and Chas
Suitivan became Deputy Chair on the same date, alongside his
oasting role s Senior independent Director. The Committee
ensured we lollowed a formal, ngorous and vansparent procedure
for making these recormnmerndations The Comminee also ran the
piocess to recommeand the appantment of two new Partner
Dieectors, Seemns Bans and Mickele Cicchet, who will take up
ther new positions on 27 October 2020, and at the Same time
recommended the change for Matthew Doughty in the position
on the Board as Partner Director 1o Executive Director, 10 reflect
tis rew role as Chiet Cperatng Qfficer for the Gioup, also with
elfect from 22 Octoter 2070

The standard process the Cormmmities uses for all Boacd
appaintments involves an externat search firm identfying candidates
outside the Group, and also considers internal candidates

For Partrier Director positons, an exiernal search trmas not used
and onty internal candidate s are considered We underake
ditaded pssessments of shon-haied candidstes, fol'twwed by
nterviews with Corvurittee members and other Directors as
required. The Comnmitiee also takes references before it makes

any of 113 recommendanons of appontments w the Boord,

Jonathan Bicomer
Char, Nomimnation Commutinn

MNomination Cormmittee members

During FY2019/20, Sir Nigel Knowides chareg the Committee
and was also the Charman of the Board dunng that ume

The Committee 1s made up of a mimimum of three members,

a mnatontly of whom are Independent Non-Executive Direclors,

i accardance wath the requirements of the Code The memoers
ot ihe Committea are listed in the table below The expertise
and experience of each of the members is set out in thew
oiographies on pages %2 and 93 Molhe Stoker s appoimed

as secrelary to the Committee.

Other regular attendees are the CEQ, CFO and the Partner
Director, and other senor managers as appropnale, to ensure
the Committee can better understand the views of the executive
managemeant when making its decisions and recommendauons,
especially an succession planning matiers.

Nomination Commitiee meetings

The Commitlee meets as required, with a minimum of two
meetings a year. The Committee met thiee umes dunng
FY2019/20 and the table below provides details of members’
attendance at those meelings. In relation 10 the mecting
schedwled for March 2020, papers were circulated (o 1he
Committee members and reviewed by them before the
rmeeting. However, due to the impact of COVID-19 and the
refated lockdown, the Committee Members and Board made
the decision to postpone the majority of the agenda from ths
meeting o other meelings scheduied dunng FY2020/21, 10
ensure (he mam focus of Board activilies at that critical morent
rzlated 1o how the business should manage the impact of
COVID-19 and the lockdown.

Following each Commitiee meeting, the Chair provides
a summary of the Commitiee’s activily 1o the next
Board meeting.

Attendance at Nomination Committee meetings
held during the period to 30 Apnl 2020

Numbei

Duectors as at 30 Aprt Number
of meeings cof meeungs
elgible 1o allend aliended

5K Nige! Knowles (Char) ] 3 3

Tea Colaianni
Vinodka Murria
Luke Savage

Chis Suthvan
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The role of the Nomination Committee
e inan dutes of the Nonwnanon Commitlce are a

- regulasly review (he stucture, size and commposition ol the
Board of the Company and 10 make recommendations 10
the Boerd regarding any changes 11 considers necessary

keep under review the lzadership needs of the Cormpany
and make iecommendations regerding the formulaion
of succession plans for 2ppointments io the Board, to
maintan an agpropriate balance of skills, experience and
independence, as well a5 divarsity

- lead the process ior Board appointments and make
recommendations 16 the Boord on such matters.

The Comminiez s also responsible for

- a8515UNG wailh any ev3tualon £roccss 1o assess the overall
and ndividual performance of the Board and its comnittees

- reviewng the Group's approach 1o diversity and inclusion,
as aligned wizh 115 pohcies on diversity, and progress under
the same

~ monitonng the implementation of the Code within the Group,
as well as revicwing changes 1a the corparate governance
pohcies and pracrces within the Group.

full getarls about the structure and role of the Committce are
contained in its Terms of Reference, available ¢n tha Group's
wepsite at dwigroup comlenfinvestons

Key activities during FY2019/20
The Committee discharged ds responsibiiies during FY2019/20
as follows

Appointment of Partner Directors

Matthew Doughly has held the gosition of Fariner Director since

\PO. There s a requirement under the Arucles ol Assaciation
of the Company that for 50 long as the partners, i aggregate.
hold at least 25% or mnore of the voting nighis, the Board shalt
appoti iwo Partner Directors Fach must meet the selection
crlena sei by the Nominauon Commuttee for a persan to be
ehgicie for recommendation as a Direcior by the Namination
Comnmitiee The requirement, as set outn the Articles of
Associaion of the Company, was Lo appoint somecneg who Is
Both a member of DVWF Law LLP and & shareholder of DWF
Group pic on or beigre 10 March 2020, being witkin 17 months
of the dete aof adopuon of the Articles of Assacation.

The Momenaton Commiitee discussed i depth the appantment

of the second Partner Director at 1s meetngs hetd during
FY2019/20 The ume fimit n the Articles of Association was
noted by the Comrmitiee, but the Commintee also recagmised
that due o the acmsiion actity the Group was underiaking
dunng FY2019/20, the composiion of the Group was
charging consweranly, espacatty in the Internationat crnson.
The Commuiee agreed i would Be appropnate foi ine secand
Partner Direcir to reflect the ncreas:ingly alobal neture of the
Busmess and ke appomied from a candidate poof made up of

s pateers n the Intermanonat division However, 1t was also

noted that o would be approprigte for tus decision 1o be made
at g laier dale, cnce certan acquisihon act viies were complele,
or hed bero integraled

Therefore, the Nominaton Commntee recommended, and

the Board approved, that 3s Andrew [ eaitherand was already
& Direcior on the Board but alse a member of DWF Law LLP
and a shareholder, he could stand m as the intenm second
Partiner Director untl g time when @ would bie appropnate o
commence a selection process 10 ind a swisble international
candidate On Andrew’s departure from the business in May
20?0, the Nomination Cormmitige recommended 1@ the Boad,
and the Board approved, that $ir Nigel Knowles would take

on thig interim Position as he was also a hrecior on the Board,
a member of DWF Law LLP and a sharehotder

The process staited in June, and as Matthew Doughiy will

be changing s posieon on the Board as Pantacr Dwector 1o
Executve Director to reflect his new role as Cruet Operating
Ofticer for the Group, a process was also started 1n July 10 find
a swiiable replacement tor lem as Partner Lirector from our
senor paciners i the UK and Ireland. At the dale of this report
we have been successful in recruiiing 1w new Partner
Dhrectors, Seema Baing and Machale Cicchett, who will be
appointed on 22 October 2020,

Board evaluation

The Committee supported an nternally faciliated
comprehensive Board evaluation led by the Chair, with
support from the Company Secretary, which focused on the
pedermance of the Board, its Committees and its indwidual
Directors. More detail on ihe Board evaluation process is set
out in the Corporate Governance section on page 58

As part of the evaluation, the Commitiee noted that n had been
decided for the imnat penod following the iPO that all
Indepandent Non-Executive Direciors should sit on 2l the
Commuitees. it was acknowledged that this had enabled

each of the Independent Non-Executive Direciors 1o get

a comprehensive view ol the Group as a result. The evaluation
carned outl identutied that the Audi Comrmittee Chawr should be
on the Risk Commitee and wice versa, 1hat there should be
ideally bwag, but at least one, other Independent Non-Fxecutive
Director on each Committee. It was agreed that further
discussion abot memuership of sach Commitiee should

take place dunng FY2020/21

The findings idenutied by the FY2019/20 internet evaluaton
mclude:

— Quality of Board papers — management should ensure that the
Risk Commitiee recewes adeguaie nformanon on nsks that
might affect reputation or perdermance and thal information
presented is approprialely balanced between the provision
of relevent analysis and not unnecessarily volunminous

- Board training — lurther training would be benehiciat for each
of the Cormnrmittees, including in respect of noks the Group
faces. for example nsk appetie raning

- Sharehoider engagement - The Char and the Senior
Independent Direcior (and other Direciors as appropiistel
should mamtam sufficient contact wiih shareholdars to
vndeistand then concarms and ensure that the views of the
sharehelders are communecated 1o the Board as a whole
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Nomination Commniittee report continued

Diversity

The Board and the Committeg reviewed the Group's current
Dwversity & Inclusion strategy. which 5ets outl how (o make
chiversiy and nclusion patt of the way DWF does business,
and the translormational miestones achieved The Commuttes
15 proud of the progress made.,

Diversity was acuvely consicered by the Commitice i ali
discussions relating 1o appontments and succession
planning maners.

In July 2019, the Board approved the Groug's diveisity policy and
the following agreed targets relatng to diversity for the Board,
Executive Board and senior leadership positions The Commitiee
and Bozrd continue 10 monior progress towards them,

1 The Board to maintan its current gender diversity with no
fawer than three women on the Hoard

2. Feanigle representation on the Executive Board 1o be rsed
to at least 33% by 2022.

3. Women 1o bold at lgast 30% of semior leadership posiions.,
with each operating division being able 1o Se1115 own taigets
for gender dwersity in 11s sgnior feadership positions.

4 Target ta achieve at least W% BAMLE represernitatian acrass
scnigr leadership pesitions by 2022,

5. The Board to inihate BAME pay gap reporting by the end
of 2020.

For meetung laigets for gender balance and ethniciy. for the
year ended 30 April 2020, the Company has comnled with

the target recommendations of both the Hampion Alexander
Rewview and the Parker Review, with three female directors

out of nine on the Board, and has gthrucally diverse directors.
However, we recognise that diversity targets below the level

of the Board, including those of the Hampton-Alexander review,
the Parker rewiew and ithe McGregor-Sinih Review, are as
mportant as the taigets at Board lavel f not more so

The Nominghon Committee recognises the need lor deveioping
a diverse pipeline for the succession 1o senior management
within the business itsell.

The Normination Committee and the Board have made

a policy commitrment that all appointments ta the Board

arg made on ment, in the contexti of the skills, expenence,
ndependence and knowledge that ihe Board as a whole
requires 16 be eflective, However, there 1s 2 bread consansus
ihat \ncreasing diversity in the boardioom andan senicr
leadershun encourages new and innovative thinking, maxmises
the use of talear, and leads to bener business decisions

and gavernance.

At DWE we share an arnbiion, common with olher progressive
busmesses. 16 improve diversity on our Beard, Execuive Board
and across our wider senicr leadaership Achaving our diversity
goals will make a significant contnbunon 1o our mclusion
agoenda, help martan a comgettive advantage, and enable our
poople 10 cperale it a way that mawrnizes ther contabution to
our busmess Please see pages 37 and 38 in the Strateqic repont
ior more informatan on the Group's Qwversiy & inclusion
strategy and actions dunng the year

Succession planning

The Comimmes made a Gecision Lo begin & revievs of 115
approach to succession planrng for both the Board and
semor management, desoite the independent Non-Executive
Directors being relatively new, having joined the Soard as
part of the PO process.

A detaled paper was submitted 10, and reviewed by, the
Commuitee in late March 2020, although the Commutiee deaded
thst the deraded discussior on its contents and proposed
actions arising should 1ake place during Y2020/21. parucularly
given the recent changes in Duectors on the Board

The Directors have slso undertaken a skills assessment,
and the results of this helped inform the appointment process
for the new Char and Pariner Dueciors

Corporate governance

The corporate governance framework for DWF was up

1o date alt IPQ and processes were n place 1o ensyre
compliance at that point. The Commintee worked with the
Internal Audit team to ensure a nsk assessment of the corporate
governance framework was taken dunng FY2019/20. As a result,
1t was agreed that while processes were in place, it was sull

z relatively new frarmework and would be reviewed more
comprehensively during FYZ020/21

Nevertheless, recent corporate governance developments,

their imphcations and asscciated actions, were gicked up by

ihe Board and the other committees throughout FY2019/20 and
those aclions were taken as a result. For example, on IPO DWF
had introducad a past-cessation sharehoiding requirermnent {or
its Executive Dieciors of 50% of the pre-cessation holding
requirernent {or aciual shareholding, if lower) for two years from
therr feaving date However, duning the year, and in order 1o
respond to tha latest investment Association's Remuneratien
Guidelines, the Remuneration Commitieg agreed that it would
zpprove the decsion to go beyond the existing policy and would
operate the extended requuement of 100% of the pre-cessation
holding requirernent {or aciuzl shareholding if lowerl for 2 years
posi-cessation.

i Arpas of focus for FY2020/21
During FY2020/21, the Committee has already, o wili,
focus o

- the appontment and induction of the naw Chair
— the appomtment and induction of the Parinar Drectors

— continuing s ongaing assessment of the configuration
of the Board, iis cormmiiees and s succession planning,
! and the succession planning for senior management

continuing its ongong assessment of progress under
the diversity and inclusion policy and iowards the
agreed diveroity targets

- reviewing comphance wih the Code
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Audit Conmmittee report

Luke Savage .
Chair, Audit Commitie

Dear shareholder,

The Audit Cormmitiee has now been established for over a year
since hsung its role is 1o montor the integrity of the Group's
fincneal reporting, assess the effectiveness of mnternal control
processes, gverses the work and quahty of the Group's tnternal
Audit functuion, and monstor the quality of audit provided by the
Audnor, Delome LLE with particular regard to s effectiveness,
chjectiviiy and independence.

To 2ss151 with this, the Committee has workad throvghout the
yadar with managernent, including the Chief Financial Officer,
Oeputy Chief Financral Cfficer, Group Directar of Risk and Head
ot internal Audit, as weli 35 with representatives of the Auditor
These indiwduals are mvited to attend all Cormmittee meetings
o raise questions, and so the Committee can provide ther with
an mdependent perspective on relevant maters

Commuitee meetings fo:low a roliing agenda, providing for
effecuve managemeni of malters, and focused discussions.
The agenda covers a number of recurning items, inciuding
updates trom the Head of Internal Audi, tax matters and
avaluglions of relevarm Company policies, such as the
whistleblowing and limancial risk management pohicies.

As well a5 these metlers, dunng the year ended 30 Aprdl 2020,
the Committee zcdressed a numbar ol special matters.

These included evaluating the operating model! for finance

and financiat control across the Group's nternaticnal divisions,
assessing the fust year of applicatian of the new accounting
standard IFRS 16 i raspect of Leases, the development

ol a fimance roadmap for the Group, taking into account the
Sulicilors Regulatory Authorily accounting rules, and a55essimg
ihe Group's ievenue and work n progress in line with IFRS 15

As charw of ihe Audit Commiilee, | am pleased 10 present this
repont for the year ended 30 Apnl 2020, you would ke to
ask any questions about our work dunng the year at the AGM,
pladse ses the noes (o the notce of AGM which sets out the
arrangements for this yeer

Luke Savage
Char, Audit Commiiee

Audit Committee members

The Comrmmines 1s chared by Luke Savage The Commuttee is
made up of a mimmum of three membaears, ¢sch an independent
MNon-Execunve Cirector The members dunng the year are hsted
in the iable below The Char of the Board s not a3 member of
the Commuilee byt may auend ils meshng by invitanon For ihe
ouiposes of the Code, Luke Savage quakfies as a person with
recent and relevant hinancial expenence. Each members’
experuse and expenence 15 set out 10 their biography on

pages 57 and 53. Mollie Sioker is 3ppointed as Secre1ary 1o
thie Comifniitee

Audit Commitiee meetings

The Commitice ments at least three umes a year, (o coincide
with key dates in the hinancial reperting and audi cycle, and
otherwise as the Char requires. To enable il 1o carry oul 11s
responsbuities, the Committes has an annual rolling agenda
maintaned by the Company Secretary, and regularty reviewed
N conjunchcn with managament The Company Secretary
also maintans a tracker ol acirons ansing from meeungs

This ensuies that the agenda far cach meoeting algas wath both
the financal reportmg and avdil cycle. as well a5 parmcular
matters ansing throughout the year considered appropriate

by the Commitiec for ns scrutiny Al the next scheduted Board
meeting, the Char of the Commitiee reports formally 1o the
Board an the proceedings of the Commitiee, including how

1t has discharged its responsiblines.

The Committee held four scheduled meetings during FY2019/24
and the table below provides detalls of members’ atiendance at
those meelings Ar1be invitation of the Chai of the Commbee,
other requiar atiendees, who can withdraw as necessary,
included at somie or all ol the meelings: representatives of the
Audior, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer. the Deputy CFO. the Group Risk Directar, the
Head of Internal Audit, the Partner Duecior and the Deputy
Company Secretary The Commitiee also meels privately with
representatives of the Auditor, and the Head of Intemal Audit

Attendance at Committee meetings
heid during the period to 30 April 2020

Oupecios as at 30 Apnl Mumber Musbar
of meetings of meenngs

ehaqiie to attenr arrended

Luke Savage [Chai) 4 ) 4
Tea Colaannt & 4
Vinodka Muriia 4 4
Samaniha Tymims ! 4 4
Chas Suibvan a 4
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Audit Committee report continued

The rate of the Audit Caommittee
The Commuitee’s mam responsibilities include

Financial repoiting:
- reviewing the ntegnty of the inanoal statemenits, ncluding
annual reports and hatl.year repors

- feviewng and discussing udgoments on gccounung
principles and disclosure rules with Company managemen:

— adwising whether the Annual Report 1 fair, balanced
and undersiandable

Risk and controk:
- evaluating lha effectivenass of the Group's nsk management
and internaf control processes

- overseeng comphance with applicable legat and
regulatary requirements, including monitanng ethics and
comphance nsks

Internal audit:

- appioving the annual internal 3udi plan, ersunng appiopnate
fecus on DWF's internal contral environment, stralegic
pnonties and pnncipal nsks

— recemwing regular repents on the result of the work of
intermal audit

— evaluating the Internal Auditor's effectiveness

External audit:
- monitornng the quality of audit provided by the Auditor

- reviewang the scope of the audit and non-audit work
undertaken by the Auditor

— racommending the appaintment ot reappointment ol
the Audnor

Compliance:
- assessing ihe effectveness of the Group's processes for
comphance with laws and regulations

Futl details about the structure and role of the Committee aie
cantained inits Terms of Reference, which are available on the
Group's website at dwigroup comfeninvestors,

Key activities during FY2019/20
The Commitee discharged 1ts resgonsibibties dunng
FYZ019/20 through

Financial reporting:
— assessing the fust vear of apphicanon of the new accounnng
standard iFRS 16 Leases

- assessing the Company's revenue and work m progress in ine
vath IFRS 15

- assessing the cash canirols

- recammending the payment of dradends

assessing the acquisition accounting

renewang The Annual Report and Accounls i ensire they A
faw, balanced and undersiandable

- consmenng th2 negity of the half-yeady hinanoal statemnar s

Internai contrels and risk management:

- revienwving the adegquacy and effectiveness of internzl controls,
hinancial reporting and nsk mMmanagement, working with the
fisk Commultiee 10 gssass the scope and effectivenegss of the
sysiermns estathished (o idently assess. manage and manitor
financial and non-financial nsks

- moritonng the mtegrty and effectiveness of the Company's
aniernal fimanciel controls by reference (o

- suimimanes of business nsks and mitigaton contrals

= regular reponts and presentations fram ihe Group Risk
Director and the Head of Internal Avdit as well as the
Auditor

- evaluating the operauing model for finance and financial
controb across the Group's intarnational drvisions

- developing a hnance 1oadmap for the Grovp takng inio
accaunt the Solicitors Requlatory Authority's accounting rules

Internal audit:
- appicnang the Interal Audt plan

- revsewing the work of the Internal Audit function

- moniiornng Managemant’s responsivenass to findings from
nternal audit work

- approving the appointmeant of the Head ¢of Internal Audit

- reviewmng the rale, resources and effectiveness of the
Iniernal Audt funclion including access o aporopnaie skills
and cxperuse

External audit:

- reviewing the Auditor, 1ts terms of engagement, the findings
of 115 work and, at the end of the audit process, reviewing its
efleciveness

- reviewing the guanuty of non-audit services provided by
the Auddar

- assessing the ndependence and objectvity of the Auditor

Compliance:
- reviewing and updaung tne Groun Whistisbiowng Policy

Cieviewing and appioving any necessary updates la the
MNon-Audit Services Policy

- discussing and moniionng complance w.th apphicabie exiernal
legal and requlalory requirements
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Fair, balanced and understandable

We adwised the Board that we supported the statement that
ihis Annual Repont and Accounts, taken as 2 whole, 15 {ax,
balanced and understandanle and provides the inforrnation
necessary for shareholders 1o assess the Group's position and
performance, busness modet and suategy.

External Auditor

The Company’s Aud:itar, Deloite LLP was gppointed by the
duectors of DWF Group plc 1o act as reporting accountant and
tax adwisors n prepanng the 1IPO and was suhscguently
reappointed 1o underiake the annual audit for the financia! year
ending 30 Aprd 2N 9. Ther involvement as Auditor to paris of the
Group dates back more than 13 years (as Auditor to DWFE LLP)
and their ongms! sppontment came as a result of a competisve
tender process They were reappainted as our Auditor at the
AGIM held in September 2019, and the intention, as reparted in
last year's annual report and accounts. was that we would be
ungertakmng a compeitive 1ender process 10 2ppoint an Auditor
duning 2020, for the audit of the year enching April 2021.

Work was underway mrelation 1o this tender process at the
starl of the calendar year, but the trming ot COVID-19 sffecied
our abihty o run an effective tender process.

The Commitiee theretore recommended to the Board that,

10 ensure we undertake an effective auda tender process,

1his audit tender process be delayved for a year so it 1akas place
before the audit for the year ending April 2022

The Commuittee assesses the guakity and eftectiveness ol the
Aaditor on sn ongong hasis, having particular regard 1o

- the value of the Auditor’s understanding and insights mio the
Group's business

- ts independence and objectiaty

— how 1 approached key areas of judgement, the exient
of challenge and the quality of reporting

- feedback from management based on their interaction with
the Auditor.

The Commtee is sztisfied that the audit, as carried out by
Deloitte, 15 effectve and provides an appropriate, independent
and objective challenge to management's thinking

The Comminee has also considered the Company's policy

on (ke engagement of the Auditor tor the provision of non-audit
services {1 sels out ngorous conteols mtended (o enswe the
ndependence of the Auditor s notimparred, and takes into
accounlt the changes requwed by the EU Audit Requlaton and
Dreecuve (the Audin Regulation') and FRC's Ethicat Standard.
The pohcy stipulates:

the nature of non-audit servicas the Auditor 1S not permited
10 perform:

Jevels of suthonty for the Executive 1o engage the Auditor for
approved non-audil services, and

3 that any non-authl services 1o be proviced by the Audior
rrust be approved in advance by the Commitiee, Far a single
permitted project where the foe s no more thao £30,000
the non-audit services are considaercd trivial for the purposes
of the Audit Regulauon and can instead be approved by
the Chief Financial Ofcer {or Cruef Executive Officer in
fus absence)

As @ result of this policy, and 10 avaid conflict wath its role as
Auditor, Detontte LLE does not act as Remunerahicn Advisors 10
the Company The Commitiee alsa had regard 10 the Company
pohcy m relation 1o the recrutment of people from the Auditor,
agan 10 manage any patential confhcts of interest

The audit fees payable 1o Deloitte for the year ended 30 April
2020 were £448,850 and non-audit service fees incurred were
£47 328, the latier being incurred for tax advisory work in
Australa {relating o the year ended 30 Apnl 2019}

This equates 10 @ non-audil L0 audit fee ratio of 10%.

Ve continue {0 take sleps 1o ensure the level of non-audit fees
is comphiant veth our 50% non-audit fee cap rule (noting that
this cap excludes fees payable for non-audht work required (o be
carried out by Delaitte by law o regulation or ansing fram any
assessment of the Group’s complance with the Solicnors
Accounts Rules). The Group pad tees of £118,100 10 Deloitte for
such work for the year ended 30 Apant 2020

Peter Saunders 15 the Statuiory Auditor who signs the
Indepcndent Audite:'s report 1o the membars of DWFE Group plc
for end on behaltf of Delote LLP Poter has he'd this role for
three vears
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Audit Commiltee report continued

Internat Audit

The Group's Intemnal Audit funciion piovides ndeoendent
assufance over the mansgemeni of the aceas of greatest
nsk 1o the Group, and key aspects of DWF's mernal contol
framework The annval plan s seproved by Audn Communiee
=nd s determungd by a cornprehonsve nsk assessment
involving senior manegerment

The Commtiee receives reports on the oulcomes of Intemal
Audit’s work at each scheduled meetng, and the Commulige
closely momtors management’s response 1o sctions dentified
wny 1he reports.

The Head of tnternal Audit has direct access to, and has reqular
meetings with, the Audit Comruttee Chair, and attends the
Committee meeungs |0 addition, the Internal Audni function
has unrestacied access o erngloyees and documeantation
zcross the Group, to enable 1t to perform s duties,

The Cormrmitiec has appioved internal Audit’s terms of
Relference and the scope of 115 work conunues Lo evolve,
taking o account changes wiihin the Group's business, as
well as emerging best prachice. The Commutice also reviewed
the nternal audit activity against good practice as set out in
the recent institute of Imernal Audit's Code of Practice

During the vear, the Commitiee approved the appomiment

of the Group's first Head of Internal Audit, and the resourcing
of the annual plan, ncluding co-source arrangements to enable
the function 1o commission iha support of technical experts
and addinonal support where iequired.

The Commines intends 10 conduct an assessmeni of the
function dunng the year ending 30 Apal 2021, 10 consider
its effectiveness.

Accounting and key areas of judgement
The main areas considered by the Commutiee in relation 10 the
penad to 30 Apnl 2070 are set out below.

— Revenue recogntion” valuation ol unbilled ievenue

- Adequacy of the provison for bad and doubtful dekts on
trade recevables

— Contiol ervironment regarding cash and cash equivalents
~ Accounting for acquisiions

Consideranon was given 1o management papers and reports,

N conjunctian wath tha extecnal aeditars report and wark
periormed, in arrving at the cutcome as recorded and disclosed
in the financial staglements

Committee effectiveness
An evaluation of the Commuliee’s elfectiveness tcok place
duning the year, as part of the Board effectiveness review.
Owerall, the review concludad that it has continued 0 act in
accardance wath its Terms of Relerence, management was held
accountable for (s areas of responsiility, and Belome provided
an efectve audi.

Audit Committee priorities for year ending

30 April 2621

Locking ahead 1o the vear ending 30 Aprd 2021, the
Cammutice expects 1o

- conunue iIts ongong assessment of the internal and
external audit funcuon

- undertake an audit tender process for a new audito” 1o be
appointed for the avdn for the year ending 30 Apnl 2022

-~ continue 10 focus on the activities lad oul n the inancial
roadmap for the Group

continue to focus on effecive integration of acquisibons
into the Group's contral envircnment

— review the outputs from the agreed nternal audiy

tocus areas
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Risk Conmmitiee report

Sam Tymms . )
Chair, Risk Commitiea

Dear sharehoider,

As Charr of the Risk Committee, | amm pleased 10 present this
1eport, which provides insight nto the Comnutiee’s acuviigs
dunng our Tiest full financial year of operation lollowing the
Company’s isting. The Commitiee supports ihe Board i fullithing
is obligatons to ensure a Iramewaork of prudent and eflective
controls, which enable it 1o assess and manage risks, including
those 10 the long-term success of the Group.

Throughout the year, the Commiitee has monitared the Group's
procedures for managing risk, overseen the risk framework, and
determined the nature and extent of the pnncipaf nisks to the
Group, as described further below 1n &l s deliberauons, the
Committee has sought to uphgld the imponance of an
integrated approach to the nsk taxanomy, risk register and risk
assurance activity. The Commintee has aise focused on, amaong
ather things, the Group's cyber and nformation security nsks
and the Group's insurance arrangements.

Alongside 3l my independent Non-Executive [irecior
colieagues, | sit on each of the Cornmitiees of the Board.

I particularly value the close and effective maonitoring of risk
management achieved by my membership of the Audit
Committee, as well as the Chair of the Audint Commuttee’s
membership of this Commities.

Inn the very different circumslances the challenges of COVID-19
pigsent, the Committee focuses on, and receives requlsr updates
about, the Group's management ol the risks this envirenment
piesents, and how we should manage these in the shor, and
longer, term. Alongside this, the nature of the assurance activity
the Group underiakes must also evalve so the Commitiee €an
satisty itself that we continue 1o consider, manage, measure and
report the full range of nsks we face, effectively.

Samantha Tymms
Chair, Fisk Committee

Risk Committee members

The Committce s chaved by Samantha Tymms. Tis made up
of a nunimurn of three members, ond each s an Independarit
Non-Executve Director the members of the Committee durnng
the year are hsted m ihe tabue below The Charr of the Board

15 not a member but ey 2itend s meetng by ovitahion
fMembers of the Commitier have expenence of nisk
management issues and practices Each members’ experise
and expenence s sel oul o thes biography on pages 52 and 53
Moliie Stoker 1s appointed as Secretary 1o the Commiitge.

Risk Committee meetings

The Committee meels al least three UmMes a year, 10 concide
wilh key dales in ihe fimanaal reporung and avdi cycle, and
othervwise as the Chair or members require To enable it to carry
culits responsitiiiies, the Commuttee has an annual rolling
agenda mamlained by the Company Secretary, and regularly
reviewed in conunctian wath management The Company
Secretary als0 mantans a tracker of actions ansing from
meetings This ensures the agenda for each meeting algns with
the financizl reporting and audit cycles, s well as particular
matiers ansing throughout the year considered appropnate by
the Cormnrmshiee {or s sauiny Al the next scheduled Boaed
meeting, the Chair of the Committee reports formally 1o the
Board on the Commitiee’s proceedings, including how it has
discharged ibs responsibibities

The Comrmattes held four scheduled meetings dunng FY2019/20
and the table below provides details of members’ attendance at
those meehings Al the invitation of the Charr of the Committee,
other regular anendees, who can withdraw as necessary,
included at somne or all of the meetngs the Chairman, the Chiel
Executve Officer, Mathew Doughty {n his capacity as Pariner
Durector), the Group Risk Owector, the Head of Internal Audit
and the Deputy Cormpany Secretary,

Attendance at Risk Committee meetings
held during the period to 30 Aprit 2020

Dwreciors as at 30 Ap 2020 Nurmber MNumber
ol meeungs of maeungs

ehgible 0 attend suended

Samantha Tymms {Chaw) 4 q
Tea Cofaiznni 4 4
Vingoka Murna d 4
Luke Savape 4 4
Chris Sullvan a 4
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The role of the Risk Committee
The Comminee’s main egsponsiilies include.

advising the Buaag on the Gioup's overall nsk appetie,
wlerance and stiategy

overseeing and adwising the Boaid on the Gioup's current
rsk exposures and futurz nsk surategy

keeping under regular review the Group's overail nsk
ASSESSMENT Processes

prowiding advice 10 the Board on the assessment of principal
rsks facing the Group

approving the remit of the nisk management and
comphance lunctions

- considenng the major fimdings of ntermnal invesugations and
mMaNagement’s response

Thete are 1ull detads of the Cornmitige’s struciure and rote 1n
s Terms of Reference. avalable on the Group's websiie at
dwigroup comfenfinvestors

Hisk management governance structure

Board

The Board estabhishes the risk appetite for the Group, so
managament can manage, measdre and report on nsk
appropriately acioss the Group. The Board delegates oversight
of nsk management activities 10 the Risk Cammutiee. You can
find rmoie detaill sbout the Board's activings an page 651

Audit Committee

The Audit Commiitee gversees the developrment and
implementaton of the Group's Internal Audit assurance
frarnework and as part of this regularly reviews the effectivenass
of the Graup's nsk management framework and internal conirol
systerms. You can find more detail about the Audit Commitiee’s
actrviies on pages b7 10 10,

Risk Committee

The Risk Commitiee charactlenses the Group's princical aieas of
risk through the Group Risk Taxonomy This ensures oversight of
the Group's approach 1C nsk management and the development
of management and miligation approaches, o ensure nsks
rernain, o are quickly brought within, the Group's nsk appetite

The Risk Comminiee also monitors and reviews the
eHecuveness of the Group's compliance funciion, as well 55
providing oversight and adwvice 10 the Board in relation o future
nsk sirateqgy.

Executive Risk Cornmittee {"ERC’}

The Executive Risk Commstiee 15 @ rmanagement commites
charred by the Chie! Executve Officer 1 corprses senion Groug
execulives nclucing members of the Execunve Board and the
Group Risk Director The Commintee oversees the operational
managerment of the Group's risks by identitying, assessing,
mitgating, and reporting nsk

K Commnrittee report continued

Key activities during FY2013/20
Tne Comrmitiee dischargad its resporsitnitios dunng
Fy 2083/20 through

~ further developing the Group's nsk framework and tlaxonomy
10 nform the Group's Risk Appelite Statement described
on page 45, ncluding momitonrg the consistency ot ask
managemeni prnciples and processes across the Group

- the ongoing assessment of principal nisks, ncluding ther
management and mitigation

reviewing the second ling internal assurance pian and
recening reports on results of assurance actnalies, including
n refation to emerging risks and contrels etecuveness

— rewiewing the Group's procedures and systems for deteching
fraud and financial crime, the prevention of brbery, corruption
and monay laundenng, and complance vath the Market
Aouse Reguiations

— recening reports on the plars for etlecuve 1isk management
of major commercial imtiatives, ncluding acquisitions, at
imitiative proposal stage as well as duning or after integratcn

— considerning cyber and information securny risks facing
ihe Geoup

momtonng rsks to the Group arising from Brexat uncertarmity

reviewing and advising the Board on the Group response
1o COVID-19.

I

Areas of focus for FY2020/21
Ourning FY2020/21, the Committee expects o

- continue its ongoing assessment and development of the
Group Risk Taxanomy and pnncipal nsks

-~ review and deveiop the Groups overall risk appetite,
tolerance and straleqy, end advise the Board accordingly

- further estabish nisk managemen! prncipies and
processes consistently across the Group

- make further progress on strengthenig ine control
framework and the application of stnat risk managermeant

— CONUNLE 10 TeCee (8R0S on how risks a'ffec(ing the
Group are managed. neluding current and prospeciive
macreeconomc gad frencal asks. and regalarky rnonaor
the Group’s comphance with apphcable legistauon

— receve analysis and recommendations from management
on the reguirement Tor, plus scope and terms ol
nsurance coverzge across the Group

— further review and adwvise the Board on the Group's
response 10 COVID-19, wicluding nsks which may anse
from the global response 10, and management of
the pendemic

|
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Directors’ Remuneration report

Yoa Colatanni
Chair, Remuneratian Committes

Dear shareholder,

lam pleased to preseni the Diraciors’ Remuneration repcnt

tar the year endedc 30 Aprit 2020 The Remuneration Commitice
{the 'Cormmmee’} had us hrst full znnoal cyele since the IPQ 0
this financial year. The Cornpeny’s st hsted-comgany Anriual
General Meesting {the ‘AGM’) took place on 20 September 2019,
The Rernunceration Policy and Annual Report on Hermuneration
were approved at this AGM. receving significant shareholder
support (the Annual Report on Rermuneration received 98 74 %
vates in favour and our Remuneration Policy received 98.99%
votes sn favour You can lind more detai on page 911

As | wiite thus letter, one o the key focuses ol our business
has necessanly been i responding ta the disfuption caused

by COVID-19, partuculasly in the fast twe months of the financial
year we are reporting on. The Remuneration Commuttee 1s

very aware of 115 responsthilites in 1aking account of this in

its considerations and decision making for FYZ019/20, as well
as the current year

This Directors’ Remuneration repori sets out the context

of, and insightint,, our Direciorn oay arangamenis, how

our remnuneralion fremework 1s zligned vath the rest of the
waorkforea, and the deosions the Committec made as a resuit
of business perfermance for this year Where the Commillee
has exercised s udgemeant or discretion s documenied clearly

Group performance for the 2019/20 financial year

The implementation of our strategy (as outlined on page 78)
for our first full year as a hsted company has been measured
aganst the KPIs set out below:

- Revenue giowth +10.9% {FY2018/19: +15.2%!)

- Undetlying orgamic revenue growth +2.0% {(FY201819:
+12 5%)

- Gross profit margin 479% (FY2018/19. 53.5%)

~ Cost to mcome ranc 42 5% (FYZ018/19 42 7%]

~ Undertyimg adjusted EBITDA £21 80 (FY201819 2278}
~ Underhying adpsted PET £13 8 (FY2018/19 £20 3mi

~ Adusted EFS 3 0p (FY2013/13 72p}

~ Nt Partmer Jomars o (Frzugfig 2d)

~ Reovenue per padner: £/84 3k (FY201219 £855 7k)

- Gioss lock up days. debtois days and WIP days 200 days
(125 dehtos days and 81 WIP days) (FYZ018/19 7203 days
(127 debtor days and 81 WIP days))

— Free cosh How -£772m (FYZ0M 8419, -018 1m}
- Nei debt £64 Sm {FY2018/19. £35.3m}
- Bmployec engagement score 76 (Previous survey: 75)

Irading through the majonty ot FY20 was strong and the Group
made significant investments ta support its grawth chiectives
The sudden and far reaching inpact of COVID-19 had a matesial
cifect on the final querter with a resulting impact on profiatuhty
Despite this, we delivered a solid performance walh overall
revenue growth of 10.9% and orgaric growth of 2 0%

While we achiaved record Group revenue, with an arganic
arowth rate that compares to other global law firms in FY20,

it was lower than expected.

The Commntee, together wath the Board, considersd whether
the business should ulihse the Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme offered by the UK Government Having taken inio
dccouni the miterests af all of our siskehalders, and i parcula
aus employees, we decided not 1o do so and continued 10 pay
all our UK staff,

Changes to the Board
Since the year end we are repgiting on, there have been
a number of changes 1o our Board.

CEQ

The Cormpany announced on 29 May 2020 that Andrews
Leaitherland had informed the Board of his intention (o step
down as Group Chief Executive Cihicer with immediate effect.
Andrew Leaitherland also slepped down as Managing Partner
of DWF Law LLP and DWF LLP

in responding 10 the challenges created by COVID-19, the
Board considered thai strong 2nd expenienced leadership was
essential The Board believed that Sit Niget Knowies, Chaiman,
would provide this leadership, and as a consequence, the Board
asked him 10 assume the role of Group Chief Executive Officer
with nnmediate elect. Chiris Sulhvan, Semior Independen
Director, was apponted intenm Charman. A commitiee of
independent ditectors was formed 1o run a selection ptocess

i an eftecive and timely manner for a permanent Chairperson

Lpon hus departure, Andrew's urvested awards under the

LTIP lapsed Andrew held no other incentive awards He 15
receiving 12 monthly payments including basic salary pension
entitlements and other contractual benetits, in ey of the
1Z2-month contractual nouce period in accordance with the
prowvisions of his service ggreement, although he 1s requied to
mitigaie his loss during the nouce penod by seeking aliemative
employment or engagement. In relation to locked-up shares
received 31 1PO in exchange for hus ownership interest in the
DWF business, these were 10 be reteased over a live-year
penodan fve pgual ranches We agread that Andrew would
recewve the Biist two tranches he was contrectually enutled 1o,
wh chwall be releascd an the ennouncement ol ne prekannaty
results for the financial years anded 30 Apnil 2020 and 2021
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

We deterrruned that 50% of the remaining tranches be retained
by Andrew in recognition of nes contibution 1¢ the business
dunng hus tenure 1in office — and these will he released in
accordance with the ongingl schedule tn 2022, 2023 and 2024)
- put that the remamning 50% e clawed back immediately

You can find more detal on Andrevs s leaving arrangements

on pagz 91 of s Repon and un the Cormpany's wehsite at
dwigroup comfenjirvestcrs

The terms of Sie Migel Knowles' appointment and his
remuneration aredentcal in 3! tespects 16 those receved by
Andrew Leaitheriand as Group Cheaf Executive Otficer and, as
such, are in ling ywith the Remwneration Policy. He receives

2 salary of £530,000 per aanum, He has a raximum opportumity
of 150% of salary as an annual bonus (with half of the bonus
awatd 1o be paid out in cash, walh the remainder deferred into
shares subyect (o a three-year vesung pencd) He also has

3 maximum opportunity of up 1o 200% of salary in relation to
LTIPs. Sir tiigel is required 1o hold 250% of salary in shares,
with a post-cessation shareholding requirernent of 100% of the
pre-cessation shareholding requirement (or actual shareholding
if tower) for two years (ollowing cessation of his employment
He is entitled 1o private medical insurance, private health
insurance, life insurance and a pensian contribution allowance
af up 1o 7% of salary {aligned with the majority pension
contribution apphicable to the wider UK workiorce).

Chairman and Deputy Chairman

The Company announced on 371 July 2020 that Jonathan
Bloomer would join the Board as Chairman, with effect

from 1 August 2020. In addmion 1o being Charrman, Jonathan
Bloomer chairs the Normination Committee and s @ member
of the Remuneration Cormmitiee, from 1 August 2020.

The Remuneration Commuitee delermined that his total
annual fee would be £170,000

On the appointment of Jonathan Bloomer, Chas Sullivan took
on the role of Deputy Chairman, also Irorm ) Auguss 2020,

He continues as Seniorn Independent Director of the Company
and Non-Executive Director representing the employee voice
an the Board, and acts as the brdge between the partners in
the Gioup and the Board Chis continues 1o be 3 inember

of the Normination. Risk, Remuneration and Audit Committees.
Tre Remuneratron Commiaee determmuned that Chs would
recewve an annuzl fee of £20 000 for the addivenal reles

This s i additian 1o bis existng fees of (75000

COQ0 and Paitner Directors
The Company will anncunce cn 8 September 2020 the following
appointments with effect from 22 Gctober 2020

- Mauhew Doughty as Group Cruet Operating Officer of
OWF Group ple. Mathew Doughty will step down as
Partnes Director at the same tirmee, and

- Following a thorough inteing recnatmant process, Seema
Bains and Michele Cicchetl ss Partner Deeclors of DWE
Group plc The posiuon of Partner Director 15 designated by
the Board as a Non-independent, Non-Execuuve Direclor
posiban. A Pariner Diecior iepresents ihe parnnais of DWE
Law LLP and DWI LLP and 15 therefore a partner sharcholder
representative on the Boasrd

FY2019/20 bonus

The Commuttee considered the financial pedormance of the
Company when delermining the benus gutcomes lor the
Executive Directors (baing Andrew Leaitherland and Chios
Stefan) The porformance conditons ware

- 70% adjusted PBT, and

- 30% stiategic and cperaticnal objgctives ncluding improved
gross lock-upl.

Having noted that the Adjusied PBT and lock-up performance
conditions were not acheved for FY2019/20, and 1ollowing

& review of busimess perdormance and the current economic
situation in relaten 1o COVID-19, the Commiiiee exercised its
discretion not 10 pay any bonus for the partial completion of the
Executive Directors’ sirateqic and operational objectives. You €an
find turthar details o those strategic and operational objectives
on pages 8% ic 90 of this report

LTIP and ather share incentives vesting
Mo Executive Direclors’ share incentives vesied during the year

LTIP awards for FY2019/20

The Company made is tirst grant of LTIP awards in August 2019
that wall vest in August 2022, The awards were made wath the
fottowing performance conditions to Andrew Leaithedand at
175% of salary and 10 Chris Stefani at 125% of salary

~ EPS (40% weighting)
- ROCE growth (40% weighting)
Cash conversion {20% weighting)

You can find further details of these metnes, including targets
and rationale, on page 82 of this report.

The Committee decided that Andrew's LTIPs would lapse on
his departure from the business.

Salary review

The Remuneration Committee exerased s discretion ta defer
11s reviewy of annual pay for the Execuuve Dreciors and sanor
management, and ige review for the Non-fxecutive Diveciors,
from May 2020 w0 December 2020, with nses (if any} 10 have
effect from 1 January 2021, We made this decision in ight of
the outbreak of COVID-19 and i3 impact on the business. and
1o bring the revievy into line with the wider workforce salary
revigw timetable.

Shareholder considerations

In FY2019/20. | met with some of our major sharehalders and
proxy advisors to discuss the Hemuneratuon Policy we put
forward at the 2019 AGM. and to obtain any specihc areas of
feedback On behalf of ihe Remunaraticn Cornimimee, hwould
like 10 thank the sharcholders and proxy adwisors who have
nrowvided us wath feedback We wili continue 10 mantam
transparent and apen dizlogue with our shareholdars

No material \ssues of concerms weare rased dunng these
shzreholde: meetings

The Investment Association did howewver note that in relabon

o post-cessation shareholding reguirernents they expeacl

that Fxecutve Diraciors should he reguered 10 r1eian 100%
rather than 50% ol the sharehotting reguirement (or actusl
shareholding, if lower), for two vears post cessation of
erployment, As 2 resull, the Bernuneraton Commiiies decdoed
i Jdanuary 2020 10ncrease s post-cessal on shareholdamg
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regurements for the Company s Executive Deeciars from
50% 10 W0% of the sharehaldng requiement for actual
shaeholding, it lowen, {or two years followsng cossauon
of employrmernt

Wider worklorce considerations
When considering excculive pay, the Comnutiee takes into
account the wader workforce remuneration and conditions

We beheve allowing all our employees 1o shara in ihe success
ol the Conpany 1s a key performance daver AUIPQ, eligible
indwvidusls receved PO shares under the Buy-As You-Farn
{"BAYE') scheme with a vatue of 1o up 1o 20% of thair salary
{fwath 29% of thal beng sold or ther behall end paid 5 a cash
bonus) Duning FYZ201920, 10 further ensble this, we also rolled
out a BAYE maiched-share scherne in the UK, which resulted in
15% ol our emploveas taking part in the scheme We ntend to
coff s out 1o other itermational junstheuons dunng FYZ020/21

At pages 84 1o 89 of this report, there are details of the pay
conditions of our wader workiorce, the Grour CEQ-10 employee
pay 1ato, howy we use mcentves throughout the Busmess, and
oui gender pay statistics

You can hind further detadl on the key matters covered by the
Commiltee during the y2ar on page 77

Looking ahead

The Commuttee 1s mindful that like alt businesses in our seclor
and beyond, we lace the considersble challenge ol navigating an
unpredictable global economy that will continue 10 be aflected by
COVID-19 tor the toreseeable future. COVID-19 had a significant
IMPAct on our busmess but we have taken, and will continue (o
take, a number of acuons 10 ensure OWF has the strength and
resihence 1o pedorm not only through this finanoal veasr, bug

for the long term Despite the challernges FYZ020/2021 wili
undaoubiedly bring, we look forward with cauttous optimisen 10
the year shead, and to capitakising on any gpportunities that may
emerge through our committed and talentad workforce and
thvough cur dhfferenvated range of senaces

To support and eoable strong peirformance, not enty through
thus current hinancial year bhut for the long termm, the Commities
considers how decisions oninceniives (benuses and long-term
incaruve gtans) ink wath the Group's strategy within the
framework of our approved Remuneratian Pohcy

The Commitiee has decwded thal, as with fast year, bonus
arrangements for Executive Durectlors are n ine wath the
Remuneranon Pohcy, namely wath a maxinmisim opposiunity
of 1580% of salary for the CEQ and 100% of salary for the
CFO Periormance conditons and weighings conbinue 10 De’

- 70% adjusted PBT. and

— 30% suateqc and operational abjectives (iIncluding improved
arcss lock-upn] We wall disclose these fully, retvospecively
n next year's Bemunerzuon Beport

The Commitiee also considered the inpact on tuigre fong-term
ncentve awards Having taken adwvice brom s remuneration
advisors, the Bemuneranor Comimities

— conchded that the samwe pedorrnancee conditions wouald gpply

1o long-term incentive awards made in FY2070/21. haing:

- EPS40% wewghtng),
- ROCE growth {18% we.ghting), and
= Cash conwersion (20% wegningl

75

- dus to the 1moact on the global econcmy of COVID 19,
the Commitige resolwed 1o aval itsel of the lnvestment
ASSOCIANONS recommendancn o grant awaids in the 42-day
window after the Cornpany announces its hinal resclis on
8 Seplember 2020, but deter target-seting for spcmonths
fiom the date of grant, end

— wili ensure that at the time of vesung it will exercise s
dhscreuon. whete appropriate, i relznon to any winddiall gains
and to adjust unintended gutcomes due 10 these unusual
COVID-19 circumsiances.

Further detatt of how our remuneranon for Executive Direciors
ahgns with our sirategic prontes, 1s set out on page 78 of
this report.

1 you would like 1o discuss any aspect of thus Directors’
Remunarancn Report, 1 would be happy 10 hear from you.

You can contact me thiough the Company Secretary Mcliie
Stoker. It you waould ke to ask any questens inrespect ol ths
Repori at the AGM, please see the actes 10 1he nouce of AGM
which sets ow the arrangements for this yvear. | look forward to
your support on the Annual Report on Remuneration at the
upcoming AGM

Tea Colaianni
Chair, Remuneration Commuitge

Included in this report

Pages
The Bemuneration Committee and its
activities during the year 76 and 77
Remuneration — At 3 glance inciuding:
Business context and how our incentive performance
measures align to our strategy 74
Remuneraticn outcomes for FY2019/20 -
Al a glance 7910 81
Remuneration Policy - At a glance 2and 83
Wider workforce remuneration including:
Remuneraton panciptes and wider workforce
remuneration 3cross the Group 81086
Communication and ennagemeant with
employees and partners 8k
CED-to-worker pay ratio 8610 88
UK Gender and Ethnic pay-gap reporing 28 and 89
Annual report onemuneration 8% to 91

[BER:TH~N.

SONBLLOU 1B |

| SIUBLITIES B

Hods)

&
g
e
ES
& .
a
o




76 DWF Group ple
Apngal 12,3008 gud Tnanigl siglznems 2020

Directors’ Remuneration report continued

The Remuneration Conmmitiee and its
activities during the year

Hemuneration Committee members

The Commutes s chared by Tea Colaanon The Corminatise
made up of a mimimum of three members, each an Independeo
MNon-Execunive Direciey. The members of the Comymitice duning
the yesr are histed in the table telow The Char of the Bourd s
a mernber at the Committee and wes consideraed independant
on appointment as Char of the Board. Membars of the
Commitiee collectively have appropnate knowledge, expariise
and prolessional expenence concerming remuneaucn polcies
and prectices The expertise and expenence of the members
of the Commutiee 15 set out in gach of ther biograpties on
pages 52 and b3 Molhie Stoker iz appointed as Secretary o
the Committec,

Remuneration Committee meetings

The Commiitee meets at least four hmes 3 year and otherwise
as the Chair requires. To enable the Commitiee 1o carry cut nis
responsibilities, the Commiitee has an annual roling agenda
mamntained by the Company Secretary, which 1s reqularly
reviewed in conjunciion with managemen:. The Comgany
Secretary also maintains a racker of actions ansing out of
meetngs of the Committee. Ttus ensures the agenda for each
Commitiee meeting akgns with the remuneraton strategy, as
well as parucular matters ansing throughout the year considered
appropinale by the Committee for 115 scrutiny. At the next
scheduled Board meeting, the Chair ot the Comrmitiee reports
formally 10 1the Board on the proceedings of the Commitiee,
including how 1t has discharged its responsibihiies

The Comminiee held four scheduled meetings during FY2019/20.
and the table below provides details of members’ atiendance at
those meeungs Al the inwtation of the Chair of the Commitiee,
other regular attendees, who can withdraw as nacessary,
included at some or all of the meetings the Chiel Executive
Officer, the Chef Financial Officer, Matthew Dougaty fin hus
capaciy as Partnar Dwecior), the Human Besources Direcior,
the Head of Reward and the Deputy Company Secretary

No Director or member of séntor management was present lor
any discussions that related directly 1o ther own remunerabion

Attendance at Remuneration Committee
meetings held during the period 1o 30 Apryit 2020

Murnber

Derecicrs as ai 30 Aol 2020 Nembar
of meciings ol meeungs
ehgibie to atiend atended
Tea Colaianni {Chair) . ‘_ 4 T T a
Sitgelknontes @ T
Chns Sulbvan . | B ’ 4
Vinodke Murna, OBE ) ) 4 R
Ly ‘ . o 4 o i 4
Earr\arrigat-Tyir;lnshm-ﬂ_—iﬂ T s T ”T

Nate
T S Nigol $nowles was uneile 10 2liend the meaeung held en 29 July 2078 due
10 an uriivand ghle ciary commiment.

Nane ol the Conwnittee members has any personal financial
interest [other than as sharcholders) in the decisions made

by the Commuttee, contiicts of interest ansing from cross-
grectorships o dey-10 day ivolvernent in runming the business.

During the {inzncial year, Pw( advised the Remuneration
Committee on ail asgects of the Kemuneration Policy tor
Executve Directors and members of the Executive Board
Pw(C also provided the Coimpany wilh tax and share scheme
support work during the year The Remuneration Commities
was satslied that no conflict af inweres: exisis or exisied i the
prowvision of these services Pw( was appoinied by the
Remuneratuon Commitee. and the Commities 1s satisfied that
the advice provided 1s independent. Pw(C is a member of the
Hemuneration Consultants Groep and the voluntary code of
conduct of that body 15 designed 1o ensure abjective and
independent advice 1$ given 10 Fremuneralion commitnees.
Fees of £81,725 were provided 1o Pw( dunng the year in
respect of remunaraton advice recenved Our adviser (PwCh
attends meetings of the Committee by imvitation Pw{ does not
have any other connection to the Company or its Directors

The role of the Remuneration Committee

While giving full consideration to the maters set out iIn the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the "Code’} and any other
relevant faws and requlations in the junsdiciions the Group
operates in, the Commitiee’s mamn responsitilities include-

- making recommendations to the Board regarding the Group's
tramework of broad pohcy for the remuneration of the Chaw
of the Board, the Execulive Drectors and semior management,

- determining the entire individual remoneration packages for
the sarme, including’

- ApRIOVING any Severance Compensation arangements in
accordance with the Remuneration Policy, which are fair,
do nol reward faillure and fully recognise the indwidual's
duty to mitgate any loss; and

considerning how the pay and werk conditions of the Group’s
wider workforce should be taken inte accaunt when
delermining remuneraton,

- conststent with the approach apphcable 10 the wider
workforce, determiung and administenng the Gioup's share
plans and equity incentive ptans in respect of the Charr of the
Board, the Executive Directers and senicr management, ard
approving awards and performance conditions including
satislaction ol performance condiiions and the exeraise of any
discietion by the Commitiee,

- regularly reviewing the ongoing appropnateness and relevance
ol the Remuneration Pohcy; and

- reviewing remuneration and reiated polhicies applicable 10 the
Group's wider workforce.,

Fuli details about the structure and role of the Commailtee are
contawned in s Terms of Reference, available on the Group's
websit2 at dwigroup.com/enfinvesiors.
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Key activities during FY2019/20
The Comruties dischaiged ns responsitilimes duing
FY2018/20 through-

estabhshing the Execonve Duecior bonus plan and the
businesswade bonus olan for FYZ019/20

examining the Executive Diectors’ hall-year progiass
agansl objectives,

determining Executive Directars’ bonus outcomes
far FY2019/20.

enhancing pesi-cessaton shareholding requirements for
Executive Dircclors;

seting annual bonus and long termancentive plan targets

and awards for FY2020/21 for Executve Directors, using
demarnding fuianoal measures desigred ta align with sirategic
nbjectives and shareholder inleresis,

considenng ihe setecton of remuneration adwisors to the
Commintee and subsequently appointing PwC;

reviewing remuneralion arangements for semor
Management,

farrmung the Group's approach to good and bad feaver
determination, pursuant tc lock-up deeds refaung to pre-tPO
share allocations for certam pariners and other indmaduals,
as well as pursuant 10 the Group’s share plans;

establistung policies lor the lar and consistent adrminisraton
across the wider workiorce of the Groug's share plans and
equity incenlive plans,

- overseeing wider worklorce remuneration arrgngements,

including recenvirg the Company's Gender Pay Gap Report
and repons on the Group's emplayee (including partner}
engagement mechanisms,

approving granis 1o the wader warkforce under the Group's
share plans and equily mcertive plans,

recewing (eports on engagement wilh proxy advisors
and maor shareholders [rom the Chan of the Cormmittee,
Matthew Doughty fas Pariner Brecior) and the

Campany Secietary,

recenng presentanons fram the Committee’s remuneralicn
Advisors on deveiopimenis in Coiporste governance and
market trends, 1o nlonm the Cornmetiee’s reqular review of
the Hemuneratan Pelicy, including a report on the potental
circumstances o which s rmight exercise ds discreion in
the future. and

considenng the potenial impact of COVID-19 on remuneration
artangements and deasions 10 be made by the Commitiee

Areas of focus for FYZ320/21
Dunriey FY2020/71, the Cormimimee hes already,

Qr expects o

~ foligwang tus standing down as Group Chuet Executive

Qthcer, deteraune the remuneration payable to
Andrew | eaitherlana,

deterrmng Sir Migel Knowles remuneriabon on his
appointment as Group CEO:

detenmunie the [ees payable 10 Jonathan Bloomer as
Char and Chns Sulivan as Deputy Char of the Board,

- determine the indreduas remuoreration packace for
the CQO;

— confirm that no lees are payeble o Pariner Directors,

conunue o review regularly the ongomg approprnalenass
and relevance of the Remuneranon Policy,

— lock 1o 1improve pay fairness and tansparency by
consderning wider workiorce policies, 1o ensure ahgnment
with Executive Drector and senor management
remuneration arrangemeants,

1

develop further the communication with prospective
members of the vwder workforce on the benefits of the
equily element of the remuneration package offered by
the Group,

formulate principtes for adjusung Incentives for corporate
actvity such as M&A, and

I

oversee the roll-out of the BAYE scherme intgrnationally,
where the relevam risdictions permit.
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Remuneration - At a glance

Trus section ot the Directors’ Remuneraton Report provides an overview of

— the business context and Dowy our iNcentive Gerformance messaes align (o our strategy.
- remuneration outcomes for FY2019/70, and

- Remuneration Policy operaton in FY2019/20 and miended impigrnentaban in FY2020/21.

Business context and how our incentive performance rmeasures align 1o our stiategy

Business context

Trading through the majority of FY20 was strong and the Group made signilicant investments 1o support its growin obecinves,
The sudden and far reaching tropact of COVID-19 had a matenal effact en the final guarter with a resuling impact an profitab bty

Despite this, we delivered a solid parformance witl overall revenue growth of 10 8% and organic growin of 2 0% While we achieved
record Group revenue, with 4n orgenic growth rate thal compares 1@ ather ghobal lewe himns in Y20, 10 was lowesr than cxpected

The Comrmittee 15 mindfu? thai ke all husinesses in our secior and beyond, we face the considerable chalienge of navigating an
unpredictable global economy that will cantinue to be zfiecied by COVID-19 for the foreseeable tuture COVIER19 had a significant
impact on our business. butl we have done, and will continue 1 do. & number of things 10 ensure DWF has the strangth and
resilience to perlorm not only thraugh this finanaal year. but for the long term Despiie the challenges FY2020/21 wall undoubtedly
bring, we look forward with caubous cptrmism to the vear ahead and on capitalsing on any oppontunities that will emerge through
our cormmitted and talented waorklorce and through our differentiated range of scivices.

How our incentive performance mecasures align to our strategy ~

The implementation of our siralegy (25 cuthned on pages 18 1o 2/) for FY2019/20 was measured aganst certan KFls Isel oul in the
1able below],

The Commutiee continually considers the performance measures we use ior cur meentives, 1o ensurc they suppart the delvery
of our strategy.

Our strategic priorities

Anderstanding our clients Engaging our pecpls Doing things differently”

To provide the best possible sesvice for oun chents, Qur peaple engagementis built on shared {Anovalion allowss us 16 make a di lerenniated

we need to undersiand thew needs Knowing cur values, clear set goals behavour andaincentive and campelive olfonng and aur Connzzed
chenls means we can support them in the nghl vy, stipclures and we support cu colleagues through a Services are key 1o 1his Providmg a giester service

enher through top-guality legal and straieqic advice culture of innevaucn and :nclusion This engbles us to and product suite thiougk internal reseaich,
through our Complex Services, Minaged Seraces recant, retain and develop high-performeng and development and through acquissuon gnalbiles us le
ar any of owr Connecied Services hegh-quahty 1@leal whch s waahin providing excelient becasmne our clients’ chosen parines ior guiscurced

serwice, and achweving results and lastog vatve, legal and Conrecied Semaces

Qut kay performance indicators

Hevenue Undedying | Gross pio't ¢ Cpslio Jndeddyng | Undedving O] i1l et Pating Reve e Gross Frec cash Net 3 Emploves
growih organic margm wcong igno]  adps.eo sunied g Jowngr s | B PN Iock-up flow deln 1 Engapzment
Tevenue EBITOA PET : days | Scale
yrowih | flebtors !
| days and ’
{ } WIS days i

[ )

PBT EPS )

Ensuros locus onproblable growsih. Lings rewaid 1o n-year’ yndelying equity 1iuins 1o shacehotders

L ROCE J

Memotes destphined ceprat alocaton by bnhino teward "o (ivESUTIROL TETum

Is a key measwre of orgaric giowih andis inked (o shaicholder value

Strategic and persenal (including improved lock-up)

Ersures focus on reducmg the me il 1akes 1o nvoiKe and collect fovenue

Supporis the strategy of growth both prganis and thraugh sLgustusns

Eosures iotus on the elhiciency Dy wihich 2armmgs are generated

Cash convearsion

Suppurls 100us O fash Lolle Ten

Peisoral obrectives are dosgned o ensure the Executne Direcion: focus
anopeauansl efliseroes manage nsk allectvely reman chert-tocused
and are requeed 10 dove erilovec encegement
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Remunearalion culcomes for FYZ2019/20 - At a glance

Directors” Remuneration for the year ending 30 April 2020
Certain delails set out on pages 7910 91 of this Directors’ Remunerzuon iepor | have been autlited by the Andior

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

The rable below sets out the single total figure of remunersvon paid by the Cormpany fallovwing its adnussion o histing on 15 March
2019 {Admission’) W each Executive Director. For FY2018/19, the iabie rellecis the penod from Admussion ia the end of the finanaial
vear on 30 Apnl 2019 For FY2019/20, the ablz rellecis the {ull linancal vear 10 30 Apnl 2020 Figques provided have been celeulated
n accordance with the UK disclosure requirements: the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Beports)
1Amendment} Regulations 2013 {Scheduie 8 to the Regulations)

Itis the Committea’s view that it s important, when considerng the rernunerauon paid in the year under the smgle hgure, 1o

1ake 4 hobsuc view of the Execunve [hrectors’ 1o1al remunerat.on inked 1o the performance of the Company In the Commiiiees
opinign, the mmpact on the total remuneration of the Executive Oirector 1s more «ngortant then the sngle figure i any one year,
This approach encourages Executive Directors to take a long 1erm view of the sustainable pertormance ol the Company. The ability
lor the Executive Directars 1o gain and 1ose, in alignment wath shareholders, dependent on the shate price performance of the
Comgany gt a level winch 1s matenat 1o thers total remuneraiton, 1s a key facet of the Remuneration Policy.

Taxable Total

Saarytiees £ benetas® {2 Bonusti LTIps & Penyon Oher [ Tousl £ Tara hxed L vinatle £
FY 19206 eny 1820 1819 i8/20 1818 15720 B9 970 W39 19420 16/19 19/20 18/19 W0 wBNg w200 18N1s
Execuliueﬁ-ir;_(:tcrs T ST T T o T
Andrew
Leaithelland
ceQr 53G:000 64551 6677 1.830 b} [} 0 MA 37100 4518 [} o 573777 70.949 573777 70948 [ 0
Chas Sielani
{CFO) 320.00C 3897 5364 S04 Q L) ) MA 22400° 7728 0 D 347758 428G 247768 42806 a 0
Noa-Executive Directors
Sir deigel
Knowles 200000 24 359 Na NA A NA A MA B NA ] NA - 00000 247359 2060 24 359 MA NA
Luke Savage 72500 BS83G Na NA NA NA NA NA A NA Ny NA 72500 B.830 72500 8830 BA NA
Tea Colaiann 72500 8820 Mg, A NA NA NA A pMA Na NA NA 2500 BB30 72500 8830 nNA NA
vinodka Mgiria 63,000 B.830 NA NA NA NA Na NA NA NA N NA 65000 88320 65000 83830 NA NA
Chris Suilivan 75008 9135 N NA MA MNA NA NA (57 A N NA 75000 9135 5000 5135 ha MNA
Sarnaniha
Tymms 72500 8630 Na NA WA MA NA NA PA NA Na NA 72,500 BB30 i25CG0 8830 NA NA
tatthew
Doughty’ N4 NA Na NA A NA A ™A MA alA iy NA NA MNA NA NA NA A
RNotes

For FY2013/19, the 1able reflects ihe penod from Admission on 15 March 201516 she end ot the finanaial year on 30 Apal 2080
_For FY2019720. the addinenal fees lor Comrmities Chairs or the positinn of Senor Indeosndent Direcier are included wnoibe Salaryfices column InFY2018/19 these
lces were reporied n the Other column on page 76 of the Annual Report and Fioncidl Statements 2019 but they are now imncluded inthe FY2018/19 cofumn igr
ease ol companson You can bnd lurther details on page 83
Tavable benet 15 lor the CEQ and CFC comprise prvate med Cal insurance for the Eveculive and therr spouse or Ciwl paninar as weli as any deosndent children,
prvaie hezlih nsurance, and 1 fe assuiance v 16 four Limes saiary 'up e Eimy

~

b

4 1T awarded honus 15 pard 50% 0 cash ang 50% 10 shares
S LTPs ate made hisugh the xecelve Incentive Pran [ FIP) You ran tnd toniner delals onpage 8/
6 Tne penmicn paid 1a the C2 O was as a cash al'owance as he had bfeitne allovsance protecnon Payrienis were o bne wath the erpicyee persion scheme znd

afe calculatad as a percentage of basic salary. The cash aliawance was equivaleni 1 7% ol e CE(s salary The pension patd 1o the CF O was parily paid duecily
g the company provided pansion scheme [£9.0001 wih 20 addivonal ainount 0a-d a5 a cash allowance, Togetnss ihese paymenis were gquivalent 1o 7% af the
CEG's salary

. Matthew Doughly and Andrew Leainharland acted as Poringl Direcions duniag the yeat You can tnd (ufier deiads on page 69 of she Nonuneton Cormrmitiee Sepon
The positon of Partner Duecior s desiynated by the Board as & Nonontdependent, Mon-Z wdubve Ditectos pesinon A Parner Duecicn ieoresais the pdiners of
DWI Law LLP and DWI LLP and s therzicie a partner shareholder represealative on the Board Paniner Duectons do nui receve any fees for the posiicn on the
Baard becasse remuneration s as a member of DWW Law LLP ar OWF LLP idetermined ue bus of hed homve olhice | and w1 some circumstances also by way of
& hmited salary a3 an employee ol DWF Connected Services Holoings - imted

~

odar 0.68eng |

OUBMIBNG

n
]
4
>

SluBwaiels |k

uoieug JayIQ 1




80 DWYF Group plc
Aragal cepon cnd fmancial stateeem s 2020

Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Bonus for the financial year ended 30 Aprnl 2020 {audited)

Achieygrnent ALY Cvement

perceniage of percenlage ai Genus earned
pe!iarmnncc Maxirnut bhonys a5 3 [;el(Eﬂlaﬂe Gnm;g o icarag

Perormance condincn W ring HXI 33 QPPCOLT Y of salary?
Adusied P81 o 70% 0% 0% 0Y% £0
Gross lock-up 10% 0% 0% 0% £0

Strategic and operational chjecuves
{zee pages 89 and 90 for detailed breakdown) 20% NA NA _ 0% _ L0
Totat 100% 0% 0% 0% 0
Notes

1. Maximurm bonus opportunity 1o the CEC was 150% ol satary and tor the CF O was 100% ot salary

2. The Commuttee considered e hnancial perlormignce of the Company when detgiminiag the bonus outeomes tar the Executsve Directors Hawng noled thal the
adjusied PET and lock-up perio:mance conditions wera noy schiaved for FY2019/20 and iclicwing a review of busnees performance and the current econoimic
suatign in relation to COVID-13, the Comnutics exercised 115 discrenuon not 1o pay any Bonuy 1o the paihul completon of the striegic and opaiaticrat objecives

Adjusted PBT {70%) Gross lock-up {10%)

Long-term incentive awards made in the financial year ending 30 April 2020 {audited]
The first LTIP awards, which are conditional share awards made threugh the EIP were granted on 27 August 2018 and will vest on
27 Augqust 2022

Ex¢cuive Director Focsard dure % of salary’  Shotes graried Face valuo?
Andrew Leaitherland (CEO) T T TAugustIolg 0 175% /7941 £927500
Chris Stefani (CFO) R . P7Augumzals - 125% 336,134 E£400.000
Notes

1 Maximum LT apportunny for the Executive Bireciors was 200% al salary
2 Based on ihe share puce of the Company of £1.19 55 a1 27 Augusi 7019
3 Awards made 1o Andiew under 1he Long Term incentive Plan granted in 2019 1spsed on his depaiv g

These LTIP awards have a thiee-year performance penod and then following vesing are subject 1o a two year holding period
Duning ths holaing penod, dividends are payabie on the vested shares

The following table sets oul the performancs condmions and targets for FYZM3/20 1P grant

Thieshchd Targei TAAXITWArTE

Pecloemarce condinbon and percentage of award opponuniy 20% vesurgl 150 % vasting) 100 % vasing)
Cumulawve Thiee Year EPS (40% weighung) 381 perce 477 pence 464 pence
Average Annual ADCE [40% weighong) 29 5% 372 8% 361 %
Average Cash Conversion (20% weighung) 78% 87% 96%

TREAGhEne VEELrY ADOes helwern these pourds

M other avvards were made (o Execulive Uieciong Adunng e year
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Achievement of shareholding guidelines as at 30 Apnl 2020

Fhe ioliowing chart iltustrates the achievement of ine shaieholding guidelngs by the Executivi Uireciors as at 30 Apnl 2020,
aganst the minimum sharehalding requirement under the Remunieration Policy Isee page 83 lar 2 detadod eakdowsn) The chan
15 designed 1o llustrate the velue of ther shareholding as a percentage of hase sa'ary Thew sho eholding for ithese purposes does

not include unvasted LTIP awards For tull information on all Directors imeresis in shares see table on page 90.
9

Achigvement of Sharehclding
mng of FY20a/20

Gugtelings begn

Execunve Diratior Base solary Nuimber

“Andrevs Leaitherland ({CEQ) £530,000 7067628 £8,537694
£320000 _ 1.114.009°  £1345723

Notes
. Based on share price of ihe Company as at t May 2009 of £1 2t
Based on share price of the Company as at 30 April 2020 of £0 81

T kD -

Adrigvemen ol Sharehdlithng
Gurgelines end of Fy2019720

Ve

Change*

O 32.9%
_ . 323%

The one-off award made 1o Chris Stelar at the ume ol the 1PO as destnbed on pege 77 of the Annusl Agnoi ond Financial Stetenents 2019 1s included here

The gne-al! 1P award was grented Lo hem 10 Creale 30 equiy inlerest ot 1IPO gouivalent 1o wial he would have recewed a0 IPO G he had been cepable of being

amember of DWF LLP under the regulations applicable 1o DWF LLP.
a The percentage change s telated (0 the share price and not a reduciion i shases held

— ——
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Dircctors’ Remuneration report continued

Rermuneration Policy — At a glance
Key features of the Remuneration Policy, operation in FY2019/20 and intended implementation in FY2020/21

full details of the Remuneraiion Policy are set oul i the 2019 Orectors’ Remmneraton Repact 0 ceges 81 16 95, which vou can fing
al dwigroup comfenfinvestorsfreporis-and-presentalions

The below autlines 1he key features of our Remuneration Palicy as voted on by sharehalders at the 2019 AGM The Pohcy s wvitended
10 remanin place in its current format for at least three years, with its operation i FY2019/20 and intended mpiementat.on for

Intended npetauon in FY2020071

Efement Cperaton m FY2019/20

Base salary |- CEQ £530,000 B T CEG £530,000

- CF0 £320,000 - CFO £320.000
?ﬁ: Executive Direclors recewved a nse of 0% The Company has defarred i1s annual pay review 10
TS December 2020 with any pay nses 10 have edect
T 9.‘ . ¥

— Average employee Includes panners) nse 3 5% from 1 Januaiy 2021
Dy e e R Sele fall -
P Benefits In hine with policy _| No change o
(= Ipension In line wath policy: No change

- CEGC 7% of salary
~ CFQ 7% of salary

Annual Banus

,"_:‘ ”I:'Till;s(mac'l;’i
= through the
2 Ep

=

et

;

concinens and targets

In hne with policy
Maximum opportunity:

- CE(O 150% of salary
- CFO: 100% of salary

Periormance conditions and weightings:

- 7U% adusied PBT
- 30% strategic and operatonal objectves

See page 80 for details of the performance targets,
their level of achievement and the correspending
bonus earned by the Executive Directors.

MMaximum opporivnity

~ CEQ.175% of salary
- LFC 125% of satary

Measures and weightings

Cumulative three-year EPS {40% weighting): EPS
was considered 10 be an appropriate performance
condition to use lar the LTIP given the mvestment
case made al IPO on earnings growth, and 15 simple
and well understood by investiors

Average annual ROCE {40% weighting): ROCE
was considerad o ke an apprepriate performance
condition 10 use 10 support the strategy of growik,
both organic and through scquisiions, and 10 i6ous
an the eliciency by which earrings are gereraicd

Average cash conversion {20% weighting): Cash
conversion was considerod (o te an approphate
peitormance Conginon as IMproving cash Conve sion
Vs @ key focus of the siraleyy set outin

the prospecius

Sez tanle at page B0 for datans of the performmance

assess the Dass ior any bonus oulcormes

In ling with pohcy
Maximurm opporiunigy.

- CEQ 150% of salary
~ CFQ: 100% of salary

Performance condiions and weightings

- /0% adjusted PBT

- 30% strategic and operational objeciives

- Werghtings and aigets of pedormance conditions
are reviewed annuatly, as well a3 personal objectives.

The actual performance targets set will not be
disclosed at the stant of the fingncial year. as they
are considered 10 be commercially sensitive.

These will be repeorted and disclosed retrospectively
at the end ol the yearn order lor sharebolders to

No change

The Comminitee considered the impact on the global
economy of COVIDR9, and hawng 1aken atwice from
PwC, tls remuneralicn advisors, the Comminee
resolved 1o evalt itself ol the Invesiment
ASSOCIALoNS 1ecommendausi (o grani awards m
the 42-day window after it annoences iis final results
o B Septemnber 2020, but defer targei-seing for six
monihs iom the granl date
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Elament Operaton o FY2019/20

Shareholding

Inhne wath policy

requirernents
2 S S .
&  |Chair and - Chauman £200,000 pa
o |Non- ~ NLD base £65.000pa
= | Executive - Senor Independent Directar {addmonatl. £10,000
p— -
= | Director fees? pa
= - Commintee Chair (additional): £7500 pa
- - Partner Director': £0pa

Ly2ars following ineir cessation Gi employment

“ ‘rirnded operaton i FY2020/21

Suengthened to requere Executive Directors 1o nold
1100% of thew pre-cessaton sharehaldmg
‘ regquiement {or actuel shareholding, it lower) tor two

J ~ Charrman £170.000 pa

- NED bzse £55.000 pa

- Deputy Charman {addwonal] 20,000 pa

— Senior Independent Drecton (addwonall £310,000 pa
- Commitiee Charr laddsiona!} £7500 pa

- Fartner Directer'. £0 pa

The Company has deterred 115 annual fee review 1o
Decernber 2020 with any ies nses 10 have effect

from 1 January 2021

HMaotes

. The posimion of Pariner Duecior 15 designaled by the 8oard as a Non-lndependent, Non-Execuetive Director positan A Pairtner Drector tepresanis the partners

of DVWF Law LLF and DWA- LELP and s therefore a pariner sharehalder representative 90 Lhe Beard Partner Dinecters do net racaivs any lees for the posmen on
the Board because renumeralion s as a member of OWF Law LLP or DWF LLP idetetmingd by his ar her home athce’ andin same crcumsiances sso by way

of alimiled satary as an emplayea of DVWF Connectled Services Holdngs Limned
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Illustrations of application of the Remuneration Policy

The graphs betow demonsirate Executive Director pay opportunities under the Hemuneratian Pohicy approved by shareholders at
the 2019 AGM, and compare them Lo the single figure far FY2019/20 vear on page 78 The single igure includes any aclual bonus
payments made during the pericd. As the first LTIP award was granted in the year, wath a three-year periormance period, there was
no LTIP vesung during the year, and therefore there 1s no LIIP eiemeni contaned n the single figure prowdad on page 79

Assumptions for the scenario charts

! Ky Crigrget

o
I~ Ponsion of 7% of salary for CEQ and CFO

flemam

Fixed pay

| Mzarmrum
i

Base salary of £530,000 for CEO and £320,600 for CFO

T e . .
s Man muom hus 50% shere prce grovah)

Annual bonus' |None

LYIPs Imade
through the
EIPY ) | ‘

50% of maxima
50% of maxumum avrard

. i
iNone ;

Notes
Y Maxnyur @anuat bones i the CFO s 150% of salary and iar the CF O 100% St salzry
2. Maxumum LTI waard Tor the CEOs 1759% of salary and Tor ibe CF O s 123% ol selany

$100% of maximuni gward

award [ 100% of maximum award | 100% of maxmurm awaid_

[ 100% of maximurm award
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Directors’ Remunceration report continuced
i

Wider workforce renmuneration
This secuon of the Direciors’ Bemunerauon Report prowvides an overview of remunerauon prncples and wider workforce
remuneralion across the Group ncluding

- CEO-to worker pay ratio; and
- UK gender and ethnicity pay-gap reporiing.

Rermuneration principles and wider workforce remuneration across the Group

Annually, the Committee recenves a report on the remuneration princgiles and wider workiorce remuneraiion across the Gioupn
1o gnable i 10 take Into account wider workforce pay and practices. and the alignment of incentives and reward wiith culturs,
when seting Executive Director rermuneration,

Key aleas of the report considered by the Comimintes inctude

~ Group remuneration principles,
- grading siruciuie,
~ DasiC pay,
-~ bhonus,
~ share plans;
~ DENSICN;
- benefis; ard
termination polkcies.

Group remuneration principles
The table below sets out the Group's remuneration pnincples:

Principle Derail
Competilive — Salanes set ground market median
and fair

- Benetus retlect best practice and workforce needs

. - Flesubility in share plans 1o attract and retain key zlent o o _ _
Rewarding ithe - We are a high-performng business and when we conduct our end of year reviews, we recognise high performers
night) high

performance

- We operate an annual performancereview process 10 ensure we have good periormance tiscussions

~ W can recognise those who make outstanding contributions through £1F Excepuonal Contnbutor share awards

Simple to — We try 10 avoid unnecessary complexity

understand . .
o -~ We provide accessible and refevant information

Supports OVWFE - Incentves, parformance-rmanagement and recogniiion apoiodchias supoart DWE values and culture
values and culture

- Beneitts support our inclusive culture

Grading structure

DWWE nas a centralised approach to grading, with all calleagues {Executive Directors, partners and employecs) graded from Career
Level 1108 Following acquisitons during the year, 3 small numBer of employees and parineis are not parl of the formal grading
structura We intend 10 assimilate them

Overview of findings
The Group's workfsroe Ras a unique structure, compnsing botn employees and members of partnerships. The partners, who
represent the principal generators of income {or the Group, remain subject to parnarship remuneration and beneflit arrangemeants.

Salary

Average salary increases for employees and partners across the Group are bewing apphed on an cauitable and objective basis. 1t
aur gobey 1o increase the salanes of the Executive Directors gonerally by the same piercentage mcrease as cmployees and partnars
whose roles have nat changad during the year.
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Bonaus

Ihe majority of our employecs znd partners can share s the success ol the Company ithrough mcontive compensaian o ing wain
market practice, the level of ncentve compensation and whether 1118 paid sciely in cash or n a2 muxture of cash and delerred sheres,
depends on the level of senionty of employee and partners The incentive apprcach applied 10 the Executive Oirectors angns with the
wider Group policy an ncentives. which 15 1o have a higher pereentage of at-nsk performance pay witn semionty of the role, and 1o
ncrease the amount of inceniive deferred, provided in equity or measurad over the longer erm for roles wiih greeter semonty

Betow Board tevel, for the year ended 30 Apnl 2020 there were two annual bonus plans in place a Group-wide bonus structure and
a parine: bonus

- Group-wide bonus: Non-partners below Board level were gligible 10 partiopae n a2 Group-wirle bonus plan which follower)
a similar structure to the Executive Director bonus plan. Performance measures were broadly aligned with thaose set for Execunve

Dueclors, adyusted approprately for the individualfteam.

— Partner honus: Pariners were ehgible 10 partropate in a discretionary bonus plan which was equivalent of up 10 5% of annyal PRT,
provided n the form of & discienonasry bonus plan. Perforrmance measures were broadly algned with those set for Fxecutive Drecions

N bonuses were paid 1o emplayees or pariners under these banus plans for the year ended 30 Apnl 2070

For TY2020/21. we have implemented 8 single bonus glan for everyore below Beard level mcluding partners wiuch s stcuctuied on
a percenlage of salary {employeesifictal remunedation (partness).

Share plans

Equity parucimaiion is offered 1o all UK employees and partners of the Group through the BAYE scheme, and 10 senior managernent
and Executive Direclors through the LTIP and Deferred Benus Plans, each of which involves the award of shares. s the Gioup's
policy 10 allow employees and paringrs 0 share 1N success by means of equity participation The Company intends 1o siart 10 extend
BAYE participation internationally dunng FY2020/23, where the juristhctions permit Executive Directors are required 1o adhere to
oimun shareholding guidelines

The tPO gave DWF the opportunity to cffer shares to the wider employee group, thus turther aligreng an element of remuneration
with Company performance, Exccutive Diractor remuneration, and the shareholder experience.

On the Company's Adimission 10 hsting, all employees who had been rated "fully achieving” at 31 October 2018 and who were
empioyed for 12 manths at the date of Admission and not serving notice {known as quahfying colleagues), were awearded [P0 awards
under DWF's BAYE scheme. Each IPO allocation was valued {at Adrussion! at up 1o 18% of salary, Qualitying colleaques were alse
awarded a cash bonys on Admission, with a value of up to 2% of salary. The IPO allocat:ons were made as aliocations of free shares
that vest in wo equal tranches on the prebiminary annguncements of the Group's financial results lor the financial years ending 30 Apnl
2020 and 3¢ Apnl 2021, subject to the participant remaining in emgloyment (untess the participant 1s deermed a ‘good leaver ).

The BAYE continues to operate on an annual basis. Al qualifying col'eagues are nwiled to participaic in the BAYE scheme by
acquinng cidinary shizres out of deductions from salary, and awarded matching shares in respect of ordinary shares acquired

Fach year, all qualifying colleagues will be wiied 1o sign up to buy shares over a 1Z-month avestment penod. Matching shares aie
received on a one-forlwo basis, so for every two shares purchased over the 12-moenth investment penod, participants receive one
matching share three years from the start of the relevant 12-month Investment peried subjecl 1o cartan condilions.

The EIP is 1 operation for pactners and senwor emplovees and offers a nurber ot awaids such as prormotion awards, lateral hire
awards and exceplional contributgr swards These plans are based on 2 Syear vesting schedule and are designed 10 enable the
bUSINESS 10 atract and retan the night 1alent for the future sustamnabity of the Group

The Group has a Deferred Bonus Plar alitbough ihore have been no awards made through that plan 1o date

Pensions
All UK employees are eligidie tor enrolment in a Company defined-contribation pension ancngement The current employee

contrbution 1s 3-5% of salary and employer contriution 15 5-7% of salary. The contribution for Executive Directors 15 7% of salary,
in hne with the pension conirbuticns applicable to the wider UK workforce. Cuiside of the UK, pension arrangements for
employees aie in lne wilh focai legal reguiremeants

Benelils
UK ernployees and oartners are oficred a range of beaclits including Me gssurance and health insurance, and flexible beretis

by way of salary saeniice Elsewheren the Group, Benefins are in lire with local marke: practice
Y Y F £

Termination
An employee or partagr Musi be in expioyment and not servwng notice (o be ehgible for any bonus payment The treatiment
ol leavers, 1o gqoverned by the respectve share plan riles, agreed leaver siatus delegatad suthanues and operaung guidelines
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued
I

The follovang table shows e cascade of incentives thusughout the Group

Carcer Lovel

Average ganual

M2 cmum Danus

Farnomatss e LTHP

Paricipation in oiber
plens undar the CIF

Farnzpation n ol

INCIEAST OPSOHL y tmade Wssugh the E1F) amployes equity plans
w base salary (BAYE) - L anly
Execuive Drrecters 0% CEQ 150% CEG17%% NA T Tves
cf salary of salary
CEC 100% CHO 125%
L ) of salary ofsalary o
Cel 3% 15% £ xecutive Board Yes Yes
texciuding Executive Members
Direciors) - . S — R—
CL2 S 2.92% - 0% Execulive Board ) Ou_a_li-iymgi—‘”*r Yes
e _ ) _ Members Coifeagues .
CL3 2 66% Y= TNA T Qualiyng | res
e e . o Colleagues
cta _ 301% 5% NA NAL T Tves
CLo 8% ) ) T
(L6 2 38% Chyalityin
o T T T 3% A Coleagues ves
Lig 222% . - .

In summary, the Committee 1s satisticd that the appreach to remunerztion across the Commpany 15 consistent with the Groups
prinziples of remunerztion. In the Committee’s opiman, the approach 1o Executive Director remuneration aligns vaith the wider
Group rermunarglion principles, and there are no anomahes specific 10 the Executive Directors.

Communication and engagement with employees and partners

The Boeard s committed to ensunng there is an open dialogue with cur employees and partners over vanous decisions, This year,

Chris Sullivan has been the designated Non-Executive Direcior with oversight of employee engagement. Chis, afong with other Board
members, has attended vanous formal and informal peonic-relzted events, and meets the business directly through brnchings at key
points during the year Al these breflings, employees and partners con ask gquest.ons about the Group and our People Strategy.

The Pariner Dirractor is a representative of the partners, a constiiuent part of our workforce, responsible for reflecting the views of
partners to the Board and for consulling partners on impoftant maters, which he has done through both formal and infarmat channels
duning the year The business is kept informed of 1he Group sctwities and performance thvough commurscations and the creulation of
corparate anncuncements This is suppiemented by updates on Rubix, our mizanet, to which all Non-Executive Directors have access.

There are 1wo man committees for employee and partner engagermant

- The Engaging People Executive ((EPE', created to cnsure employee engagement. it s chared by a member of the Executive
Board of DVWF Law LLP or DWF LLP and made up of partners and senicr erployees acrass the business,

- The Empiloyee Forum, chared by the Haad of HR Shared Sarvices, and made up of employees at different carger tevels to those on
the EPE, 10 provide allernative opportunities 1o obiain the employee voce and showease employes intialivas ard communications.

Additionally, wa have cieatled sub-comimitiees chared by members of the Executive Board of DVWF Law LLP ar DWF LLP whose
mermbership compnses emglayees 2od pactaens laoking &t specthe arcas such as CSR and our Diversny & inclusion egenda Hather
tdetails are et oul on page 56).

This section of the Remuneration Commitiee report s presented (0 these committees for employee and pariner engagement
Memibers are given an opportutity 10 ask ihe Chan of the Remuneraton Commitiee questions an it

The businass engages wiih every caiger level 1o recognise key coninbulors through our Achievers platform, which also supports cur
employee and panner engagemen: Pulse Sunev, which occwrs svery s.x rmonihs This process includes prompts for ine managers
{0 1morgve pomnts raised in the surveys

10 ensure alt emcloyees and portross are well informzg about company Mmatters, a weekly newsietier 15 sent 10 5l ermployees and
partners, as weail as Group news and woadates shared on Rubrx, our intranet

CED to worker pay ratio

CEO-to-worker pay ratio as at 30 Aprit 2020
DWIF 5 committad 10 fanness and equalty azrass the Grown, and 1akes the CEO pay rato, alongside a number of other {actors,

nito constderstion when revevwing pay ievels z2eross the Group.
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To calculate the CEO pay tain, DWF used prescrbed methodology A 1o calculgie the pay end benelss of &ll UK emiplayees iincluding
partners) on 2 full-ume equivatent [FTE ] basis lor the hinanciel year, 10 denuly the quariles. The pay and benetns tor all UK employees
and pariners jor the relevant Hinanoal year 1s calcuialed and ranked from lowes! 1o highest, 1o idenuly the employees and partners at
P25, P50 and P75 We chose methodolagy A as we Tell 0l cornprehensvely reflects the pay levels of our employees tncluaing pariness)

The salary and to1al remuneraton of UK FTE emptoyees fincluding partners) sl the 25ih, 90th and 75th percentle, and the ratios
between the CLC and these employees (including panners) are shown in the table below

o

Gs Tetal remnuncraton

Yem Methodology P25 150 P75 P25 PS5O P75
2019 amouns T oA £23000  £38.445 59,400  £24383  £39083  £64.487
2019 mio A 731 151 91 21 151 91

Explanatary notes

1. As ihe businegss 5 vy second vear since 1PQ no LTIP: have vested #nd the hgutes above therefore use hke-for-Lke calculavons,

2. No CEQ pay ratio 15 prowvided lor 2018, ¢ 1he pay (dus segulatens which came mio feree on 1 January 2019 1equie annval disclosuses 0 be made hom e end
ol 2019 onwards W have noi mcluded a companson o 2018/19 as the busimess only isted in the last iwo momhs of that hnsngial year, ard ihe business maodel
in place pnios 1o the lising was 3 prwvaie-himaed-habitlly parinership, 3o remuner alon &5 0ot comparable

The Company behoves the median pay ratio foar FYZ080/20 1s consistent with the pay, reward and progressian policies for the
Compeny’s UK employees {and partners). We camplete a nigorous pay and benchmarking exeraise annually on all roles, and adjust
appropnately based on peionmance and alfordatyiy, 10 ensure employees (and partners) are remungrated lanly and in ling with the
Company's pay philasophy

In gssessing our pay ratio versus ikely rauos from industry peers, we believe we are towards the lower end ol the range but nole
that annuat and fong-term ncentive payrments have varied cansiderably amongst this group. In our case, the CEQ single figure
comprises hxed pay. 1axable benelis, and pensicn tenefits, griven that ne bonus was paid and ne long-term incenuve vested in
respect of performance i FY2019/20 We alse recognise that ratios wall be influenced by levels of employee {and partner) pay,
which may vary from other sectors,

Over time, we ‘expec! there may be significant volatity n this ratio, and believe 1his wilt be caused by the following:

~ Our CEQ pay 1s made up of 5 higher proportion of incennve pay than that of our employees land pariners), in ine with the
expectations of our shareholders This introduces a higher degree of vanability in CEO pay each yeat, which affects the rauo

- The vatue of long-term incentives s disclosed in the year of vesiing (afler three years), which increases the CEO pay n that year,
agawn affecting the ratio for that year.

~ Long-terim incentives are prowided 1n shares, and theretore an increase in share price over the three years magnifies the impact
ol & long-term incenhve awand vesting in a year.

- We recogrise that the ratio 1s elfected by the different structure of the pay of our CEO 1o that of our emiployees {and partners),
as well as the make up ot our workiorce. This ratic vanes between businesses even in the sarmme sector. What 15 important from
our perspective s that this rato is infivenced only by the differences in structure. and not by divercence in ixed pay between the
CEO and wader workicrce Where the structure of remuneranion is sirmilar, as for the Executive Board and the CEO, the ratig s
likely 10 he much rncre stable over tme.

Performance against Total Shareholder Beturn {TSR’)

The lollowing chant Mastiates the Company's TSR performance (share price growth plus dividends paud) from the dale of Admission

against the perlormance of the FTSE All Share Suppori Services, o broad-based index the Cornpany has been a constituent member

of since Admission
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Directors’ Remuneration report continued

Historic CEO remuneration )
m___ _____ T szmw—la'
Total remuresaton T £70,942
Annual Bonus as @ % opportuniy 0%
LiWass%opportunty o MAL

Note

1 For FY2D18419, the izgble reflecis the penod from Adivssion on 15 fdach 2019 10100 end of the hnancial vear o 20 Apnl 2033, We have not included an
annuelised companscn ligure I FY2018019 o5 1he Dusness ooy hstedn the last tae months of hat Inanciel year. and 1he business mode! n place p00r 1@ the
Isung was a privale-hrnited-hatiliey pannsiship o remunsianon 5 nol comparehle

Percentage change in remuneration of the Directors and all employees and partners

£ Sataryfices { Taxabie benalis? € Bomus®
FY 20187200 200819 change 2019720 201818 change 2009720 2018/19 change
‘Executive Directors 7 - ' S
Angrew Leanherland iCEQ) 530,000 530,000 D%  BEJ7 14917  58% D 0 0%
Chns Stelsni (CFO} 320,000 320000 0% 5368  B760  39% 0 0 0%
Non-Executive Director T ) i
S Nigel Knowles 700,000 200,000 0 0%
LukeSavoge 72500 72500 0. 0%
Tea Colaanm 72500 0 0 0%
vinodka Muria 65000 65000 0 a 0%
Chiis Sulivan 75000 75000 0% 0 09 0%
Ssmantha Tymms  72.50C 72500 0% 0 0 0%
Matthew Doughty® o o 0 0% I . 0%
Average employee 50330 4BB26  35% 732 732 0%

lincludes pariners)

Notes

. For FY2018/19, for the purposes of caloulzling the percentaae changs inremuneration we have annuzlised the Saterylfees received during the penod from
Admussion on 15 March 201910 the end of the hinanaal year on 30 Apal 2019

The reduction in 1axable beneht Losis lrom FY2018/19 10 FY2Q13/20 15 due to changes agreed 1o pariner and executive benefits, speciiically permanent heaglth
nsurance which was reduced hon 75% to 90% ol eatnings acd Lile Insgrance fiom Hat £l 4 x Salary of a maximum £1m cap. These changes signihcanlly
reduced the cost ol our insurance 10 ihe Group and 1his is Shownan the 1able above

For FY2019/20. the addiuonal fees for Commnee Chairs or 1he gosimion of Senigr !ndependent Director are included in the Salary/Fees cotumn of 1be table on
page 79 In FYZ018M1Y, these fees weie mcluded inthe Ohher ™ column You ¢an Tind luriher details on page B3.

™~

()

4. InFY2018/19. a bonus was pad at IPG 10 all employess wah ehgisie service. Thus was equivalent 10 2% of salary. Thisis the reason for the peicentage change in
the average employec hacludes pariners) Donws.
5 The position of Paringt Drectod «s designated by the Board as 3 Nen indopendeni, Non-Executve Diregtor position A Paitner Direcicr represenmis the pariners

of DWF Law LL{ and DWF LLD aad is therelore a pariner shareholcer rgpreseatatve on the Board Partner Direciors do not receive any lees for the posiuon on
the Baard because remuneraticon 5 ag a memher o W Lawse LU or DWE L LP Idetesmmed by bis of her ‘home ollice’, and in some orcumsiances also by way
af a mied salary as a0 employee of DWIE Connecled Services Holdmgs Lamierd
The Commtiee uses ibs miomantan (o sansly dsell that thare s not dnincreasmng gap between the fevel of lived pay lor the
Drrecior and far employees (incleding parinerst Basad on the above analysis, the Committee 1s satishied that this 1s the case

UK gender and ethricity pay-gap reporting
We reported on our UK gender pay gap for 20190 Apnl of this year.

The Group's UK gender pay gap

Pgy gap’ 2017 W8 2019
‘Mean hourly pay gsp 50% 48%  39%
Medien hourly poy gap 36% 12% 33%
Mean bonus pay gap 51% 45% 37%
Medanbonuspaygep 3% % 35%
Note

v The {igyres above 2@ cominned Lqures {or both employees and seft-employvec paitners For both hourly pav rates have been used,
The full 2019 Gender Pay Gap Report 5 avanlable on our websnae at dwigioup com

Wihile we are working hard 10 speed up the pace of cnange o ow business, there s a gender pay gap due 1o e lact that we
leve more men at serar levels in higherpad roles We aie 1aking targeted and sustamed action where there i currently under
recresentation, and we are making positve progress Ve know that changing decades of imbalance in our business and sectos

15 o (0 igke e, bui we gie conmmniad 12 addressing i .
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O lalest plan seis oul our immiedizie poonties and you can tind more detals on this 00 pages 37 and 38. Thws sustained facus on
mezningful actions will result in a more diverse worklorce, supported and empowered through our inclusive culture and vatues.

Ethnicity pay-gap reporting

As part of aur wader inclusion appraach, we have worked hard gver the past year 1o build 3 maore accurate picture of our Black, Agian
and Minonity Ethrie [BAME') poputation However, the current nroporion of collzagues who have disclosed ther ethaicity remains
fow at G0% and, as yet, does not allow lor meaningiul companson as pait of aur 2019 Pay Gap Repart.

As descnbed on pages 62 and 63, we have a number of strategies 10 eénsure we are as ransparent as possible. In parucular, our
Boord has sent a stzong signal about the value of diverse talent and inclusion by setuing divers:ity largeis at semor levels, and BAME
targets m addition 1o our gender largets, which include a deadline (o initate BAME pay-gap reporuing by the end of 2020

Annual Report on Remuneration

The fallowing table sets out where n ithe Remuneration Repoit the information can be found or where 1t is not relevant a staiement
o that effect:

Iniormauon Fage
Single figure of remunerauon for each Executive Diecior T T T gy
Share interests awarded during FY2019/20 80
Payment 1o past Directors a1
Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests S0
Percentage change n remuneration of Directors and all employees Oncluding pariners} 88
Pay ratio mformation in relaton 1o the total remuneration of the Directer undertaking the role of the CEO 86 and 87
Statement of the implementation of the Remuneraton Policy n FY2020/21 82 and 83
Consideration of matters relaung to Directars’ remuneration 76 and 77
Siatement of voting at General Mecung ) 91

Retative impertance of spend on pay
e table below shows the percentage change m 10ial salary costs and shareholder distnbutions {i.e. dividends) trom the inancial
yvear enced 30 Aprl 2019 1o the finances! year ended 30 April 2020.

FY2018M19 £m FY2019/20 Em change
Shareholder distnbutions pad in the ycar nil 98 NA
Total remuneration cost! 7 ) 126 4 21272 __ BE%

Notes
I Taoial remunetation cost is defined m nole 28 of the hnancial statemenis Thefaige increase yeat on year reltects the change in campensations mode! that came

mo effectin March 2019

Details of 2019 LTIP Grant
Detalls of the performance conditions and targets of the 2019 LTIP Grang are set out on page 80 in the Remuneration Quicomes

ai a Glance secuan of this repon
No Executve Drectors’ share mcentives vested dunng the year and therelore the Comrmitee did not consider whether any

adustmeant should be made n respect of share price performance or Otherwise.

Details of strategic and operational objectives for FY2019/20
During the year, the Committee appraved performance conditions for Executive Threctors in relation 1o therr bonuses for FY19/20

25 1ollows

- 0% Adjusied PBT

- 30% Suategic and operational objectives (including mmproved gross lock-uph.

Far mare detail on these perlormance condirons, seg gage 80 in Rermuneration Quicomes for FY2019/20 - At a Glance

The sirzlegic and operaticnal objectves are made up of a lock-up objectve and a number of personal weighted chjectives for
specthe maners (o be acheved dunng the fnancal year 1o saleguard the business and conwnbute to_ or form the essential inancal
and suategic priontes and odtcomes Ve auilmie tha key major themes of the objecives and then coiresponding perfoimance an
pace 50

The Commiitee noted that these had been paibally achieved, as descrbed telow The Committee deaided that as the Adjusted PBT
and iack-up pedfoimance cendthons Rad noT been Met, 1t would netLLE approprata (o makea any payment
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eruive Directo s
CED Andrew
Leastherand

CEO attanment
CFO Chns Stelam

1w bmanand sietements 2020

Ot ke @XDdersign
(33% wewh:ung)

Develapment and momlorn{gi
o! vanous market porformance
measures such as Nel Pramaoter
Score progressed

Revenues from key chents
have grovwn,

Foople

138 weighting)

Business growsh
L35 warghlag)

There was a net partner
headcount ingreasc af 19%

People-periormance wmiatives in
FY2019/20 have brought 2 marked

improvementin pertormance
planning and assessments, and

GuI engagement score is up

Positve ouicomes have bean
actugved with sigrwhicant M&A
acuwities, in particular the
acquisiticn of Mindcrest in the
USA and Inda, and BCD in Spam

M

Signilicant developmenis
have been made through
imgroved technolegy and
managemeant Information

The Finance function has continued

10 develop 1S integrated service
1o the business. This has enabled

improved gaitiner engagement and

focus on hinancial flundamentals

Cost 10 1ncome ratio has reduced

Finance cost reduction and budget

weare achigved.

Managed Services estabhshed
as a separale business umit and
enhanced with the acquisiuon
of Mindcrest.

7CFOﬁauainmenl

mPartlaHy achlevedri

by 0.} pp1s tom 42.7% 10 42.6%.

Parnally achieved

The focus onimproving lock-up
tias been underpinned by the roll
out of 3e.

F’artiaif\-f achieved

Netes

1. As snnounced on 29 May 2020, when Andrew Leailherland siepped down as Group Chigl Executive Otlicer. the Remuneration Committee determined he would
recewve 1o bonus lor the Linanciat year 2070,

Directors’ share interests {audited)
The Direclors” interests in shares as at 30 Apni 2020 are provided below.

Executive Diractars
Andrew Leaithedand |
Chins Stefani (CFO)

CEC)

Non-Executive Ditectors

S Nigel Knowles
L uke Savage

Tea Colaianmu
Vinodka Murna
Chnis Suthvan
Samantha Tymms
Matihew Doughty

Notes

[

Number gi
shares
oenaficiglly
owned?

7067628

1,125,051

2.662.211
32,693
49,180

1,586,306

409,836
0
2.652.421

Value of shores
benahcially Shares subject
owred 35 3 % Sharghalding to performance Tolalinterest
satary/iees? quidehnes Deferred shares concitions in sharas
1,080% 250% 0 779,41 7847035
370% 200% ¢ 335,134 1,461,185
NA MA MA NA 2.662.21
NA NA NA NA 32,693
MNA NA MNA NA 49,180
NA NA NA NA 1,586,306
NA NA NA NA 409,836
NA NA NA INA 0
NAS NA? NA" MNA" 2,654{121(

Calculaled using the share pnce of £0 &1 on 30 Apnl 2020
The eae-clt award made to Chas Sielam a1 the ume ol the 1P0 as desenbed on page 77 of the arnual reporl and financial slaiements 7014915 included here

Tha gne-of{ IPO award was granizd 10 lim Lo Create an equity interest gl 1PQ equivatent 1o what e would have receved at tP700f he hed been capable of beng
amamber ot OWWE LLP under the regulavons apphoable 1o DWE LLP.

FEN)

Or 9 July 2020, Chis Stefan 51 Miga! Knowlas and Mattnew Doughty acquned a further 15,000 shares each
Matihew Doughty (s a Paninar Duecior The posiien of Pariner Director 15 designaied by the Board a5 a Mon independent. Non-Executive Diector postion.

A Parner Duecior riepiesams tha pariners of A Caw LLP and OWF (L P andhs therelore a gariaer shacenaider represeniaine an ihe Soarg. Pariner Direcian s
13 Aot recerve any (225 for the posinen on the Board bed oose remuneration 15 as a memben ol DWE Law LLP or DWF LLP {delermined hy bis or her "home ofhice
And w1 SOME Crcumsiances also by way ol 2 mined 533ty ¢ an emoicyee of DWF Connecied Services Holdngs Linited

Service contracts ot letters of appointment
The table on the next gage provides detals of tne service contracts or letiers of appomiment for the Dirsctors All service contracts
and leners of anpontment are avalzble for viewing at the Company's registered off.ce In Lne with best practice. all Direciors are
subject <o anaual re clechion at the Compary’s AGM The Charmen and the Independent Non-Executive Direciorns are appointed
subject to re appointinent at the AGM for aninia! term of three years commenang on the admission of the shares 10 trading on
ihe London Stock Exchange The wiiial penod of three years s renewable by one adoitionat period of thiee years and renewsble
chasaafier at the discieuon of the Company Pariner Director leiters ¢l agpomiment prowvde that thew dulies as 2 Direcior are suliect

10 thea professional dunies a5 sabizitors auithonsed by the SRA or equivalent reguislory authonty
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Expiry date Notice pencd
by Cormnany
o Drector

Date appocimied

Executive Directors

Andrew Lezitherland 10 Septemier 2008 Rolling service-contract with neo fixed expiry date. For hus role 12 months
as Pariner Ditecion dunng part of the yaad, there was no
enlillement 1o receive a fee for undertaking the icle

Chgj .)iefam ) 10 September 2018 Rofling service-contiact with no fixed expiry date __ 1Z2ronihs
‘Non-Executive Directors - ) )
S Nigel Knoweles T Novemnber 2018 Rolfing fetier of appointment for an witial term of three years 3 months
B o ~ with no lied expiry date i
Chns Suliivar o I November 2018 Bolfing fetter of zppomiment for an initial term of thiee years 1 month
with no fixed expiry date
Tea Calaaruu " "1 November 2018 Rolling tetter of appointment [or an itutial et of myeégw Tt month
o . wathno fixed expry date e _
Vinodks Murea, OBE i November 2018 Rolli ling fetter of appomiment for an initiat term of three years 1 month
e wih no fixed expiry date _ .
Luke Savage 1 Nov@mber JUiSﬁ_“ Holng —lener ol appamiment lor gn mma! mrm of zhree ypars T montn
with no [ixed expiry date N
Saman‘eﬁamﬁs 1 December EOAié__ngiong !éufdr of gppomument lor an pmual erm —of {h(e—é_\};;(sﬂﬁa)mh
o with no fixed expwy date o
Marthew Doughty 1 December 2018 " Roll hng letter of appointment for rgle as Partner Director on 1 month

Admission, for annimal term of three years The Partner
Director 1s not enlitled to receive a fee for underiaking the role

Payments to past Directors/payments for loss of office {audited)

Thore wede no payments to past Directors or payments fTor loss of office dunng the fimancial vear. However, the Company agreed tarms
with Andrew Leaitherland on his cessaten of employment on 29 May 2020.

The full detarls of those terms are sel cutin the announcemeant wiich 15 avalable on ihe Campany's website tdwigroup corm/enyinvestorsy
reports-and-presentations) but s summarised below

1. Andrew s receving 12 monthly paymenis including basic salary, penston entlements and other contractuzl benetits, in lizu of the
12-manth contractual nouce period in accordance wath the prowisions of his service agreenment Andrew is required 10 mitigate his loss
dunng the notice penod by seeking slternative employrent or engagernent

2. Andrew will nat receive any bonus for the financral year ended 30 Apni 2020.

3 Awards made 10 Andrewe under the Long-Termn Incentive Plan geanted in 2019 lapsed on his departure Andrew held ng other incentive
awards and no further incentive awards wall be made.

4. Following the Company's IPOhin Aprd 2018, Androw Leaitherland flogether wwith his wite and lamily trust) held a 1otal of 7067628 ordinary
shares n the Cornoany, which represenied Andrevss pre-l PO ownership imerestin the DVWE business These shares are subject o
a fnvevear lock-up period (which s considerably longer than a typical posttPO lock-up penod of 12 months). These shares would normally
have been released in equal tranches on the annourcement of the prelrminary results for the Binancial years ended 30 Apnl 2020, 2021,
2022, 2023 and 2024 under the terms of a lock-up agrearment entered into between the Company and Andrew Leaitherland at the tme
of IPO. Puisuant 10 ths lack-up agreenent, ihe first vandhe of shares (20%)1s released on announcement of the prelimmary results for
the hinanoal year ended 30 Apnl 2020, and the secona trandhe (20%11s due to be released dunng Andrew's 12-rmonth notice penod.

The Board ceterrmined that 50% of the remaining tranches be retained by Andrews in recognition of his contiibution 1¢ the business dunng
his tenure in oflice and these will be released n accardance wath the ongmal schedule in 2022, 2023 and 2024). The Board determined
that the other 50% be clawed back immediately info the Comparys Errployee Benefit Trust in eccordance with the terms of the lodkup
zgreement. The release of eadh ranche of The retained Shares s 8i50 subjact to malus provisicns.

Shareho!der voting at the 2019 AGM

Toial votes
voies for o for Virles aga-nst P e(AINST velclly £3st  Voles wiihhekd
To :Jpprovc the Directors’ Romuneration F‘ohcy 106_,935,2&r 9899 VT()9_11_12 ’ o _I(EQ-ZEJBW 0
_lo approve the Drectors’ Reruneraten report WLOS,GBS,?BZ_ %87 1.360.530 126 108.G26312 0

We appreciale shareholders” overwhelming suppont for both our Remuneration Policy and Remunerauon repaont, and are keen 1o take
on hoeard any adomonal feedhack raiscd Foliowing the publication of our 2019 Directors” Rermuneraten report, we kave increased Lthe
post-cessanon sharebolding required to 100% of an Exacubve’s murimum shareholding requvement {or the aciual shareholding at the
cosszhion of employmant it iower ot the Lwo vears tollovang cossation of cmployment, e ine with the Investment Association's
Paneples of Bermunzratiion

Asproved by the Board on 7 Septembier 2070

Tea Colaianmi
Cran, Bemuneranon Comrmitee
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Dircctors” report

Thio Direciors
Disclosure, Guidance and Transparency Rule 4 1.5,

Statutery or regulatory information contained elsewhere in the Annual Beport
Infgrmation required to be disclosed in the Directors’ report miay be found below and in the followang secuons of the Annual Report

Crepcri, togeiner wilh 1he Stiatemgc report on pages 1 1o 49, Jorm ihe Managerment Bepod for the purposes of the

laformanna Page
-lec(j-l'(."f 5 d:m :;:I;;img r 1lané;:;akl:d?\r{g the vear) C (ergrate Governance report ._72 l_n_ﬁ'?
Dlreclor;:n:t;esta and that oi thew farn: \:es - Directors’ ﬂemunerauon reportﬁ o - 7790
leclv fmuvm_de\vélopmem e t)usmcw Sirateqie repori 8 and 9
Hlsk factors and me—cE;! ns—kz _c_;;omg concern and viability 7 4Suatoglc 12port - o flTE)_lo ﬂ9
staiernents
Goveimance arraﬂgoi'nemf;, hum;n rights and anti-corruption Strateqrc report - o ——36 10 43
and bnibery matiers
?I;\;-Cid msl;‘l.:kr‘m.r‘ulsjnror;n:;on an the Group's linanciat C;)-{:so!ldal;iﬁ:air;;:tal sta‘;e-:mcnls;—- 147 and 143
nstruments and nsk management obyjectives and polictes,
mciuding our pohcy on hedying
E‘u‘sia%nabulriv T Strategic report - S 3610 43
Coiporate social reAs_Doanbmty Stra{eglc report - T 361043
hnan;:af sk '-mana_qemem Cons oludared hnanch;‘rEnénrs 142 and 143
Employee @&ne? - Strateqic report 3831040
Corporate Governance report 62
Dhirectors’ Remuneration report 86
Er\ergy consumplion, energ:,?tfluency and Gt"ecnhouse Stratedic report - 43
Gas emissions Directors’ report 95
Engagémem with suppliers, chlTrr:;s and cthers Stralegugrepon- 1b 17 and LH
‘%echon 1?2(1) stalement B Suaxegw repart 14
Disclosure table pursuant to Listing Rule 9.4 8C
The tollowing 1able provides references t@ where the information required by Listing Rule 9.4.8C 15 disclosed
Listing Ru\; Li:,‘.m(j] Ruie ;;eq;rr:en*_ i Page
—9.8 401} 7 Interest caonalmed by the Group and any reio;ed lax —r;alg o Wiﬁfoﬁpﬂcﬂzable
9. 8_4_(2T J-U”cbd\ted financial Infc-)rmau-r)n LR ‘3 Eﬁl - i o Mot app-z}cable
98 4{4) L?)ngjz;fm mcent-!ve schemes - T)lfecmrs Remuneration report, 73 10 91
9.8.4(5) - DIFECIOIS wanv?r_o( emoiuments - B Nat apphcable
g8 4{6)—Dr5:c7r;- warver o future emofumemﬁ i _ _ Not apphcable
9,874£7} Non pf; empve IS5Ues of equity for cash N Not apphcable
Mé;i Nnn pre-emptive issues of equity for cash _by anyr ;;Emdimraiior subadi-ary T F\Ic;i apph-;;blc
undertaking
-Siﬁ‘_mii P—agm C Dirinpanyr;a' ticipation in & placing by 3 asted subsidhary T No[ apd ICE;EE
9m ' Contract of significance in which a Dneclbr 15 OF wwds ﬂ\d;E_TI-éHV-H_IH:_Ff;;Pd o gN(_)-l_-a—;;E.cable
9 8 A_’Ti) (‘griw:(ac[ of :;s-czflcance-bew;e_ﬂz-the C:n;;;ar ;_{;)r ;:;l-ur-" of s SubSId'une"S:i o - ) I\-!:]l a,r_jp!_;;a-me
and a contioling sharenolder
_SE;;{HZI? Wé;;"c)t dw;fﬁen?s—by a shareholder - - - Duectors’ re_port page 93-
9 8 dH %} \Nanmr ol future draidend by a 5nareho\ri;__mirr’7 - Dnm( x()li enorl page 9?
9 8 d;ldl Bnard :,t;;mpl-n?m FGbPCCl Qfmonsmp wvh the:)_n_lrollmg 5hdreh-o-_der - I\El"ao—;jhcab!e
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Directors’ indemnities and insurance

Al the date of this Annual Hepoit, sademnimes afe n force unde
which the Company has agreed o indernnify the Directors, 1o
the extent permitted by law and the Articles of Asscaiation, in
respect of any Lability ansing out of, of 1n connecbon with, the
executicn of ther powers, doles ang responsiilings, as
Drectors of the Company or any of 113 subsidianies

The Company also mantains duectors” and officers” lability
nsurance as prowded for in the Arucles The Directors may also
obtain, at the Company’s expense. cxiernal legal or professional
advice nccessary o enable them 1o catry cul their dutes.

Dividends
The Board has deciared the following dividends

— anntenm dmadend of 125 pence per ordmary share, paid on
20 December 2019

anantenm dividend of 1.25 pence per ordinary share, paid on
21 February 2020

— a hinal dwidend of O 75 pence per ordimary share, subjact (@
shareholder approval at this year's AGM, wihnch wall be pad
on 5 Movernber 2020 to all shareholders on the register of
members at the close of busmess on 25 Seplember 2020

There are no guarantees that the Company wall pay dividends.
or the level of any such dividends in the Tuture.

Waiver of dividends - Listing Rule 9.8.4

The Estera Trust [Jersey) Limied, which recently merged with
Oconan Limited, 13 trusiee of the DWF Group plc Employee
Benefis Trust and the DWF Group plc Reward Share Trust,

The Ermplovee Benefit Trust and the Heward Share Trust are used
In connection with the DWF Group plc Equity Incentive Plan, the
WVF Group ple Deferred Bonus Plan, the DWF Group ple Buy
AsYou Earny Plan, both in the UK and far international locauons,
the DVWF LLP Sub Group Equity incentive Plan, the DWi LLP
sub Group Deferred Bonus Plan, and the DWF LLP Sub Group
Buy As You Earn Plan. The Estera lrust has agreed o wane
drvdend on shares @ ihe wrust not allocated to plan members

A sharehalder who is @ member of DWFE Law LLP and DWF LEP
hos agreed o wave dividends attaching 10 shares which were
eroneously translerred to them.

Substantial shareholdings

A1 20 Aprl 2020, the last practicable date gnor 1o the end of
FY2019/20, the Company had been noufied in accordance with
Rule 5 of the Disclosure, Guidance and Transparency Rules or
was otherwisz awate, of the following interests in the
Company's voung nghts

Moz of % of issved

Holder 7 OidmawEbafes caoual

Sstera Trost (ersey) Limited as | 26,765,635 8.25
iesice of the DWF Group ple

Emgloyee Benelit Trust ) L o
Prerier Mitcn Group 23481682 724
S(:a-r-wdard Liie Aberdeen E’l_612,788 a50
Sand Grove Capial Management _13770,/93 424

The percentage of voung nghits delalled above was calculzted as
at 20 Aprd 2020, in accordance wiith Rule 5 of the Disclosure,
Guidance and Transparaercy Roles

AL 27 August 2020, the latest practcable date pror to
publicanon of Ims Annual Heport, the Company had been
notified ¢ accordance with Rute % of the Disclosure, Guidance
and Transparency Rules or was otherwise aware, of the
following nterests i the Company’s voling nghts

% ol ssued

MNumber of

Holdar - ordinary shares - capital
Estera Trusi (Jeisey! Lined as 34267793 10.56

nustee of the DWFE Group ple

Employee Beneht Trust _ 3 o o

:Efcm\errl\'ﬁnon investors 22161660 _683
_Aberdean Standard tnvestments M612.788 450
Sand G_rave Capual Management 13,770,793 4.24

The percentzge of voung nghts detaled above was calculated as
at 27 August 2020, w accordance with Rule § of the Disclosure.
Guidance and Transparency Rules

Share capitai structure and share rights

Further details ol the share capital are shown in note 23 10

the consoldated tinancial s1atements, which forms part of this
Dweciors repact Rights apadantable 1o the Company's ardinary
shares are as set out In the Company’s Articles of Assooiation
twhich are avaitlable on aur website at dwigroup.com/en/
nvesiors) ang m apglicable company law,. Halders of the
Company's ordinary shares have the rnght 1o attend, speak and
vote {gither in person of by proxy) at a general meeting of the
Company, and the right to berefit in any distribution of the
Company, which includes, but s not hmated to, dwidends.

No shareholder owns shares with special rights as to control.

The Company oparates a number of employee share plans,
which are detaled both in the Dwrectors” Remunaration repart on
page 85 and 1n note 75 10 the consaolidaied finanoial statermments
The voting rights of shares held in trust for the share plan
participants, as beneficial holders, are exercised at the direction
of the parucipant. in re@spect 10 any vohing nghts of shares held
0 trust that are not atlocated 10 share plan parbcipants, Estera
Trust (Jersey) Limited will abstain from voling these shares,
unless diracied otherwise by the Company, and then only in
accordarce with Estera Trust (ersey) Limited's discretion

Authority to allot and purchase own shares

The Company was authonsed by shareholders at the AGM held
i Septamber 2019 to purchase i own ordinary shares in the
mprket up o g maxienumn of 30,006,000, Denng the year, no
ordinary shares were repurchased.

At the same AGM . the Directors were also granied authonty
{for the purposes of secuon 551 of the Companies Act Z006)

10 sllot relevant secuntes fih up o an aggregate nominal amount
of £1,000.000 ang {n) cormpnsing ecudy secunvies (as definad
in the Compamies Act 20061 up 10 an agoregate nominal amouni
of £2,000.000 (zfier deductng from such hmit any relavant
sccunmies 1ssued under () in connection 'anih a nghts issue)
These grmounis will appty until the conclusion of the AGM 1o

be hald on 27 Oclober 2020

nodes 2:8gieg

BOUBLIANGD

1

Uy

SIUAL. 1R e

Ui BLUID{ UL IBYI0




Arroal opot and [eva seo sl siatem 2aes A0

L}L/‘L - DVIF Group ple
.

Directors’ report continued

The Direcions confrm ther nilenhoen 10 renevy these
authoinnes ot the forthcomng AGM, ensuring sdherence (o
sha prowisions of the Pre Emption Group’s {PEG) revised
Statement of Principles Further datails are set oul in Lthe
Notice of Annual General Meeung, which you can find on
dwiigraup comjenfinvesiars

The Breciors also confum ther intention 1o continue 10 adhere
10 the PEG Starement of Pocciples and only alio! shares
representing more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company (excluting treasury shares) for cash, where that
alintrmeant 15 0 connechion with an acquisition or a specified
capial investment. Such an acquisiion of investment would be
anncunced ai the same vme as the allotrment, or having taken
phace 1 the preceding six months and beirng referced ta m the
anrouncement of the 1ssue.

Change of control —significant agreements

There are 2 number of agreemenits that take effect, alter or
terrningte upon a change of control of the Company, including
toltovsing a iakeover brd, such &s supplier and service provider
agreements and property lease arrangements. The legal risk
ansing out of such change of control 15 closely managead by
the Company as part of its contractual governance processes.

The Company has an unsecured £80.0m muliicurrency revolving
lpan feciity agreement wath HSBC UK Bank plc. Nationa!
Westimnster Bank plc and Lloyds Bank ple for general corposate
and working capital purposes. if there s a change of control of
the Company, any lender, by notiess than 30 days’ notce 1o the
Company, may cancel its commitment under the facility and
declare the culstanding ublisation of that lender’s commitment
ticgether with accrued interest) immediately due and payabie.

The Company has a secondary unsecured £15 0m multicurrency
revohving loan facility with HSBC UK Bank plc and Naticnal
Westmunsier Bank plc. The secondary facility operates under

the same terms as the unsecured multicurrency revolwing loan
facihty as refeired 1o above.

Austialign subsidianes of the Company are funded by a revolving
faciity of $3,00G,000 {Australian dollars), and associated capital
faohinas, iorn Westpac Banking Corporation. Under the terms
of that agreement, where there is, i the lender’s opinan,

a substental change (direct or iIndirect) In managemenit,
aanCrship of Control, 1T may constiute an event of delault

unger that agreement, requinng amounts outstanding and
wigrest (o become payable immediaiely.

‘he Company's subsidiary, Rousaud Costas Duran SLE has
unsecured multicurrency revolving toan facilities agreements
wilh several jocal banks for general corporate and working
capial purposes. The total value of all such facilities is €12 3m.
If there s a change of control of the Company, any lender
iy cancel s commitment under the faciity and declare the
outstanding vithsation of that lender’s commitment (together
wiith accrued nterest) immediately due and payable

In tha event of & change of conirol, the facites referred

to above would either reguire repayment or reriegotalion
Further deians on banking facibies are set out in note 19
10 the consohdeted fimancial staterments on page 141

The Direclors are not aware of any agicements botween the
Company and sts Directers or employees which would pay
compensauon in the event of a change of conwrol. The rules

of the Companys share pians generally orowde for accelerated
vesiing or release of the shara awards in the event of a change
of contiol of the Company

Restrictions on transfer

As part of the Group, DWW Law LLP 1s regulated by the
Solcitors Requiation Authonty [SRA), the Company and
sharehaldars are subject to siatulory ownership restiicoons
pursvant 1o the Legal Services Act 2007 ’

1118 a cardng) ponoiple of the Company that 3 "Non-aguthonsed
Person’ shall not hatd, nor take steps 10 acquire, any 'Restiicted
Interest” in the Company other ihan in complance with the
Legal Services Act 2007 and the arrangements, rutes and
requlations of any ‘Relevant Licensing Authonity’, which inciudes
the SRA and, where apgheable, other designated regulators

of the legal professions in England and Wales,

A Non-authonsed Persan includes any person who is not
approved to carry on legal acuvities by the SRA or anather
Refevant Licensing Authonty

A Restacted Interest in the Company exisis where 3 person
{alone ar wilh ther associates).

3)holds at least 10% of the sharas in the Company

b)is able to exercise signiicant influence over the managernent
of the Company by wirtve of ther shareholding in the Company

chis entiled to exarcise, of control the exercise, volng power (in
the Company which it consisis of voling nghls, consttutes
at least 10% of the voung nghis in the Company

dlis able to exercise signvihicant mftuence over the managemenit
of the Company by virtue of the persen’s entitierneant 10
exercse, of contrel the exercise of, voung nghts in
the Cornpany

If a3 member {or prospecuve member) who s a Non-guthonsed
Person proposes to acquire a Restricted interest in the
Cornpany, that member lor prospective member) shall not take
any steps to acquire such Restncled Interest unul after it has

al noufied the Company and the Relevant Licensing Authornity
" advance of s propesal 1o acquire such Restnceed interes

blrecewved the necessary approvals from the Relevant Licensing
Authonty, as may be required under the Legal Services Act
2007 and Requlatory Arrangements

It1s & crrminal offence under the Legal Serviceas Act 2007 for
a Nor-guthonsed Parson io fait o camply with these obligations

If the Company behoves the Dwestiure Condition may be
satistied in refation to @ Non-zuthonsed Person (a 'Defauking
Person’), the Company may give notice o the Celaulung Paeson
that all of the restnictions refered (o below shall apply 10 ali

of that Non-authonsed Person's sharesin the Company

(the Relevanl Shares?
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3l suliect (0 2 compulsory drisposal provision set cul batows,
atransfer ol of sgreement 1o transier the Relevsnt Shares, o
N the case of umissued shares, the vansfer of for agreement
to wznsted) the nght to be saued wath them, 15 vond

bino volung nghis are 16 be exeraisabls in respect of the
Retevani Shares

chno further shares are to be issued in nght of the Belevant
Shares or m pursuance of any ofter made 10 ther hotdar

diexceptn hundation, no payment is 10 be made of any sums
due from the Company on the Relevam Shaies whether in
respect of capital or otherwise

elany rastncuon the SRA or Belevant Licensing Authority may
impose in respeoct of the Relevant Shares in accordance wath
the Legal Services Act 2007

A Divestiture Condinen includes where a Nen-authorised Person
holds a Resuicted interest in the Cornpany by wirtue of holding
shares m the Cornpany in any of the followang circumstances

atzs aresull of the gerson taking a step i crcumstances thal
consutules an offence under paragraph 24(1) of Schedute 13
1o the Legal Services Act 2007 hwhether or not the person
is charged with, or convicted of, an oflence under
that paragraph)

bhin breach of conditions imposcd under paragraph 17 28, or
33 of Schedule 13 10 the Legal Services Act 2007

chin contrgvention of an objection by 1he Helevant Licensing
Authorily under paragraph 31 or 36 of Schedule 13 (o the
Legal Services Act 2007,

For 50 long as the resirictions set out above apply o s Defaulting
Persan, the Campany may {in its abisoiute discretion} natity the
Detaulting Persan ihat, within seven days of the date of service
of the nonce, they must dispose of such numbier of thelr shares
representing the Retevant Shares in the Company that will result
w the Delauiing Person no longer holang a Resltncted interes!
n the Company [the Disposal Shares’)

1t 1the Delaulung Persen does not dispose of the Disposal
Shares. the Company shall arrange 10 sell the Disposal Shares
35 s00n as.15 reascnably pracucable. The Company shall not be
labte 1o the Defsulung Person for any alleged deficiency in the
amount of sale proceeds in respect of, or any other matter
relating 1o, the Disposal Shares. The Company may make any
arangements 1 deems necessary or desirable 10 sell the
Dizposal Shares The Detavlung Person will receive the net
proceeds from the sale of the Oisposal Shares.

Other than as sat oui above, where imposed by law or
regulation, or wheie the Listing Rules require certain persons

Lo obizin clezrance before degling. there are no resinctions
reqgarding te tansfer of shares in the Cornpany. The Company
15 not aware of any agreement wiuch would resulin a resticnon
on the transter of shares ar voling nghts

95

Annual greenhouse gas emissions (include SECR]

The release of greenhouse gases (GHG'], nolably carbon dioxde
{'CO generated by burning fossd fuels, has animpact on chimate
change that, either drectly on indiectly, represents considerable
risks Doth o the busingss and the planet. The Group wall monitor
and, where practicably possible, reduce s GHG ermissions

The data below has been credted vsing the lollowing scopes

Scope 1

All chrect emissions from the activines of an organisaton ¢r
under theiwr conteol including fuel cambusian on site, such as
gas beilers, fleet vehicles and avcondiioning leaks.

Scope 2:

Indirect ermissions from elecinaty purchased and used by the
orgamsation Emissions are created during the production of the
energy eventually used by the orgamsation

Scope 3:

Al ether drect emissions from actities of the orgamisauon,
necurnng fram sources that they do not own or controf
These are usually the gieates: share of The carbon footprnt,
covenng emissions associated with busmess travel,
procurement, wasle and water

Yoy Yo
FY 2008009 Fy 2009420 Increase Increase
ltannes) ltonnes) [tonnest Yo
Biomass Q 0 a 0
Scope 1 215 229 1359 637%
Scope 2 1,390 1,457 6714  483%
Scope 3 7,169 2583 42406 1955%
Total 3.774 4,279 504.79 13.38%
Based on an average
hezdcount of 3,050 3,647
Tonnes per person
124 117

peryeal

Svme 4! 1he daia for Mach and Aprd 2020 aie hesed on assumprens, as il has
not reea gassible to obtain hrat data front soane unikily comparnes due
o COVIGA19

In order 1o tecord and calculate this intormation, DWFE Ltilises
2 1hird parly system [Accuvio) in wiuch a record of energy, ravel
elc s recorded on a monihly basis Invoices are racewed rom
the unliny suppher, preferred iravel pariner and the expenses
system from which the data 15 then recorded The thied party
system then breaks down ihis dala inic the correct scopes for
reporting purposes Data records bavel and eneigy usags
globally wilh the exception of some miernational otices which
are serviced offices The aralysis uses an operational coniral
apprasch which means that where there arg serviced
agresments for utlties, the data s not included in the report
Scopa 3 has been ncluded on a voluntary banis

Lodos 2Boieng i
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Directors’ report continued

Pohnical donations
Thae Grogp did - noke ary poi
pohiveal exoendciiurg dunng tha year

HONrET o5 ar NIC a7y

s ne Uompany’s potcy 1610 make what a7e ommen’y
ieyardz as donatons 1o publical Series, and 11 s not wlendig
ge thai pahey The Comoanes At 2006 includes very
pread Jelmhons of pohiical donobors and expenature which
gy have the eflec: of covenng a number of normat basimess
Beivilies thel wiuid nol He cormimony 1nGugnt 10 be denatons
0 poahca. parees These ool nciude support for bodies
engaged o aw ieloim o GOvermmen: policy review
wvcivEment it seminacs and Tunctons that may be anended
by pohuicizns, and job exchances between Industry

anr Government

At tne Annuzl Generzi fMeeting to be held on 21 Octoter 2020,
and 1o aveid an inacvenieni uvreech of the.Companies Act 2006
the Comnpzny will scek authodity for dsel! and s subsihanes
and subsidiary undeniakings 0 make political denatiens not
excegding £130.000 w 1018

Research and devefopment

DWF Ventures s DWF's research and development aim. serving
3s a vehicle o nvest in and nurture new service ines that den't
eastly v 1o the convenngnal ard regulated practice gioup-
wased busriess model. Venlutes was launched in Octaber 2017
as an arms-lengin lirmwted company witnin Connected Services
andd provides services 1o nlernal ieams es wall gs clients, with
s focus en generating deas, delivenng R&D requiremenis and
auriunng 2arly-growth services.

Rules on appointment and replacement of Directors

A Dhector may be appointed by ordinaty tesolvucn of the
snarehelders n 3 geneérg® meeting Tollowing nomination by
the Board o7 2 member lor members} entitled to vole at such
a meenng. In addition, ihe Directors may appoint a Direclor

1o [l & vacancy or as an additional Director, provided tha: the
wdimvdual retres at the next AGM A Director may be removed
Ly the Cempany 1N certain creumsiances set out in the
Company s Articies of Associaion or by &n ardinary resolution
of the Company. All Drectors will seek re-election at the AGM
in October 2020 n accordance with the Company’s Afticles

o Asseoiation and the recornmendations of the Code,

Articles of association
“ne Company's Articles of Association may be amended only by

cassing a special resoluton of 1the sharehoiders of the Company.

The Acrcles of Assocation are available an our website at
dwlgroup comienfinvestars

Annuzl General Meeting

Tis year's Annuaf Gereral Meeting will be helg at OvE Group
plc. 20 Fenchusch Street, Londen, FC2IM 3AG on 21 Ocicber
2020 at 2 00um The Nouce of Annual General Meeting 13
avalabie on our website dwilgroup comfenfinvestors

hmpottant events affecting the Group since the end

of FY2019/20

be2ase sze pages 73 31d 7 n respect ol the deperture ¢
Angrew Leanheland es Cret Dxecut've DHicer veith affcct from
29 ey 7070 Sv Mget <rowles was appoirieo as Cheaf
Exocutve CHer on 29 May 2070 and Crog Sulhwan was
Apponiea 95 Intea Char o0 the same daie On T Aagust 2020,
Jonathan Bioome: was appoinied as Thar a1d on 1he same
aate, Chas Saitvan wes appanted 25 Bepuiy Charr aicngside s
role as Seney ndeperdent Duecior Please see pages B 1o 85
ot the Cainorate Gevernance regort for furhe: in‘armation in
respect ¢f Boa d changes sirce the end of BY19/20

Fiease see oage 3010 respect of the discontnued ogeranons m
our Internatenal dvsis

Please a'so wee Mora 31 BEvents after the eporung penod i the
roigs 1o e consclidated trancal staterrents on gage 152

Disclosure of information to the Auditor

Hawving nade the reguisite enguinies, so far as cacn of the
Drecions 15 aware, [hefe 15 no retavant 2udit nformanon (as
cefmed by secior 41803 of the Compares Act 20061 of wwinh
tho Compaeny's Asditon s unawarg, and the Direciors have 1aken
3k e s12ps they ought to have waken as Direcigis 1o make
themselves aware of any relavan: sudil information, and 1o
enswe the Company § Audiar s awale ol that iniormation,

Goming congern

Hawing aszessed the financial forecasts of the business, the
prncyaal isks and oiher matiers discussed 1n connectian with
1he wiaDilly statement on pages 48 and 49, the Drectors
cons'der 1 gppropngie (o avupl (he Quing concern basis ot
ACCOUNLNg N prepsnng the fnancal statements as the Company
wiil generate sufficient cash 16 meet 15 ongoing obligations for at
lzast 12 months frorm the date of signing the hrancal statements.

The Duectors’ repori was approved by the Board and has been
signed on s nehal by the Grocp General Counsel and
Cornpary Secretary

By ordler of the Board

1 ERSker
Mollie Stoker
Group Gereral Counsel and Company Secretary
7 Septencber 20270
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Divectors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Heport
znd the financial staternents 1 accordance with apoheable law
end raqulanons

Company law icqures the Directors 10 prepare financial
statements for each hinancial year Under that law the Birectors
sreregured 10 prepasie the Groop finanoal sigiements in
accordance with Internationat Financial Beporung Standards
(IFRSs | as adopied by the turopean Union and Article 4 of

ihe 1AS Regulaton snd have elecied to prepare the Parent
Company imancial statements n gocordance with Unaed
Kingdorn Generally Accepied Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and apphcabie law), including
FRS 101 ‘Reduced Misclosure Framework’, Under company 13w
the Directois must not approve the accounts unless they are
satisfied that they give a trug and farr view ol the state of attarrs
ol the Caompany and of the profit o loss of the Company for
that penod.

in prepanna the Parent Company hnanaial statemenis, the
(hrectors are required
- select suilldble accounbing poiicies and then apply

thern consisiently;

- make judgzments and accounuing esirnaies that are
reasonable and prodent,

state whether apphcable LK Accounting Standards have been
followeed, subject 10 any matenal depattures disclosed and
explained i the iinanal siatements; and

prepare the financal statemeriis on the going concern basis
unlegss it is inappropnate o presume that the company wall
continue m business

In prepaning the Graup financial siaternents, International
Accounting Standaid 1 requires that directors:

- properly select and apply accounting pohicies,

- present nformation, includng accounting policies, N a manner
that provides relevant, iehatde, comparable and
undersiandable intormaton,

- provide adduonal disclosures when comphance wath the
specihe requirements in IFRSs are insuflicient 1o ecnable users
1o understand the impact of parbcular ransachons, other
evenls and condiuons on the entity’s linancial posinon and
financigl pertormance; and

- make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue
as a qoing concera.

The Directors are responsible ot keeping adequale accouning
records ihat are suthcient 10 show and explain the Company's
wansachions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ims
thi fimanciad pos:tion of the Company and enable them (o ensure
thet the financial statements cormply with the Compames Act
2006 They are also responsitle for safeguarding the assels of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
preventon and detection of fraud and other regulanties

The Drectors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’s websile. Legislation in the United Kingdom
geverning the preparation and dissemination of hinanaial
statements may differ from lequslatiort in other funsdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

- the hnancial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financiz! reporting framework, give a true and fan
view ol the assets, liabilities, firgncal positon and profit ar
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation teken as a whole;

- the Strategic report includes a far review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Campany and the undertakings ncluded in the consohdation
tsken as a whole, together with a descnption of the poncipa!
risks and uncertainmies that they face, and

— the Annual Report and hnancial staternents, taken as
a whole, are fair, balanced and understandatile and provide
the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the
Company's position and porfarmance, busiess modet
and strategy.

This responsibiiily statement was approved by the Roard
of Directors on 7 Septamber 2020 and 15 signed on s behali by

Chris Stefani
Chuef Financial Ofbicer
7 Sepltember 2020

Sir Nige!l Knowles
Chiet Executive Ofiicer
7 Septembper 2020

)

{ LGE3) Hb3Eng |
| |

GOURLIANGE)

|
|

SIUBLUBLEIS [RIDURUI]

l UDNBWID|LI I8 Y10 {



DWF Group pit
Anacdgl teport and foanod' s alemaentis 200

98

[ndependent Auditor’s report to the
mcmbers of DWF Group plc
Report on the audit of the financial

stalements

1. Opinion
10 our opmMoN

Key audit
matters

— the hnzngal statements of DWF Group plo Uhe parest
company’ | and its subsdanes the ‘graup’] gwe 2 true and fau
view of the state of the group’'s and of the parent compary's
affars as al 30 Apal 2020 and of the group's profn for the vear
then anded.

the group lingncial statemants have been propetly prepared
in accordsnce wath Internsuonal Financial Reporing Sendards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion:

— the parent company financal statements have been properly
prepared in accordsnce witn United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice. including Finanaisl Beporing
Standard 101 “Reduced Disciosure Framewvork ™ and

— the fingnaial statements have bheen prepared n accordance
with the requrements of the Campames Act 2006 and,
as reqards the group financial statements, Aricle 4 of the
JAS Regutation

Materiality

3.Summary of our audit approach

Tre materiahﬁ:fhat we usad for the grm];)

The key avdi maners that we dentfied i the
cuairent yedr wereg’

- Revenusz recognition valuauon of unbilled
revenue,

Adequacy of the provision for bad and
doubtful debts in respect of client recewables,

- Accounting for acquisitions, and

- Adequacy of controls over the cash
reconcibation and transaction recording cycle

within this report, key audit matters are
idenufied as follows:

(V) Newly itentified
() Increased level of risk
) Similar level of risk

@ Decreased tevel of nsk

financial statements was £1.3m which was

We have audited the financial statlements which compnse. -
Scoping

- the consohidated income statement,

Based on our scoping assessment, our audit
work covered 84% of the Group's revenue and
82% o the Group's net assels.

- ihe consolidated stalemant of comprehensive mcomea, C T
Significant
changes
" our

approach

~ lhe consolidated and parent company bafance sheets;

~ the consohdaled and paren! company slatements
of changes in equity,

- the consolidated cash flow statement, and
— the related notes 1 10 31

The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in

the preparation of the geoup financigl statements s applicable
law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. the financiad
reporting frarmework that has been apphed in the preparaton
of the parent company financial statermnents s appheable law
and Unned Kingdom Accounung Standards, including FRS 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework” {Unned Kingdom Generally
Accepled Accounting Practce)

2.Basis tor apinion
wWe cenducted cur audit :n accortance vath Internalionat

In the current year. we have decided o revise
our matenalily benchmark from profit before tax
10 revenue. Acquisition acimity and the global
Covid-19 pandemic have driven unusual

ncome statement items such as gains on
bargain puichase and increased cests, resulting
i income statement volatility, specificatly in
relaton 1o profit before 1ax, hence the change
lo a rmore stable metnc

Accounting Tor the new Group and 0
transaction 1s no ionger a Key Audit Matter as
it1s considered an1scfated event in 2019 and
theretore the nisk no longer remains m 2020

A new Key Audit Matter has heen identified in
respect of Accounting for acquisitions in kght of
the nature of the accounting judgemenis relating
1o gequisttions in the year, explainad further in
secuon 5 below.

Standards on Auditing (W) {ISAS (UG) and apphicable law

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the auditor's responsibilues for the audit of the linanaal
statemeants seclion of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant o
our gudii of the financial statements in the UX, including the
Financat Reporting Council's {the 'FRC's) Ethucal Standard as
apphed 1o isted public interest entues, and we have fullilled
aur ather ethical resoonsibilies m accardance wathi these:
recurenients We confirm that the non-audi services probitnted
ty the FRC's Ethical Standaid were nat prowded (o the group or
the parent corpany

W beegve that the audn evidence we have ablamed g
sufficient aad appropriate 10 Lrovide g bass lor our opicen
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4.Conclusions relating to going cancern, principal risks and viability statement

4.1. Geing concern
We have rovewed 1he duectors’ staiement w1 nale 1310 the fnancigl statements aboul whether
they considerad o appropnate 1o adont the gong concern basis of accouniing in preparning them and
thew identfication of any matenal uacertainues 1o the group’s and company’s abklity 1o continue 10
der so over a penod of atleast twelve monihs from the date of aparoval of the hinancial statements

We considered as part of our risk assessmeant the nature of the group, its business mods

and related nsiks ncluding whete relevant the wnpact of the Cowd-19 pandennc and Brexit, the
requirarments of the appliceble financial reporting framework and the system of imernal control.
We evaluated ihe diectors’ assessment of the gioup's shihly 10 continue as a going Concern,
including challenging the underlying data and key assumptions used to make the assessment,
and evaluated the direclors’ plans for future 2ctions 1 relation Lo therr going concern assessment

We are required 10 stale whether we have anylhing matenat io add or draw attention 1o n refation
o that siatement required by Listing Rule 9 B.ERI123) and report 1l the statermenti :s matenally

Going concern is the basis

of preparatton of the hnancial
statements that assumes an
entity will remain in operation
for a period of at least

12 months from the date

of approval of the financial
statements.

We confirm that we have
nothing matenal to report, add
or draw attention 10 b respect
of these matiers

mnconsistant with cur xnowledge obiained in the audll
4.2. Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reating the diectors siatements and considenng whather they were consisient
with the knowledge we oblained in the course of the audit, inciuding the knowledge oblained in
the evaluation cf the direciors” assaessment of the group's and the company’s ability to continue
4s a goINg concern, wWe are required 1o state wheiher we have anylhing matenal 1o add or draw
atention ton relabion o

~ the disclosures on pages 46 and 47 that describe the princpal risks, procedures to denufy
emerging risks, and an explanation of how these are being managed or minigated,

~ the dhireciors’ confirmation on page 418 that they have carried out a robusi assessment of the
onncipal and emerging nisks facing the group, Including those that would thieaten its business
model, future performance, sclvency or hquidity; or

~ the drectlors’ explanation on pages 48 and 49 as e how they have assessed the prospects
of the group, over what penod they have done so and why they consider that peniod io he
appropnate, and ther statermnent as o whather they have a reasonable expeciation that the group
will be able 1o continue i operation and meet s lisbilites as they 1all due over the penod of ther
assesstoent including any related disclosures draweng attention to any necessary quahfications
or assumplions.

We are also required ta report whether the directors’ statement relating o the prospects of the

group required by Listing Rule 9 8 6R(3) 1s matenally ncansistent with cur knowledge obtained

in the audi

Viability means the ability

of the group to continue over
the time horizan considered
appropriate by the directors.

We confirm that we have
nainung material to report, add
of draw atlenuon 1o in respect
of ihese maners

5. Key audit matters

Key zudi maners are those matiers that, n our professional judgement, were of mast signidicance 1n our audit of the financial
statements of the curient period and irciude the most signilicant assessed asks of matenal misstatement twhether or not due 10
fraud) that we Wentihed These maters included those wihich had the greatest effect on. the overall aucht strategy, the allocalion

of resources i the audit, and deecting the efforts of the engagement tearm

These malters were addiessed i the context of our audit of the inancial staiements as 3 who'e, and . lorming owr opiion

tnereon, and we do N0l provide 3 separatc opiren on these matiers.
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Independent Auditor’s report to the
members of DWI Group plc continned

5.1. Revenue recognition valuation of uabilled revenue ()

Key audit
matter
description

Revenue represents the far value of the considerancn recewvatye in respect of profess:onal services provided
duning the year

Hevenue 15 a sigmificant balznce within the income statement totalling £356,612.000 (20018 £317221.0001.
Unbuiled revenue inciuded within jrade and othar recevables 101&ls £64 379,000 (2018: £53,996,000) (See
note 150 the inancial stztements) The Group's accounting policy tor revenue s wncluded at 1.15 vathin the
accounting poiies and the unbled revenue element 15 also disciosed within the key sources of estimatan
urcenamiy within note 124 i the financial statemeants,

Tie untwlled revenue valuation process nvalves profiing the population of cient engagements ("matters™) and
applyng a senes of tests and parameters 1o identfy those matlers requinng a provision. There are also some
matiers valued at far value beng the amount expected to be recovered based on the gross carrying amount

i unbilled revenue, which could be bosed on agreed hourly rates. fixed fees or histong clent recovery rates
based on the previous 12 morniths of nihng. We theretore idenvfied as a key audit matter, 3 nsk of materisl
misstatermnent, whether due 1o frand o error, relating to the valuation of non-contingent untilled revenue which
15 valued on g e by hne basis through fee earner input Thes is because there is a higher degree of subjectivity

How the scope
of our aucht
responded to
the key audit
matter

nthis process o i

To assess the adeguacy of 1he valuation of the unbilied revenue balance, we disaggregated the untilied
revenue balance ard chalienged management’s assumphions specifically around the risk described above and
perfarmaag the foilowing procedurns.

- obtaned an understanding of the relevant conuols over the unbilled ncome valualion processes;

revieyved management’s pager which set out the application of the methodology;
- reviewed polcies adopled Ly management for consistent apphcation and compliance with IFRS panciples.

- 1lested the accuracy and completeness of management’s calculation of the year end unbilled income balance
ty reviewing 2ach of the inpuis,

comparad actual recovery rates for pnoc year undilled revenue balances in order to assess the accuracy of
managernent’s histoncal esumates,

perorrmed detailed substantive testing of valuations by reference o post year end biilings and/or
engagement fetters andfor discussion with legal siaff independent of the finance function;

— reviewed the presentaton and disclosure of unbilled income within the financial statements and checked to
'FRS standards

Key observations Wsa concluded that the juggements made by management in calculating the unbilled revenue are reasonable

based on ihe audt evidence obitained
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572, Adequacv of the provusmn for bad and doubtiul debts in resppct of chient recervables C)

7020 101

Kcy audit
matter
description

How the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

Key observations

Clent recenvables are & 5t qn heant elernent of he salance sheet iolailmq £108,72 JUD(' E) £86. 022 GO0}
The atowance for doubtfut receivables (otals £11.871 000 (Z018 £6.534,000) (See nate 130 the (inancial
slatemenis) The Group's eccounting policy for hnancial asseirs is included at 110 wathia the accounung policies
1n the fmancial statemenis and the allowance for doubtiul debis s also disciosed wathin the key sources

ol esturaton uncerlanty within nate 1.24 0 the financial siatements.

Management judgement is required in determining the tevel of provisioning reguired lor averdue
lrade recevables.
The key judgements are around the conunued appropnateness of management’s policy based on the

ageing and recovery trends of debit balances, as well as the completeness of any specidic provisions made.
Assessing the recoverability of this assetis 2 key audit matier and therefore focus is on the adequacy of the

_provision fer non-recovery -

To assess the adcquary of the recevables [:TO\HbIOﬂ ng pohcy we have performed the following
- reviewed managemenl’s paper which set out the apphcation of the methodology,
- obiawned an understanding of the controls ovor the billing oycle;

- challenged the adequacy of ihe provision by reference to the age and composition ¢f ihe individual chient and
seclor debis,

- re-performed management’s prowision calculations mcluding sampling and tracing the correct ageng of the
data behind the calculation and checking that the policy is bemng uniformily applied across all business units,

- performad detailed testng on a sample of tiade recervables by sending out debtor confirmztions, and

— pertormed detailed tesung on a sample of overdue trade receivables balances as al the year end for cash
recewved subsequently.,

We conciuded thal the allowance for doubn‘ul ceb.a provnsmn are appropﬂaio and reasondble based on the

cudit evidence obtamed.

5.3. Accounting for acquisitions @

Key audit
matter
description

There are a number of key judgementis in this area Assessing the fair value of the assets and babibiies
acquired, including any previously unrecognised intangibles 15 a key sudit matier The judgements around
acqusitions are noted within note 101N the financial staterments. The accounting trealment appled to the
consideration pal, wy parucular around whetha th s s treated as comipensation rather than conskleralion,
especially with regards to the acquis:tion made 11 Spain, 13 also a key area of judgement. Another key area
of judgement s the deiermuination of the acquisttion date, which is a relevant factar for acquisitons made
in Spain and the USA.

As noted above, a key judgerment relales 10 the datermination of acquisition date We challenged
management’s gssessments on aif acquis-tons compicted i the parnod and noted a difference n refation
to the Roquud ( oslas Duran S L P acquesiion, subsequenty carrected by managament

How the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

Ke\,r observations

To assess the ad(—'quacv Oi the sccourtting for dcguisihons we have performed the lollowing
—nvolved a tearn of valuaton specrlists 10 review Lhe valuation of intangiles,

- obtained an undersianding of relevant controls around accounting for acquisitions

- performed opening balance testing on a sample of balance sheat items,

~ performed detaded tesung un tha fawr value adjusiments posied by rmanagemertt by (racmg (o supporiing
dacurmentauen,

- reviewed management's considerations around determiration ol acquisiton dates,
- roviewed management's cansidecanons arowxd the sphit of consideration and compensaiion, and

- reviewed the presentanon and disclosure withun the hinancigl slaternenis of the: vanous BCQUILIIGNS.
Wc voncluded that accounung for FCLISILONS 15 Appropnate
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Indq)uldcnl Auditor’s report to the
members of DWI Group ple continued

5.4. Adequacy ot controls over the cash reconc:lntlon and uanoachon recordlng cycle (’)

Key audn For & ommess ol 15 size 3n;j secro”, the {ash Im mprm,ns and nesmbers of bank acr0un1~: w.lhm l:'lF G TOL
matter zre substantial The Group s subject o detaled rules over nandhng of Both chent and the groun’s cash as
descriptian & requirerment of Hs regulotion by the Sclotors Begulaton Authonty.

We have noted rom praviows years’ audits that 1he process and controls vatbun this area do not opgrate as
efleciively 35 they should and therefore this area 13 deemed o be a key audit matter and aiso a nsk of fraud

In the past we have made a number of iecommeandatons o relanon 1o the cash conticls n place
Management have implemsnted same of those recommendations and have improved the cash contiol
funciion dunng the year

The cash and cash eguvalents tatal £28.727000 {2019 10,827,000} as set outin Note 16 in the hnanaal
statements. The Group's accountng policy for non-denvaive financil nstruments 1s included at 17 within the
e accounting policies i the inancial statements.
How the scope  To assess the adequacy of cash reconcihation and | P OCPSoiﬂQ cycle, we have performed ihe 1OIEowmg
of our audit
responded to
the key audit — 1ested 1he reconcriaton of total cash per the nat batance o supporing documentation in the form ol bank

matter reconchations,

~ obraned an understanduy ol the ireasury cyche,

- performed sample testing on the reconclmg 1iems oy agreeing a sample of tems 1o supporhing
documentation:

- agreed tne bank balances ta the bank statement 31 the year end date;
— agreed the bank balances 1o the bank balance confirmatnian at the year end date; and

- evaluate implementation of improvements made 10 the cash contiol function
Key observatmn:, We concluded that the va?uﬂ of cash and cash equivalents are appropnate

We have continued making recommendations i relation to cash controls, specifically with regards to
improverments which are yet 10 be fully implermenied

6. 0ur application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We defing matenality as the magmiude of misstatermnent in ihe financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasanably knowledgeable peison would be changed or influenced. We use matenabty both in planiing the scope
of our audit work and in evalualing the results of our work,

Based on our professional judgemeni, we deterramed rogtenashty for the hinancial statements as a whale as follows

o Lrouptinencial statemenis . Parem compdwhng_n_o;-is_tm L
Materlallty £1.300,060(2079: 11 __?OO oo 500,000 (2089 f4800000
Basis for delermmmg 0.8% of revenue (2019 4 6% of adjusied 3% of net asgets (2% of total asselsl

materiality pre: tax profiu

Tius has been cagped al 55% of Group
performance materiaiity berg £500.060

Rationale for the Revenus s (he benchmark used Tor malznalty s The entily's primary operanon is 1o acl as

benchmark applied 115 considesed the cnbcal periarmance measure  the holding compdny of the Group The key
ol the Group and considered a stable meteic balances held are intercompany balances and
when compared 10 other rafevant benchmarks the investments bzlance. As such nel assels

\ have been taken as the benchmark for materiahiy
In the current vear, we have decided 10 revise

cur matenzlity benchmark from orolit belcre We have decided to increase the percentage
{ax to revenue Acquisilion actvily ang the by 1% toretlect the nature of the onbty.
clabel Covid-19 pandenuc have drven unusual

income sltatement itams such as gans on

bargam puichase and incieased cosls, resulting

inwcome siatement volatdny, speciiically in

relatien to oroft before tax, hance the change

2 & more stable meine
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6.2. Performance materiality

We set performance matenality at a tevel tower than matenahty
0 reduce tha probability that, in aggregate, uncareciad

and undetectad rmisstatements exceed the matenaliy for

the financiol staternents as a whole. Group performance
malteriality was set at 70% of group matenality for the 2020
audit {2019: 70%]1. In determiming gerformance maitenahiy,

we considered factors including our nsk assessment and cur
assessmert ol the group's overall conirol environrnent and

our past expenence of the audit, which has indicated a lower
number of corrected and uncorrected misstatements wenuhed
than i prior periods. There have been no matenal changes 0
the busingss and operations are maiure and stable

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed wath the Audit Committeg that we would repert

ta the Comnuttee ali audit differences in excess of £65,000
[2019: £59,000), as well as differences below that threshold that,
m our view, warranied reporting on qualitative grounds We also
report 1o the Audil Commutiee on disclosure manters that wa
ientified when assessing the overall presentation of the
finanwial staierments.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

2.1, ldentification and scoping of camiponents

Our Group audit was scoped by oblzinung an undzrstanding of
the Group and Hs envircnment, including Grouprwide contiols.
and assessing the nsks of matenal misstatement at the Gioup
level Based on that assessment, we focussed our Group audil
scope pnmarly on the audit werk of three components bewg
the UK, Australia and the newly acquired business in Span.
The components are spht by geographies for the purposes

of our review of scoping.

The Group audit 1eam undertook the audit for the UK
component. la addinon, speched procedures weere carmed
Gul by @ componant audit team based i Spaimn. The Austahan
componeni was Subject (o 3 tull scope audi 1o component
matenality by a team based in Austraha. The remaining
componants were subject 10 & review at Grougs level

The eudned UK components represent the Grouw's pincipal
tusiness unii and account 1or /5% of the Group's revenue

ard 98% of the Group's net ésseis The Spamish ane Ausirahan
comgononis represent 8% of the Group's revenue ard 24% of
ihe Group's nat assets The remaming commponeni subject Lo
seskion reviews represented 16% of the Group s revenue and
1€% of the Groug's net assets

Warking with other auditors

For the Spanish and Austrahan components, the group audi
teamn attended, remolely, the planning and close meetings and
reviewed documentation of the findings from ther waork, along
WIth ICMaming n continuaus cammuncation throughout the
cowrse of the audn The parent company s tocated in the LK
and s eudited directly by the group audht team. At the group
level, we also tested the consohdation procass and carried gut
analyiical procedures 1o confrmm our concluson that there were
no signiticant nsks of matenal misstaternent of the aggregated
hinancial information of the remaining components not subect
to audi of specified account balances.

8.Qther information

The direciors are responsible for the other information. The other
miormation comprisas the information inciuded in the annual
reporct, other than the linanaal statements and our auditor’s
report therega,

Our gpmion on the hnancial statements coes not cover the
olher informabion and, except to the extent oiherwise explicitly
stated N our repoit, we 4o nct express any form of essurance
conclusion thereon.

In connecton wath aur audii of the financial statements, our
responstbiiy 1s 1o read the other information end., 1n doing s0,
consider whether the other informaiion 1s matenally mconsisien:
wath the financial stalements or our knowledge obiained in the
aucht or otherwise appears 10 be matenally misstated

It we denufy such maienzal inconsisiencies or apparent rmateial
misstaternents, we are required 1o delermine whether theres
a material misstatement int the fingnoaal statements or a material
musstatement of the other informaton., If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstaterment of trus other information, we are reguved

10 report that fact

In tivs context, manars that we are soealically required 1o
report 0 vou as uncorrected matenal missiatemants of the
olhecinformannn wmickide where we conclude that:

- Fair, balanced and understandable - the staiement qven
by the direciars that they cons.der the annual report and
haanc stelenents akon as 5 whole s {air, baanced and
understandable asd provides the iwformaticn necessary for
shargholders o casess the group’s posttion and perormance,
husmess maode! and strategy, is matenally inconsisiant with
our knowledge obtamedin the audin, o
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Independent Auditor’s report to the
members of DWFE Group ple continued

- Audit conumittee reporting ~ the secuon descnbing the
wark of the audit cormmitlee does not apprepnately address
mzllers communicated by us to the audil Ccemmutiee, or

Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code — the parts of the diueciors’ s1atement
reguired under the Listing Rules refaung 10 the company's
comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
coniaining provisions specilied for review by the auditor

n accordance waih Listaig Rule 8 8 1IR{?} do not property
disclose a departure from a relevant provision ot the LIK
Corporate Governance Code.

We hzve nothing ta report in respect of these matters.

9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities
slaternent the drectors are responsible for the preparation

of the financal statements and for being satsfied that they give
a wue end tar view, and for such mternal control as the direclors
delerming 1s necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from matenal misstatement. whether
due 10 fraud or ermror.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company s
abihiy to continue as & going concern, disclosing as appliceble,
matters related (g going concern and using the going cancern
basis ol accounting unless the directors einer intend 10 iquidate
the group cr the parent company or 1o Cease operalions, or have
no realisuc alternative but (o do so.

10. Auditor’s responsibifities for the audit of the

financial statements

QOur objeciives are 1o obiain reasonable assurance abowt
whether the financial statements as a whole sre {ree

frarm maetenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror,

and 1o 155ue an auditor’s report that inctudes our opnon,
Heasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
(UK} will always detect a maternial misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can anise from fraud or error and are considered
matenst Hf, indwidually or in the aggregate, they could réasonably
be expected 1o nlluence the econaomic deaisions of users t@ken
on the basis of these hnanaal siatements.

Detads of the extent 1o which the audit was cons-dered capable
of detecung iregulantes, including fraud and non comgplance
wilh faws and regulanons dre set out below.

Afuither description of our responsioilinies for the audit of

the fimancial statements s locaied on the FRCs website at
www e org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This descnption forms
part of our auditor's repon.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable

of detecting irregulanities, including fraud

W denufy and assess the nsks of marenal missialement of
the financal statements, whether dug 10 fraud or error, end then
design and perform audit procedures respensive (0 1hese nsks,
including colaining audin evigence that is sulficiert ana
apurepraie 10 prowds a basis for our opanion.

1.1 identifying and assessing potential risks related to
irregutarities

indenufying and assessing nsks of matenal missiatemant in
respect of ireqgulanues, including fraud and non-camphance wiin
laws and regulatons, we consdered the fallowing

— the nature of the industry and sector, conurol eviignment and
business performance including the design of he groups
remunerabion policies, key dnvers lor directors’ remuneration,
boros levels and perfarmance tacgets,

- results of our enquines of management 'egal counsel and the
audit cornmitiee atbout ther own dentficaticn and
assessment of the nsks of wregulanues,

any maters we identied having ottaned and reviewed the
group's documentation of therr pokces and procedures
refaung to

= denuiying, evaluatng and cormplyng vaih laws and
regulations and whetier they were aware of any instances
of non-complance;

detecting and responching 1o ihe rnisks of fraud and whether
they have knowledge of any acival, suspecred o alieged
fraud;

the internal controls estathshed o mitgate nsks of fraud
ar non-compliance with laws aad regule bars,

~ the matters discussed aimorg the audil engagement team
inctuding significant camponent audil tgams and involving
relevant internai speciaihsts, ncludng tax, valualions and 11
specialisis regarding novw and where fraud might occur it the
financial statements and any gotenual ind-cators of fraud

As g result of these procedutes, we consicered ihe
opporiumties and incentves that may exist withun the
orgamsauon for fraud and identfied the greatest patental
for fravd in ihe fallowing areas the adequacy of the piowisian
for bad and doubtivl debts i respect of chent recevables.,
accounting ior acquisiions, revenue recogniion: veluation of
unbiled revenus and the sdequacy of conuigls over the cash
reconciliation and transachon recorchng cycle I comimaon
waith all audins under 15As (UK) we aie als50 required to
perform specific procedures 1o respond 10 the nsk of
managemant overnde

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and reguiatory
framework 1hat ihe gioup cpelaies in, focusing an provisions
of those laws and regulations that had & drect etlect on the
deterrmingtion of matenat amounts and disclosures in the
financial siaterments The key laws znd requigions we
considerad i this context inciuded the UK Compamnies Act,
Lisuing Rutes and relevant tax and pensions tegistation

In addition, we considered provesions of other laws and
regulations tFat do oGt kave a direct etfect on the firancial
stalemants but comphance with whch may be fundamenat
1o the grous’s abihly 10 cperate or 10 avois a maienal penalty
ihese included the Grouns requlalory solvency requiremaents
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11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As aresult of perfarming the above, we dennfied revenue
recognition: valuation of unbilled revenue, the adequacy of

the provision for had and doubitiul debis in respect of client
receivables, accounung for acquisiicns and the adequacy of
controls gver the cash reconcihanon and transaction recording
cycle as key sudit matters related 10 the potenual risk of fraud
The key audit matiers sechion of our repont explains the maters
in more detail and also describes the specific procedures we
performed in response 1o those key audit matiers.

In addition 1o the above, our procedures 1o respond to nsks
identified included the following:

- reviewang the financial statement disclosures and testing
to supporting documentetion to assess compliance with
provisions of releventlaws and reaulatons described as
having a direct effect on the financial statements;

erquiring of Management, the audit commiitee and in-house
legal counsel concerning actual and potential liigatien
and claims,

- performing analytical procedures 10 Wdennfy sny unusual or
unexpacied relationships that may indicate risks of matenal
misstaternent due to fraud,

- reading minutes of meetngs ol those charged wath
govemance; and

in addressing the nisk of #raud through management override
of controls, 1esting the approprnateness of journal entnes angd
otheér adjustments, assessing whether the wdgements made
N making accounting estimates are indicauve ol a potental
ias, and evaluating the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside \he normal course

ol business.

We also communicaied relevant identiied laws and regulations
and patential fraud nsks 1o gl engagement team members
including internal specialists and significant componant audit
tearns, and remained alert 10 any indications of fraud or nan-
comphance with {aws and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory
rcquiremcnls

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In cur apinion the part of the direCtors’ remuneration report 10

ke audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course
of the audn

- the informauen givan m (1 stralegic repoit and the drectors’
repori for the Nrancial year foe which the financial stalemenis
are prepared 15 consistent with the financel statements: and

- the strategic report and the dicclers report have Deen
prepared In accordance with apphcable legal requy ements

I the: ight of the kngwledge and undersianding of the qioun
and 1the parent company and ihar envitonmeant obtained in
the course of the dudt, we hgve not wWectubud any matenal
MUSSIeMEents I the sialegie tepni of the drsciors’ ropori

13. Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

131, Adequacy of explanations received and

accounting records

Under ihe Compeamies Act 2000 we are required 1o 1epoit 10 you
i n aur opimion

- we hiave not receved all the infarmation and explanations we
raquire for Gur audit; or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
patent cormpany, of ieturms adequate for our qudit have not
heen tecewved from branches not visned by us, o

- the parent company hinancial statements are not N agreement
with the accounting records and retuins

We have nothing Lo reportin respect of these matters.

13.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also requiied 10 report
if i our opion cenans disclosues of directors’ remuneration
have not been made o the pac! of the direciors' remuneranon
report 1o be audited 1§ not i agreement with the acceuntng
records and returns

We have nothmg 1o report in respect of these maiiers

14. Gther matters

14.1. Auditor tenure

Deloite LLP was onginally apponted auditcr of GV LLP

the previous parent entity of the group, or the year ended

30 Aprit 2008 and subsequent hinancisl penods. Following the
IPQ and the incorperation of OWF Group plein 2019, Deloitte
LLP were retamed as auditors at the recommendauonr of the
audit committee The period of 101al uninterrupted engagement
wath DWFE Group plc, covenng the financial years ending 30 Aprl
2019 and 30 Aprd 2020, 1s two yaars, and as auditor of DWF LLP
tefore that1s i3 years.

14.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional
report to the audit committee

Qur audit opinions consistent vath the addisional report 1o the
audit commiltee we are requred 1o provide n acceirdance with
1545 (LK)

15. Use of our report

This 15 made solely 1o the company's membeis, &5 a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 ol the Companses Act
2006 Dur audit work hias been undertaken so thal we nught
stale 1o the company’s members those maiters we are reguired
1o s1ate (o theman an auditor's report and for no other purpase
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept o
assume responsitility 1o anyone other than the company and
the company’'s moembers as a body, far cur audit work, for this
ceport ot lor the gpaons we nave farined

Peter Saunders {Senior statutory auditor)
For and i behalt of Detonte LLP

Statutory Audior

L oo,

Lited Kinndom

7 Geptember 2020
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 30 Apnl 2020

2020 015
] o mews £ to00
Revenue N ) 356,612 317220
Recoverable expenses 3 (59,381} {19.08%)
Netrevenue o - T T T T a3l 368036
_Du'ect COsis _ : B ) {154,997} (174 707
Gross profit ' T T qae3a 143429
Adrmimisirative expenses — gther {116,789) {125 8881
Adminisirative expenses —~ Irade recewvables smpairment - i 13,295)  _{2.376)
Dperating profit - ) o 4 22150 15185
{ Adjusted operating profit ' ' T 3918 34,301
Impatrment - 4 {382} -
Amortisavon of imangible assets - acguved 4 {1,510} -
'Depreciation and amortisation 4 [17.755] 15.365)
Gain on bargain purchase a 25.084 -
tlon-underlying items a {2632} 112,569}
Share-based paymenis expense e 4 essy 0 1200
Interest payable on leases 5 (2,047} -
Net linance expense 5 (1,905) 2.131)
“Profit betore tax ' ] T 898 13034
Taxauon ] B 3k2yy {138
Profit from continuing operatiorns 14,565 12,896
_Loss from discontinued operations N SR € 10§ E VA '}
Profit for the year 1?):258 12,184
Earnings from continuing operations per share attributable to the owners
of the parent:
Basicip) 8 5 4p 4.8p
Oiluted (pi g 5.3p 4.7p
Earnings from all operations per share attributable to the owners of the parent:
Basc {p} 8 3.8 4 5p
Diluted {p) ] 37n 4 5p

Motes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements Comparauve hgures have not been reststed tor
transition 10 IFRS 16

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 30 Apnl 2020

He-presented

wnote 1231

2020 2013

o o {604 £0co

Profit tor the year 10,268 17,184

ftemns that are or may be reclassified subsequentty 1o the moone 3000t

Foregn cuirency translation dilferences — foreign operatiors L B . {1.435) 180
Total other comprehensive [expensel/income for the year, net of income tax [1,435) 180
Total comprehensive income for the year 28.833 12.364

faies 1o 21 are an mtegra! part of these consalidated finanaial sratemenis Cormpaiauve iigures have not heaa resizted lor
iiansien 0 IFRS 16
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As al 30 Apnil 2Q20

2020 2019

o ) _ Notes £000 £7000
Non—currenrt;;s;ets T T )

Intangnblie gssets end goodwill 17 50,654 4,507
Property, plani and equipment i3 83,775 14,032
Invesiments 14 254 254
Trade and other recewables 5 11,329 152
Delerred 1ax asset ) ~ _ o i 3204 933
Tot;l nonvcurat assets T T 149,306 19,912
Current assets

Delerred tax asset 22 228 -
Trade and other recevables 15 207,707 164,168
_Cesh at bank and w hand . w212 12,912
TJotal current as;é?i ST 238,147 177080
Total assets 388,453 196,992
Current liabilities o o -
Trade and cther payables 1 79,833 53,995
Current 1ax habiliies 2,139 418
Deferred consideration 8,982 1,625
Lease habikues 18 12,981 -
Other interest-beanng losns and Lorrowings e 7.25% 4.0238
Prowvisions 0 1,252 1,252
Amounis due to members of partnerships in the Group - 50 35,862 38071
Total current liabilities ) 148,298 104,389
Non-current fiabifities

Trade and cther payabies 7 - 10,072
Deferred 1ax hability 22 8,884 -
Deferred consideralion - 208
Lease habilities 18 71.697 -
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 12 88,815 39,196
Provisions - L T 1.562 1,329
Total non-current liabilities 170,958 50.80%
Total liabilities 319.256 155,194
“Met assets o 69,197 471,798
Equity

Share capital 22 3,246 3,006
Share premmum 3 88,610 63,167
Teeasury shares 23 120} -
Uther reserves 24 5,861 (1,323]
Accumulsled losses - _ 24 128,500} (23,046}
Total equity 63,197 41,798

Notes 1 to 31 are anintegrzl part of these consoldated financial statements. Comparative figures bave not been testated for

rransiuen 10 1FRS 16,

The conselidated hinancial statements of DWF Group pic {company number 11561584) were aoproved by the board on 7 Septernber

2020 and signed on s behali by.

Sir Nigel Knowles
Group Chuel Excoutive Oticer

Chris Stefam
Chiet Fmancial Ofhicer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equuty

Year ended 30 Aoril 2020

There-besen

Share Share Teaary Merger peymenis Loy vlation
capial pIEMIUrT shoies teserve resene renerve £aIN:NGS
ihate 231 Note 22 New 231 Hloe 243 Note 24 iHote 24) thdate 241 Toret cquicy
£'000 000 £:000 000 roce £ 000 000 000
At 1 May 2018 ) o 2,385‘-7 - 123_'85___ - _—Hm;’.’l) 5,_4%-%_573-'367
Impeact of IFRS 9 tanstion - - - - - - {25100 [2.510)
Impact of IFRS 15 wansiton B - - = e e EE 987
Restated at 1 May 2018 2385 -~ 12.389) - (71 3964 3.793
Profit for the year - - - - - 12,184 12,184
Exchange rate difference o - S wo_ - M0
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 180 12.184 12,364
Reserves transierred 10 amounts due to
members of partnerships n the Group - - - - - {42.,537) (42,537)
Defened lax a0sing on group restuctue - - - - - - 836 636
Issue of share capital 615 63,367 - - - - - 63782
Treasury share sale - - - - : - 2,707 2,707
Share based payments - - - - 3083 . - 1,053
At 30 April 2019 3.000 63,167 2385 1.053 9 {23.046] 41,798
Share-based T (Accurmuleted
Share Share Tieasuiy Metger peymems  Tanslavon lossest
capilat peertium shaies Teserve 18581 v 1250 ve cuTgS
INote 23} {Neie 231 INC1e 23} INote 24) tMo1e 243 iMole 24} tNote 24 Toral equity
€060 £000 £7000 7000 £one oo £°000 £000
‘At 1 May 2019 - 3000 63167 o 123850 1053 9 1Z304BF 41,798
Adjustment from the adoption of IFRS 16
{ro1e 1.2%) — — - - - = _____(”5,7'_1§}77 @,71 5)
Restated at 1 May 2019 3,000 63,167 - Tzz85 1083 3 (28761 36.083
Profit for the year - - - - - - 10,268 10,768
_Exchange rate difierence - - - - - {1,435} - 11439
Totaf';:h;mprehensive income - - - - - - {1.435) 10,268 8.833
Treasury shares - - vidd) - - - - (203
Issug of share capital 746 25,443 - - - - - 75,689
Dividends paid - - - - - - 981 {9,811}
Share-based payments - - - - 8,619 - - 8,619
Tax on share based paymenis - _ i - - - (196] (196)
At 30 Aprit 2020 ' 3246  88.610 {20} {2385 9,672  {1,426) (28500] 69.197

Noies 110 31 are anintegral part of these consoldaied fimancial statements
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended 30 Aprit 2020

|

2020 2013
o N L . et _ fooo £000
Cash flows fram o";;;:ratia;;citri;ilies
Cash gencrated from/lused ini operations belore adjusting nems 29 24,158 (10,545]
Cash used to setile non-underlying tems o o __ws0y (19,289
Cash generated from/{used i;}_operations T 13,657 (24,834]
Interest paid (4,192} (2,2054
Toxpag o a0
Net cash generated from/{used inj operating activities (5,158) {32,289
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquesiton of subsidiary, nel of cash acquired (3,853} -
Acquisiton of subsidiary, deferred consideration {2,858) {1,800
Purchase of property, plant and cquipment (3,520) {4,186}
FPurchase of ather intangite assets L ) o o 4w D 222)
Net cash flows used in investing activities o {14,348} 17220)
Cash flows from financing activities i
Issus of ordwnary shares, net of 1ssue cosis (57) 73,350
Treasury share sale - 2,707
Dradends paid (9,811) -
Proceeds from borrowsngs 73,535 80,220
Repayment ol borrowings {24,913} {89,175}
Repayment of lease liahilities (12,654) -
Movement In supplier payments facility {1,973) (2,646}
Interest received 456 293
Capital contributions by Mermbers 5,938 4,732
_Repayments o former Members i _ (3.3861 (231241
Net cash flows fram financing activities 27,135 46,127
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent 17.943 6,618
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 10,822 4,228
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents (38) (24}
Cash and cash équivafeﬁts at thie end of year 16 28,727 10.827

Motes 1o 31 are anainteqral part of these consohdated fimancial statements
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements

Year ended 30 Apnl 2020

1. Accounting policies

1.1. General information

[WE Group ple fthe "Company 115 a public inied comparny
incorporated on 10 September 2018, domiciled in the United
Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 and raegistered m
England, The reqistered office 1 20 Fenchurch Straet, London,
EC3M 3AG.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings (together referred w as the Group’) and the nature
of the Group's operations are Se1 cul N the Strateqic report

The entire ssued share capital of the Company was admitted io
the prermium histing segment of the offrcial st of the Financial
Conduct Authority and to trading on the Man hMarket of the
London Stack Exchange on 15 March Z019

The functionat currency of the Group 1s considered 10 be Briigh
pounds steriing because that is the currency of the pnmary
ecanomuc environrment in which the Group operates The Group
financial statcments are also presented in Briisn pounds
sterthng Foreign operations are included in accordance with the
policies set out Helow.

For the year ending 30 Apnl 2020 the following ssbhaidiary
undertakings of the Company were enutled 1o exempnaen from
audit under 34794 of the Companies Act 7006 relaung
subsidiary undertakings:

Ragistration number

Subsidiary name

DWF Cornected Services Group Limied 10826005
DWF Connected Services Holdings Lumitad 0745072
DWIF Costs Limited 10754855
DWF Advocacy Limited 0780559
DWF Resource Limited 11271
DWEF Claims Limited 10586109
DWF Adjusting Limiied 10586114
DWF Forensic Limited 10742670
DWF Ventures Lirniled 10748685
DWF Company Secretanal Services [ immted 04176234
DWF Connecied Services Limited 11552915
Greyfern Law Limited 06666404
DWF (Nerthern Ireland) LLP NCOM393
Minderest UK Limited 10685700
DWEF (TG} Limited 10568838

1.2. Basis of accounting
The Group financal staterments consolidate thasa of the
Company and ils subsidiary undarakings.

The consohdated financial statements have peen prepared in
accordance with Intgrnational Financial Beporing Standards
{IFRSY, ncluding Internavonal Accouming Swendards CIAS™Y and
nterpretanons 1ssued by the IFRS Interpietauons Comnmuities
{"1FRS 1CY apphcable to compamies reporming undor (FRS, and as
adopted in the £UL ond i accofdance waith the Companies At
7006 as apphcable ¢ companies using IFRS

The accounung poiicies set out below have, unless otherwise
statad, been apphed consisiently 10 all penods presentad in the
Grou fmancial staiements The excephion o this siateiment 1
the application of 1FRS 16 which became efective on 1 January
2019 and adopied by the Group on a prospechive bhass from

1 Moy 2019

The finazncial siatements have been prepaied on the
mistorcal cosi basis except where the IFRS requices an
aliernative lrealment.

Subsidiary and partnership undertakings

Substhary end paninership undesiakings are entlies controlfed
ty the Groug. The Group controls an entity when s exposed
tc, of has nghis to, vanable returns from s Involvement wath
the entity and has the ability to aflect those returns through ns
power over ihe enuty. In assessing control, the Group skes inio
consideration poienual voling nghts. The acquisition date s the
date on which coniral (s transierred to the Group and
deconsaldated from the date control ceases. The hinancial
miformation of subsidearias and subsidiary underiakings s
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that contol commences unlil the date that contro! ceasas

Transactions ehminated on consolidation

Inira-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
inceme and expenses ansing from intra-group transaclions, are
chmmated. Unrealised Iosses are elminaied in (he same way as
unrealised gains, but 0nly to the exteni that there s no ewidance
of imparment

Business combinations )

Business combinalions are accounted for using the acquisition
method as at the acquisition date, which 15 the date on which
contral is transferred 1o the Group.

Co 11 March 2079, the Company acguired the entire share
capital of DWF Holdings Limited, its subsidhanes and all related
undertakings under comman contral. -

The restructure was a transaction under commaon control snd
theretore autside of the scope of IFAS 3 As such, management
have elecied, as perminted under 1AS 8, to adopt the Group
reconstruction provisions of FRS 102.19.27 'Group
reconstructions’ from FRS 102.

in 1the previous financial year. the financial statements were
prepared using merger accounting principles {applicable 1o
Group reconstructions) set out in FRS 102 Section 19 in order
to meel the overnding requirernents under section 494 of the
Compames Act 2006 tor the finanoial statements to presant
a irue and farr view Under rnerger accounting the results

of the Group enities are combinad from the beginning

ot the comgparative period before the merger occurred
{ncome siaterment and statermnent of financial posiuan
cormparatives are restated an a combined basis and adjustments
made (0 achueve consistency of accounting principles.

Anerger reserve olathng £2 385 000 s included vathne the
consohdated statement of changes in equity following the
adopron of these panaiples which have gven nse to the
following changes.

1 Share capnalis recognised in the prior yCar comparsion

72 Mermbeis remunerabion charged as an expense s recogmised
1 the consoligated income statement

3 Arnounts due to members of paitnerships in the Group s
recognised as a cuirent liabifity 1n the consolidated siatement
of financal posimon
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Foi acguisitons on of after 1 May 2015 fwhich s the date of
transion 10 MRS, the Groug measures goodell 21 the
acquisiton date as

- the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus

- the recognised amount of any non controlling interests in the
acquiree, plusg

- the fair value of any existing equity interest in the acguiee
iess

- the net recognised amount {generally fair valuet of the
idenufiable asseis acqured angd habilies assumed

When the excess 1S negative, a bargain purchase gan s
recognised immediately in the incomie statement.

Costs related 10 the acquisition, othar Than those assocrated
with the issue of debt or equity secuntuies. are expensed
asincurred.

Any contingent consideration payatile i1s recognised at farr
value at the acquisition date.  the contingent consideration

is classified a5 equily, 1L 1s not re-measured and settlement

is accounied for within equity Gtherwise, subsequent changes
Lo the far value of the conuagent consideration ate recognsed
N the income statement.

Acquisitions prior to 1 May 2015 {date of transition to IFRS)
IFRS 1 grants certain exempuons from the full regurements of
IFRS in the ranswtion penad. The Group elected not to restate
business combinalicns that took place pnor to 1 May 2015

In respect of acquisiiions pacr 1o 1 May 2015, goodwill 15
included at 1 May 2015 on the basis of its deemed cost, which
reprasants the amount recarded under UK GAAF which was
broadly comparable except that only separable inlangibles were
recognised and goodwill was amortised. On transition,
amorusation of goodwill ceased as required by IFRS 1

1.3. Going concern

The Dirgclors have assessed the going concern basis adopted
by the Group 10 the preparation ol the consalidated froranaial
statemenis, taking into account the current financial posion

of the Group including our financing arrangements, the business
model at the tme of approving thas report and the uncertan
environment doe 1o the impact of COVIR-19. The Dwectors’
assessment was over the penod 10 30 September 2021

taking account of the potartal impact of the prncioal nsks
documented in the Strategic Report and accepung that winlst
the COVID-19 pandormic s ongoing, there are extemai factos
that could affect Group trading that are difficult 1o predict wiih &s
much confidence as would have been the case prepandenuc

The Group expenenced a matenal impact from COVID-191n the
final quarter of the year, seeng revenue fall away suddenly and
1o an unprecedenied degree due 1o a number of lactors cavsed
by COVID-19. This impact matenally reduced profit eapectations
for £ Y20 33 the Aprd yearend comaided with the peak \mpact

of e pandemic, and L wwas not possible ¢ miigate the qcome
statement or cash impact of COVHD- 19 due to the fead-time
raguired 1o reduce costs and miobulise operaticnal innaives
siound working capiial manageanent lnesponse o ths inpacl
¢ number of achons were taken w protect hiquidity, access o
funding and ngarierm profe proteciion.

- Financial covenants wetre reviewed and 11 was agreed with
the: banking syndicete, with whor the Group has stong
relationships, 1o relax the EBITDA 1o net debt covenant (the
loverage covenant) from 1.5 tmes 10 2 umes on the Apnl and
July tesung detes, and 175 times on the October 20 and
January 21 1esung date, and back to 1.5 times EBITOA by
Aprd 21,

- An addiwonal £315m conungency BCF fachty was pui i place,
for un 1w July 2021 {with an additional six month extension
avorable 1o the Company), 1o provide exira funding should
there bie any further adverse impact on working capita
This faciity has not been drawn and is not envisaged (o be
required based on cutrent mode!hing assumptions.

Cost reduction measures were agieed and executed to
sacwe F15m of cost savings in FY21 1o remove excess
capacity from the business as a resuli of lower activity levels
dug 1o COVID19

Operatonal initiztives were launched 1o improve lackup
managemeant and reduce warking capital consumption by
smprowing bilbng and colleclion processes.

t

Whilst no stat were turfoughed under the UK government
scheme, the Group availed itsell of a number of permitted tax
deterrals made available by HMRC which will be repaid over
the course of 2021,

The actions above were a prudent reaction 1o a highly unusual
snuauon due 10 the sudden and severe impact of COVIO-19

thet mpacted G4 of FY20. The timing of the COVID-19 impact
fotlowed a period of heavy investment whereby capital had been
deployed on the strategic acquisition of RCD i Spamn
{Decernber) and Mindcrest {January} - both acquisiions
continue 1o pertorm well and serve as g differentiator in the legal
sector, These acquisitions were progressed with the anticipation
that the tradrmionally strong final quarter of the year would
replenmish the cash deployed and generate sufficient EBITDA

lo keep the leverage covenant within more normal parameters.
Under more typical ciicumstances, the COVIO-19 impact, whiist
sigrfcant, woufd nol have necessitated such rmatenal actons
arcund hquidhty and covenants i particular, and the Directors are
of the view that 38 trading normalises FYZ27 wall transitron the
bhusiness back to a lower level of borowings and leverage

Banking faciities, which in addition to the conungency facility
and vanous ancilary facihities, inctude a roling credit facility of
£80m that matures m Jenuary 2027 (with an additionat one year
extension avalabiz o the Company to January 2023) are
conswdered 1o be sutficrant for the Group’s purposes based on
curnrent projecuons. 1tis assumed that these facilities vall be
renewed successfully in 2021 The leverage covenant is set at
15 umes EQITOA from Aprid 21 onwards and ihe Graup expecis
ic oparate comforntabily wiihin this parsmeter for the forecast
peood, The olher covenants, bemng maximum net debt of

1T wnmes equity, mirurnum 4 nmes interesi cover, WIP and
debiors beng a minmum of 2 times net debt and the number
ol members in the group remaining sbove 180 are ali projecied
1o be fully comphant vath significant headraorm The directors
consider short term cash llows are mondored en e monthly
Lasis. Allresulls and forecasts confun full covenant compl-ance,
aid suff.cient resources 1o setle habibues as thoy fall due.
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Consolidated notes (o the financial statements continued

1. Accounting policies continued

Base case budget assumpuons for FY21, and mediam term
modelimg assumpuons lor FY22 and beyond, reflect that the
Group vl operate in comphance wilh covenants and with
suffivient cosh and access 10 banking facikties 16 meet all
abhigetions as they {alt due. The timing of the F Y20 peelimaary
annual results annguncement being moved 1o 8 Seotember has
given the Directors visibility ot trading perfarmance ang cash
flows for May 10 August and both prohit and cash genarzhon
have improved since the 04 COVID-19smpact It has also been
possible  assess the mpact $o {ar, of the mingatng actions
outhned above The Direciors are of the view that the stronger
than expected trading performance in recent months and she
avallatnlity of additional cash and cost miligations 10 the event of
further headwinds give confidence in the ongoing wvigbility of the
Group Mitigatons available to the Group nclude further cost
cutting measures including bonus paymen's, deterral of cenan
outllows, and rewview of the dividend policy and reassassmient of
capiial expenditure

The going concera assessment considers business plans,
funding ang ligquidity requirements as well as sensitivity analysis
o account for a reasonable worst case scenano Al indicators
show fuft covenant compliance after taking into account
mitigating aclions that the Group would 1ake n such a scenario.
The Group's current position and pnncipsal nsks have been
considered, with those nsks set out in the Strateqc Report
These nsks have been considered ndvidually and 0 aggregate,
and with reference 10 Group strategy and exiernal factors such
as COVID-19 and adverse economic conditons. In assessing
gong the Group the Directors considered different scenarios
anid perfaormed sensitivity assessment. These scendnos arid
sensitivities ncluded a reduction of revenue and working capiial.
These scenanos and sensitivities did not indicate a rmiigated
ressonable worst case scenaro that requires any

enhanced gisciosure.

Whilst the impact of COVID-1S, and the nsk of tuture disrupticn,
couid potentiaily be matenal the Cireclors consider the Toilowing
characlensics of the tegsi sectlar and the Group nstuctive in
1ormmg thetr conciusions on QOH\Q concern”

- The angoing proftability of the busimess in FY20. generaiing
£22m ot Adjusted EBITDA despiie the severe (4
COVID-19 impact

1

The annuily and counter-cychical nature of certain GrisIons and
services such 3s Insurance and Liigation

Low exposure 1o sectors more severely impactad by COVID-19.

The abtlity to flex the acauisition stralegy 10 allow cash 1o
replenishin the business after the trming of COVID-19
exacerbated the stretch on cash from two racent
strateqic acauwsihions

The avarlabiity o mubigahng achors 1o conirol Costs

— A strong rglationshy waih the Group's Danking syndiLate who
continue 1o provide facilities winch ensure ongaing hawditg
with imatenal heagroom

Whilst the Group has no currznt olan 10 charge the use of iy
ical eslale poitiaho the expenence of agile working a2 part of
our COVID13 response may give GPROHUMILES (G revicw
offce space i the fuiure

Operational interventons being implermentiad 16 improve
waerking capital performance, with the aim of reducing lockup
and therefore net debt

The Directors theretore consider that the business modetis
appropnately robust, and that there are sufficient mikgating
actions avariatle to the Board, that the Group s suitebly resihent
1o dieal with the crystalisation of key rsks antfor adverse
econutmic condinons  (On this hasis, the Directors bave

a reasonabite expectation that the Group will continue as

a going concern and meet all is habiies as they fall due

1.4, Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
respective functional currencies of Group entiues at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transoction
Meonetary assets and habilities genominated in foreign
currencies at the statement of financial position date are
retransiated to the functional currency at the fareign exchange
rate ruling at that daie. Foreign exchange differences ansing on
translation are recognised in the consalidated income statement
with administrative expenses. Non-monelary assets and
habiities that are measured in terms of histoncal costin

a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date af the transaction.

The assets and habiliies of toreign operations, including
goodwiil and farr value adjustments arising on consohdaton,

are translaled to the Group's presentational currency, at foraign
exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial posiven date.
The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are trznslated
al an average rate for the year where this rate approximates 1o
the toreign exchange rates cuting at the daies of the transactons

Exchange differences arising from this translation of foreign
operations are reported as an itern of ather comprehensive
income and accumulated in the iranslation reserve.

1.5. Alternative performance measures ("APMs')

The Group uses APMs 10 assess the financial performance of
the business alongside statutory measures. These measures are
non-IFRS measures. Further explanations of the APMs can be
found in the Strategic Report and in note 2.

1.6. Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items are nen-trading, non-cash or one-cff 1iems
disclosed separately in ihe consolidated income statement
where the guanturn, nature or volatiity of such items sre
considered by the management [0 clherwise distort the
underlying performance of 1he Group. The foliowing are included
by the Group inits assessment of non-underlying itcms

- Transaction expenses associated with acquisitons

- Purchase price relating 1o acquisiions tiealed as remunerauGn
- Fxpenses directly associaed with COVID-19

~ IPO-related expenses

1.7 Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivaive inancal Inslruments comonse investments,
lrade and uiher recenvabiles, cash and cash equivalents, lcans
and borrowings, ard (rade and other payables

investmentis
Othernvestiments are held at far value thvougn profit or loss
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Trade and other receivables

Trade and cther recevabies are recogmsed wntolly af fan value
Subsequent 1o inal recogningn, they are mezsured at
amorused cost using the effecive interesi method, less any
MAPHIMENT 05505, a1iSINgG from expected Credit 195585

Unbifled revenue

Services provided 10 chents, which at the pencd end date have
not been billed, are recogmsed as unlled revenue and included
in trade and other recevables

Unbitled revenue is valued at seling price less provision tor any
foreseeable underrecovery when the outcone of ihe matier
can be assessed with reasonable cenanty Provewon 13 made tor
suct factors as histongcal recoverability raies, conungencies, and
agreements with chents and amounts considered necoverasle
by fee earners

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents compnse cash balances and cash
deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayabie on demand and
torm an integral part of the Group's cash management are
ncluded as a component of cash and cash cquivalents for the
pumose oniy of the statermneanrt of cash flows

Trade and other pavables

Trade and other payables are recogmised inibally atl {ai value.
Subsequent o mital recognition they are measured at
amorbised cost using the eftective interest meihod

Interest-bearing horrowings

Interest-beanng borrowings are recogmised mvnally at tar
value less attributable transaction cogts Subseguent 1o
izl recogrition, inlerest-beannyg borowangs are slated al
amortised cost using the clective interest method, less any
impawrment I6sses

1.8 Property, plant and equipment
Propeity, plant and eguioment 1s sialed al cost less
accumulated depreciauion and accumulated imgarment losses.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounied Jor as separate items
ol property, plant and eguipment.

Depreciation is charged to the Incoma slatgment on a straight-
hne basis over the estimated usefud lves of each pail of an dern
of property, plant and eguipment The estmaiad usetul ives are
as iollows

Cver remairng rerm of the ‘zase
Cver remaning term of the ease

- Right of use asset
— Leasehcid imgrovements

— Computer equiprneni 4 years
- Dffice equipment and
ftures and fitings 510 veers

Deoreciation methods, useful hves and residual values are
revigwed 41 each statement of financisl posmon daie

1.9 Intangible assets and goocdwii

Gaogwill

Goodwall s staterd af cost lgss any scoumulated wmparrmient
losses Guodwalbis altocated o cash-gens rating tmls and s
not arnortised but is 1ested annually {or unooeent Heler 1o
further detadhin note 130 that discusses e mathadaiogy 4nc
polcy for @ssessng impairmant

Custoemer relationships

Tre Group recagnises acquired customer relationships at faw
value less any accurmuiated wmpairment iosses Customer
relatignshups are amortised an a straight-hne basis over the
estmated usetu! ko,

Brand

The Group recognises acquired brand intzngibles at far value
less any sccumulated wnpairment losses. Brands are amorused
on a straight-ine basis over the estimaied useful e

Saftware casts

Signilicant costs associaled wilth software development are
delerred and amartised on a straight-line basis over the pencd
ot their expected henelin.

Capitalised development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recogrised in the inceme
statement 35 an expense 15 ncurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitahised if the
product of process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group intends 1o and has the techmcal abibty and sulficient
resources 10 compleie development, future economic benetits
are probable and if the Group can measure reliably the
expendiiure atiribulable to the inlangible asset during its
developrment Development activities involve g plan or design
for the produchon of new or substantially improved products
or processes. The expenditure capiizlised includes the cost

of maienals, direct labour and an apgpropriate proportion of
overheads and capiiabsed borrowing costs. QOther development
expendilure is recognised in the income statement as an
expense 15 ncurrad Capitalised development expenditure 15
stated 8t cost less accumulated amorusation and less
accumulated impairment losses.

Amaortisation

Amortiszlion is charged 1o the income staterment on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible sssets
unless such Iives are indetinite. intangible assets with an
indefirte useful ife and goodwiil are systermatically tested for
impairment at each statement of financial positton date

Other mangible asseis are amortised from the date they are
avallable {or use The estimated useful fwes are as fullows.

— Customier relationships 10 years
- Brard 2 years
- Softwaie casts 4 years
- Capuahsed development costs 4 vears

1.10 Impairment

Financial assets (including receivables)

The Group recounises a loss allowance for expected credi
losses on mvestments in dett mstruments that are measurcd
at amarused cost or 2t FVTOCL wrade receivables and contract
assets. The amouni of expecied credit losses 15 updated al each
reporing daie to reflect changes i credii nisk smce il
recogmition of the respective financial instrurment

The Group recognises ifeume expected credit losses (FCLY Tor
rade recevables and coniract assets The expected credn
iozses on these fingnoal assets are estimatad usINg a Crovision
matnx based un the Group's mistoncal credit 1oss expelisnoe,
adijus:ed for factors that are specific 1o the debrors. gencral
economiz condiions and an assessment of both the current as
well a5 the loiecast drection of cordibons at ihe reporlng daie
weluding wme value of money where appiopnate
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

1. Accounting policies continued

For other hnancial instrumenis, the Group recogmises [fetume
ECL when there has heen a siombicant ncease in ciedn nsk
since mihal recogniion However, o ihe credit nisk on the
hranggl instrument hes nol increased sigmificantly since mitial
recognition, the Group measures the 10ss allowance for that
financial instrument at an armount zqual to 12-month ECL.

Lifeinme ECL represents the expecled credit losses that waill
result from ail possible default events over the expecied hfe of
a hnarcial mstrument. In contrzst, 12-month ECL reptesents the
poition of Metume ECL ihat 1s expecied tc result from detault
events on a8 fiinancial mnstrument that are possible waithin

12 months zher the reporting date

It Significant increase or decrease in credit nsk

In assessing whether the credil risk on 3 financal instrumeant
has changed significantly since inial recogniton, the Group
compares the nsk of a defzulr oceurnng on the financial
nstrument at the reporting date with the nsk of a detault
accuiring on the financial instrument at the date of inmal
recogmiion. In making thes assessment. the Group caonsiders
both quanutative and qualtative information that 1s reasonable
and supportable, ncluding histonical experience end forward-
loaking infarmation that 1s available without undue cast of effort.
Examples of forward-lcoking infermation the Group may
consider :nclude the fuiure prospects of the industries i which
the Group’'s debtors operate, obtained from econemic expert
reports, finencial analysis, governmemal bodies, relevant
think-tanks and cther simifar organisauons, as well 3s
consideration of various external sources of actuatl and forecast
econamic infoimaton that relzie 1o the Group's core operalions.

In particular, the foilowing information 15 taken into account
when assessing whether credit nsk has increased signiiicantly
since initial recognilion

- an actual or expected significant deteroration in the financial
nsirument’s exiernal Uf avaiable) or internal credit rating;

- signihicant detenoration in exiernal market indicators ot credit
risk for a particular financial mstrument;

exisung or forecasi adverse changes in business, hnancial or
economic conditons thal are expecied o cause a significant
change in the deblor’s ability 1¢ meet its debt obligations,

—~ an zciual or expected signiticant detengration or improvemeni
A the operating results of the debtor;

significant changes in credit risk on other hinancial mstruments
of the same debtor; and

- an aciual or expecied sigmficant adverse change 1n the
regulalory, economic, of tlechnologinal environment of the
debtor that resulis in 2 sigrlicant change in the debtbr‘s almbty
io meetits debt cbhgations

espiie the foregomng, the Gioup assuimaeas that the credit nisk on
a fmanoial instrument has notincreased sianficanty since initial
recaqgmuon if the financial mstrumant s deieimined 10 have low
ciedil nsk al the reporiing date. A financizl mstrument s
deterrmimed 1o have low credit rskail,

the hinancial nstrument bes a low sk of defauly;

=)

the deblor has a slrong capacity ¢ mect it contractual cash
Hows obbgauons in the near tenn snd

3 adverse changes in economic and business condmions in the
longer term may, but wili Not necessanty, teduce the ability
ol the borrower 10 fulfil ns contractual cesh flow cbhgations

The Group regularly moniiors the effectiveness of the cnteria
used to whentfy whether there has been a sigmificant increase o
credit nsk and revises them as appropniate 10 ensyre that the
critena are capable of identitving significant increase in credn
risk before the amiount becormes past due

i Nefiniton of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit nsk management purposes as
histoncal expenence indicates that financial assets thal meet
either af the following criteria are generally not recaverable:

- when there 15 a breach of finanoal covenants by the deblor, or

— information developed mternally of oblained from exiernal
sources indicates that the debior is unhkely 10 pay i1s
creditors, including the Group, i tull fwnthout 1aking nto
account any ccllateral held by the Groupl.

{m} Credi-impaired financial assets

Alinancial asset 1s credit-impaired whien ong or mare evenis
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
Haws of that hnancial asset have cccurred. Ewdence that 2
financial asset 1s credit-impared includes observable data about
the following events:

1 significant finanaal difficuity of the issuer o1 the borrower,

7 a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event [see
(i} above);

3.1he lender(s) of the borrower, for economic of contractua!
reasons relating 1o the borrower's finanaal ditficulty, having
granted 10 the borrower a concession(s) that the iender(s)
would ot otherwise consider,

4.1t5 becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or ather financial reorganisation; ar

the disappearance of an active markel lor that inancial assel
because of hinanaial difhiculties.

(5]

{rv) Wieite-oft policy

The Group writes off a financiat asset when there 1s information
indicating that the daeblor jsin severe finanmizl dithiculty ang
there i1s no realistic prospect of recovery, & g. when the debtor
has been placed under hguidation or has entered injo bankrupicy
proceedings Financial assets wrinen off may st be subject 10
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking mto account legal advice where appropriate.

Any recovenes made are recogrised in profi of loss.

(v} Measurement and recogniion of expecled credit losses
The measwernent of expecied gredit losses i3 3 funcuen of the
probabity of default, loss given default (e, the Inagniiude ot
the toss 1f there s a defaull) and the exposure at delaul

The assessment of the probability of defaull and loss given
detaultis based on histoncal data adyusted by lorward-iooking
information as descobed above As for the exposure at default,
far inancial assets, this s represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date
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For financial asscis. the exoecied credi loss 1s esumated as the
difference Getween ol convaciual cash lows that are due 1o the
Group in accordance wilt the coniract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects o recave discounted al the original
electve nterest rate For a lease recawvable, the cash tlows
used for determining 1ne expecied credil losses is consisient
with the cash flows used in measuning the lease recavable
accordance wath IFRS 16

If1the Group has moasured the loss allowance tor a financial
insirument al an amount equal 1o ifetme ECL in the previcus
reporting penod, but determimes at the current reporting date
that the conditions Tor lfetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal 1o 12-month
FCL a2t ihe current reporting dete, except for assets for which
the simphfied epproach wes used.

The Group recogrises anmimigarment gan or loss in proht o loss
tor all inancial instruments vailh a corresponding adiustment to
therr carrying amount ihrough a loss allowance account, excepl
for investments 1a deblinstruments that are measured al
FVTQCI, for wimch the loss flowance 1s recagnised sn other
compsehensive mcome and accumulated n the invesumen:
revaluaton resesve, angd does not reduce the carrying amount

of the financial gsset in the siatement of financial position.

Naon-financial assets

The carrymg amaounts ol the Group's non-hinancisl assets are
revicwed a1 cach repesing date 10 determine whether there 15
any indwaton of impairment H any such indication exists, then
the assel’s recoverable amount 15 estimated. For goodwill, and
irtangicle assets that have indehimie useful ives or that are not
vel available for use, the recoverable amount is esimated each
year at the same time

The recoverabie amount of an assei or cash-generating unit s
the greater of 115 value in use and its tar value less cosis 10 sell
In 2ssessirg value i use, the estimaied future cash flows are
chscounted o ther preseni value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflecis curtent market assessments of the ume value

of money and ihe nsks speciiic 1o the assei. for the purpose

of impairment lesting, assets that cannot be tested ndmdually
are grouped logeiher into the smallest group of assets that
generaies cashinflows from conunuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups

of assels {the zash-generatng unt't The goodwill acquired n

a business combinauon, for the purpase of mparment tesunag,
is allocated to cash-generating units, or ((CGL), that are
expected to benetn fram the synargies of the combinavon.

For the purposes of goadwill impaitment tesung, CGUs 1o which
goodwill has been allocaled are agaregated so that the level at
which impairment 15 tasted reflects the lowest level at which
goodwill 1s moniored for internal reporung purposes but not

al a level higher than the group’s operaling segment,

Armimparment loss in respect of gondwall is not reversed.

In respect of other assets, impaitment i0sses recogrised i pros
pencds are assessed al each zeporlng date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impawment
tnss i revarsed if theie has beoen a changs in the 2stimates
used 10 determme ihe recoverable amount Animpagment fnss
15 reversed only 10 the extent that the gssel's camying aimount
does not exceod the carrying amount that weuld have been
deeimined, net of depeciauon O amorisation, # N
unparment 16ss had beern recoarnised

1.11 Employee benefits

Delined contribution plans

A detined contnbution planis a post-empioyment benefrt plan
under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions inlo a separate
entiry and will have no legal or conslructive obhgalion (6 pay
turther armounts Othgavons for contobutions 1o defined
contnbution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the
mcome slalement n the penods guiing which senvices aro
rendered by enmployees.

Short-1term benefits

Shast-termn employee benefit obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 15
provided A lizbility i1s recognised for the amount expected (0 be
paid under shori-ierm cash bonus o grofit-shaning ptans if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation to pay this
amount as a resull of past service provided by the emiployee
and the obhgation can be estimated relizbly

112 Provisions

A prowision s recogrised in the statement ot hinancsal position
when the Group has a present legal or construcuve obligaion

as a result of a past event, that can be rehably measured and it
1z probable that an putflow of economic benehts will be required
10 setle the obligation. Prowvisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
nsks specilic 1o the hability.

1.13 Sharc-based payments

The Group operatles equity-setilad, share-based compensation
plans, under which the business receives sefvices from partners
and employees as consideration for equity mstrumenis {share
awards and options) of the Group. The fair value of the services
receved in exchange for the grant of share awards and options
is recogrisad as an expense The total amount 10 be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share awards
and options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
service and pertormance vestung conditions {for example,
rerraining engaged by the entity over a speclied e penod),
Nan-rmarket vesting candittans are mcluded in assumptions
about the number of share awards and ophions that are
expectad 1o vast The 1otal amount expensed s recognised over
the vesting perod, which 15 the poricd ovar wivch all of the
specified existing conditions are to be satished. At cach
statement of financial position date, the Group revises ils
esimates of the aumber of share awards and options that are
expecied to vest based on the non-market vesung conditions.

It recogmises the impact of the revision o ongmal estimates, if
any, in thencome slatement, with g corresponding adstment
10 the share-based payments reserve within equity.

The social security contnbubicns iIn connection with the grant
al the share awards 15 self considered an nteqral part of the
grant, and the charge will be treated as an equity-setiled
transacthion The curmnulative share-based payrment charge held
1 reserves s recycled into retaned eartings wheo the share
awards or opugns lapse or are exergised
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Consohidated notes to the financial statements contimmued

1. Accounting polictes continued

1.14 Share capital

Ordinary shores are classihed as eauity, Incremental costs
directly attnbutable o thessue of new sharcs or oplions are
showman equily as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purcnases the Company's equity
share capttal | Treasury shares’), the consideranon pad,
nzluding any dractly aunbutatle incremaenial costs {net ot
incorme taxest, 15 deducted from equity attributable to the
Company s equity halders until the shares are cancelied

or re1ssued

1.15 Net revenue

MNet revenue 15 measwracd based on the consideration spectficd
103 contract wath a chent and excludes amounts collected on
pehali of thid parties, Nel revenue represeants the fair value of
the consideration receivable in respect of professional services
provided dunng the period, exciusive of disbursements and
velue zdded laxes

A contract with a chent 12 receognised when a contract 1s signed
and legaily enforceabls by the Group; this will be prior 1o the
commencemant of work for a client and thergfore before any
tume s acerued by the Group A single performance ohligation
is identified on a contract by contract basis; where contracts are
entered nto at the same ume with the sarne client at differing
rates, these may be considered a single contract for the
purposes of revenue recagnition

The Group dees not provide extended terms on 11s services and
therefore no sigrificant finanaing components are identified by
the Group The Group apglies the ievenue constraint in respect
of varable consideravon by estimatng the amount from chents
on unbilled items This assessment is based on the Gioup's
mistoncal recoverability rates. contingencies, agreements with
chents and amounts consdered irecoverable by fee earners
Revenue :s only recegmsed on contingent matters from the
pom at which +7 18 highty probable that a significant reversat in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur,
and 1t is measuwied by consideraton of histoncal recoverabibity
rates and agresments with clients.

1.16 Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses compnse interest payable, unwinding of

the discaunt on provisions, and net {oreign exchange losses that
are recognised in the income statement {see foremgn currency
accounting pohcy — note 1 4) Borrowing costs that arg directly
attabutable 1o the scquisiton, construction or production of an
asset that takes a substantal time to be prepared for use, are
capitalised s part of the cost of that asset. Fiancing income
coinpase aterest receivable on funds invested, and

dredernd income.

Inieresyincome and imerest payable 1s recogiised i the micame
staternent as it acciues, using ithe effective interest method
Dnadend mcome is recognised i the income slatement on the
date e enty’s nght 1o receve payments 1s established

—oreagn currency gains and (osses are reported on a net basis

1.17 Segmental reporting

Operaling sagments are ieoorned in 2 manner consistent vath
the interna! reporung provided to the Company's Board of
ihrectors {he Board ] which 1s considered as the Group's chiel
operaung gecision maker and 1s responsible for aliocaung
resources and assessing performance of the operatng
segments The Board considers the business from both

a geographiz and dras.onat perspenctve Gaographically,
managoment considers the perfounance of the Gioup between
the UK, Rest of Eurcpe, Muddle Fast and the Rest of the World

1.18 Taxation

Currenl tax

The 1ax expense represents the current 1ax relating o the
Company and other Group companies The curmen: tax expanse
is hased on taxable profits of these comparies for the year
Taxable proln differs fromy net profit as reported i the income
statement because it excludes tems of income or expense that
are taxable or deducuble i other years and u {urther excludes
iterns that are never taxable or deductibie. The current tax
habihity 15 calcuiated using 1ax rates that have been enacied

or substantively enacted by the stalernent of financial

pasition date

A provision s recognesed for those matters for which the tax
determingtion 15 uncertamn but it s considered probabile that
there will be a Tuture outflow of funds {0 & tax authanty.

The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount
expecied to become payable The assessment s based on the
judgment of tax professionals within the Group supported by
previous expenence in respect of such actvities and in certain
cases based on speclist independeant lax adwice

Current tax assels and habiiies are offset only when there s

a legally enforceable nght 1o set off the amounts and ibe Group
intends 1o either settlz on 3 nel basis or reahse the asset and
settle the fiabidity simultaneously

Deferred tax

Deferred 1ax is the 1ax expected 1o be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
iabihues in the financial statements and the corresponding
1ax bases used n ihe computaiion of taxable prain, and 1s
accaunied for using the habdity method Deferred tax liabilines
are generally recogmsed ior all taxable temporary differences
and delerred tax assels are recogrused 1o the extent thatits
probable that taxable profiis will be available against which
deductible temporary thiterences can be uthsed. Such assets
and hatrlives are not recogrused o the termparary difference
anses from the mtial recognition of goodwill o irom the initiat
recognibon {other thanin 2 business compinaten) of other
assets and habililies in @ transacuon that gffects neither the
taxable proht nod the accounung orofn in addion, a deferred
tax hatulity is not recogmsed i the termporary difference anses
from the imtial recagriiion of goodwill
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Deicired 1ax hathtes are recogrised for taxable temporary
diferencas ansing on nwestments 0 subsichanes, subsdiary
untleriakingy and assooates, a0 Inerests njont ventuies,
excent whete he Groun is able to contiol the reversal of the
iemporary ditference and it 1s probable that the temporary
didiztence will nat reversa i the igreseeable tuture

Delerred tex assels ansing from deductitle temporary
diterences assomated with such invastments and intarests are
only secogused 10 ihe extent that its probable that there wili be
suiicient taxable prolits against which 1o uulise the beneifns of
the tamporary differences and they are expecied 1o reverse in
the foreseeable future The carrying amount of deferredt tax
assels 15 reviewed a1 each reporting date and reduced to the
exlant thal il 1s no longer probable that sufhicient taxable profus
will De avatable o allow all or part of the assel 10 be iecovered
Deleried tax 15 calculated at the tax raies that are expected to
apply in the penod when the hability 1§ setiled of the assetis
real-sed based on tax laws and rates thai have been enacted or
substantively enacted ai the reporting daie. The measurement
of detlerred tax habvhuies and assets reflecis the lax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which

the Group expects, at the end af the regorting penod, to recover
of setile the carrying amount of 1t$ assets and habilities.

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are ofiset when there 1s

a legally enforceabie right 10 set off current 1ax as5sels against
current iax labiliugs and when they relate to income 1axes
lavied by the same laxauon authorty and the Groug intends
(o settle s current (ax asseis and liabiditias on a net biasis.

Foi the purposes of measurng delerrad tax habihfies and
delerred Lax ussets for investment properties that arc measured
using the fair value modet, the carrying amounts of such
propertes are presurmed 10 be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumplion 1s rebutted.

As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred laxes on
changes in far value of the investment properties, as the Group
15 N0 SUBECT 1o any income taxes on the fair value changes of
the investment properiies on disposal.

Current iax and deferred 1ax for the year

Current and ceferred 1ax are recegrused :in the income
stalament, excepl when they relate 1o items that are recogrused
n other comiprehensive iIncome or directly 1n cquity, in which
case, the cuqent and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respecively

Where current 1ax or deferred tax ansces trom the inimisl
zecounting for a business combinauen, the tax effect 15 nciuded
in the accounting for the business combination.

A share of the Group’s profits 15 earned by the lenited hability
partnorships {(LLPs) wathun the Group. The taxauon on profis
eained by (he LLPs is generally, recognised as a liabilily borne
by the Members The Members include a corporste entity and
ndacival persons The corporate member 15 subjoct (o laxation
o s share of the LLPs profils as sel out above Taxation on ihe
indwidual persans’ share of the LLPs protits remams thew
personal abihty so nother taxation noi related deferred taxation
15 zecouniod ‘o1 i the financial informanen of tne Group,
ahhough payiment of such labilines s adrmimistered by the
Group on benalt of those Mambers.
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Pror to the rearganization on & March 2019, oll of the protits
earned by the LLFs were attnbulable to Members who were
individual persons so neather iexdnGr nor refated deferred
laxation on those orolis 15 accounted for in the stonical
financial informatien relating to this penod.

1.19 Dividends

Oividend distibutions are 1ecognised in the consohdated
financial statamenis when (he shareholders’ nght to receve
payment 1s estatsished

Final divicend distributrons are recogmised 1n the perod in which
they ate approved by the shareholders, whilst intenm dwidend
distnibutians are recogmnisad i the penod in which they are
declared and paid

1.20 Transactions with and amounts due to members

of limited liabtlity partnerships or general partnership
{'Partnerships’) in the Group

Divisible profits and payments to members of partnerships
inthe Group

Mambers of partnerships within the Group {'members’), under
the terms of the relevant members’ agreement, draw monthly
on account. Drawangs are based on a fixed share

Pre-lPO, Ihe partners wha are equity mermbers of 1he
parinerships receved drawings throughout the yvear. After the
year end a final paymenifor recaipt) was usually paidfreceved
up ta @ maxirmum of the total distnbutablie profus of

the partnership.

Any unaltocated proft after distnbution to members are included
in othel reserves,

Post-IPQ, all members have a fixed share that forms part of

a wider rernuneraton package. This amount is reviewed on an
annual basis and is recogrised within the income statement
within direct casts The armounts that are due ta the partnecs
from the periods prior (o the IPO are recogrised as amcunts
due to members of partnerships 1n the Group.

Members’ remuneration charged as an expense

Members” remuneration chaiged as an expense is recognised
within direct costs totalling £38,808.000 (219 £31,014,000).
Pre-PQ, this was calcuiated based an the maonthly draw of
members Post-IPO. 1his has been calculated based on the Total
Fixed Annual Comgensation Amount, which s the members’
annual ixed proin share plus, for some members, a nominal
satary Any dividend income receved as shareholde:s and
amounts from paracipanon in share ncentive plans are exciuded
frorn members’ remunerzuon charged 8s an expense
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Consohdated notes to the financial statements continued

1. Accounting policies continued

1.21 Adoption of new and revised standards
New and amended IFRSs that are effective for the
clurrent veas

The Group bas sppled (FRS 16 fom 1 May 2019

iIFRS 16: Leases

The Groupr bas adouted "IFRS 167 using the modied
rettospectve appreach from 1 May 2019, bui has not restaied
comparatives for previous reporing penods, as germiited under
ihe speaific transiicnal prowisions in the standard

The reclassidicatons and adjustments arising from the new
leasing iulgs are therefore recogmised in the opening statermenl
of Iinancial posibon on 1 May 2019

The Group has lease contracts for vanous offices and office
equipinent Beloe the adopuon of IFRS 16 the Group ancouniel
for leases under 1AS 17 Leases {IAS 17 and were classiied as
either finance or operating leases. Under IAS 17 all the Group's
lcases were classified as operating leases and the payments
madde on leases (netl of any incentives receved from the lessor)
were charged 10 the ncome statement on a straight-line basis
owet the penod of the lease

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised right-of-use
2ssels and lease habilities in relation (0 teases which had
mevigusly been classified as operating leases under the
prineples of 1AS 17 The Group has elecied to measure its right
of use assets anaing from property leases vsing the approach
set outin iIFRS 16 CB{LIN. Under IFRS 16.CB{bliil right of use
assets are calculated as if the Standard apglied at lease
commencement, bul discounted using the borrowing rate at the
date of wuial apphcation. Lease labilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group's incremental barrowing rata.

The Group's wenahted average incremental borrowing rate used
as at 1 May 2019 was 2 57%.

The change in accounung policy resulted in the following
opcrating lecase cormmitments disclosed under 1AS 17 being
recorded 55 tease habilities on the statement of financial position
at 1 May 2019

£060
Total oﬁa{ti{q_lease cammitments -
disclosed at 30 Aprid 2019 73,212
Short-lerm land low value eases not ncluded in
lease abilitres {1,989
Changes i terms recognised under 1FRS 16 21,449
Discounted using meremental borrowing rate (9,370
Totai lease liabilities recognised under
IFRS 16 ot 1 May 2019 87302

I apphying IFRS 16 for the nrst ome the Groap has used the
fellowing practical expedients perimalied by the slandarg

- The use of 3 single discount rate 1o 8 portioho of leases
with reasonably simnilar charactensucs
Rehkance on previous assessrnenis on wheather ieases
are anerous
The accounting for operaling leases with a remaining lease
werm of less than 12 months as at 1 May 2019 as short-term
- The exclusion of mitial direct cosis for the measurement
of the night-of-use asset at the date of imuzl application
- The use of hingsight in determiming the lease term where the
COntract contains opuons 1o extend o ierminate the lease

1

The Group has also electled not 1o reassess whether & contract
15, OF coniains, a lease al ihe date of imtial applicahon. nstead,
for contracts entered im0 before the transition date, the Group
reled on s assessment made applying 1A5 17 and IFRIC 4:
Determining whether an Arrangement containg & Lease.

The Group remeasures the tease hability and makes a
corresponding adiusiment (G the related nighi-cf-use asset}
whenaver.

- the lease lerm has changed or there 1s a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase opuon, in which case
the lease labiliy 15 remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

— the lease payments change due (o changes in an index or rate

ar a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual

value, i which cases the lease liability 15 remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payrments using the initial

discount rate {unicss the lease payments change 1s due (0

a change in a floating interest rate, in which case z revised

discount raies used)

a lease contract is modified and the lease modilication is not

accounted for as a separale lease, i which case the lease

hiabiity 1s remeasured oy discounting the revised lease
payments using a révised ¢iscount rate.

|

lhe Group did not rake any such adustments durng the
periogs preseniad

The impaa of the frst-ume apphcation ot IFRS 16 on the
statement of financial posiion a7 1 May 2010)s:

frngact ;f_
wansiion
£000
Propéx?}?ﬁ;d equipnﬁ;?_lm__- o
Righi-of-use assel 701342
Trade and ather receivables
Prepaymenis 1,689
Current trade and other payables
Accruals 1537
Operaung leasa incentives 1.412}
Leass nabihties 8,276
Non-current trade and other payables
Opeiating leass ncentves (10,072
Lease hatnlities 78173
Net assets {5.715}
Equity ) o
Accomulatedlosses . 15715
Total equity ) ' - (5,71?}
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As the Group has appbed the sinoldicd approach in respect

ol comparatives at tronsiion, comparative mformation has

not bean restated and continues 1o be reponed under 1AS 17
The table below dermonstrates ithe wnpacl of using IAS 17
compares to IFRS 16 on the Group's 1ncome statement for the
vear 1 30 Apnl 2020

irmpact of
145 1/ UANSIVON IFRS 16
- o . £'000 foo0 Qoo
Reral exponse {15,072) 15,072 -
Deprecialion, amoriisation
andimparment - {11,580) (11.580)
Administrative expenses  (15072) 3,492 {11,580}
Operating profit 115.072) 3,482 (11,580)
Adjusted operating profit | {15,072} 15072 -
Depreciation, amoiLsation
andimparment - {11.580) (11,580
Interest payable on jeases - (2,047) (2,047}
Profit before tax {15.072) 1,445 {13,627}

From 1 May 2019, leases are recognised as a nght-cf-use asset
with a carresponding liability at the date at which the fease asset
15 avallable for use by the Group

Right-df-use assets are reasured at cosi, less any accumulated
depreciation and impatrment iosses, and adjusted for any
re-measurement of lease habilies The cost of nght-of-use
asseis includes the amount of lease habilities recognised, inilial
direct costs incurred, and lease paymenis made on or before
the commencement date, 1855 any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
assel's useful ifz and the lease terrm on a straight-ing basis.
Right-of use assets are recogrised wathin groperty, plant

and equipment

Lease liabiities are inmially measured at the net present value

of fease payrments (o be madce over the lease 1term. The lease
payments wiclude fixed payments {including m-substance fixed
paymenis} less any lease incentlives recevable, variable lease
payments 1that depend on anindex or a rate, and amounts
cxpected (o be pad under residual vatue guarantees. The lease
payments afso nciude the exercise price of a purchase oputicn
reasonably cenan 10 be exercised by the Group and payments
o1 penalues for termmating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option 1o terminate

In calculaung the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the ingremenial borowing iate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate impiicit in the lease 1s
ngt ready deterrmenadle After the commencement date, the
amount of lease habiiies 1s increased [o reflect the accretion of
nterest and reducad for the lease paymeants made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease habilites 1s re-measured i there
15 a modilicauon, & change w Lhe lease term, a change i the
1-substance fixed ledse payments o a change m the
as50ssment 10 puichase the underlying asset
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Extension and termination options are included in several of the
praperty leases across the Group The Group determines the
lease term as 1he non-canceliagle term of the izase, logather
with any penods covered by an opton o extend the leasef s
reascnably certan to be exercised, or any penod covered by an
opton 1o terrminate the lease if 1115 reasonadly certain not 10 be
exercised The Group apphes judgement in evaluating whether it
1S reasgnably Certain 10 exercise an Gphion 10 renew of terminate
a lease, Mansgement considers all 1acts and arcumstances thet
Cresle an ceonomic NCenive 1o exercise an extension ophon, or
not exgrcise @ lerminaten opuon. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there 1 3
significant event or change in crcumstances thatis within itg
coriteal and affects ns abdity 10 exercise, or nat o exercise, the
oplion 1o renew or terminale the contract

Fayments associated with shortterm leases and leases of

low value assels fwith a value of less than £5,000) are
recogmised on a straight-hne basis a5 an expense in the income
statement Short-term leases have g term of 12 months or less

1.21.1 The following amendments have been adopted in

the year:

—IFRS 8, ‘Financal instrumenis’ on prepayinent features with
negative compensation

- JAS 28, “lavestments in associales. on kong lem interesis n
associates and joint ventures

- IAS 19, ‘kmployee benefas' Plan amendment, curtailment or
selllement’

— Annual improvements 20152017
— IFRIC 22 "Uncertainty over income tax’

The above interpretations and revised standards have not had
any matenal impact on the amaounts reporied in these financial
staiements or the disclosures required.

1.22 IFRS not yet applied

The followsing [FRSs have beenssued bul nave not been applied
by the Group in these consolidated linancial statements

Ther adoption 1s not expected to bave o rmaterial effect on the
hnancal informanon unless otherwase indicaied

- Amendmert 1o 1FHS 3, Business combinatons

- Amendments 1o References 1o the Concepiual Framework in
IFRS Standards

- Defintuon of Matenal (Amendments 1o [AS 1 and [AS 8)

— Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments 1o IFRS 9,
1AS 39 and 1FRS 7}

- COVID9-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to 1FRS 16)

1.23 Re-presentation of prior year
The priorpenad financal results hove been e prosented for the
impact of disconunied operations {note 11}
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

1. Accounting palicies continued

1.24 Accounting estimates and judgement

The preparation of the binancal staterments under IFRS requires
MANAgemant o make judgenients, Ssumams and assumplons
which affect the financal infoimanon The estimates angd
associated assumptions aie based on histoncal expenence and
other factors that are considered 1o de relevant arnd are
reviewod 0n an ongoing has:s

The key areas of judgements. esumate and assumpons relate
ta the faw value af unbulled revanue, imaairment of trade
recewables, professional indemnity provisions and conurel over
ABS and non-ABS Groups

Cratical judgements in applving the Group's

accounting policies

Control over the ABS and non ABS Groups

Regulations it certan junsdicians i which the Group is
represeniad allow Alternative Business Structures (ABS) where
tegal fisms can be owned by non-lawyers This s not the case in
other junsdictions ('non-ABST As a result, DWF LLF the head of
the non-ABS Group, 15 not directly owned by any entity within
the ABS Group twhich includes the ulimale parent DWF Group
plcl. Consoldation of DWF LLP and the other non-ABS entities
depends on the assessrment of whether a member of the ABS
Group 1s exposed, or has nghts, 10 vanable roturms from its
mvoivernent with such entity and has the abily to affect those
returns through its power over such entity DWF LLP and the
ather nor-ABS entittes are consolidated in these financial
statements on the basis of the Governance Deed adopted by
thg Group.

Professional indemnity insurance claims

There is significant judgementin the recegmition and
quanttication of the hability associated with claims and
reguidlory proceedings Recognibon 1s based on the assessed
hkelihood of an individual claim’s success. When the cutflow
is both probable and can be esumated reliably, a hability is
iecognused for the best esiimate of the gross liability with

a separate asset recogrused far any porvon that the Group wall
recover from its insurers Where the payrment 1s not probable
or canrot be estrnated reliably rno lahility s recogrised.
Gioss hability is recogrnised in other payables and the related
assel s recogrused in other recewvabies in the consolidated
staternent of firancial positen

Business combinauons - acquisihion date

In accordance wath 1IAS 1122, management has made
judgements i respect of when control was oblaned for the
acgquisitions of subsidanes This included evaluating when
power over the relevant actvities of the subsidianies was
otxtained, ‘ncluding an assessmeant of both the existing nghts
that gave the current atniity 1o direct the relaevant activities and
piotechve nghts.

Key sources of estrmation uncertainty

ihe ey assumotions concerming the future, and other key
sources of esumanion uncertamty al the regorting penad that
may have a signicart nisk of causing materal ddjustment of 1he
caityng amounts ot assets and habilities wathun the next
financal year, are discussed below

Unbdled revenue

The valuaton of unmifed revenues s based cn an esirnate of the
amount expecled 1o be recoverable from chients on unbilled
mattars besed on the time spent at & rate which s definad by
tactors including time spent, the expertise and skills provided,
ant expenses incurred. Prowisions are made for such factors as
mstoneal recoverabihity rates, contingencies, the outcomes of
previous matiers and agreements with clients

Respective amounts are provided in note 15

anagement consders the values of vntilled revenus and the
trade rerenvables provision to be matenal and have reviewed the
sgnihicant sisk ef matenal change walhin the next hnancial year
as required by 1AS 11125, no matenal change s expected due 1o
the histonc raies apphed by the Group expected 10 only change
oy immatenal amounts. No sensiivity analysis has therefore
been provided,

Trade recewables provision

The vatuation of amounts recoverabie and not recoverable on
trage recewables involves sigrificant estimation. The estunation
of provisicns s established bagsed on interactions between
finance, the tee carner and chents. rmundiut of the spealic
circumstances of clients and individual matlers and invoices
and guided by calculation rules applied 1o the aged poputation
of all trade recevables lexcluding those already addressed

by more specific provisions). Bad debt provision amounuing
1o £11 871,000 was prowvided at 30 Aprd 2020 {30 Apnil

2018 £6,531,000) Further detads of trade receivebles ageing
and provision movement are provided i note 15

IFRS 9 Financiaf mstruments requires the expectled credit fosses
10 be measured using an unipased and probability-wesghted
amount that is determined biy evalualing a range of possible
auicomes, the ume value of money and reasonable and
supportable miormabion that s avaldable withour undue cost o
effort a1 the reporting date about past events, current conchtions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. 1FRS 9 allows
pracucal expediznis 1o be used when measuning credit losses
The Group has elected to use 3 provision Mainx based on the
ageng proin of debts and the histoncal credit loss rates adjusted
by & forwasrd looking estimate that inciudes the probability of

& worsening dormestic economic environment/speciiic
conditions to a parlicular chent over the corming quarters

Management considers 1ha values of unbilled revenue and the
trade recewables provision to be maternal and have reviewesd the
signihicant nsk of matenal change within the next financial year
es roquired by 1AS 1125, no matenal charge 3 expected due o
the historic rates apphed by the Group expectad 1o only change
by immatenal amounts. No sersitivity analysis has therefore
been proviced
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? Alternative performance measures

Alternative performance measures dre not intended 1o supplanl IFRS measures i hne with invesior feedback and to piowide
readers of the hinanciai statements wvath addinonat understanding of the irading performance of the Group, adjustied earmings
helore mietest, 1ax, deprecigtion and amorusaton {ERITDA) has been calcuiated as pralit befare 1ax alier adding back

—impanment and amortsaton of ntargible assets - scquned,
- non-underlying iaems,

- share-tascd payments expense,

- gam on bargam purchase,

- net finance expense; and

- deprecialion, amortisation and imparrment

Owing 10 the change In pariner remuneration structure effected on 15 March 2019 together with the applicaticn of IFRS 16 Leases
effected on 1 hMay 2019, Underiying Adjusted TBITDA s presenied (o allow for grester comparabibity of financal perormance
beiween cach peried Underiying Adjusted EBITOA is calcutated as Adusted EBITOA fess the mternstly reported partner
rermuneration pio-farma adjustment and the wmpact of the vansition to IFRS 16

In addivon, underiving adiusied PBT 1s presented a5 adjusied PBT less the internally reporied partner remunerauon pro-forma
adjustment and the impact of uansition to IFRS 16 Lasily, the cost to ncome ratio 15 used 10 assess the levels of operational
geanng 0 the Group. The cost to income ratio s detined as admimstrative expenses less non-underying items, share-based
payment expense and the mpact of 1he transiion 10 IFRS 16 divided by net revenue Adjusted profit before 1ax, adiusted EBITDA
and underlying adjusied EBITDA reconcile 1o profit on continuing actmties belore 1ax as follows:

Re-pmsem&l

incta 123)

2020 209

) i £000 _£'000

Profit before tax {PBT) T 18,198 13.034
Amortisation of intangible assets - acguired 1.510 -
Impairmsnt 382 -
Gamn on bargan purchase {25,084) -
Non-underlying iterms 7632 12,569
Share-based payments expense o a2kl 1,202
Adjusted PBT o T 15,208 26,805
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (nale 1 71) 11,580 -
Other depreciation and amorisauon 6.175 5,365
Interest payable on leases (note 1.21) 2,047 -
Netlinance expense ) L i o 1,905 213
Adjusted operating profit [Adjusted EBITDA') o 36,915 34,301
lnernally reported partner remuneration pro-forma adustment (Note 33} - (6,456)
Impact of the transiton to iFRS 16 {(Note 1.21) (15,072] -
‘Underlying adjusted EBITDA i 21,843 27845

Underlying adjusted PBT reconciles 1o Mdusted PBT as follows

Re-oresented

tnote 123}

2020 2Ma

e - e £000 £00c
Adjusted PBT 15,208 26,805
Internahy repcried partner remunearatuon pre-forma adjustment (Note 30) - 6,456}

_mpact of the fransinon to IFRS 16 (Note 1 21) o : : e {24450

Underlying adjusted PBT 13,763 _?0_1149
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(,Onsohdal *d notes to the financial statements continued
2. Alternative peiformance measures continued
Tre cost o ncome 1atc 15 calculsied as follows
e T T T T - T T hepiceenten
inote 123)
2020 2019
£009 £000
MNetrevenwe 297231 0883
"Administrative expenses T o ' 120,804 178,764
Amortisation of ntangible assets — acquired (1.510) -
Impairment (382} -
Gain on hargam purchase 25,084 ~
Non-underiying items {2632) {12,569}
Share-based paymenls expense {12,570} {1,202)
Impact of transwion 1o IFRS 16 . 3,492 -
Adjusted administrative expenses S ’ 126566 114,493
Cost to income ratio 42 6% az 1%

3. Operating segrments
Reporting segments

In accordance with IFRS 8 the Group's operating segments are based on the operaling results reviewed by the Board, who
represents the chiet oparating decision maker [CODRM) The Group has the following four strategqic divisions, which are its
reportable segments. These dwisions offer diiferent services and are reported separatefy because of different speciaiisms from

the teams In the business Group,

The followng summary describes the operations o! each reportable segment:

Reportahle segmem' B
Commercial Services

Insurance Sefvices

Internahonal

Operatlons o

Provides comme.mal logal serwces encompass ng 0ur Corpora[e Servnces
Lmqauon and Reatl Estate practice groups

Prowides insurance legal services, @nCompassing our of Professional indemnny &
Commercial, Catastrophic Personal Injury & Occupauonal Health, and Mator, Fraud
& Clairnant practice groups.

A dvision fucussed on supporting clients on a giohal scale, with 3 sectarlocussad
approdch to grow a chent-orientated practice. o

Connected Serwices

Encompasses varnous independent businesses that work alongsude- support and

delver products and services 1¢ ow legal iecams and chents.

The revenue and opersung preft are attributable to the pancipal actvities of the Group. Information relaung 1o each reportable

segment 15 set out bhelow:

for year ended 30 April 2020

Qegmer\' net revenus
Dhrect costs
Reported gross pmht
Admiistratve expenses

Operating profit
Net tinance expensz
Profit before tax
Texation

Profit from v;.ontmumg operalmns

Connected

Commercial Insurance
Services Services Intermational Services Total
£000 £°000 £ 000 £'000 £°000
T T 104367 95,838 76.165 20,861 297.231
{45.960) {49,726) (45,188) {14,123}  [154.977)
T ssap7 a2 30,977 6,738 142,234
L ___(120,084)
i B 22.150
B R ~ {3,952)
18,198
o {3.629)
T 14569




Armel repot anc Timanzol sigtepnenes 7020

DWF Group plc 1 2 ’3
A

Foryear ended 30 April 2019 tre-presentsd (note 1 23))

Rs-prnsen:é?
Commes Ciglh INsuiancs - Cannesied (nole 123}
Restaied Seruices, Services fraermanchal Services fotal
7000 000 000 £ Co £ 000
‘Segment net reveroe 08885 91,082 49729 18,460 268.136
Direci cos:s M0499) 1645321 DB12 (1SSY (124707
Gross profit ' 8386 46,530 21606 6907 143429
Adrpinislralive expensas T e (128,264}
Operating profit i T 15,155
Net finance expense ~ o 2,132)
Profit before tax S 13,034
Taxation N L (138
Profit from continuing operations ) 12.896

For year ended 30 Apnl 2019 - Underlying adjusted {re-presented [note 1.23})

Re-presented

Commaital Insutance Commecien . {noie 1.23}

Seivices Services fruesnational Services Total

o o L _EboR OO0 €000 £0c0 .~ E000
Segrmenl net revenue 108 485 91,0627 a9, 779 18,460 . 268,136
Direct costs (40,1949} {14,532} {28,123 11.553) -~ {124,707)
Revised compensation model adjustrment ) 13,792 {2,555) = _ o (6,458)
Underlying gross profit 64,594 43,975 21,606 6,798 136,973

There are no intra-segrmental revenues which are maternat for disclosure Administrative expenses represent non-direct costs that
are not specifically allocaled 10 segments

Revenue by Region
The UK s the Group's country of domicile and the Group genecates the majonty of its revenue from external chents in the UK
The geographical anzlysis of revenue :s on the basis of the country of ongin in which the chent s invoiced:

Re-presenied

[note 1.23)

2020 2019
- . e foo0 Laoe
UK 218,562 220,486
Rest of Europe 45,905 19,807
Middie East 6,702 2.871
HRestofWorld 28062 17972
Net revenue 287231 268,136

Total assets and habhties for each reportable segment are not presented as such inforrmanon s not provided to the CODM.
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Consolidated notes 1o the financial statements continued

4. Operating profit and Auditor’s remuneration

“e presenied

tste 1231
2020 2019
Netes £009 000
Recogﬁised in the income statement - - - o o o T B
Members’ remuneration charged as an expense 38,808 31,014
Net foreign exchange loss 13 517 545
limpairment of Mangiie gssetls — coninung ooerdtons 3 382 -
Impairment of intangible assets — discontnued operations 12 654 -
Amortisation of Intangicle assels - acqured 12 1.570 -
Amortisation of intangible assets - software and capialised development costs 1,504 1.7
Depreciation of 1angible assets 4,671 4,348
Deprecation of right-cf-use asset 11,580 -
Operating lease cost on land and buildings - 12,261
Short-term and low-value lease cos; 1.310 -
Operaling iease cost of other leases - 1.202
(Gatn on bargan purchase {25.084) -
Non-underlying nams 7,632 12,569
Share-based payments expense 12,570 1,202
Auditar’'s remuneration
Audit of the Group financial statements 340 250
Amounts payable to the Company’'s Audior and 1ts associates in respect of
Audit of financial informatoen of subsidiary undertakings and parinerstups of the Group id4 120
Other assurance services - 2,500
Tax advisory services - 526
Qther assurance services 43 -
Ciher services 161 105
Total fees T - 688 3601
Non-underiying 1lems are sel out in the 1abla below:
B - 2020 2013
£000 £000
Acquisihon—rellated advisory fees - successiul — B 2,639 T
Acguision-related advisory fees ~ aborted 1,542 -
Acquisition-related remuneration expense 2,876 -
COVIC-19 related costs 230 -
IPO-retated advisory fees - _ 345 12,569
- o 7.632 12,569

Nen-underlying items

Acquisiton-related remuneraion e<pense does nol reflect the ongong employment costs of the indmiduals retamed as peri of the

acquisition agreement. The ongong emaloyment costs of these individuals 15 expensed in threct costs.

COViD-related costs include, mtersha, specalst cleaning and addiional [T support costs that are non-recurnng
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5. Net finance expense

2020 2019
£000 £ 000
Finance income T /0 e
Interest recewable S B 456 293
- I 456 283
Finance expense T 0 T '
Interest payable on bank borgwings 1,655 1,057
Other interest payabie 165 279
_Bank end other charges . - . 5#&1 1088
L 2361 2424
Net finance cxpense - 1,905 2,13
Finance expense - leases
tniercst payable onleases o B . ' A
B ) T T 2,04]; -

6. Taxation

Pe-presenied

tnote V231

2020 20:9
- _ - . _  _kooo €000
UK corporation tax on prafit - B - ' QTTMAS— 237
Foreign tax an protii 1,347 14%
Adjustments in respect of prior penods e - 97 53
Current tax expense o T S 5,190 135
Delerred tax credit {2,587) {297)
Adjusiments inrespect of prior perods - 26 =
Delerred tax expense T ' {2,561) (297)
Taxation 3,629 138

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year:

The effective tax rate is higher (2019 lower] than the average fate of corparate tax in the UK of 19% (2019; 19%]. The difference 1s
explained below-

Fe-preseniad

trote 1.23)

2028 2018

. £'000 £'000

Profit hefore taxatiovn—-'iﬂ—_—-mﬁ_(ﬁmﬁ‘ T s e 18,198 ) 13.034
Tax on Group prafit at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% {2019 19%) 3,458 2476
Tax borne by mdiwidual members of parinersiugs vaihun the Group - {4,708}
Foreign tax rate differences 917 20
Non-taxabie mcome {4,766) {135
Non-deducuble expenses 3,326 2,473
Adpustments i respect of pror pernods 123 53
Brought forward tax losses utilised (28} -
Tax logses noi recognised as assals 706 -
_Eflect on deferred tax of change in corporavon taxrete S o o fwony
Groupitoraiim:'haréé forig_\}e-;_ T B ) 36723 K

On 18 Novemnbet 2019, the UK Governmment cancalled plans 10 reduce the coporalion tax raie from 19% 10 17% trem ) Apnl 2020
Delerred 1ax assets and Labihtes are rmeasuied ot the rales that are expecled to apply in the genods of the reversal so UK defered
lax 2s55eis and hablives previously measured 21 17% are now megsuwred a1 10%.
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Consolidated notes to the financial stateme

nts continued

7. Dwidends
Distribunons 1o owners of the parentun the year
— - 0 = 2020 201y
pence penLe
per. sharc oer share
FY 2019 inat dodend i T I T
FY 2020 hrst intenm dwidend 1.25p -
FY 2020 second interim dwvidend B ) _1l%p -
Total dividends pailrl‘)l the yéaf T T T 3.50p -
Final dividend proposed 0.75p -
- . 2020 29
£'oc0 £000
FY 2039 hinal dondend i S 2,746 -
FY 2020 first intenm dividend 3,428 -
FY 2020 second mtenm dividend ) 3837 0 -
Total dividend;paid in the year 9,81 -
2,434 -

Final dividend proposed

The fst mtenm dividend of 1.25 pence per share was appreved Gy the Board on 13 Movember 2019 The dividend was paid on
20 December 2019 o all sharehoiders on the Register of Members on 22 November 2019, The payment of this dividend did not

nave any 1ax consequences for the Group.

The second interim cividend of 125 pence par share was approved by the Board on 16 fanuary 2020. The dwvidend was paid on
21 February 2020 10 all shareholders on the Register of Members on 24 January 2020 The payment of this didend did not have

any tax cansequences for the Group.

The proposed final dividend of 0.75 pence per share was approved by ihe Board on 7 September 2020 and 1s subiject 1o approval
by shareholders a1 the Annual General Meeting n Ocrober. The final dividend has not been included as a habibty in these financial
statlements The proposed dividend is payable 10 2lt shareholders on the Register of Members on 25 September 2020, The dividend
will e paid on 5 Novernber 2020. The payment of this dsadend will not have any tax consequences for the Group.

8. Earnings per share
The calculauon of the basic and diluted earnings per share s based on the following data.

Re-presented

(note 123)

2020 209

o ) 3 ] _ fopo £000
Earnings from continuing operations for the purposc of basic and diuted eainings per share 14,569 12,826
Losses from discontinued operations for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share (4.301) (712}
Earings from all gperations for the purpose of basic and diluted carnings ger share 10,268 12,184

Weugh{ed average ‘umber of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share
Effect of ddutive potential ordinary shares:
Future exercise Aol share awards and op{aons o

Rery O BS 2N ed
(nate 123}
Number Numner

T 27140672924 265221088

5087543 3,869.034

Weighted average number of ofdmary shares for the purDo_,es of diuted £aInNgs ped share
Earnings from continuing operations pershare attributable to the owners of the | parent
Basic earmings per share
[hiuted earnings per shae

Earnings {rom discontinued operations ppr “share attributable to the owners of the p: parent

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share.

 2/6493837 273,190,107

Eammgs from all operations per “share attributable to the owners of the parent

Basic earmngs per share
Ditted earnings e share

H4p 1.80
B4 A7p
{16ip {0 3ip

Gelp 103

38p 4 5p

37p 4 5
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Adiusted sarnings per share 15 included as an Aliernauve Performance Measure (APMT Adjustad earmings ped share s not w
presenied in accordance with 1AS 33 Adjusted earnings per share has been caleulated using adusted earmingu calzulsted 2s profa o
ahier taxavon but belore :
= nod-underlying ems, ';,
- share-based paynments expense, 2
- gan on bargain purchase,
— amortisauion of aecquired ntangible assels, -
— Empadmient, I
—~ the tax effect of the above tems; and o
~n the prior year only, a tax adusiment included on a pro forna asis 1o retlect a full vear of normalised wax charge s if the &
corporate structure was in effect for the full year, g
The calculation ol adjusted basic and adjusied diutad earnings cer shares based on. ®
T T T fepresenieo
{note 123) _
2020 2018
- . - . f00E | £0G0
Earningsrﬁt;n continuing operationﬁé; the purpose of basic and difuted earnings per share 14,569 12,896
Addfrernove)
Imparment 382 -
Amortisaton ot inlangible assets - acquired 1.510 -
Gain on bargan purchase {25,084) -
Non-underlying sems 7632 12,569
Share-based payments expense 12,570 1,202
Tax etiect of adjusimenis above (2,394) {204}
Pro-forma tax adjustment o ] e o - (5,275)
Adjusted earnings for the purposes of adjusted earnings per share 9,185 21.188
T T T S " Re-presenied
nole 123}
L MNumiber EUI’“DBI _
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for tﬁe—pdrbuos_es of adjusted earnings per share 271,406,294 269,271,068

Add.

Additional shares held in trust ) i o
Weighteg average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of adiusted basic earmings per share 302,806,455 296,030,366
Effect of chutive potental ordinary shares -

_31,400061 25,809,808

Future excroise of share awerds and oplions ) 5087543  3.969.034
‘Weighted averagﬁumbe( of ordmar\i_s@irpisfor theEqu_os_gs of adjusted diuted earings per share 307B893.998 300,000,000
Adjusied basic earnings per share T 30p 72p
Adjusted diuted carnings per shaic 30p 7p

Tax adustmonts of £2.394.000 2019 £5,479,0C0) nave been made in arving 51 the adwsted carmings per share This s based on
an estmated full year equivatent effective tax rate Gi 21%, which s largely craven by the UK carparation tax rate of 19% adjusted
upwards 1o take into account the effect ol non-deducible expenses and ighar oveIseas 1ax rates in Certain Eernioenes

Shares held in tust aie i) isued shares that are owned by the EBT and RST and are recogmised, on consolidation, as treasury
shares; less i) the future exercise ol share awards and options
9. Results of DWF Group plc

DWF Group plc. the parent company, “ecorded a toss of £12.886 000 duning the year to 30 Apnl 2020 t:ihe penod ended 30 April
2019. £3,324.000).
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

10. Acquisitions of subsidiaries

Acquisitions in the year to 30 April 2020

Wiere applicable, acquisiion-related renmuneration expense does not reflect the ongoing ermploymant cozts of The indmiduals
retained as part of the acquisiten agreerment The ongoing employmant costs of these indwiduals s expensed in direct costs

at Rousaud Costas Duran S.L.P. - Spain
On 20 Decermntier 2013, DWF Spain S L P, an indirect subsiciary of DWF Group plc, acqured 48% of the issued share capital of
Rousaud Costas Duran S.LFP {RCO, a legal services business registeiedd anc operating in Spaim The rermanng 52% of the share
capial was acquired by DWF Group pic. who then sold its 52% shareholding to BWF Spain S 1L P This ranszcuon exnands the
Group’s geographic footprint
The Sellers consist of mine former equity pariners who have all been retamed gs employees following the sale of the business
Alotal purchase price of £.35.5m lor €45 2m) was agreed between DWF Group ple and the Seiflers, This s compnsed of the
following componants
- £6.3m {or €24my initial cash payment paid on completion. Ts amount s nked 1o the contnuing employment of the Sellers for
a penod of Up to two years following completion. This cash outflow s accounted for as remuneration. 1t s imidily recorded as
a prepaid expense i the consohidated staternent of {inancisl posmon and 15 subsequently recorded &5 an expense in the incomse
staternent (classihied as a non-underlying e} vestuing evenly over the two-year penod

- f94m I €11 0m) defermed cash payments aie dug in four equal instalments over a pencd up 1o December 2021 These cash
payments are also Iinked 10 the contmuing ernployment of the Sellers These future cash outflows are accounted for as
remuneration. An expense in the income statement [classified as a non-underkying tem) s recognised evenly over the two-year
perod

- £18m lor €2.1m) deferred cash payments are due 1 two instalments up to Novernber 2020 This cash outflow s accounted for
as consideration within the scope of IFRS 3 Business combinations.

— £1.7m {or €2.0m) deferred cash payments are payable conungent on BRCD achicving stretching EBITDA rargets for FY20
No continuing employment clause is linked 1o this payment. This ¢ash outflow s accounted for as contingent consideration within
the scope of IFRS 3 Business combinations

~ £9.¥m (or £10.7m} shares issued In five equal tranches that vest separately (o the Sellers over a penod of between one and tive
years 1o Decermher 20724 contingent on continuing empltoyrment of the Sellers This 1s accounted for witrun the scope of IFRS 2
Share-based payments

- £9 1m (or €10.7m) shares issued It five equal tranches that vest separately 10 the Sellers over a penod of between one o five
years 10 December 2024 contingent on continuing employment of the Sellers and steetching EBITDA targets This s accounted for
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based payments.

- £1.3m for €1 3m} shares 1ssued with no contnuing employment or performance condiions attached This s accounted for as
considaraton within the scope of IFRS 2 Business comiinations The fair value of the consideraton was based, inter-aha on the
share price {1.25 pence per ordinary share) on the date ot completicn.

in sumrnary, the purchase pnce of £38.5m {or €45.2m) 1s spht and s accounted for as {olows:

- Consideration £4.6m for €5 4mj} IFRS 3 Busimess combinahions

- Bemuneralicn £15.7m {or €18.4m) IAS 19 Employce benebis

- Remuneration 18 2m{or €21.4m) IFRS 2 Share based payments”

= The tan value of this expense has been calculated using the meithodology a5 set ouin e 25 A 018 2im share-based payment axpense for the penod 1o

December 2024 has been calculated.
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Detals of the considerauon paid and the fair value of nat asseis acquired are as {cllows

ficusaurd Contas
Dutan S L P
Prowisiona by
cerogmised Lo

walue on
acuasaign
000
Consideration paid o o - e
Deterred cash considerauon 1,80%
Deferred and conungent cash consideration 1,736
Inmial share consideration e o 1097
Fair value of consideration ’ - d,Bﬂ
Less )
intangible asseis - customer relatonships 25751
intangible assets - tbrand 536
Intangible assels — softwaie 19
Propatiy, plant and equipment 767
Trade receivables 8.057
Other receivables 5,145
Cash {1.242)
Trade payables 12.017)
Other pavables 14,518}
Other interest bearing ioans and Horowings {184
Deferred tax ahiny ) L 16.572)
Fair value of net assets acquired } T 25,737
Gain on bargain purchase {23,099}

The fair value of acquired vade recevables is £8.1m. The gross contractual amount for tade recevables dug s £10 2m with a loss

allowance of £2.3m recognised on acquisiiion.

A £21 1 gain on bargain purchase has been recogmnised within adminstralive expenses. Remunaraton expense of £2.7mis
recurded in The year i the incame statement classified in non-underdying iterns. A share-based payment expensa of £3 Om relatng

to the RCL> acguisition 1s recorded in the income statement in the year.

Acquisttion-related remuneration expense does not reflect the ongomng employment costs of the individuals retained as part of the

acquisiton agreement The angoing employment costs of these individuals 1s expensed in direct cosls

The acquired business contributed revenues of £12,465 000 1o the group for the penod from 20 Decembear 2019 1o 30 fipnl 2020

Acquisition-related adwisory costs of £1 1m are ncluded in the income statement classified i non-underlying items

Cash flow impact

No cash consideration has been paid in the year. Remuneration Iinked purchase phce of £6.404,000 has pbeen paid i the year —

this 15 included in the statement of cash flows as cash used 1o setile non-underlying stems

bl K&L Gates Jarnka sp k 'K&L Gates’) - Poland

On 20 May 2019, DWF Law LLP a partnership controlled by DWF Group plc, gcquired the legal senvices pusiness K&L Gates which is
registered and operates in Foland. The acquisiion expands the Group's yeographic faotprint This was actveved throuygh thie acquisiton
ol 100% of the share capital of the corporate pariner, which is the only hmited partner of the underiyving trading partnership
The wransaction resulted in DWF Law LLP gbianing contio! of K&L Gates and the underdying partnershig from 1 May 2012

Total cansideration has been provisionally esurmated at £3,015,000, which results 11 a gain on bargain purchase of £2,772,000

{frecognised wathin admiistiative expenses as a nen-underlying item})

lrwbal consideration on compigiinn of £605 000 was pad on 27 May 2019 Deferrend considaration s varable based onihe cash
conversion of acquired work in progress and trade receivabies As a3 resull, total consideration magy Increase of decreasa, of may be
deferred beyond the agreed instatment dates unut the acquired assels conver o cash Oeferred consideralion. subject 10 any

adustment for cash conversion, of £2.410.000 is payable ninstalmeants over 18 imonihs as follows

- £247000 VAT iefund pavabile within 14 days of recerst
£811.000 130%) in Movermber 2019

- £811,000 [30%) in May 2020

— £5471 000 {20%Y iy Nowermnbir 2020
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continuned

10. Acquisitions of subsidiaries continued
Details of the consideration pad and the far value of netgssers acyuued gie as lollows

K& Gaws
Jdrmika spk »AL Gates K&L Gares
Piovgoncity Jamba sp Jamka<pnk
recogused fen Adpsiments o Fndl recogrised
value o far value on far vatue on
4CULISIoN CCQUISHION SCQUSIIeN
o o e . o o foeo o0
Consideration paid
Imieal cash consideraticn pad 605 - 605
Deferred consweration N ) B . 2sa08 2247
Fair value of consideration 3.013 2 3,015
Less:
Intangitiie assets — custormer relaticnshps - 3,695 3,085
Pioperty, plant and equipment 30 - 3N
Trade recevables 2174 18472} 1,335
Cther racaivables 455 771 1,226
Cash 877 E 877
Trade payables {346) 141 (265)
Other payables {Z54) - {254}
Deterrad 1ax liahility o S - {e88)  _ (588)
Fair value of net assets acquired 3,210 2,577 5,787
Gain on bargain purchase {197) {2,575) (2,772)

The fair value of the acqured trade recevables s £1.336,000 The gross contractual amount for trade receivebles due s £1,833,000,
with a loss allowance of £45970600 recognised on acquisit:on.

The acquired business contributed revenues of £9,425 000 to the group for the penod from 1 May 2019 to 30 Aprd 2070
Acquisition-related advisory costs of £0.8m are included in the incame statement classified in non-underiying tems,

Cash floew impact
Cash consideration of £1,663,000 has been paid in the year.

¢} Mindcrest inc.

On 28 February 2020 DWF US Group LLC. 2 100% owned subsidiaty of OWF Group ple, acquired 54% of the issued share capital
of Mindcrest Inc.. a managed services legal business registered and operaungin ihe USA with subsichary operations i the UK and
Incha. DWTF Group plc acguired the remaining 46% of the issued share capital of Minderest Inc DWF Group plc then contributed
theur 46% shareholding in Mindcrest Inc. at its market value of $8 4m 1o DWE US Group LLC 10 excnange for one newly-issued
share m DWF US Group LLC, making them the sole sharghalder of Mindcrest inc Tne group ottamad cantrol from the date of
exchange on 28 January 2020. This iransaction expands DWF's managed servicas ofienngs

Atotal purchase price of £14.2m (or $18.4rm) was agreed between DWFE Group ple and ihe sellers Thisis compnised of the
faltowing components

- £1.8m tor $2.3m} initial cash payment paid on comgleton to the Sellers £0 7m (or $0 8m) of this imual cash payment s inked 10
the continuing employment of cartain key individuals for a penod of up 10 two years follewsng completion. This cash outflow s
accounied for as remuneranon 01s initially recorded as a prepaid expense in the consolidatad statement of finanaial positon and
15 subsequently recorded as an expense in the income staterment Wassilied as a non-underlving wem) vesung evenly aver the
two-year period. The remaining £1 1 {or $15m} initiat cash payment1s accounted lor as consideration withn the scope of IFRS 3
Business Combinatons, :

£5.8m (ar $77m) deferred cash payments sre dug over 3 semaonth pernod 1o August 2020 £2 1m lor §2 7mi of these delerred
cash payments are knked 1o the continuing emplayment of cerian key mdindusls for a parod of up to two years following
complenion This cash outtlow 15 accounted for as remunaraucn recognised evenly in the income stetement {clzssited as 2
non-underlying em) over the penod 10 Feuruary 2022, The remaining £3 8m {or 55.0m) deferred cash cayments are acceunted lor
as consideration within the scope ¢f IFRS 3 Business combinatcns

£3 3m {or 34 2m) shargc ssued en comnpletion thal vest to the Sallers on pubbaation of the FY 2021 resclis This s accountad for
within the scope of IFRS 2 Business combinations The lair value of the considtraton was based inter-aha, on the share pnce
{129 pence per ardinary share) on the date of compietinn
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— £3 3m {or $4 4m) shares ssued on completion that vest to the Seflers on pubhcation of the FY2022 resulis that sre sutject 1o
a cortingent naresiretching threshold revenue geowth dause tor the years ending 31 Dec=olen 2020 and 31 Dacarnber 2021
s 15 accounted for within the scope of IFRS 3 Busingss Combinatens The fair value of the conwidorobon was based, inierela,
on the share price (1 29 pence per ordinary share} on the daie ol compienon.

In summary, the puichase price of £14 2m (o $18 5my is split and 1s accounied for as follows

~ Consideranon £11.5m {or $14.9m} IFRS 3 Busmness combinatons
- Rewmuneratan £2 7mifor $3 6mip IAS 19 Emplovee benefus

Detals of the consideratron paid and the far value of net assets acquired are &s follows

RAGCrest

Inc

Pravisioraliy

recognised fan

value an

acquesilion
]

Consideration p"aid

Inigial cash consideration 1,143
Deferred cash consideration 3,821
Irinial share considleration 3,236
_imual contngent share consideration o ) . 32386
Fair value of consideration T 11,436
Less: ‘

Intangible assets - cusomer relationships 5.036
Intangible assets - brand 1,149
Intangible assets — soltware 15
Property, plant and equiprment ) 103
Deterred tax asset 86
Trade recevables 1.047
Other recevables 705
Cash 98
Trade payables 60}
Other payables {3,809
Other interest-bearing icans and borrowings {550}
Deferred tax hability 7 ) o uEIg)
“Fair value of net assets acquired T ' ) 2310
Goodwill 9,126

The fair value of the acquired trade receivadles 1s £1 0 The gross contraciual amount far nade recovables due s £1 1m o wiih
2 loss allowarce of £0.1m recognised on acquisition.

Goodwill of £9 1m has been recognised on acquisition relaies 1o the benefit of operating an already well catablished business in
a low cost environment 1n India. Remuneration expense of £0 2m s recorded in the yaar in the mcame statement classiied in
non-underlying items,

Acguisihon-relaied remunaeration expense does not reflect the ongoing employrment cosis of the indivduals retained as part of the
acquisiion agreement. The ongong employment costs of these indviduals s expensed in dhrect costs

The acquired business contnbuled revenues of £3,319,777 1o the group lor ihe pencc brom 28 Janwvary 2020 to 30 Apnl 2020,
Acquisiion-related advisary costs of £0.7m are included in the income statements classificd in non underlying iterns

Cash flow impact
Cash cons:deraton of £1.811.000 has been paicd in the year Bemuneranon inked purchase pnce of £ 991 000 has beean paid in the

vear - thus 1s included i the statemert of cash tiows as cash used o setle noa-underbang tems
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Consolidated notes to the financial statemients continued

10. Acquisitions of subsidiaries continued

d) McDonald dohnson

Cn 21 Novermnber 2019 DWFE Law Austraba Py Lid (DOWF') ourchased the trade and assers of McDonald Johnson (the Buainess')
As part of this arrgngernent, on 1 December 2009 DWY acquired the net assels of the Business, and commenced employment of
the Selter and Relevant Emiployees. Although the transzction was completed on 21 Novembe: 2019, tne Group chiaimed control on
1 December 2018 This transasction expands the Group's geograghic presence in Ausuralia,

lotal consideration has been calcutated at £/8.855, which results in @ gan on bargain purchase of £1, 213 004 {racogrnised within
adrministrative @xpenses as a non-undariying iterm).

Details of the considecauon pad and the fair value of net asse uired are as follows
D ol net assets acq

- h i o ) ‘_McDoneLcT

Johnson
Provisionally
cecegrised far
vE'ue on
AcqUISan
) - S B I 2
Consideration paid
Iniial cash consideration paid - - o 78
Fair value of consideration 79
Less
Intangible assets - customer relatonships 1,527
Other recewvables 237
Delerred tox habtty — W
Fair value of net assets acquired 1,292
(1,213}

Gain on bargain purchase

The acqured business conintiuted revenues af £405,000 to the group for the perod trom T Uecemner 201G to 30 Aprd 2020

Cash flow impact
Cash consideraton of £79,000 has beaen pad in the year,

e} BT Law Lirnited
On 23 July 2019 DWF was appainted as strategic legal partner of BT As a result of this appointment, on 21 October 2019, DWF Law

LLP a pertnership controlled by DWF Group plc, acquired the share capnal of the legal services business BT Law Limited, which s
registered and operates in th2 United Kingdem. Consrderation equal 10 the ret asset value of the tusimess s prowsionally estimated
a1 £84,000 and was paid on ) November 2018, Net assets acquired included £51,000 of cash

Acquisittons tn the year to 30 April 2019
There were no matenal acquisitions during the year.
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11. Discontinued operations

133

On 30 Apnl 2029, the Group disposed of the business of the Cologne otfice i Germany and the resulis of that business are
reported n the current pediad as 3 disconttnued operation Financial miormation relating 10 1he discontnued gperatan far the penod

15 521 out below

2020 2019

080 £:000
‘Netrevenue O 3ann azrn
gr?(;l Costs L (2,184} o 12.164)
Gross profit ) T T - 987 2,061_
Adminisirative expenses _ . is.288)  12.773)
Operating profit ) {4.301) i712)

\j\d'justéd operating prohit

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

T 3.647) 71
{654) -

Loss befoﬁji_r - . _ “-iﬁg _ (_}EZ)
Taxauon ) e _ T
Loss from discontinued operations {4,301} (712)

Further discontinuation and scale back programmes
in a trading statement on 9 July 2020, the Board announced turther disposals, closures and scaling back programmes n Brussels,
Singapore and Dubai as well as Tor OWF Resource (a part of the Connectey Services division). The resulls lor these husingss are nal
treated as discontinued in the period as the decision was taken sfter the vear end These operations represented €. 1.5% of the

Group's revenues and generated a £4.5m EBITDA loss n FYZ0.

12. Intangible assets and goodwill

Caprahsed

Acgured
Customix External developiment
Goodwil relationships Brand  schware costs Costs Toet

o £°000 £7000 £°000 e o0 £000
Cost ) T
At 1 May 2019 2,589 - - 1.58C 3,260 7429
Addiions through acquisitons 9,126 35,410 1,685 35 - 46,256
Additions — internaily devetoped - - - 3.823 3,823
Agditions — externally purchased - - - 293 - 293
_Effect ef movements in foreign exchange 124) s = 15 s s
AL30 April 2020 , 691 39211 Le8s 1973 _7083 57593
Amortisation and impairment T - N
A1 May 2019 319 - 538 72,031 2,888
Amarusation for the year - 1,351 159 469 1.035 3.014
Imparrment 1,036 - - - - 1.036
Eifect of movements in loreign exchange i - - - - A
At30Aprid 2020 1,35 1351 15% 1007 3,066 5,933
Net book value ) ____’_____"H___ o
At 30 April 2020 10,335 33.860 1526 916 4017 50.654
At 1 May 2019 2,270 - - 1,042 1,229 4,541

The unpairment expense ncludes £654.000 relaling to the disconinued operauon (see note 11). The remaining mpainment expense
of £382 000 relates to DWFE 360 (5 part of 1he Connected Services dvision) foilowing a vear of poor performance relating 1o assets
acguired as part of the Mistonc acquisiion.
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

12 Intangible assets and goodwill continued
Irdvidual intangible assels that are materal 1o the fingnoial statements are set out below:

~ Customer refatonsinps - Spain Mel book walue at 30 April 2020 £24,898 000 (G193 £rulf - retnainmg srmorbsalion penod s
9 6 vears

- Cusiomer relationships - Managed Servces (vinderest) Net book value at 30 Apnl 2020 £4,512.000 (2019 Znill - remaining
arnorusation penodas 9 8 yoars

- Cusiomer relationships - Poland Net book value 21 30 Apnt 2020 £2.784,000 12019 £nif} - remaining amortisanon peniod (s
9.0 years

- Customer relationstups - MeDonald Jonnson Net book valoe at 30 Apal 2020 £1.463.000 (2019, £nil) — remairung amartisation
penodis 9.6 years

- Capitahsed development costs — Managed Secvices Net book value al 30 Aprd 2020 £1,600,000 (2019, £nil] ~ remairing
amorusation peniod 15 3.0 vears

o Acawsed Cauu:aiu-ﬁf-:d
Cusiomer cxtemnal develapmeni
Goodwall relanionships Brand sofiware cosis 0515 Toreal
. L £0Ca €633 £000 £43G0 £ 030G f_?ﬂ;?
Cost ' T T )
At 1 Meay 2018 2.057 - - 943 7,679 5,674
Aclchtions through soausions h35 - - - - 935
Additions — internaily developed - - - - 581 581
Addiuons — externally purchased - - - 639 - 639
Etfect of movernenis n toreign exchange Z - - 2} - _ =
At 30 April 2019 - 2589 - s 3260 7429
Amorstisation and imb;irment
At 1 May 2018 321 - - 152 1,400 1873
Amorusation for the year - - - 386 631 1.017
_Fllect of movements in foreign exchange 2) - - - - (7
At 30 April 2019 ] 315 - - 539 2031 2888
‘Net book value T T o - -
At 30 April 2019 : 2.270 - - 1,047 1229 asa
At 1May 2018 1,731 - - ™M 1.273 3,801

The above capitalised development costs relale to the development of software used internally and as products for clents of
the Group.

Goodwill
Gaodwill considered sigmiicantin compansan 1o the Group's total casrying armcunt of such assets have been aliocaied 1o cash
generating uruts or Groups of cash generating units as follows.

2020 204

9

. i o i o Ened £0D0
‘Managed Services T T e T o - - 9,126 Z
_Oiher ndwadually immatenat COUs ) . 1,209 2270
- ‘ i B 10,235 2.270

Coodwil srising on busmess combinations s not amortised but reviewed tor iImparment on an annual basis, or more frequently
i there are indications 1hat geodwill may be wparred. Imparrment reviews were parformed by companng the carmying value

of goodwill wath the recoverable amount of the cash generating urits ('CGU'} to which goodw! has been allocated.
Recoverable amounits for cash generating urtis are the higher of far value less costs of disposal, and vaiue in use.

Recently acguired nusinesses are parlonming in hne wath the investinent case approved by the Board.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are delermined from value 1inuse calculauons. The calculations have been based on

# thscounted cash fleny moded covenng a nenad of five years using forecest revenues and casts, extanded to perpetudy The inputs
inte the maodel apprognately conside: the relevant market matunty and local factors The first yesr of the forecdst 1s established from
the budget ior FY21 whieh s urderpinned by the business plan that has been signed off by the Board The outer yeers have been
inchaded on a consistent bas:s wath the Board approved sirategy. in cach case, the ¢afcuiatons use a giowth rate of 7% and 2
pre-tax discount rate ol 10-70% Ihesea pro-tax discount rates reflect current market assessmants for the time vatua of money and
the nsks asseoiated waty the CGUs & the Group manages 1S Lreasury iuncios on g group-wide basis The long-term growth rates
used are based on management's experiatons of lutura chsnges i thi: markets lor eacn CGL

Swgnibicanmt headroom exists for gach COU No reasonable worst-case sCENano gves nse 1o anmpanment sk Gn s Basis, no

sensinaly s diacinsed
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Oftice
eauiproent And
Highral-use L easenold fixlwres and Compuie:
assel I GyEMEnts IRtngs equipmeani Toral
£'000 £o00 £000 000 £000
Cost o T
Aty May 2019 - 16,230 10,944 36,971 64,145
Adjustment on ransition o tFRS 16 70.342 - - - 70.342
Additions thvough acquisitions 6,246 324 592 233 7395
Additians 2,649 185 751 2,584 8,169
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange . - 43 R ) 50 _ B8
At 30 April 2020 . ) 81,237 16,782 2282 39,838 150,139
Accumulated depreciation o )
A1 May 2019 - 11,665 6,051 32,397 50,113
Charge for the year . o ns8e 1071 187 2463 162951
At 30 April 2020 T T Taass 12736 7,188 34,860 66,364
Net book value o 7;¥ T _ o T
At 30 April 2020 T  69.657 4,046 5,004 4978 83775
At 1 May 2019 ~ 4,565 4,893 4,57 14,032
- Offce i
equipment and
Faghi-of-use { easennld fixires and Computer
ASSE] mprovements fmngs equigment Tonal
£°000 £000 £000 £000  F000
Cost - - T
At1 May 2018 -~ 15,704 3,868 34377 59,949
Additons - 540 1.084 2.589 4,213
Efiect of movemenis in foreqgn exchange - - {14) (8) s an
At 30 Aprsil 2019 ) e 16,230 10,344 36,971 64,145
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 May 2018 - 10,624 5,281 29,860 45,765
(Charge for the year ~ 100 770 2,537 4,348
At 30 April 2019 , - 11,665 6,051 32,397 50.113
Net boak value T o S : o 7 N
At 30 April 2019 4,565 4,893 4,57 14,032
At 1May 2018 - 5,080 4,587 4,517 14,184

!

s.cto, sfapag

I

ADULUIGACT

[

1

4



‘]73 DWY Group ple
Arogai tepo avdl finangeal 5 atemaas 2020

Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

14 Investments

2620 7019
. £000 000

[Investments B
AL the s1ai and al the end of 1he year 254 254

The Group holds a £204,000 investment (10% interest) in Dealscoper Limited and £50,600 investment (<0 1% nterest) in
Mercantile Ports and Logistics Limied, these are deemed 1o be spproximate (o the investment's fair value based cn management
information gvailable. The Group has investments in the tollosng undertakings, all are held as ordinary shates.

P};!mc-wal pl::e:e Propornon

Regisieicg address of busmess Nzlwe ol Qusiness of ownarship
E{J‘bsidiaries N S T - - i
Direct
DWF Holdings Limited | UK Investrmeant holding 100%
OWF GroupiysyuLee vl UsA _ lnvesiment holding 100%
Indirect o T
DWF {TGY Limited? | [SE4 Irivestrment holding Note 1
DWF LLP I ux Legal services Note 7
DWF Law 1L P l UK Legal services Note 1
DWE(ND LLP 1 UK Legal services Note 7
Vueniy Lirmned ! UK Connected services Note 1
DWF Costs Linuted” 1 UK Connected services Note 1
OWF Ciaims { imited? i UK Connected services Note 1
DWF Advocacy Limiied® ! UK Connecled services Note 1
DWF Forensic Lirmed! i UK Connecled services Note 1
DWF Ventures Linuted® i UK Cannected services Nate 1
DWEF Adjusting Limied! i UK Connecled services Note 1
DWF Resgurce Limited® i UK Connected services Note 1
DWF Conngcted Services Holdings Lid® j UK Connecled services Note 1
DWE Company Secretanal Services Limited?® i UK Connected services Note 2
Greyfern Law Limiteg? 1 UK Connected services Note 2
Dawvies Walhs Foyster | immited i UK Non-trading Note 2
Dawvies Wallis (unhmited)’ i UK Dormant Note 2
DWF Salkcitors Limiled! | LK Dormant MNote 2
DWF (Tiustee) Limited i ux Dormant Note 2
DWFE Norminees Limitad’ i UK Dormant Note 2
Resolution Law Limuted® 1 UK Dormant Note 1
DWF Middie East Group LLP 1 UK Dormant Note 1
DWF (Norminges! 2013 Limited! i UK Darmant Note 2
Harborne Road Nomunees Limited' ; LK Dormant Note 7
DWF Connecied Services Limied? 1 UK Dormant Note 2
DWF Cennected Sarvices Group bimied? ' UK MNon-trading Note 1
Neawreo 4736 Limied? 1 LK Dormant Note 1
Bailioid Trusizes Lvmied' il UK Dormant Note 2
Battford EQT Trustees Limited! i UK Dormant MNote 2
DWF Trusies (Scotand) Limned! n LIK Dormant Note 2
DWF Directors {Scotland) Limited! 1 UK Dormant Note 2

DWT Secretangl Services (Scotiandt Linvted' M UK . Dormant Note 2
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- o Pancipal place P!Gpcr’il:l_: w
_ Regisiered addiess ol business Natne of business of ownershiy >
Indirect continued T T T T 13
OWF Pension Tiustees Uimited W UK Dormant MNoie 2 ;'
DVWF 360 Limited | UK Soltware provider Note %
EBT v UK Trustees MNoie 3

RST Y UK Trustees Note3 Lo -
DwWF (France) AARPP i France Legal services Note 2 -
DwE Ciaims (France) SAS Vi France Connecied services MNote 1 o
DWEF Holding GbR Vil Germany Investment holding Noie 2 ‘Ej
DWF Garmany BmbH vl Germany Legal services Note 2 3
DWF L1 Siudio Legale Associato ix ltaty Legal services Note 2 ®
DWF Claims (ttalyl S r L % Italy Connected services Note 1

DWF % RO Legal services MNote2 |
DWF Claims {ireland) Lirnited X ROt Connected services MNote |

DWF Dublin Secretariat Limited’ x RO Dormant Noie 2 T
DWEF Poland Haolidings Sp 2 c.o. XXi Poland Invesiment holding Note 1 g
DWF Poland Jamka sp k xxi Poland Legal services Noie 1 =2
W Span S LP? XXV Spain Investmeant holding Noie 1 £
Rousaud Costas Duran S.L PU AXVi Spain Legal services Note 1 g
Rousaud Costas Duran Abogatos S LPLU KXV Spamn Legal services Naie 1 @
Rousaud Costas Duran Ceoncursal S L P xxvi Spain Legal services Naoie 1
Rousaud Costas Duran Valenca ST .PU vt Spain Legal services MNoie 1 o
RCD Tax & Legat Advisars S.L.PU XXVi Spain Legal services Note 1 g
Gestart Assessors S LU XAV Spain Legal services Nate 1 3
Gestart Asesoramiento Empresanal S LU XXV Spain Legal services Nole 1 3
DwF Law Australia Pty Limited xi Australia Legal services MNote 1 %
Dw Austraha Holdings Piy Lid xi Austraha Legal services Note 1

DWF Claims (Australa) Pty Limited ®il Australa Connected services Noie 1

DWIF Adusung [Australial Pty Limited X Australia Connected services Note 1

DWF Claims (Canada) Limited xin Canada Connected services Note 1

DWF Adjusting (Canada) Limited Xt Canada Connected services Note 1

DWF Comphance {Singapore) Pte Limited Xiv Singapore Connected services Note 1

Triton Glebal Claims (Asia) Pre Lmmined K Singapare Dormant Note 1

Trton Global Claims (HK) Piy Limned »vi Hong Kong Dormnant Note

DWF {Middie East LLP Vil UAE Legal services Note 1
Mindcrest Inc 2 XX USA Legal services 100%
indcrest iinda) Private Lenited Xt India Legal services 100%
findcrest IUK) Lieried? NN UK Legal servicas 100%

DWFE Claims (USAI LLC *vith USA Connecled services Note 1

_Moa: Pensions Limited o UK Connected services Note 2
Other Investments - - T

Deatscoper Limited *IX UK Software provider 10%
Mercantile Ports & Logisucs Limited o L x Guernsey _Assetinvestiment <0.1%

1 Subsidiary undeaakings bave been excluded friom the consohdauen on the bams of mmatenabiy.
2 The staiuicry yea: 2nthin the panad bong reparted s 31 Degemder
3 Lnaiines have clarmad audit exempuion for the yoas 10 30 Aonl 2020 under Sechion 4794 ol the Compames Act 2006

4 Thege entties wer2 mcorporaied wiisn hingnaal year 2020

Mote 1 DWF Group ple indirectly controls these eatties by vitue 13 designated membership of DWE Law LLP

Mote 2 DWF Group ple sdrectly contials ihese entiies by vidoe of Governance Agreements and Intia-Group Agreamenis
bemween the Cormpany, DWI Law LLP DWF LLP end other related subsidiary undertakings

MNote 3 These vusls ars consohdaled as 7 ey were subsdanes of the Group.
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

14. tnvestments continued

i | Scon Place, 2 Hardman Street, Manchester, Umited Kingdom, M3 2AA
1] 42 Queen Street, Bellast, BT1 6HL

L 10 Queen Sureet, Glasgow, Scolland, G 3HD

av) 5 SiPaul's Square, Old Hall Sireet, Liverpoot, L3 9AE

v 13-14 feplanade, 5t Heller, Jorsey, JF1 1EE

{v1) 137-139 rue de PlUnwersine, 75007 Pans

twiiy  Habsburgernng 2, Westgate, 50674 Cologne, Germany

ivi)  Pranzregentenstralie 78, Munich, DE-81675

{ix}  Via de! Bossi 6, Milano, ltaly, 20177

{x) 5 George's Deck, IFSC, Dublin

txi}  Level 6, 231 George Street, Bnsbane, QLD 4000

(xr) 48 Hunter Sireet, Sydney

(xim} 111 Queen Street East, Suite 450, Tormnia, Ontano, MSC 152
(xav) 9 Rallles Place. #58-0 Repubdic Plaza, Singapore. 048619

(xv) 8 Cross Street, #24-03/04 Manulife Tower, Singapore, 048424

xvil - Suie 1101-1103, 11/F The Hong Kong Clut Buitding, 3a Chaitar Hoad Central, Hong Kong
xvit] PO, Box 507104, Office 901 & 904, Tower 2, Al fFattan Currency House, DIFC, Duban

fxvii) 240 Waukegan Road, Deerfietd, Chicagoe, tlinois, 60015

(xix)  Harow Heouse, 23West Street, Haslemere, Suniey, GU27 2AB
(xx}  Martelio Court, Admural Park, St Peier Port, Guermnsey, GY1 3HEB
xxil  plac Starmstawa Malachowskiego 2 00066 Warsaw

Ixxi} 425 S Financial Place, Suite 1100, Chicage, 1L 6060%

txxin) 603/604 Block D, Wekhield IT-Ciu info Park, Nagar Rd, Vadgaon Shen, Fune, 411014

bexv) 1 Scott Place, 2 Hardman Streei, Manchester, United Kingdom, M3 3AA
txxvt Calle Serranc, 116, 28006 Madrid

Pixviy Calle Escoles Pies, 162, 08017 Barcelona

{xxvit) Moratin 17 46002 Valencia

(ocvind 251 Lintle Fals Drive, Wimington, Delaware 19808
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15. Trade and other receivables

139

T 020 2009
- . . _Fooo  £000
Traué?ég&}n@?(rer of allowance lor doubtiul recm\;éblesl o T ) 108,727 86,022
Other recewables 4,950 5,108
Amounts recoverable from chents in iespect of unbilied revenue 64,379 53,996
Unbilled disbursements 8,501 6,279
Prepayments and accrued mcome 20,298 11,9M
Rembursement asset” 852 852
S o N Y 5 7+ SR TP =T
Mon-current -
_Other recenables - 7 152 152
Prepaymenis and SCCTUBS INCOME o o ' 1,177 -
11,329 1H7

1

uote) abs.eng |

!
|

BIUBLIINOT; W

¢ Reimbursementasset sttnbulable 1o FOIL picvisiun, see noie 20

Trade recevables disclosed above include amaurs which are past due at the reporing date but against which the Group has not

recogrised an allowance tor doubtlul recevables because there has not been a sigrificant change in credit quality and
are sidl considered recoverable

the amounis

Noncurrent prepayiments and acerued income relates (o the prepad ri2muneraion expense ansing as a result of e acqusiions

of Span {10,752, 000} and tMindcrest {£425,000)

Ageing of trade receivables

2020 2019
o000 £000
Trade receivaolas not past due 39,820 33,656
Trade recevables past due
0 -90 days 46,810 37368
91 - 180 days 13,403 7548
181 - 270 days 5,935 1.820
271 - 365 days 2,992 2172
More than 365 days 11,638 6,992
' o 120,598 92 556
Liletime expected credit losses are used 1o measure the loss allowance These balances are held against trade recewvailes.
Movement in allowance for doubtful receivables
T oo e e e - 2020 2015
N o - ~_ t'oee _£'000
‘Brought forward provision T T 6.534 3,854
Impact ot tansion 1o IFRS 9 - 2,510
Frovision utiised and other movernents 956 (2,206)
Charges i income statement . . 4,381 2,376
- B 11,871 6,534
These balances are helg against tiade recervables. Charges 1o the ncome statement include £1,086,000 (019, Enu) refating to
dhisconunued operations,
16. Cash and cash eqguivalents
- T ST B o T “Tz020 0 e
000 £000
Cash al bank and v hand 31,212 12,912
Bank overdrafts L _ (2,485) (2.0901
"Cash and cash equi er sta ' 10,822

Cash and cash eﬁui-\iéilic:;{i;p-oer staternent of cash Hlows 28,727

=
5
1
]
2.
2
a
g
§
3
2
@
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

17. Trade and ather payables

2009

2020
] ) ) o £000 £000_
TTrade payables - - T T S i 26,779 24,756
Other pavebles 15,133 7657
Other 1axahion and socid! secunly 26,224 2879
Accrgats and delered meome 1,697 10,291
Opelaung lease ncentves _ o L VL L2
T T T T 79,833 753,995
Non-current
Qperating lease incentives o - 10,072
B T - _ 10,072

The Group has given a guarantee in favour of 15 Austrahan bank of AUD 400,000 (2019 nd). Through that same bank, the Group has

issued renial guarantees 1o s fandlords of AUD 2,971,820 (2019 AUD 2.8/71,8201

The Group has a rental guarantee in 1avour of a German landlord for €145,000 and n the favour of its Polish landlord for €245,000.

18 Lease {iahilities

£000
TMay 2019 B T T {87302)
Additions {9,832}
Interest expense related 1o lease labilites 12,047)
Net foreign currency ranslation gan {198)
Repayment of lease habilves (including intesesy_ R, L L
30 Apritzo02z0 B ) {84,678)
Cunrent lease habihmes {12,981
Non-current lease labitives _ {71,697
ST T e e e B T (84,678)
The maturity of lease kabilities at 30 April 2020 were gs follows
- - Lease
payrments
£'C00
Year 1o 2021 - - T 14.847)
Year 10 2022 {13,753)
Year 10 2023 (13,604}
Year to 2024 [11.286)
Later years 39,702)
Effect of discourtung 7930
Fliect ol movernentin loreign cuirency Uanslaborn rates L - B o 7 21
“Lease lability at 30 April 2020 - I T 7 (8a,678)

The undiscountad contractual cash flows relaung o leasc habilies accovnted forin accordance with IFHS 1645 £92,608,000.

Further intormation regarding leases s set cutin note 171
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19. Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
This note provides informauion abow! the contractual terms of the Group's interest-beanng 1oans and Borowings, which are
mezasured @ amoertised cost For more information ahout the Group's exposure 10 nierest rale and foregn currency nsk, refer

o nowe 7

Obligations under interest-hearing loans and borrowings

2070 Tome
£000 _£oon
Current liabilities - - T B
Bark loans 4,464 4,655
Supphe: payment faciity 310 2,283
Bank overdraits 2.485 2,080
T - 7259 9.028
MNon-current fiabifities
Bark loans 89,1594 39,791
(_fia_;_nﬁh_sed lizan afrangement feas B o o o _ o j?_ﬂ) o €595)_
h S 88,815 39,196
T 96,07 48,774
T T T - T ' 2020 2019
£'000 £000
Terms of re_;:;z-)yment of bank loans and overdrafts
Within ong year 7259 9,028
Betweon one and five years 88,815 39,196
Total bank {oans and overdrafts 9607 48374
Contractualt terms of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
it - Z2 ! —_ rrerastl - -
Carying 2018
MNorminal Yoea of Fair value amount Far valwe  Carrying amount
Curnency Interes! rate maluriy £'000 £°'000 £°000 7000
RCF T GBP {IBOR+1.4% 2022 79334 79336 38.405 38.405
RCF EUR EURIBCR+14% 2022 9,321 9.321 - -
Unsecured bank loans GBP 3.75% 2020 23 23 109 109
Unsecured bank foans EUR 2 00% 2020 176 176 79 79
Unsecured bank toans AUD 6.50% 2027 244 244 563 563
Unsecured bank loans GRre 1.77%-2 84% 2019-2021 4,171 4,171 4,695 4,695
Unsecured bank loans usD 150% 2020 10 10 - -
Suppher payment facility Ger No rate 2020 310 210 2,283 2.283
Bark overdiafls cBp Base+115% 2020 2,485 _ 2485 2,090 2.050
B - 496_6“;'47 96,074 48,224 48,224

Note 13 sets ovt changes 1o the financial covenants attached to the RCF held with the Group's banking syndicate.

Ve afeleng

ajueseng

Slwawalers jeueuly
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

20 Provisions

Dilapidations provision

Diiapdation prowsions 3re estabhshed for wear and tear of property leases, held a1 the date of the statement of hinancal posinon.
Such provisions are estmated at the start of the lease and updated annually The Gioup's current lease porifolio terminate gver the
course of the next 10 years

FQIL provision

The: Forum of Insurance Lawyers (FOIL provision represents the total VAT (parnal exempuon) exposure on histonc claims handhng
engagements There s an altnbutable reimbursement zssetin note 15, resulung n net exposuie of £400,000 as at 30 Aprd 2020
(2018, £4D0.000} The enguny 15 ongoing and therefore i1 is not possibile 10 estimate when the provision will crystaiise

2020 T T
- o N i o - foo0 {000
Dil'apidatians provision T
Balance at heginmuing of the year 1,329 119
Provisions mzde dunng the yeas 233 1.440
Provisions ysed duning the yaar - {2000
Provisions raveised dunng the year 7 B - $130)
Balance atthe end of the year ) T ) 1,552“_ B 1,329
Non-cursent 1,567 1,329
Current o ) ) - -
o T - T T T Tysez T 1339
FOIL provision
Balance at beginning of iha year 1,252 1,252
Pravisions reversed during the year _ - -
Batance at the end of the year B 1,252 1,252
Non-current . - -
Current § R 1352 1 252
1252 1,252
Total provisions
Balance at beginning of the year 2,581 1an
Provisions made dunng the year 233 1,440
Provisions used during the year - {200
Provisions reversed dunng the year s {30)
‘Batance at the end of the year T 2,814 2,581
Non-current 1,562 1,329
Curent _ _ ] o 1,252 1252
2,814 2.581

21. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Directors have overall responsility for the oversight of the Group's risk mansgement framework. Further exclanation on
management ol nisk factars are provided i the risk section of the Strategic repont

The Group's principal finanal instruments comprise trade and other recevables, unbilled reveniue, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other pavables. bark borrowings and capital contributions from parners.

Credit risk

Credit risk s the nisk of fingngial 1oss to the Group o a chent or counterpanty 1o a financial instrument fails 1o meet ts contracioal
ablgatens, and anses pancipally frorm the Groun's recewables Credit checks are performed for new chients and ongaing maomtonng
takes place for exisung chents,

Ligqueehity risk

Liquiehily risk ss the nisk that the Group will nat be able to meet ts hnanaial cbhigatons as they tall due. The Group roamtans
sulficieni cash of working cepiial tacihines 1o meet the cash requirements of the Grouo i order 1o mitigate ths nsk.

The Group s linanced through a combmation of partners’ capiial repayable onretrermeaent of the Mermber), undistibuled protis,
cesh and bank borrowing facibites
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The Group's prncipel faciiy 15 & F8O Om revolving credit faciliy (RCFY Details of amounts diawn can e found i note 13
IManagement underiake rolang thirteen week cash flow forecasts o ensure visibidity of snort term hgudity and nianage facilty
usage, 0 aduiion 10 annual budgets and longer term forecasts The RCF fachity matsies n 2022 and thexe are no contiacted
repayments until that date The Group anticipates continued uthsation of e fachiy 10 fund business growth

fote 13 sets out changes © the financigl covenants attached to the BCF held witts thie Group's Baoking syndicats

Market risk
farket nzk ss the risk that changss in market prices, such as foreign exchenge rates and nterest rates will affect the Group's

mccme The Group's exposure Lo market nsk predomanantly relates o mierest and cutiency nsk

Interest rate risk
The Group's bank barrowangs incur both lixed and verighle interest charges. The vanatle rates are linked 1o LIBOR plus & marqin

Forgign currency risk
The Group has overseas operatiuns 1n Europe, Middle East, Asia, Australia, Canada and North Amenca and s therefore exposed 10

changes i the respective curencies in these territones. The Group maintaing bank balances inlocal currency Cash positions are
monitored and any imbalances are deatt with by purchasing cunrency at the spot rate

Fair value measurement
The {air velue of each class of inangial assets and liabilittes s the canyme amaunt, based on the following assumpuons

- Trade recgwables, nade payables and short lerm borrowmgs - The fan value appioamates 1o the carrying value because of the
short maturiy of these instruments

- Long term borrowings — The majonty of the value of the Group's borrovangs are on a vanable rale inked 1o LIBOR. Interast on
this 15 paig quarterly. Therefore the fair value of bank loans and other loans spproximaies Lo the carrying value reported 1n the
statement of fimancial position

T T T 2020 2009
Netes f'!)im o EiDD_

C-as'hiaa?:i_gaaieqd&%nts_ T e % 28727 10,827
Measured at amornised cost
Trade and other recewabies 15 187403 152,257
Fawr vatue through the profit or loss.

Invpstments o 254 254
Total financial asseits 216,330 163,333
Measured ar amortised cost:

Trade and other payables 17 68,136 53,776
iease ablites s 84,678 -
Boanowings 19 93 589 46,134

Amounts due 1o mernbers of partnerships i the Group o 0 35852 38071
Total financial hahilities ’ 282 255 137981

Financial instruments sensitivity analysis
The Group has cxposure 1o Interest rate and foreign exchange rate movements given the nature of its borrowangs and operations.
Al the end of the year, the effect of hypothetcat changes ninterest and currency rates are as folloves

Interest rate sensshivily
A change of 100 basis points i interest rates at the staiement of financial position date would have increasadfidecreased) equity

and income statement by the amounts shown below. This calcwlaiion asswines that the change aocurred ar the statement ot
{mancial position date and had becn applied to risk exposures existing 2t that date.

This analysis assuimes that all other vanables, in particular foreign cuirency rates. remain constant and considers the effect

of tmancial instrurments with vangbla interest rates, finanoal instruments gt 1an value through profil of toss or available for sale
weith fixed interest iates and the hxad rate elerment of mitarest rzte swaps The apzlyss s perlormed on the sarme Bosis for

compalative penods
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Consolidated notes to the Ginancial statements continued

21 Hinancial instruments continued
Ihe mpact of the resulis in iha Necome statement and eGuty would be

2020 g

. 1. S
(704} (501}

frpact 00 Drofn-or ioss

Apecrease of 100 basis points i interest rates would have had the equal tutl opposile effect (o the amounts shawn zbove, on the
D261 1hat all other varables remain constant There would be neghgitle impact on gross assels
Forcign exchange rate sensitivity

£ 10% weakerning of the tollowang currencies against the pound sierling would have decrcased equity and prolit or toss by the
amounts snown below This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the statement of fingnoal positon date and had been

apphed 10 nsk exposures exisung al that date

I'his analysis assumes that all other vanables, in particular interest rates, remam constant 1he analysis s performed on the same
basis lor comparalive perods

Tre Group vansacis n the following currencies which have been incorporated inio the sensiivly analysis. Euro, US Gollar,
Australan Doliar, Singaporean Bollar, UAE Drham, and Canadian Doltar

The impact of the esulis 1n the income statement and statement ot comprehenswe income and equsty would e

R 020 2009
- - o 1000 [ooo
impact on cquity ) {g) (1,316}

lempact on profil or loss {6.662) 11,001

Impact on gross assels (6.011) 13.078)

6,004 1,762

Impact on gress hablies

A 0% strengtheming of the above currences againsi the pound sterling would have had the equal but opposie effect on the above
currencigs 1o the amounis shown above, on the basis that all other vanables remain constant

22. Deferred taxation
The deferred tax assot as at 30 Agnt 2020 15 as follows:

T ; 2020 2018
B e - £a00 ) Cooe

Assets B ) o o
Balance a1 the beginning of year 933 -
Ansing on group resiruciune - 636
Acgured 85 -
Deferred tax detnt recognised directly in equity {198) -
Delerred 1ax credit in the income stalement for the year 2,195 297

Exchange rate vanslauon ‘ B 2w -
atance at the end o 7 ' ) 3,294 933

Balance at the end of year

£228.000 {2019 £nil) of 1he balance at the end of the year is classified as a current assct as 11 1s expecied to be vnlised within

one year

Tne Group deferred tax asset arises a3 a result of tax on share-based payments. £1.8m (2018 £0 2my). future deductions avai'able on
property, plant and equpment £0.9m {2019, £0.6m) and future deductions avarlable on tex losses caried forward £0.6m {2018 £l

it 15 anticipated that ithe Group and related subsidiary undertakings will make sufficient taxeble profit 10 allow the benehn of the
dojorred tax asset fo be uliised. A potential deforred tax asset of £0.7m (2019 £0.6rm) has not been recogmised relaling 1o 12x lpsses

The deferred 1ax hebiity as at 30 Apnl 202015 as follows:

e T T 2020
_foog fopo

Balance at beginming of year
G goly

Ansing on acguastion mtangibles 9,250 -
Deterred tax crodin the income statemant for theyear o ) {366} -
Baitance at the end of year 8,884 -

Tne Group defereed 16x abiily relates 10 the recogmbion of acquwed mlangble assets ansing on conschdaton
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23. ‘Shwe cap:tal

T ST - ﬂOr’dgal—y ‘\har‘- i Tteasury
Mumber shares premigm shales Towal
of Ipesc £e0g £000 _fooo oo
tssued and fully paid ordinary shares - T
O ncorporanon 1 - - - -
_Shares issued 7 ) 299,998,999 3.000 63367 - EBB1B7
At 30 Aprazons T 300000000 3.000 63,167 o 66167
Shares issued in acqussition of Rousaud Costas Duran S L PU 19,929,927 185 19,037 (20 15,212
Shares issued in acquisition of Minderest Inc 5,028,726 51 6406 - 5457
At 30 Aprii 2020 324 554,653 3.2456 88 610 20} 91,836

On 20 Decemnber 2019, DWF Group ple issued 17559, 755 ordinary shares with a nommal value of £0.01 each 1o Rousaud Costas
Duran SLE On the same day the EBT agreed (o subscrbe for 1,866,172 newly 1issued shares 10 ba held by the EBT for the benefit of
emgloyees ol Bousaud Cosias Duran S1LP anly One of the RCD Seflers {Carmaral 7000 SLPY who had recewed consideration shares
then agreed to liansfer 1,145,755 of us shares to the £3T as a gift 10 be held by the EBT for the benefit of employees of Rousaud
Costas Ouran SLP onfy. The total of shares lhat was ssued altogether in refation to the acqusition of Rousaud Costas Duran SLP

15 19,525927

On 28 Fabruary 2020, DWF Group plcissued 5.028,726 crainary shares wilit @ nominal value of £0 G 2ach inrelation to the

accnsingn of Mindarest [ne

24, Reserves
The following descrnibes the nature and purpese of each reserve within equity:

Share premum The amount ubsr‘ﬂbed ior share capitalin excess 5 of the nominal value. o o
Treasury shares The treasury shorec 1eserve represents shaies in DWF Group pic held by the {_uroup_s share lrugt',

- B The trusts are cansaofidated i the Group's knancial sigterments
T\AE—,‘!’QEI reserva The difference between tne norminal value of shares acquzrmd by the Cc:mpany mn the share-for-share

exchange with the former DWF LLP members and the nominal value of shares issued o acguue them.

Share-based payments The cumulative share-based payment expense net of release of amounts i respect of option exercised
7r¢ECfVC _

Translevon reserve Gaingflosses in translaung the net asscts of overseas operations intc GBR.

(Accumulated lossesy All other net gains and losses and ransactions with owners not recognised elscwhere.

retained earnings

25. Share-based payments
Charge to the income statement
The Group operates two share-based payment plans. both of which are equily setiled.

The charge 10 the mcome statement s set gut below

- - 2020 201
000 £'60n
Share pian:;:_ T o
Eouiny mcentve plan (EiR) 5,503 193
Buy-gs-you-eain plan {BAYE} - B 5096 860
- T S T T hisss oa
See ial sec Jrny expens? o S T 971 a9
Total expense 32,510 v, 702

[1etails of Directors’ share awards are set out in the Directors” Remuneration Report In adoibon 1o Directors, some of the senior
management team receved EIP share awards.

Withnn gach olan. grants are made 1o eligble eriployees tvough one of scveral schemes as described belaw

wada: 38s1eng

I
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

25 Share-based payments continued
Share awards under the OWF Group pic 2020 EIP - IPO avward
ALIPO, awards were granted consisbing of condmions! and resincied share swards made 1o a mited number of the senipr

management [eam

Mavemens i the number of shares guistanding and thed eaercise prees e set oul below

- - - T T Numbr;-o' Numbe_r of
arares for shares for
wehuch owvards Awvards frevards fwensds which pwards
Share Lrercize outsianding qranied vested tapsed outstanding
F rancial yoor e ped orCe per 1 May duting the diang th2 dung the 30 Apnl
of grant R awad award Date ol vestny . 2015 yEal ) yeer o yedr 2020
2018/19 125 il Juby 2020 671,316 - - - 671,316
2018119 1.25 il duly 2021 671316 - - - 671,316
72018119 125 i Juby 2022 671,316 - - - 671,316
201819 1725 I July 2023 671,316 - - - 671,316
201819 125 M July 2024 671,36 - - - 671,316

The weighted average fair value of these awards granted dunng the pernod was £1 2% per award.
The EIP 1PQO awards ware valued using the Black Scholes method with the following assumpuions:

- Expecied volatihiy (%) 14 2 {average volanf:ty across the tranches granted)

- Expecied life (years) 3 3 {average life across the tranches granied)

- Expected dwidend yieid (%) Nil

Expected volatitty was determined by reference 1o the hisioncal volatifity of the FTSE Al Share Suppart Serwces Index, as thers

was nsuthcient lrading history in the Groups' shares. The expecied lie used is the vesting date of the award There s an
enutlement to receive dividends or dividend equivaleris. Management estirnate that 100% of the shares will vest.

Share awards under the DWF Group PLC EIP — Career level 1-3 award
This scheme i1s 10 incentvise senior employees for performance and additional contnbution 10 the Group. Additonally, as part of the
RCOD acqusimon, shares are ringlenced for future grant 1o employees of the acquired business which fall under this award.

In August 2019, awards were granted 1o ncentivise senior employees and, 1n teth January 2020 and Apnil 2020, awards were
granted 10 mcentivise RCD employees.

T flumber of o Number of
shares fo shares far

which awards Awalds Awvards Awaids which awards

Share Exercise outstanding gramed vesied lapsed outstanding

Finaneel year price per prce per 1 May gunng the dunng the duirg the 30 April
of granrt ~ avard award {Jate of vesiing 2mo year yeRt yeai 2020
200920 el Janoary 2021 — 04090 - = 104,190
2019/70 119 M January 2022 - 104,180 - - 104,180

2019/20 119 Nl January 2023 - 104,190 - - 104,190

2019720 119 Ml January 2024 - 104,190 - - 104,130

2019720 118 il Janwary 2075 - 104,180 - - 104,130

2019/20 125 Nl September 2020 - 150,01 - - 150,011

2019420 125 Mil July 2021 - 449,807 - - 449 807

2019/20 125 N July 2022 - 449,80/ - - 449,807

208720 125 N July 2023 - 449,807 - - 449,807

2019/20 125 N Juby 2024 - 449,807 - - 449,807

2019/20 125 il July 2025 - 299797 - - 299,797

2019420 175 Nit - Seplember 2020 - 42,655 - - 42 655

2018/20 125 Nt July 2021 - 127900 - - 127900

231970 125 NIl July 7022 127800 - - 127300

2019/20 125 Ml July 2023 - 127300 - - 127,900

2019720 125 Nl July 2024 - 127900 - - 127900

2019/20 125 N July 2075 - 85,245 - - 85,245

The wawghted average fa valug of these awards granted during the penod was £124 per award
Career level 13 award awards are vatued using the Black Scholes method with the following essumptions.

~ Expecied volathty (%) 14 5 {average volatibity acriss the tanches grantsd)
- Fapentca s tyears) 3 0 laverage e aoross the anchas granted
- Dapectad dividend yield (99 BNd
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Expected volailty was determined by reference Lo the histoncal volatihty of the FTSE All Share Support Services Index, as there
was nsufficient trading hosiory 1 the Groups' shares The expectad hie used i the vesting date of the award There 1s an
entilement o recewve dridends of didend equivetents on seme af the awards Management estimate that 80-100% oi
performance condilons are met and there 1s between 525% attouon over the vesung period.

Share awards under the DWF Group PLC FIP - Long-Term incentive Plan ("LTIP)
The Group incentrases its Executive Board with long-term reward based on challenging performance targeis. Awards were granied
to the Execunve Board membeis ia the year.

.-\J:.;v;t:m of Humber of

shares for shares for

wettch awaands Aawvards Saaards Awaitty  which awards

Share Exertise ouisianding granted vesied lapsads cutstanding

Finzncral year pICE DEr pnce per 1 May duiing the dunng ihe duning the 30 Apri!
of grant . 3‘,"3@ ) B awa;d B Daie of vesung 2ma year yeal vear .?020
2019/20 114 Nt July 2020 - 517659 - - 517,699

2019/20 113 Nl July 2027 - 517699 - - 517699

2019720 119 NH July 2022 - 517699 - - 517699

2019/20 119 il July 2023 - 517698 - - 517699

2019/20 119 Nl July 2024 - 517698 - 517659

The weighted average fair value of these awards was £119

The LTIP frae share awards are valued veing the Black Scholes method with the following assumptions

- Expacied volatibty (%) 12.8 laverage volaulily across ithe tranches granted)
~ Expecied Me (years) 3.0 (average iz acrass the ranches granted)
— Expected dividend yield (%) 50

Expected valaulity was determined by reference to the historical volatility of the FTSE All Share Support Services Index. as there
was nsufficient rading history n the Groups' shares The expected Iife used is the vesting date of the award ihere s no
entitlement o recewve dividends o dvidend equivalenis on the awards Management esumate that 80% of perfermance condiians
are mel angd theie is betwesn 25% 2unton ove! the vesung penod

Share awards under the DWF Group PLC EIP - Promation award

The Group may incentivise 115 employess on promouon with a share award from this scheme.

Number of

Numter ¢

shares lor shares Tor

wh.ch gwards Awarrls Awards Awzids which awargs

Share Exercise outsianding granied vesied lapsed outstanding

Financial yaar i Ce per pice ped i May dunng the durnng 1he dunng the 30 Apni
_E_)_F_ Gifﬂl o - awadd auﬁrg_ Date of vesung o 72[)]‘17” . year yeal yrar 77772_0_?0_

2019770 124 il January 2071 - 872743 - - 87243

2019720 124 Ml Jenuary 2022 - 87243 - 87243

2019/20 174 il Junuary 2023 - 87243 - 87243

2019720 174 il January 2024 - 87243 - - 87243

2019/20 124 il January 2025 - 87243 - - 87243

2019/20 119 Nl Auvgust 2020 - 61,742 - - 61,742

2019/2G 119 [N August 2021 ~ 61,742 - - 61,742

2019/20G 119 Nl August 2022 - 64,742 - - 61,742

2019/20 119 Nil August 2023 - 61,742 - - 61,742

20019720 119 [l August 2024 - 61,742 - - 61,742

The weighted average fan value of these awards was £1.19

The promouon share awards are valued using the Black Scholes method with the lollowing assumptions

- Expected volauhity (%) 13.0 {average volatihily across the iranches granted)
- Expected life {years) 3 U laverage e across the tranches grantedt
- Expected divdend yielg (%) S 0

Expected volauMy was delermimad by reference 1o the hisioncal volabiiy of the FTSE All Share Support Sedvices Index, as there
was msullicient wedmg busiory w1 the Gronps’ shaves The expecled bie used is the vesung date of the award There s nno
entitlemant 1o recene dividanas or dvidend equivalents on the awards Management estmate that 80% of gerfur nance condibions
are met and there s 25% atinhon over the vesung penod.

1aday 2081839
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

25. Share-based payments continued
Share awards under the DWF Group ple BAYE - 1PO award
M IPO, awards were granted 1o chgtite employeeas

pe Ber of fumber ol

shares 1or shares tor

vahich dveards fowards ovards Awvedl (s which awards

Share Exarcse outsiandng granted vesied lapsed autstanding

Fnarcral year price per price por 1 Miay duning lie dunng the Suinig the 30 Apnil
Ofﬂni L award v__.;wawj 2‘}1'32'_“_5‘_“_'}9“#,4_‘_ 2614 yea o yeat year 2020
201819 125 nhl July 2070 5,554,568 : - - 5,554,568
201819 125 ril July 2021 5,554,568 - 5,554,568
2019720 119 M August 2021 - 312,675 - - 312,675
2019/20 119 NE August 2072 - 3124675 - 312,675

The weightled average far value of these awards was €125
The BAYE 1PQ awards are valued using the Black Scholes method witn the foliowing assumplions:

- Expecied volatity {%) 15 0 average valatlily across the tranches granted)
- Expecied e (years} 1.5 (avereoe liiz aoress the tranches granted)
- Expected dwidend yield {%) 5 0

Expected volalility was delennined by reierence to the histoncal volzulity of the FTSE Al Share Suppart Services Index. as there
was insulficient trading histary in the Groups' shares The expected lile used is the vesung dale of the award There 1s no
antitlement to recewve dividends o: dividend cquivalents on the awards. Management estimale there 1s 25% attntion over the
vesting period.

Share awards under the DWF Group ple BAYE - free-share award
The Group incentivises its employees for additonal cantributions from this scheme

Number of

MNurber ;;
shires ior shares tor
wwhich awards Awaics Aarvgids Awards  which swards
Share Cxorcise outstanding granteg vested Tapsed outstanding
Financial yeai pHCe per pnce per 1 May dunng ihe dunng the during 1he 30 Apxl
of grant awardd awward Date of vesung 2019 wear yeat yeoar 2020
2019720 124 Nil - December 2021 - 9730 - 9730
2015/20 124 NIl December 2022 - 9730 - 97301

The weighted average fair value of these awards granted duning the penod was €1 24 per award.
The BAYE free-share awards were valued using the Black Scheles method with the following assumpt-lar»s.‘

- Expected volatility {%) 21 0 (avarage velatilty across the tranches granied)
- Expected bfe tycars) 1.0 {average e across the tranches grantad)
- Expected dividend vield { %) Nil

Expected volatihity was deterrruned by reference 1o the histoncal volstility of the FTSE All Share Suppart Services Index, as
there was nsufficient trading hustory in the Groups' shares The expecied hfe used 15 the vesting date of the award. Thercs
no entitferment 10 receive dividends of dradend equivatents Manegement estmate that 100% of the shares wll vesi

26. Related parties and ultimate controlling party
The Chrectors are not aware ¢f any related party transactions other than those disclosed in this paragraph.

As 3 member of the Executive Board, Jason Fordis @ related pariy of the Company [0 July 2017 July 2018 and July 2019 loan
agreements [the ‘duly 2017 Loan Agicement’, the "July 2018 Loan Agreerment’ and the July 2019 Loan Agreement respectively)
were execuled between DWE LLP and six lormer directors of Trson Global Limited, ncluding Jason Ford twhe at the bme of the
agreements was 3 member of DWE LLPY together, the "Borrowers’) As &1 30 Apnl 2020, \he 1013l aggregate outstanding loan
amount owed by the Borrowers 1o DWFE LLP under these agreements was £831,602 (2078, £398,051) The Botrowers are jointiy
and severally bable under those ican ayreements

In March 2017 DWW LY and Jason ford ontered inta a loan agrecment, pursuant 1o which DWFE LLP provided e loan ol £100.000 10
Jason Ford for the puipose of repayment by Jason Ford of a professional corporaie investment loan made avalabie by Barclays Bank
plc to Jason Ford in December 7015 1 furd 2 shareholder loan o Triton Globsl Limited The outstanding loan amount owed by Jason
Ford to DWF LLP a5 a1 30 Apnl 2020 was £100,000 (2019 £106,000).

in the opinicn of the Wirectors, thers 1S ro controfing party of DWWk Group ple
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27. Xey management personnel
Compensation paid to key management personnel

15 |

T ) . T T T 2020 o |8

000 £7900 ‘:

Remuneration of the PLC Board o T o - '9

Short term employee benefits 1,420 175 '
Post-employment bencfus 60 P

Share-_lgased paymenis 1328

2,808 182 o

Key management personnel compnse of the PLC Board of Dureclors ?’i

m

28. Employee information and their pay and benefits

The average number of persons employed by the Group Gncluding Executive Directors) dunng the year, analysed by category, and

ihe aggregate payroll costs of these persons were 35 folows

2020 209

. . s N N

Legal advisers i S T - 1,980 1676
Suppor statl 1,341 1,039
- /T h B 3.321 2715
T B £'000 £000
Wages and salsiies T T B 93576 110,156
Social secunly costs 11,870 11,369
Connbuuens o defined contnbuvon plang o 6,683 4,854
T o 212.235 126,379

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates dehined contnbution pensian plans. The amounts charged 1o the income staterment in respect of the scheme
represents contnbunons payable in respect of the accounung penod. The tetel annual pension cost for the defined conribution
scheme was £6,68% 000 at 30 Apiil 2020 (30 Apnl 2019, £4,854.000) and the outstanding balance at year end was £979,000 at

30 Apnil 2020 130 Aprl 2019: £914,000).

29. Cash generated from operations
a) Cash generated/{used} in operations before adjusting items

Profit before 1ax including loss from discontinued operations
Adjusimenis for.

Impairment

Amaortisation of acquired intangible assets

Depreciation of ngnt-of-use asset

Other depreciation and amor USalion

Gain ¢n bargan purchase
Non-underlying items
Share-basad payments expense
Interest payabie ¢n leases

Net finance expense
‘Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Increase in trade and other recenables

Increase in trade and other payables

|HCIG&!SG I PFCVISIONS

Decieass o amounts due 10 membears of partnerships i the Gioup

Cash generamd.’(us;ﬂ}rin aperations before adjusting items

2020 2019
£°000 0G0
13,897 12.322
1,036 -
1,510 -
11,580
6,175 5,365
(25,084) -
7632 12,569
11,599 1,202
2.047 -
L 1,905 2131
- - 32,297 33389
{18,726} (24,601)
15,125 1,455
233 1.210
B (4,771] {22.198)
- 74188 (30349

SIS [SBLRULY

U0 8LIOL U 13ULD)



*] 50 OWF Group plc _
Annalrepar: and I neeant sinements 2670

Consoli(lﬂtcd notes to the financial statements continued

29. Cash generated from operations continued
Analysis of cash and cash eguaalents and other intaregy teannig toans and boriowings

1 ey ) Cxchange Nen-casr 30 Aprl

209 Casit How movement mouemeant 2020

L e e €oce €000 €000 eCo9 €000

“Cash and cash equﬁems 10,8272 17943 38) - 28,727
Bank ioans (43851} {48,627} - {806} (93,279}
Suppler payments faciily sy 1,873 - e (310)
Total net debt {excluding [FRS 1{3) 38, 'H?] {28,706} (38} jtaje:sh {64,862}

Foliowing the impact of the current year transiion 10 IFRS 13 Leases {from 1AS 17 Leases - see note 1 21], net debt including lease
liabihues is £149,540,000

i May—m Exchange Non-cash 30 I\pnl
2018 Cash flow Mmovement MoVeMEn 2610
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £1060
Cash and cash equvalents T a T A 6.618 124) - 10,827
Bank loans 153,3584) 9,185 i3 345 143,851}
Supgpler payments facdity ) 4.130) _ 2647 - - 12,2823
Total net debt {excluding IFAS 16) T (54,096 18,450 an 345 35312
b} Free cash flows
' - T T T T 2020 013
£'000 £'000
Free cash flows T T
Operating cash flows before movemenis i warking capial . 32,297 33,589
Met warking capital movement (3.368) {21,936}
Amounis due to members of partnerships in the Group e . 2 24 | B {22.198)
Cash generated from/{used in) operations i)efore ad;ustmg items B 24,158 {10,545)
_Repayment of lease liabilives . o iz2s54) -
- - - T B , ] 11,504 10.545)
Met interest pand ' T (4,192) 2,112)
Tax paid {4,309} (50)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3.520) {4,195}
Purchase of other intangible asgets _ {4118) (1,222}
Free cash Hows T T . o {4 633) 118,129
c) Working capital measures
- 2020 " am9”
£008 £000
‘WP days e T ' o
Amounts recoverable from clients inrespect of unbilod revenue 64,379 53,996
Unbilled disbursements B o e 8,501 6.279
Total WP ' T 72,880 60,275
Pro-forma net revenue 330,340 272,361
WIP days 81 81
Debtor days .
frade recevables (net of allowance for doubtful recewvables) 108,727 86,022
")?her_{ecozvab es _ ) o . ~ 4,950 3 }Og
Total debtors ' ' ' ) o n3,677 91,130
Pro-forma net revenue 330.340 272.361
Debtor days T 125 122
Gross lock-up days
Total WP 72,880 BO275
Tols; deblors ) ) . o ~ 113,677 31,130
Total gross lockup T 186557 151,405
Pro-forma net revenue e j 330,340 277,361
Gross lock-up days T ' T 206 203

Pro forma net revenue includes revenug frem scquist ons o0 a full yvear pro foirma baws
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30, Amounts due to members of partnerships in the Group

151

Amounts due to members of partnerships in the Group comprize unallecated reserves vathin equity, members’ capstal and other

amounts due to membeis classiied as labiiues as follows

Mombers”  Other amounts

Total amourts
due to Membors
of parinershens

capstal  due o Members n thi Group

L o - _ K oo £609 oo
At 1 May 2019 10,679 77397 3RAO71
Members’ remunaralion charged as an expensa - 38.808 38,808
Introduced Ly the Members 5,938 - 5.938
Repayments of capital {3.386) - 3.386)
Drawings - 143579 {43579
At 30 April 2020 i13.231 22,621 35,852
- - - T T o T Toiet amourts
due 1o Membe:s

Peimbess’ Qihar amounils Gl e rershiog

capual due 10 Members 11 1he Groun
e . _ &Gco £O000 0800

At 1 May 2018 250N b.644 35,715
Mombers' remuneration charged gs an sxpense - 31,014 31,014
Allocabion of retainad profir - 42 537 42,537
Introduced by the Members 4,732 - 4,732
Repayments of capital (23,1249} - {23,124
Drawings ~ o ) - (52,803) (57.803)

At 30 April 2019 10.679 27392 38,071

The average number of members dunng the year and members’ remuneration charged as an expense dunng the year was

as follows
T ] - - TTaoze T 2o
Average number of Members of partnerships held by the Group during the year 366 249
] - - £000 000
Mermbers' profit share charged as an expensc 38,808 31,004
Pro-forma rewised compensation model adjusiment _ ) B {38,808) {36,970)
- (5,956}
Partner annua! bonus charged as an expense - o L _ - {500
Revised compensation model adjustment - (6,456)

[0 allow tar greater comparability of hnancial performance, a revised compensaton madel adjusiment is calculated for each relevent
penod on the same basis as s described in the (PO Prospectus. The ediustments refleci the impact of the revised compensaton
madel for Members of the Partnerships held by the Group as)if the revised compensation model had beenin place duning the

nre-iPO penog
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Consolidated notes to the financial statements continued

31. Events after the reporting period

Directorate changes

On 29 May 2020, Andrew Leaitberanc :nformed the Board of tis intenton 1o steo down as Group Cheef Executive Oicer with
immedaie effect Sir Nigel Knowles assurned the role of Group Cheel Executive Gificer and Chns Sulfivan, the Seriar Independent
Dnractor, was appointed as mierm Chairman on the same day

On the 31 July 2020, iollowing the successlul completon of a process led oy the Nominauon Cammimiee 10 e a nevs Chaw, the
Company anncunced that Jonathan Bloomer would join the Board as Charman veth ellect from 1 August 2020 On the sarre day,
Chns Sullivan was appomnied as Deputy Chawman and continues 1o act as Semor independent Director

The Company mtends 10 announce on 8 September 2020 the following appomtmeants with eflect from 22 Octaber 2020

- Matthew Doughty &5 Group Chiei Operating Gificer of DWF Group ple. Matthew Doughty waill step down as Pertner Duector at

the same tme; and
- Following a thorough internal recrutment process, Micnele Ciccheln and Seerma Bains as Partner Diectors of DWFE Group pic

The position of Partner Director is designated by the Board as a Non-independent, Non-Executive Director position

A Partner Director represenis the ganners of DWF Law LLP and DWF LLP &nd 1S therefore a partner shareholder representative on
tha Board.

Discontinuation and scale back programmes

In a trading statement on 9 July 2020, the Board announced further closures and scaling back prograrnimes in Brusseis, Singapare
and Dubai as well as tor DWE Resource fa part of the Connecled Serwvices dvision) The results for these busingss are not treated as
discontrued in the perad as the decisian was taken afler the year end These operatons represented ¢ 15% of the Greup's
revenues and generated a £4 5m EBITDA loss in FY20
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Company statement of financial position
As of 30 Apnl 2020

2026

2y
Meden £000 t 000
Non-current assets T - T o S
Investments e 3 ? 235,605 ???_4_’%?_
Total non-current assets - T - o 235,&%7 227428
Current assets
liade and other recervables 3 156,201 100,243
Cashatbankandmhand o @3NS
Total current assets T - 156,324 113,358
Total assets 39%,929 330,786
Current liabilities T o
Trade snd other payables a $,338 735
Total current Iiahilities B T - T 77‘5;338 735
Non-current habilities T T T
Other interesi beaning Inans and borrowings B - 5 79,334 _ 38405
Total non-current liahilities B T - 79_3327 ' —33005_
Total liabilities o ) T 8ase72 | 39140
Net assets B T 303257 291,646
Equity
Share capial 6 3,246 3.000
Share premiurr: 6 88,610 63,167
Share-based payments reserve 9,672 1.053
Retaned earnings . 201,723 224,426
T 303.257 291,646

Total equity

Undes section 5408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company is exernpt from the requirement 1o present its own ncome

statement. The 1oss for thé penod to 30 Apnl 2020 was £12,886,000 (2019 £3.324,000)

These financial statements of DWF Group plc (registered number 11561594) were approved by the board on 7 September 2020.

Notes 110 10 are anntagral pant of these financial statements

" Chris Stefani
Chief Financial Officer

Sir Nigel Knowles
Group Cruef Executive Otheer
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Company statement of changes in

Year ended 30 Apnl 2020

cquity

Rotmicd
Share caixial  Shaig prermem ERIUTL TF Toial ey
i £ 000 _f_f}UD _f __{"QO(_J__ _ £
‘Balance an ETICO:pOf&(fOI:I—“ h - R - T o
Loss for the penod - - - 13,324, (3.324]
Total comprehensive expensa T o . o 3aa (3.324)
Issue of share cagnat 3,000 £3,167 o - 66,167
Treasury share sale - - ~ 2./07 2407
Merger of existing group - - 225,043 225043
Sharp based payments - - 1053 - 1883
A1 30 April 2019 3.000 63167 1053 224476 291,646
T T Srare-haved - T
Share Shars DA EntS Retainad
capiial premugm SESET v 2ANInG S Toial 2guily
£:000 £a0n 7000 £'000 £ 000
1 May 2019 B 3000 63167 1053 724476 791646
Loss for ihe year B - - ~ f12.886) {12,886}
Total comprehensive expense o T - s - {12.886) {12,586
Issue of share capiiat 246 25,443 - 25,689
Dendends pad - - - {2.811) 2,811]
Share-based peyments - - 2,619 - 8,619
At 30 April 2020 - 3,246 88,610 9,672 201,729 303,257

Nates 1 to 10 are an itegeal part of these financial staremenis.,
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Company notes to the financial statements

Year ended 30 Apnl 2020

1. Accounting policies

General information and basis of accounting

DWF Group plc (the "Company’), is 3 public imited company incorporated on 10 Septamner 7018 donwcided in the United Kingdom
under the Companies Act 2006, and registered in England The registered office 1s 20 Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 3AG

The Cornpany meets the definiton of 3 qualfying entity under FRS 100 Application of Financial Reporting Reauirermems” issued by
the FHC Accordingly, these finangial statements were prepared n accordance with Fingnaial Reporiing Standard 101 Heduced
Desclosure Framework’ ('FRS 101°). In preparing these hinanaial staterments, the Company applies the recognilon mezsurement and
disciosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopied by the EU CIFRS but maxkes amendments
whers necessasy in order 10 comply with the Compames Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 11
discloswe exemplions has been faken,

The tunctional currency of the Company 1s pounds sterling because that s e currency of the phmaly economuc enviranment in
which the Company operates. The Conpany financial statements are presenied n pounds sterhing Foregn operzvons are included
in zecordance wath the policies set oul below

Tre Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financisl Reporung Standaé 161 "The Financial
Beporing Standard apphcable in the UK and Bepublic of lreland’ ['FRS 1017 In these tinancal siatements, DVWE Greup plc has
appled the exemptions avanlable under FRS 101 10 respect of 1he following disclosures:

- Cash Flow Statement ang related notes,

- Compoarative penod reconciiations for tangible fixed assets, miangible assets, investment, and members” interest,

- Disciosures in respact of transactions with wholly owned subsidianes;

- Disclosures i respect of capital management,

- The eftects of new but not vet effective IFRSs,

- An addinenal statement of financial pesiion for the beginning of the earliest camparatwve penod following the retrospective
change mn accounting policy, the correction of crror, or the reclassification of nems v the financial statermnents,

- [nsclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel, and

- Disclosures of tansaclions with a management entity that provides key managemeni personnel servees 1o the Company.

As the consebdated hnancial stalements of the Group include the equivalent disclnsures, the Company has also taken the
exemplions under FRS 101 available in respect of the lollowing disclosures:

— Certam disclosures required by 'AS 36. Impainnent of assets 0 respect of the inparrment of yoodwill and ndefinite iife
intanqible assels:

-~ Cenan disclosures required oy \FRS 3: Business combinations i respect of business combinat:ons undertaken by the
Comparry, aned

- Cenain disctosures required by IFRS 13: Tar Value Measurement and the disciosures required by (FRS 7 Financisl
instrument Disclosures.

As tha consohdated financial statements of the Group include the equivalent disclosures. DWE Group plc has also taken the
exemplions under section 40B8{4) of the Companies Act 2006, not 10 piesent its indsidual ncorme statement snd related noles as
part of these financial statemenis.

The accounting policy set out below has, unless otherwise slated, been apphed consistently to all penods presanted in the
Company financial statements. The accounting nolcies in note 1 of the consoldated noics o the hirencizl statements of DWFE
Group ple also apply to the parent company.

1.1 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subisidiaries are stated at cost less prowision for any snpacmeantin value

2. Investment

2070 2019

£'600 £7000
Investments B B
Al the stari of the year 227428 -
Addinens _ 8.177 227428
At the end of the year T ) T r3s608 227478

Additions in the year endad 30 Apnf 2020 relates o the ncorparation of the Group’s US hoidisg company DWF Group (US) £1C and
the related acquisition of Mindcrest inc togeiher withy, mter 3hia. the push down of the snare-based pavment expense 10 ennty’s hat
the employees provide serwices 1o

O 11 darch 2009 DWF Group gl ssacd ardmary shaees it @ share-lor share exchange with the sharcholders of DWFE Holdings
Limied Consequently, DWF Group ple directy ovng 100% of DWFE Holdings Limiied Sea note 8 tor more niormation
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Comp;my noltes to the financial statements continued

3 Trade and other receivables

g

Czez0
£0040 £000
—Er:%'mums EJ:E(EH ;@aiary undertakings® - T ) o - 15;8? ﬁ(ﬁ&d';
Prepayroents and accrued ncome o 3 -
o S e T 156:201 ) R)O?;l:s
©oAmouUnts due iem et subsidisnes are mierest free unsecwed and repayable oa demand
4. Trade and other payables
o . T T Tzo2e R
. _ Beee o 000
Trade payables 520 -
Other payables 3 3
Qther 1axation and social securiiy 1,386 149
Accruals 2,189 523
_Amwounis due o subsidiary undertakings® ] 5,240 -
- ) o o - 3938 735
T AMQUNS due 1o subSithary undatiakings are inlerest liee and repayable on demand.
5 Other interest hearing loans and borrowings
Funher detals on the Company’s RCF can be faund on the consoldated financial statemenis note 71
6. Share capital
T - Wkord!ﬂal\,' - Sharc— T
Number shares prencum Tonai
o ol 1p each £000 £000 A
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares I T
On incorporation 1 - - -
Shares ssued 293,999,999 3.000 63 167 66,167
At 30 April 2019 300,0001000 3,000 R 167 66,167
Shares issued in acquisiuon of Rousaud Costas Duran S.L.PU 19,525,927 195 19,037 19,232
Shares issued in acquisition of Minderest Inc 5,028,726 51 6,406 6,457
324,554,653 3.246 88,610 91,856

At 30 April 2020

7. Employee information and Directors’ remuneration

The Company had no eimployees (other than Direciors) employed dunng the year No Directors received remungralion m respect 10

services 1o the Company In the year {2019 £nil}

3. Related parties

The Company has taken the advaniage of the exemption to not tiscfose the ransactions between the wholly owned o controlled

Broup Companies

9. LHtimate parent company and parent company of Group

In the opinion of the Directors. there 1s no contiolling party of DWF Group plc

10 Events after the reporting period
Directorate changes

On 29 May 2020, Andrew Leaitherland informed the Board of his intention 1o step down s Groun Chue! Execubve Officer vaith
inrmediate efiect Sir Nigel Knowles assumed the role of Group Chief Executive Gtticer and Chris Sulbvan, the Servor Independent

Direclor, was appoinied as intenm Chairman on the same day.

Ory the 31 Juiy 2020, following the suecessiul completion of a process led by the Norminatron Commutiee 1o hie a new Chair, the
Cornpany announced that Jonathen Bloomer would jom the Board as Chairman vt effect fram 1 August 2020 On the same day.
Chris Sullvan was appointed as Deputy Charman and continues 10 act 25 Senior Independent Director

The Company miends 1o announce on 8 Seplemtet 2020 the following appomuments wat eflect from 22 Ociobe: 2006

- Matthew Doughty as Group Cheel Operating Officer of DWFE Group ple. Matthew Daoghiy will siep dowwn as Pariner Drector at

e same tme; and

- Following a thorough mternal recouament process, Michele Ciechetii ard Seema Bans as Panner Dueciors of DWFE Group ple
The sositon of Partner Direcion s designated by the Board as & Nonsndepe-ddent Noo-Fxervnye Diecton posihon

A Partner Director represents the partners of DWF Law LLP and DWI LLP and 1s therefore a partrer shatenolder representative on

the Board
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Sharecholder information

2020 Financial Calendar

24 Saptember 2020 Ex dwidend date for the linal dvidend

25 Seprember 2020 Record date 1o be ehgible for the finzl
dnndend

21 October 2020 Annual General Meeting
5 November 2020 Payment date tor ihe linal dividend

Oecemibier 2070

Annnuncemedi of mierm resolis

Shareholder enquiries

The Company’s share regisier 15 maintamned by Equiniu
Sharehalders with quenes relating 1o their shareholding should
contact Equiniu as follows

By post
Equimn Limited, Azpect House, Spencer Ruad, Lancing,
West Sussex, BNIG 6DA

Overseas tielephone:
+A4 {01121 415 7047

UK Telephone:*
0371 384 2030

Ontine:

help sharev-ew co.ux
{from here you can emall Equiniu securely with your enquiry}

‘Lings are open lom ¢ 00am 1o S 00pm UK time. Monday 1o Friday

Direct credit of dividend payment
Diwvidends can be paid auiomatcally into your bank or buitding
society account,

The benetits of doing thes are that vou will:

- recerve cleared tunds i your bank account on the
payment date

— avoid postal delays

- temova the nsk of your chegues getung lost in the post

To take advantage of this seewice or tor further detals, contact
Equimit or visil shareview co uk

For overseas shareholders, a separate dvidend service provided
by Equiniti enables those hving overseas 1o have their duidend
pad Into thew bank account, ior a small fee For further detals
please contact Equimt Or vistt sharewiew co.uk

Annual General Meeting {'/AGM'}

The AGM of the Company will be held 31 2 00pm on 21 Oactobor
2020 1o be beld at and broadeastbve trom the office of the
Company at 70 Fenchurch Streer, Landon, Ursted Xingadom,
CC3M 3A6

The Notice of AGM and a proxy form accompanes this Annuai
Repor: You can also find the Notice of AGM on the Company’s
website dwigroup .com/enfinvesiors

Electronic communications

Shaichotders can sign up tor gleciroric cornmunmcatons anbine

by registering with Shareview, the internet-based platform

provided by our Registrars, Equinit. n addiion 1o enabling

sharehialders (o tecewe caommunicalians by email, Shareview

proviges a facdity for shareholders 1o manage thewr shareholding

onling by sllowing them 10!

- recewe rading updates by email

— wiew therr shareholdings

- updaie ther records - including change of address

— vole n advance of company generzl meenngs To find ouwt
more abcut the services offered by Shareview please wsit
sharcview co.uk

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged 10 visit our website gwigroup.
comfensinves:ors wlich provides:

- Company news and information

~ our rmodel of Comptex, Connected and Managad Services
- the Company's agproach 10 operating responsdily

There 1s also a specific investors’ section which contains

uprio-date mformauon for shareholders, micluding

- comprehenswve share price information

- hrancial results

- access 10 cuirent and histoncal sharehglder documents,
such as s Annual Report.

Unsolicited telephone calls and correspondence
Shareholders should be wary of any unsobniied adwice, ofiers

ta buy shares at a discount, or offers of free repors about the
Company These are typicatly from overseas "brokers’ who targel
UK or US shaiehotders, offering 1o sell them what often turng
out 10 be wonrhless or high-nsk shares These operatons are
cammaonly known as boler rooms, and the brokers can be very
persisient and extremely persuasive

Shareholders are adwised 10 deal only wiih financiat services tirms
hat are authorised by the Financial Conduct Authonty (TCA)

You can ¢hedk it a firm s properly authonsed by the FCA by
wisting fea org uk/reqister If you do deal wiith an unauthonsed
firmy, you wall noi be ehigible to receve payment undes the
Finsncisl Services Compeansation Scheme if anything goes wrong.
for more detaled informahon on how you can protect yowrseli
from an invesiment scarm, of 10 renorl & scamy, Qo 16 fed urg uk/
consumers/scamsfrepant-scam-us or call 0800 113 5768
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Corporate information

Company name
UwwF Group pic

Registered number
England 11561524

Secretary and registered oftice
Maoile Stoker

BPWF Group plc

20 Fenchurch Street

London

EC3M 3AG

United Kingdom

companysecretal y@dwf law
dwigroup.com

Reqgistrar
Equiaiti Limiled
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

BN 60A
Urnted Kingdom

UK Tefephone * 0371 384 2030

Overseas telephene. +44 101127 415 7047

* Lnes are open fom 9.00am 10 5 00pm UK tine

honday 1o Friday

Statutory Auditor
Deloitte LLP

1 New Sireet Square
London

ECAA3HQ

United Kingdom

Corporate stockbrokers
Jefferies International Limited
100 Bishopsgate

Landon

EC2M 4JL

United Kingdorn

Stifel Nicolaus Europe Limited
150 Cheapside

London

EC2V GET

United Kingdom

Zeus Capital Limited
82 King Strest
Manchester

M2 aw0

United Kingdom

Principal UK bankers
HSBC UK Bank plc

8 Canada Square
tondon

£14 5HO

Urited Kingdom
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Principal offices

United Kingdom
42 (ueen Street
Belfast

BT16HL

One Snawhill
Snow Hill Quoensway
Birmingham

B4 6GA

Redelitf Quay

120 Redalid! Sueet
Bristol

BS1 6HU

No. 2 Lochnn Square
96 Fountainbridge
Edinturgh

EH3 90A

110 Queen Sirest
Glasgow
G13HD

Brdgewaler Place
Waler Lang
Leeds

L1511 5Dy

S 5t Paul’s Square
Oid Hall Street
Livergool

L3 SAE

20 Fenchureh Street
London
EC3M 3AG

I Scoil Place

2 Hardman Sueet
Manchesier

M3 3AA

2nd Flosr Cendral Square South
Orchard Sireet

MNewcastle upon lyne

ME1 3AZ

Argentina

DWF in assaciation with
VAGEDES & Asociados
Av Cendoba 487

Pisa G X

C10%48A0 Bucnos Aires
Argenina

fustralia

DWF

Lovel 36

Riverside Centre
123 Bagle Strec
Ansbane QLD 40C0
GPO Box /4
Brisbane QLD 4001

DWF

level 43

600 Bourke Stiect
Melbourne VIC 3000

PO Box 13221 Law Courts
VIC 8010

DWF Adjusting

Sule 114

Level 1

486 Lower Hewdelberg Boad
Lower Hewdelberg
Melbourne

VIC 3084

DWF

Sute 2

Level b

18 Honeysuckle Drive
Newgasile NSW 2300
PO Bax 2277

Dangar NSW 2309

DWF

Level 18

363 Georae Street
Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 260
Sydney NSW 2001

DWF Adjusting
Suie 1

Level 1

123 Midson Road
Tpping NSW 2121

Belgium

*ottice closing in early 2021
Svenue Lowze 523

3-1090 Brisssels

Belgium

Canada

1M1 (Queen Street East
Suite 450

loronto

O

MSC 152

France
137139 e de FUnversite

VYR00T Pans
France

Togue KNES

Germany
Recntsanwalisgesclischafi mibH
Linkstr 17

10785 Berln

Germany

Recnisamwalisgeselischiafi mbi
Habsburgernng 2

Westgate

5067 Cologne

Germany

Rechisanwaltsgesellschaft mbH
Konigsatlee 60 ¢

D-40212 Dusseldort

Germany

Rechtsanwalisgeseltschaft mbH
Prinzregentenstale 78

81675 Munich

Germanry

india

DWF Mindcrest
603/604 Block D
Weikfield [T-Citi Info Park
Magar Rd, Vadgaonsheri
Pune 411 014

india

lreland

5 George's Dock
1FSC

Dublin

itaily

Wia dei Bossi B
2021

Milano

Panama

DWF in association with
Fabrega Molino

BhMW Plaza

9th Floor

50 51

PO, Box (0816-00744
Panarma

Hep. of Panama

Poland

plac Stamstawa Matachowskiego 2
00-066 Warszawa

Poland

Qatar

Othice 01004
Meszanmine Floor
Tornada Tower
PO Box 9477
Ooha

Singapore

*office closing in early 2021
9 Rattles Place

Level 58 Republie Plaza
Simgapze G48619

LCCES T DRPNG
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Principal offices continued

Spain
Escoles Pies 107
08017 Barcelona

Serrano 116
28006 Madnd

Moratin 17
46002 Valencia

- Turkey OGE
{Ozkan Gurden Bingol Attorney

Partnership, Istanbull, in association

with DWFH

Spring Gz Plaza Meydan Sok.
No' 31

Masglak 31398

Istanbui

United Arab Emirates
Offices 901 & 904 Tower 2

Al Fauen Currency House DIFC
PO Hox 507104

Duba

EInited States of America

DWF in association with WSHB
1230 Peachiree Street

NE Sunte 929

Atlanta

GA 30309

DwWr

740 Waukegan Road Suile
340 Deerfield

IL 6005

DWF in association with WSHB
222 South Riverside Plaza Suite
640 Chicago

IL 60606

DWF Mindcrest
425 S, Financial Place
Suite 1100

Chicago

L, 60605

DWF in association with WSHB
40 Richards Avenue

3rd Flaor

Noivvalk

CT 06854

DWF in association with WSHB
901 Main Sueet

Suwite 3670

Dallas

TR 75202

DWF in association with WSHB
1805 Shea Cenier Dove

Suwite 700

Hightands Ranch

CO 89

DWF in association with WSHB
7112 Norih Fresno Sleeult

Suite 160

Fresno

CA Q3720

DWEF in association with WSHEB
505 Morth Brand Boulevard

Suite 1100

Glendate

CA 91203

DWF in association with WSHB
28871 Busmness Perk Court

Sune 200

Las Vegas

NY 89128

DWF in assaciation with WSHB
10960 Wilshire Boulevard

18k Floor

Las Angeles

CAgonz4

DWF in association with WSHB
701 Bnickell Avenue

Suite 1640

fdiarmin

FL 33131200

DWF in association with WSHEB
400 Connel Drve

Suite 1100

Berkeley Heights

M (7922

DWF Mindcrest

cla Regus

104 West 40th Street
Suites 400 and 500
New York, 10018

DWF in association with WSHR
685 Third Avenue

181h Floo

MNew York

Ny 10017

DWF in association with WSHB
1401 Whilow Pass Road

Suite 700

Cencord

Ca 94920

DWF in association with WSHB
BA Lborty Sree!

Suite 200

Aso VgD

CA Y2856

DWF in association with WSHEB
1760 Matke! Sueet

Surte 1007

Prilzdelpma

| Pagio3

DWF in association with WSHB
525 £ Camelback Road

Suite 450

Phoermx

AZ BEO16

DWF in association with W5SHB
12755 SW EGth Avenue

Suite 100

Poriland

OR 97223

DWF in association with WSHB
9333 Fairway View Place

Swite 200

Rancho Cucamonga

CAO1T730

DWF in association with WSHB
21804 Cactus Avenue

Suite 200

Riverside

CA 92518

DWEF in association with WSHB
50 Wast Broadway

Suite 1200

San Dego

CA 921N

DWF in association with WSHB
520 Pike Strest

Suite 1525

Seatile

WA 88101

DWEF in association with WSHB
1501 S. Church Avenue

Suite 200

Tampa

FL 33629

DWF in association with WSHB
199 West Hillcrest Drive

Suite 204

Thousand Ozks

CA 51360



DWE Grougp ple
Lovadlepo. i and hodng ot staicmants 240

This Roport e pnnied on
matenals winch are FSC2
certted from wel

managed foresis

These rndieadls canrae, EC-
iClemental Chitonne Tree) pulp
and aie 100 % rogvolabla



